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COMMONLY USED TERMS

The following select abbreviations, terms, or acronyms are commonly used or found in multiple locations in this report:

2023 IRP

2023 Settlement
Stipulation

2024 |daho Limited-
Issue Rate Case

2024 Oregon
Settlement
Stipulations

ADITC

AFUDC
AOCI

B2H

BCC

BLM
BPA
CAA
CO2
CPCN
CWA

EIS

EPA

ESA
Exchange Act
FCA

FERC

FPA

FSA

GAAP

GHG

GWW

HCC

IDACORP

Idaho Power

lda-West

IDEQ
IERCO

IFS

2023 Integrated Resource Plan

The settlement stipulation for Idaho Power's 2023 Idaho
general rate case

A limited-issue rate case Idaho Power filed with the IPUC
in May 2024

Settlement stipulations approved by the OPUC in
September 2024 settling Idaho Power's general rate case
filed with the OPUC in December 2023

Accumulated Deferred Investment Tax Credits

Allowance for Funds Used During Construction

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income

Boardman-to-Hemingway, a planned 300-mile, high-
voltage transmission line project between a substation
near Boardman, Oregon, and the Hemingway substation
near Boise, Idaho

Bridger Coal Company, a jointly-owned investment of
IERCo

U.S. Bureau of Land Management

Bonneville Power Administration

Clean Air Act

Carbon Dioxide

Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity

Clean Water Act

Environmental Impact Statement

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Endangered Species Act

U.S. Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended
Idaho Fixed Cost Adjustment

Federal Energy Regulatory Commission

Federal Power Act

Forward sale agreement

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America

Greenhouse Gas

Gateway West, a high-voltage transmission line project
between a substation located near Douglas, Wyoming,
and the Hemingway substation located near Boise, Idaho

Hells Canyon Complex, composed of the Brownlee,
Oxbow, and Hells Canyon facilities

IDACORP, Inc., an Idaho Corporation

Idaho Power Company, an Idaho Corporation

Ida-West Energy Company, a subsidiary of IDACORP,
Inc.

Idaho Department of Environmental Quality

Idaho Energy Resources Co., a subsidiary of Idaho Power
Company

IDACORP Financial Services, Inc., a subsidiary of
IDACORP, Inc.

IPUC
IRP

Jim Bridger plant

kWh

LTICP

MATS
MD&A

MMBtu

Moody's

MW

MWh

NAV

NEPA

NMFS

North Valmy plant

0&M
OATT
OPUC
PCA
PPA
PSPS
PURPA
REC
RFP

SEC

SIP

SMSP

SWIP-N

USFWS
Western EIM

WMP
WPSC

Idaho Public Utilities Commission

Integrated Resource Plan

Jim Bridger power plant

Kilowatt-hour

IDACORP 2000 Long-Term Incentive and Compensation
Plan

Mercury and Air Toxics Standards

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations

Million British Thermal Units

Moody'’s Investors Service

Megawatt

Megawatt-hour

Net Asset Value

National Environmental Policy Act
National Marine Fisheries Service

Idaho Power’s jointly-owned coal-fired generating plant in
Valmy, Nevada

Operations and Maintenance

Open Access Transmission Tariff

Public Utility Commission of Oregon
Idaho-jurisdiction Power Cost Adjustment
Power purchase agreement

Public safety power shutoff

Public Utility Regulatory Policies Act of 1978
Renewable Energy Credit

Request for proposals

U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission

State Implementation Plan

Security Plans for Senior Management Employees | and Il

Southwest Intertie Project-North, a planned 285 mile,
500kV transmission line between the Robinson Summit
Substation near Ely, Nevada, and the Midpoint Substation
near Jerome, ldaho

U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service

Energy imbalance market implemented in the western
United States

Wildfire Mitigation Plan

Wyoming Public Service Commission
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CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

In addition to the historical information contained in this report, this report contains (and oral communications made by IDACORP and Idaho Power may
contain) statements that relate to future events and expectations, such as statements regarding projected or future financial performance, power
generation, cash flows, capital expenditures, regulatory filings, dividends, capital structure or ratios, load forecasts, strategic goals, challenges,
objectives, and plans for future operations. Such statements constitute forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation
Reform Act of 1995. Any statements that express, or involve discussions as to, expectations, beliefs, plans, objectives, assumptions, or future events or
performance, often, but not always, through the use of words or phrases such as "anticipates," "believes," "could," "estimates," "expects," "intends,"
"potential," "plans," "predicts," "preliminary," "projects," "targets," "may," "may result," or similar expressions, are not statements of historical facts and
may be forward-looking. Forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance, involve estimates, assumptions, risks, and uncertainties,
and may differ materially from actual results, performance, or outcomes. In addition to any assumptions and other factors and matters referred to
specifically in connection with such forward-looking statements, factors that could cause actual results or outcomes to differ materially from those
contained in forward-looking statements include those factors set forth in Part I, Item 1A - "Risk Factors" and Part Il, Item 7 - MD&A of this report,
subsequent reports filed by IDACORP and Idaho Power with the SEC, and the following important factors:

¢ decisions or actions by the Idaho and Oregon public utilities commissions and the FERC that impact Idaho Power's ability to recover costs and
earn a return on investment;

¢ changes to or the elimination of Idaho Power's regulatory cost recovery mechanisms;

¢ expenses and risks associated with capital expenditures and contractual obligations for, and the permitting and construction of, utility
infrastructure projects that Idaho Power may be unable to complete, are delayed, or that may not be deemed prudent by regulators for cost
recovery or return on investment;

¢ expenses and risks associated with supplier and contractor delays and failure to satisfy project quality and performance standards on utility
infrastructure projects, and the potential impacts of those delays and failures on Idaho Power's ability to serve customers and generate revenues;

« the rapid addition of new industrial and commercial customer load and the volatility of such new load demand, resulting in increased risks and
costs of power demand potentially exceeding available supply;

¢ the potential financial impacts of industrial customers not meeting forecasted power usage ramp rates or amounts;

¢ impacts of economic conditions, including an inflationary or recessionary environment and interest rates, on items such as operations and capital
investments, supply costs and delivery delays, supply scarcity and shortages, population growth or decline in Idaho Power's service area,
changes in customer demand for electricity, revenue from sales of excess power, credit quality of counterparties and suppliers and their ability to
meet financial and operational commitments and on the timing and extent of counterparties' power usage, and collection of receivables;

« changes in residential, commercial, and industrial growth and demographic patterns within Idaho Power's service area, and the associated
impacts on loads and load growth;

* employee workforce factors, including the operational and financial costs of unionization or the attempt to unionize all or part of the companies’
workforce, the cost and ability to attract and retain skilled workers and third-party contractors and suppliers, the cost of living and the related
impact on recruiting employees, and the ability to adjust to fluctuations in labor costs;

« changes in, failure to comply with, and costs of compliance with laws, regulations, policies, orders, and licenses, which may result in penalties
and fines, increase compliance and operational costs, and impact recovery associated with increased costs through rates;

« abnormal or severe weather conditions, wildfires, droughts, earthquakes, and other natural phenomena and natural disasters, which affect
customer sales, hydropower generation, repair costs, service interruptions, PSPSs and de-energization, liability for damage caused by utility
property, and the availability and cost of fuel for generation plants or purchased power to serve customers;

« advancement and adoption of self-generation, energy storage, energy efficiency, alternative energy sources, and other technologies that may
reduce Idaho Power's sale or delivery of electric power or introduce operational vulnerabilities to the power grid;

« variable hydrological conditions and over-appropriation of surface and groundwater in the Snake River Basin, which may impact the amount of
power generated by Idaho Power's hydropower facilities and power supply costs;

« ability to acquire equipment, materials, fuel, power, and transmission capacity on reasonable terms and prices, particularly in the event of
unanticipated or abnormally high resource demands, price volatility (including as a result of
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new or increased tariffs), lack of physical availability, transportation constraints, outages due to maintenance or repairs to generation or
transmission facilities, disruptions in the supply chain, or reduced credit quality or lack of counterparty and supplier credit;

* inability to timely obtain and the cost of obtaining and complying with required governmental permits and approvals, licenses, rights-of-way, and
siting for transmission and generation projects and hydropower facilities;

¢ disruptions or outages of Idaho Power’s generation or transmission systems or of any interconnected transmission systems, which can result in
liability for Idaho Power, increased power supply costs and repair expenses, and reduced revenues;

e accidents, electrical contacts, fires (either affecting or caused by Idaho Power facilities or infrastructure), explosions, infrastructure failures,
general system damage or dysfunction, and other unplanned events that may occur while operating and maintaining assets, which can cause
unplanned outages; reduce generating output; damage company assets, operations, or reputation; subject Idaho Power to third-party claims for
property damage, personal injury, or loss of life; or result in the imposition of fines and penalties;

e acts or threats of terrorism, acts of war, social unrest, cyber or physical security attacks, and other malicious acts of individuals or groups seeking
to disrupt Idaho Power's operations or the electric power grid or compromise data, or the disruption or damage to the companies’ business,
operations, or reputation resulting from such events;

¢ ldaho Power’s concentration in one industry and one region, and the resulting exposure to regional economic conditions and regional legislation
and regulation;

« unaligned goals and positions with co-owners of Idaho Power’s existing and planned generation and transmission assets;

« changes in tax laws or related regulations or interpretations of applicable laws or regulations by federal, state, or local taxing jurisdictions, and the
availability of expected tax credits or other tax benefits;

< ability to obtain debt and equity financing or refinance existing debt when necessary and on satisfactory terms, which can be affected by factors
such as credit ratings, reputational harm, volatility or disruptions in the financial markets, interest rates, decisions by the Idaho, Oregon, or
Wyoming public utility commissions, and the companies' past or projected financial performance;

< ability to enter into financial and physical commodity hedges with creditworthy counterparties to manage price and commaodity risk for fuel,
power, and transmission, and the failure of any such risk management and hedging strategies to work as intended, and the potential losses the
companies may incur on those hedges, which can be affected by factors such as the volume of hedging transactions and degree of price
volatility;

¢ changes in actuarial assumptions, changes in interest rates, increasing health care costs, and the actual and projected return on plan assets for
pension and other post-retirement plans, which can affect future pension and other postretirement plan funding obligations, costs, and liabilities
and the companies' cash flows;

* remediation costs associated with planned cessation of coal-fired operations at Idaho Power’s co-owned coal plants and conversion of the plants
to natural gas;

« ability to continue to pay dividends and achieve target dividend payout ratios based on financial performance and capital requirements, and in
light of credit rating considerations, contractual covenants and restrictions, cash flows, and regulatory limitations;

« adoption of or changes in accounting policies and principles, changes in accounting estimates, and new SEC or New York Stock Exchange
requirements or new interpretations of existing requirements; and

« changing market dynamics due to the emergence of day ahead or other energy and transmission markets in the western United States and
surrounding regions.

Any forward-looking statement speaks only as of the date on which such statement is made. N ew factors emerge from time to time and it is not possible
for the companies to predict all such factors, nor can they assess the impact of any such factor on the business or the extent to which any factor, or
combination of factors, may cause results to differ materially from those contained in any forward-looking statement. IDACORP and Idaho Power disclaim
any obligation to update publicly any forward-looking information, whether in response to new information, future events, or otherwise, except as required
by applicable law.
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AVAILABLE INFORMATION

IDACORP and Idaho Power make available free of charge on their websites their Annual Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q,
Current Reports on Form 8-K, and all amendments to these reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act as soon as
reasonably practicable after the reports are electronically filed with or furnished to the SEC. IDACORP's website is www.idacorpinc.com and Idaho
Power's website is www.idahopower.com. The contents of these websites are not part of this report.

Investors and others should note that IDACORP and Idaho Power announce material information about their business through a variety of means,
including filings with the SEC, press releases, public conference calls, and webcasts. The companies use these channels to achieve broad, non-
exclusionary distribution of information to the public and for complying with their disclosure obligations under Regulation FD. Therefore, IDACORP and
Idaho Power encourage investors, the media, and others interested in the companies to review the information the companies make available through
such channels.

Investors, the media, and others interested in IDACORP and Idaho Power may also wish to refer to the websites of the IPUC and OPUC at puc.idaho.gov
and oregon.gov/puc, respectively, to review documents filed by IDACORP, Idaho Power, and third parties with, and issued by, the respective
commissions. No information on the IPUC and OPUC websites is incorporated by reference into this report or into IDACORP's or Idaho Power's other
SEC filings.
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PART |
ITEM 1. BUSINESS

OVERVIEW

Background

IDACORP is a holding company incorporated in 1998 under the laws of the state of Idaho. Its principal operating subsidiary is Idaho Power. IDACORP is
subject to the provisions of the Public Utility Holding Company Act of 2005, which provides the FERC and state utility regulatory commissions with access
to books and records and imposes record retention and reporting requirements on IDACORP.

Idaho Power was incorporated under the laws of the state of Idaho in 1989 as the successor to a Maine corporation that was organized in 1915 and
began operations in 1916. Idaho Power is an electric utility engaged in the generation, transmission, distribution, sale, and purchase of electric energy
and capacity and is regulated by the state regulatory commissions of Idaho and Oregon and by the FERC. Idaho Power is the parent of IERCo, a joint-
owner of BCC, which mines and supplies coal to the Jim Bridger plant owned in part by Idaho Power. Idaho Power's utility operations constitute nearly all
of IDACORP's current business operations.

IDACORP’s other notable subsidiaries include IFS, an investor in affordable housing and other real estate tax credit investments, and Ida-West, an
operator of small PURPA-qualifying hydropower generation projects.

IDACORP’s and Idaho Power’s principal executive offices are located at 1221 W. Idaho Street, Boise, Idaho 83702, and the telephone number is (208)
388-2200.

UTILITY OPERATIONS

Background

Idaho Power provided electric utility service to approximately 649,000 retail customers in southern Idaho and eastern Oregon as of December 31, 2024.
Approximately 547,000 of these customers are residential. Idaho Power’s principal commercial and industrial customers are involved in food processing,
electronics and general manufacturing, agriculture, health care, government, education, and information technology. Idaho Power also provides irrigation
customers with electric utility service to operate irrigation pumps during the agricultural growing season. Idaho Power holds franchises, typically in the
form of right-of-way arrangements, in 71 cities in Idaho and 7 cities in Oregon and holds certificates from the respective public utility regulatory authorities
to serve all or a portion of 25 counties in Idaho and 3 counties in Oregon. Idaho Power's service area is shaded in the illustration on the following page
and covers approximately 24,000 square miles with an estimated population of 1.4 million.
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Idaho Power is under the jurisdiction (as to rates, service, accounting, and other general matters of utility operation) of the IPUC, the OPUC, and the
FERC. The IPUC and OPUC determine the rates that Idaho Power is authorized to charge to its retail customers. Idaho Power is also under the
regulatory jurisdiction of the IPUC, the OPUC, and the WPSC as to the issuance of debt and equity securities. As a public utility under the FPA, Idaho
Power has authority to charge market-based rates for wholesale energy sales under its FERC tariff and to provide transmission services under its OATT.
Additionally, the FERC has jurisdiction over Idaho Power's sales of transmission capacity and wholesale electricity, hydropower project relicensing, and
system reliability and security, among other items.

Regulatory Accounting

Idaho Power meets the requirements under GAAP to prepare its financial statements applying the specialized rules to account for the effects of cost-
based rate regulation, with the impacts of rate regulation reflected in its financial statements. Accounting for the economics of rate regulation impacts
multiple financial statement line items and disclosures. These principles sometimes result in Idaho Power recording expenses and revenues in a different
period than when an unregulated enterprise would record such expenses and revenues. In these instances, the amounts are deferred or accrued as
regulatory assets or regulatory liabilities on the balance sheet and recorded on the income statement when recovered or returned in rates or when
otherwise directed to begin amortization by a regulator. Additionally, regulators can impose regulatory liabilities upon a regulated company for amounts
previously collected from customers that are expected to be refunded. Idaho Power records regulatory assets or liabilities if it expects the amounts will be
reflected in future customer rates, based on regulatory orders or other available evidence.

Consistent with orders and directives of the IPUC, unless contrary to applicable income tax guidance, Idaho Power does not provide deferred income tax
expense or benefit for certain income tax temporary differences and instead recognizes the tax impact currently (commonly referred to as flow-through
accounting) for rate making and financial reporting. Therefore, Idaho Power's effective income tax rate is impacted as these differences arise and reverse.
Idaho Power recognizes such adjustments as regulatory assets or liabilities if it is probable that the amounts will be recovered from or returned to
customers in future rates.
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Business Strategy

IDACORP is committed to its focus on competitive total returns and generating long-term value for shareholders. IDACORP’s business strategy
emphasizes Idaho Power as its core business, as Idaho Power's regulated utility operations are the primary driver of IDACORP's operating results.
IDACORP’s strategy is focused on four areas: keeping employees safe and engaged, growing financial strength, improving Idaho Power's core business,
and enhancing Idaho Power’s brand. IDACORP's board of directors has reviewed and affirmed IDACORP’s long-term strategy. In executing on these four
strategic cornerstones, IDACORP seeks to balance the interests of shareowners, Idaho Power customers, employees, and other stakeholders. Idaho
Power is committed to working for strong, sustainable financial results by continuing to safely provide reliable, affordable, clean energy to its customers
from diversified generation resources.

Rates and Revenues

Idaho Power generates revenue primarily through the sale of electricity to retail and wholesale customers and the provision of transmission service. The
prices that the IPUC, the OPUC, and the FERC authorize Idaho Power to charge for electric power and services are critical factors in determining
IDACORP's and Idaho Power's results of operations and financial condition. In addition to the discussion below, more information on Idaho Power's
regulatory framework and rate regulation can be found in the “Regulatory Matters” section of Part Il, ltem 7 — MD&A and Note 3 — “Regulatory Matters” to
the consolidated financial statements included in this report.

Retail Rates: Idaho Power's rates for retail electric services are generally determined on a “cost of service” basis. Rates are designed to provide an
opportunity for Idaho Power to earn a reasonable return on investment as authorized by regulators, after recovery of allowable operating expenses,
including depreciation on capital investments. Idaho Power regularly evaluates the need to request changes in its retail electricity price structure through
the use of general rate cases, power cost adjustment mechanisms in Idaho and Oregon, an FCA mechanism in Idaho, balancing accounts, and also uses
tariff riders, and subject-specific filings to recover its costs of providing service and to earn a return on investment. Retail prices are generally determined
through formal ratemaking proceedings that are conducted under established procedures and schedules before the issuance of a final order. Participants
in these proceedings include Idaho Power, the staffs of the IPUC or OPUC, and other interested parties. The IPUC and OPUC are charged with ensuring
that the prices and terms of service are fair, are non-discriminatory, and provide ldaho Power an opportunity to recover its prudently incurred or allowable
costs and expenditures and earn a reasonable return on investment. The ability to request rate changes does not, however, ensure that Idaho Power will
recover all of its costs or earn a specified rate of return, or that its costs will be recovered in advance of or at the same time when the costs are incurred.

In addition to general rate case filings, ratemaking proceedings can involve charges or credits related to specific costs, programs, or activities, as well as
the recovery or refund of amounts deferred or accrued under specific authorization from the IPUC or OPUC. Deferred amounts are generally collected
from, and accrued amounts are generally refunded to, retail customers through the use of base rates or supplemental tariffs. Outside of base rates, three
of the most significant mechanisms for recovery of costs are the power cost adjustment mechanisms, FCA mechanism, and energy efficiency riders. For
more information on these mechanisms, see Note 3 — “Regulatory Matters” and Note 4 — “Revenues” to the consolidated financial statements included in
this report.

Retail Energy Sales: Weather, seasonal customer demand, energy efficiency, customer generation, customer growth, and economic conditions all
impact the amount of electricity that Idaho Power sells as well as the costs it incurs to provide that electricity. Idaho Power's utility revenues are not
earned, and associated expenses are not incurred, evenly during the year. Idaho Power’s retail energy sales typically peak during the summer irrigation
and cooling season, with a lower peak during the winter heating season. Extreme temperatures increase sales to customers who use electricity for
cooling and heating, and mild temperatures decrease sales. Availability of water and variations in temperatures and precipitation during the agricultural
growing season impact electricity sales to customers who use electricity to operate irrigation pumps. Alternative methods of generation, including
customer-owned solar and other forms of distributed generation, have the potential to decrease Idaho Power sales to customers. Also, development of
new technologies and services to help energy consumers manage energy in new ways could continue to alter demand for Idaho Power's electric energy.
Approximately 95 percent of Idaho Power’s retail revenue originates from customers located in Idaho, with the remainder originating from customers
located in Oregon. Idaho Power’s operations, including information on energy sales, are discussed further in Part Il, tem 7 - MD&A - "Results of
Operations - Utility Operations.”

10
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The table that follows presents Idaho Power’s revenues and sales volumes for the last three years, classified by customer type.

Year Ended December 31,

2024 2023 2022
Retail revenues (thousands of dollars):
Residential (includes $(2,686), $37,233, and $22,595, respectively, related to the FCA) $ 700,586 $ 684,649 $ 645,236
Commercial (includes $(170), $1,338, and $922, respectively, related to the FCA) 397,385 378,330 347,970
Industrial 267,211 244,538 217,368
Irrigation 196,401 173,929 170,964
Deferred revenue related to HCC relicensing AFUDC @) (8,803) (8,780) (8,780)
Total retail revenues 1,552,780 1,472,666 1,372,758
Wholesale energy sales 73,908 63,421 66,519
Transmission wheeling-related revenues 79,173 80,357 80,527
Energy efficiency program revenues 27,581 31,948 33,197
Other revenues 89,523 114,502 88,039
Total electric utility operating revenues $ 1,822,965 $ 1,762,894 $ 1,641,040
Energy sales (thousands of MWh):
Residential 5,964 5,903 6,056
Commercial 4,332 4,269 4,306
Industrial 3,680 3,538 3,510
Irrigation 1,995 1,805 1,950
Total retail energy sales 15,971 15,515 15,822
Wholesale energy sales 1,412 840 427
Energy sales bundled with RECs 1,406 1,255 892
Total energy sales 18,789 17,610 17,141

(1) The IPUC allows Idaho Power to recover a portion of the AFUDC on construction work in progress related to the HCC relicensing process, even though the relicensing process is
not yet complete and the costs have not been moved to electric plant in service. Idaho Power is collecting $8.8 million annually in the Idaho jurisdiction but is deferring revenue

recognition of the amounts collected until the license is issued and the accumulated license costs approved for recovery are placed in service.

Wholesale Markets: |daho Power participates in the wholesale energy markets by purchasing power to help meet load demands and selling power that
is in excess of load demands. Idaho Power's market activities are guided by an energy risk management program and frequently updated operating
plans. These operating plans are impacted by factors such as customer demand for power, market prices, generating costs, transmission constraints,
and availability of generating resources. Idaho Power's wholesale energy sales depend largely on the availability of generation resources above the
amount necessary to serve customer loads as well as market power prices at the time when those resources are available. A reduction in either factor
leads to lower wholesale energy sales.

Idaho Power also provides energy transmission services through its OATT. The OATT rate is revised each year based primarily on financial and
operational data Idaho Power files annually with the FERC in its Form 1. The FERC oversees mandatory transmission and network reliability standards,
as well as power and transmission markets, including protection against market manipulation. These mandatory transmission and reliability standards
were developed by the North American Electric Reliability Corporation and the Western Electricity Coordinating Council, which have responsibility for
compliance and enforcement of transmission, reliability, and security standards.

Competition: Idaho Power's electric utility business has historically been recognized as a regulated monopoly. However, Idaho Power competes with
fuel distribution companies, including natural gas providers, in serving the energy needs of customers for space heating, water heating, and appliances.
Alternative methods of generation, including customer-owned solar and other forms of distributed generation, and energy efficiency measures, also have
the potential to decrease Idaho Power sales to existing customers.
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Idaho Power also participates in the wholesale energy markets and in the electricity transmission markets. Generally, these wholesale markets are
regulated by the FERC, which requires electric utilities to transmit power to or for wholesale purchasers and sellers and make available transmission
capacity, on a non-discriminatory basis, for the purpose of providing these services.

In return for agreeing to provide service to all customers within a defined service area, electric utilities are typically provided with an exclusive right to
provide service in that service area. However, certain prescribed areas within ldaho Power's service area, such as municipalities or Native American
Tribal reservations, may elect not to take service from Idaho Power and instead operate as a municipal electric utility or otherwise as a separate entity. In
such cases, the entity would be required to purchase or otherwise obtain rights to Idaho Power's distribution infrastructure within the municipal or other
designated area. Idaho Power would have no responsibility for providing electric service to the municipal or separate entity, absent Idaho Power's
voluntary agreement to provide that service.

Power Supply

Overview: Idaho Power primarily relies on company-owned hydropower, coal-fired, and gas-fired generation facilities and long-term PPAs to supply the
energy needed to serve customers and to make power sales into the wholesale markets. Market purchases and sales are used to supplement Idaho
Power's generation and balance supply and demand throughout the year. Idaho Power’s generating plants and their capacities are listed in Part I, Item 2
- “Properties.” In addition to existing generation resources, ldaho Power has agreements to own a 300 MW wind turbine generator power plant located in
Sweetwater County, Wyoming, with a planned in-service date in 2027.

Various external and internal factors impact power supply costs, such as weather, load demand, economic conditions, fuel costs, and availability of
generation resources. [daho Power’s annual hydropower generation varies depending on water conditions in the Snake River Basin. Drought conditions
and increased peak load demand cause a greater reliance on potentially more expensive energy sources to meet load requirements. Conversely,
favorable hydropower generation conditions increase production at Idaho Power’s hydropower generating facilities and reduce the need for thermal
generation and wholesale market purchased power. Weather also affects the generation of projects with which Idaho Power has contracts to purchase
power. Economic conditions, weather, supply constraints, and governmental regulations can affect the market price of natural gas and coal, which impact
fuel expense and market prices for purchased power. Idaho Power's power cost adjustment mechanisms mitigate in large part the earnings impacts to
Idaho Power of volatile fuel and power costs.

Idaho Power’s system is dual peaking, with the larger peak demand occurring in the summer. Idaho Power reached its highest all-time system peak
demand of 3,793 MW on July 22, 2024. Idaho Power's highest all-time winter peak demand of 2,719 MW occurred on January 16, 2024. During these
and other similar heavy load periods, Idaho Power’s system is fully committed to serve load and meet required operating reserves. The table that follows
shows Idaho Power’s total power supply for the last three years.

Power Supply Percent of Total Generation
2024 2023 2022 2024 2023 2022
(thousands of MWh)

Hydropower plants 7,203 6,548 5,347 54 % 55 % 48 %

Steam-fired plants® 2,474 2,473 3,657 18 % 21 % 32%

Natural gas-fired plants 3,843 2,917 2,319 28 % 24 % 20 %
Total system generation 13,520 11,938 11,323
Purchased power 6,541 7,027 7,178
Total power supply 20,061 18,965 18,501

(1) "Steam-fired plants" are composed of generation from plants that are fueled by only coal or by both coal and natural gas.

Hydropower Generation: Idaho Power operates 17 hydropower projects located on the Snake River and its tributaries. Together, these hydropower
facilities provide a total nameplate capacity of 1,818 MW and have averaged total annual generation of approximately 7.7 million MWh over the last 30
years. The amount of water available for hydropower generation depends on several factors—the amount of snowpack in the mountains upstream of
Idaho Power’s hydropower facilities, upstream reservoir storage, springtime precipitation and temperatures, main river and tributary base flows, the
condition of the Eastern Snake Plain Aquifer and its spring flow impact, summertime irrigation withdrawals and returns, and upstream reservoir regulation.
Idaho Power actively participates in collaborative work groups focused on water management issues in the Snake
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River Basin, with the goal of preserving the long-term availability of water for use at Idaho Power’s hydropower projects on the Snake River.

In 2024, hydropower generation was 7.2 million MWh, an increase from the prior two years, due to above-normal snow accumulation throughout most of
the Snake River basin. In 2023 and 2022, below-normal snow accumulation and drought conditions resulted in lower than average hydropower
generation of 6.5 million and 5.3 million MWh, respectively. Idaho Power's 2025 estimate of annual generation from its hydropower facilities is between
6.5 million MWh and 8.5 million MWh.

Idaho Power obtains licenses for its hydropower projects from the FERC, similar to other utilities that operate nonfederal hydropower projects on qualified
waterways. The licensing process includes an extensive public review process and involves numerous natural resource and environmental agencies. The
licenses last from 30 to 50 years depending on the size, complexity, and cost of the project. Idaho Power is actively pursuing the FERC relicensing of the
HCC, its largest hydropower generation source, and American Falls, its second largest hydropower resource. Idaho Power also has Oregon licenses for
the HCC under the Oregon Hydroelectric Act. For further information on relicensing activities, see Part Il, ltem 7 — MD&A — "Regulatory Matters —
Relicensing of Hydropower Projects.”

Idaho Power is subject to the provisions of the FPA as a “public utility” and as a “licensee” by virtue of its hydropower operations. As a licensee under
Part | of the FPA, Idaho Power and its licensed hydropower projects are subject to conditions described in the FPA and related FERC regulations. These
conditions and regulations include, among other items, provisions relating to condemnation of a project upon payment of just compensation, amortization
of project investment from excess project earnings, and possible takeover of a project after expiration of its license upon payment of net investment and
severance damages.

Coal-Fired Generation: ldaho Power co-owns the following coal-fired power plants:

« Jim Bridger, located in Wyoming, in which Idaho Power has a one-third interest; and
*  North Valmy, located in Nevada, in which Idaho Power has a 50 percent interest.

PacifiCorp is the operator of the Jim Bridger plant. BCC supplies coal to the Jim Bridger plant. IERCo, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Idaho Power, owns a
one-third interest in BCC and PacifiCorp owns a two-third interest in BCC and is the operator of the Bridger Coal Mine. The mine operates under a long-
term sales agreement that provides for delivery of coal through 2027. BCC has reserves to provide coal deliveries through the current term of the
agreement, as well as reserves available to allow for an extension of the term agreement. Idaho Power has an established process approved by the
IPUC for recovery of non-fuel, coal-related costs related to Idaho Power’s plan to end its participation in coal-fired operations at the Jim Bridger plant. The
conversion from coal to natural gas of two generating units at the Jim Bridger plant was completed in the spring of 2024.

NV Energy is the operator of the North Valmy plant. Idaho Power expects to meet 2025 fuel requirements through existing inventory. Idaho Power has an
established process approved by the IPUC and OPUC for recovery of non-fuel costs related to Idaho Power’s plan to end its participation in coal-fired
operations at the North Valmy plant. Idaho Power ended its participation in coal-fired operations at unit 1 of the North Valmy plant in December 2019, as
planned.

Idaho Power's 2023 IRP identified a preferred resource portfolio and action plan that includes the conversion from coal to natural gas of two units at the
North Valmy plant in 2026 and the remaining two units at the Jim Bridger plant in 2030. For more information on the 2023 IRP, refer to "Resource
Planning" in this Item 1 — "Business." Idaho Power expects to seek approval from the IPUC and OPUC for any necessary adjustments to plant retirement
dates to align with its current resource plan.

Natural Gas-fired Generation: |daho Power owns and operates the Langley Gulch natural gas-fired combined-cycle combustion turbine power plant and
the Danskin and Bennett Mountain natural gas-fired simple-cycle combustion turbine power plants. All three plants are located in Idaho. As noted
previously, in the spring of 2024, the conversion of two units at the Jim Bridger plant from coal to natural gas-fired steam turbines was completed. In
addition, Idaho Power plans to convert the two coal-fired units at the North VValmy plant to natural gas-fired steam turbines by mid-2026.

Idaho Power operates the Langley Gulch plant as a baseload unit and the Danskin and Bennett Mountain plants to serve load and meet peak supply
needs. The natural-gas-fired units at the Jim Bridger plant operate to serve load and meet peak supply needs. The plants are also used to take advantage
of wholesale market opportunities. Natural gas for all facilities is purchased based on system requirements and dispatch efficiency. The natural gas
supplying the Idaho plants is transported through Idaho
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Power's long-term gas transportation service agreements with the Williams-Northwest Pipeline for 95,584 MMBtu per day and Williams-Mt. West
Overthrust Pipeline for 89,000 MMBtu per day. The Williams-Northwest Pipeline transport capacity will increase to 103,584 MMBtu per day in April 2025
and will increase to 161,263 MMBtu per day in November 2025. These transportation agreements vary in contract length but generally contain the right
for Idaho Power to extend the term. In addition to the long-term gas transportation service agreements, ldaho Power has entered into long-term storage
service agreements with Northwest Pipeline and Spire Inc. for 131,453 MMBtu and 1 billion cubic feet, respectively, of total storage capacity. The firm
storage contract with Northwest Pipeline expires in 2043, while the contract with Spire begins in 2025 and ends in 2035. Idaho Power purchases and
stores natural gas with the intent of fulfilling needs as identified for seasonal peaks or to meet system requirements.

As of February 14, 2025, Idaho Power had approximately 36.3 million MMBtu of natural gas financially hedged for physical delivery, primarily for the
operational dispatch of Langley Gulch, Danskin, Bennett, and Bridger power plants through August 2026. Idaho Power plans to manage the procurement
of additional natural gas for the peaking units primarily on the daily spot market or from storage inventory as necessary to meet system requirements and
fueling strategies.

Purchased Power: Idaho Power purchases power in the wholesale market as well as pursuant to long-term power purchase contracts and exchange
agreements. The table below presents Idaho Power’s purchased power expenses and volumes for the last three years ended December 31 (in
thousands, except for per MWh amounts). Transmission costs, purchases from the Western EIM, and costs from demand response programs are
included with wholesale market purchases in the table.

Year Ended December 31,

2024 2023 2022
Expense
Wholesale market purchases $ 131,562 $ 243,319 $ 306,263
Long-term agreements (including PURPA) 293,520 258,212 238,082
Total purchased power expense $ 425,082 $ 501,531 $ 544,345
MWh purchased
Wholesale market purchases 2,508 3,278 3,823
Long-term agreements (including PURPA) 4,033 3,749 3,355
Total MWh purchased 6,541 7,027 7,178
Cost per MWh from wholesale market purchases $ 5246 $ 7423 % 80.11
Cost per MWh from long-term agreement purchases $ 7278 $ 68.87 $ 70.96
Weighted average cost per MWh - all sources $ 64.99 $ 7137 % 75.84

Wholesale Market: To supplement its self-generated power and long-term purchase arrangements, Idaho Power purchases power in the wholesale
market based on economics, operating reserve margins, energy risk management program guidelines, and unit availability. Depending on availability of
excess power or generation capacity, pricing, and opportunities in the markets, Idaho Power also sells power in the wholesale markets.

Long-term Power Purchase and Exchange Arrangements : Idaho Power has contracts for the purchase of electricity produced by third-party owned
generation facilities, most of which produce energy with the use of renewable generation sources such as wind, solar, biomass, small hydropower, and
geothermal. The majority of these contracts are entered into as required by federal law under PURPA. For PURPA energy sales agreements, ldaho
Power is required to purchase all of the output delivered from the contracted qualifying facilities. The Idaho jurisdictional portion of the costs associated
with PURPA contracts is fully recovered through base rates and the PCA mechanism, and the Oregon jurisdictional portion is recovered through base
rates and an Oregon power cost adjustment mechanism. Thus, the primary impact of power purchase costs under PURPA contracts is on customer rates
and the timing of cash flows.
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The following table sets forth, as of the date of this report, the resource type and nameplate capacity of Idaho Power's signed agreements for power
purchases from PURPA and non-PURPA generating facilities. These agreements have contract terms ranging from one to 35 years.

Under Contract Total Projects
Non-PURPA PURPA Total Online but not yet Online under Contract
Resource Type Online (MW) Online (MW) (Mw) (Mw) (Mw)

Wind 101 625 726 300 1,026
Solar 260 316 576 748 1,324
Hydropower — 144 144 — 144
Other 35 43 78 — 78
Total 396 1,128 1,524 1,048 2,572

Idaho Power has agreements with non-PURPA solar projects for 200 MW, 125 MW, and 420 MW, expected to be online in 2025, 2026, and 2027,
respectively. Idaho Power has one agreement with a non-PURPA wind project for 300 MW, that is scheduled to be online in 2027.

Battery Storage: ldaho Power utilizes batteries primarily to store power generated during periods of lower customer demand and deliver that power to
serve customers during peak hours, especially early summer evenings when irrigation pumps and air conditioners drive up electrical demand. Through
2024, 227 MW of company-owned battery storage were installed, with another 330 MW expected to be in service by the end of 2027. Idaho Power
entered into two 20-year agreements to utilize the storage capacity from a 150 MW battery storage facility scheduled to be online in June 2025 and a 100
MW battery storage facility scheduled to be online in April 2027. Idaho Power intends for this capacity to supplement a total of 557 MW of company-
owned storage that it expects to be online by the end of 2027.

Participation in Energy Markets : |daho Power participates in the Western EIM under which the participating parties enable their systems to interact for
automated intra-hour economic dispatch of generation from committed resources to serve loads. The Western EIM is intended to reduce the power
supply costs to serve customers through more efficient dispatch of a larger and more diverse pool of resources, to integrate intermittent power from
renewable generation sources more effectively, and to enhance reliability. Idaho Power is participating with other stakeholders in different regional forums
discussing the potential for developing other energy markets in the western U.S., including development of a potential day-ahead wholesale centralized
market, which Idaho Power believes could provide additional benefits through the centralized economic dispatch of resources of participating utilities.
Transmission Services

Electric transmission systems deliver energy from electric generation facilities to distribution systems for final delivery to customers. Transmission
systems are designed to move electricity over long distances because generation facilities can be located hundreds of miles away from customers. Idaho
Power’s generating facilities are interconnected through its integrated transmission system and are operated on a coordinated basis to achieve maximum
capability and reliability. Idaho Power’s transmission system is directly interconnected with the transmission systems of the BPA, Avista Corporation,
PacifiCorp, NorthWestern Energy, and NV Energy. These interconnections, coupled with transmission line capacity made available under agreements
with some of those entities, permit the interchange, purchase, and sale of power among entities in the Western Interconnection, the transmission grid
covering much of western North America. Idaho Power provides wholesale transmission service for eligible transmission customers on a non-
discriminatory basis. Idaho Power is a member of the Western Electricity Coordinating Council, the Western Power Pool, NorthernGrid, and the North
American Energy Standards Board. These groups have been formed to more efficiently coordinate transmission reliability and planning throughout the
Western Interconnection. Demand for transmission services can be affected by regional market factors, such as loads and generation of utilities in Idaho
Power’s region.

Transmission to serve ldaho Power's retail customers is subject to the jurisdiction of the IPUC and OPUC for retail rate-making purposes. Idaho Power
provides cost-based wholesale access transmission services under the terms of a FERC-approved OATT. Services under the OATT are offered on a
non-discriminatory basis such that all potential customers, including Idaho Power, have an equal opportunity to access the transmission system. As
required by FERC standards of conduct, Idaho Power's transmission function is operated independently from Idaho Power's energy marketing function.
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Idaho Power is jointly working with various partners on the development of three significant transmission projects. The B2H project is a proposed 300-
mile, high-voltage transmission line between a substation near Boardman, Oregon, and the Hemingway substation near Boise, Idaho. The GWW project
is a high-voltage transmission line project between a substation located near Douglas, Wyoming, and the Hemingway substation. The SWIP-N project is
a planned 285-mile, high-voltage transmission line between the Robinson Summit substation near Ely, Nevada, and the Midpoint substation near
Jerome, Idaho. The projects are intended to meet future anticipated resource needs and are discussed in Part Il, ltem 7 — MD&A - "Liquidity and Capital
Resources - Capital Requirements" in this report.

Resource Planning

Integrated Resource Planning: The IPUC and OPUC require that Idaho Power biennially prepare an IRP. Idaho Power filed its most recent 2023 IRP
with the IPUC and OPUC in September 2023 and expects to file its 2025 IRP in June 2025. Each IRP seeks to forecast Idaho Power's loads and
resources for a 20-year period, analyzes potential supply-side, demand-side, and transmission resource options, and identifies potential near-term, mid-
term, and long-term actions. The four primary goals of the IRP are to:

¢ identify sufficient resources to reliably serve the growing demand for energy within Idaho Power's service area throughout the 20-year planning
period;

¢ ensure the selected resource portfolio balances cost and risk, while including environmental considerations;

« give balanced treatment to supply-side and demand-side measures; and

¢ involve the public in the planning process in a meaningful way.

During the time between IRP filings, the public and regulatory oversight of the activities identified in the IRP allows for discussion and adjustment of the
IRP as warranted. Idaho Power makes periodic adjustments and corrections to the resource plan to reflect economic conditions, anticipated resource
development, changes in technology, and regulatory requirements.

The load forecast assumptions Idaho Power currently plans to use in its upcoming 2025 IRP are included in the table below, together with the average
annual growth rate assumptions used in the prior two IRPs. The 2025 preliminary IRP assumptions include significant large commercial and industrial
additions in the 5-year forecasted annual growth rate. The rate of load growth can impact the timing and extent of development of resources, such as

new generation plants or transmission infrastructure, to serve those loads.

5-Year Forecasted Annual Growth Rate 20-Year Forecasted Annual Growth Rate
Retail Sales Annual Peak Retail Sales Annual Peak
(Billed MWh) (Peak Demand) (Billed MWh) (Peak Demand)
2025 IRP (preliminary) 8.3% 5.1% 2.7% 1.9%
2023 IRP 5.5% 3.7% 2.1% 1.8%
2021 IRP 2.6% 2.1% 1.4% 1.4%

The 2023 IRP preferred resource portfolio and action plan provided for 8,436 MW of resource capacity partially offset by retirements of 841 MW of coal-
fired generation and 706 MW of natural gas generation over the next 20 years to meet energy and capacity needs. The additions to resource capacity
included 3,325 MW of solar, 1,800 MW of wind, 1,453 MW of storage, 360 MW of additional energy efficiency, 340 MW of hydrogen, 160 MW from
demand response, and 30 MW of geothermal. In addition, the preferred resource portfolio included Idaho Power's complete exit from coal-fired
generation by 2030 and the conversions of multiple jointly-owned coal-fired generation units to add 968 MW of natural gas generation capacity. Of the
additional natural gas generation capacity, 706 MW are expected to be retired in 2038, resulting in a net addition of 261 MW of natural gas generation
capacity through 2043. To support these resource additions, the preferred portfolio also included the B2H transmission line in 2026 and three GWW
transmission line segments phased in with in-service dates from 2028 through 2040. However, as noted in the 2023 IRP, there is considerable
uncertainty surrounding the resource sufficiency estimates and project completion dates, including uncertainty around the timing and extent of third-party
development of renewable resources, fuel commodity prices, and the actual completion date and ownership allocations of the transmission projects.
These uncertainties, as well as others, could result in changes to the desirability of the preferred portfolio and adjustments to the timing and nature of
anticipated and actual actions.

Energy Efficiency and Demand Response Programs: |daho Power’s energy efficiency and demand response portfolio comprises 21 programs. The

energy efficiency programs target energy savings across the entire year, while the demand response programs target system demand reduction in the
summer at times of peak loads. The programs are offered to all
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customer segments and emphasize the wise use of energy, especially during periods of high demand. This energy and demand reduction can reduce or
delay the need for new generation and transmission infrastructure. ldaho Power’s programs include:

« financial incentives for irrigation customers for either improving the energy efficiency of an irrigation system or installing new energy efficient
systems;

« energy efficiency programs for new and existing homes including electric heating, ventilation and cooling equipment, as well as energy efficient
building techniques, air duct sealing, and energy efficient lighting;

* incentives to industrial and commercial customers for acquiring energy efficient equipment, and using energy efficiency techniques for
operational and management processes;

« demand response programs to reduce peak summer demand through the voluntary cycling of central air conditioners for residential customers,
interruption of irrigation pumps, and reduction of commercial and industrial demand through actions taken by business owners and operators;
and

« participation in the Northwest Energy Efficiency Alliance, which supports market transformation efforts across the region.

In 2024, Idaho Power’s energy efficiency programs reduced energy usage by approximately 138,000 MWh compared with 140,000 MWh in 2023. For
2024, Idaho Power had a demand response available capacity of approximately 323 MW. Idaho Power expended approximately $40 million and $42
million in 2024 and 2023, respectively, on both energy efficiency and demand response programs. Funding for these programs is provided through a
combination of the Idaho and Oregon energy efficiency tariff riders, base rates, and the power cost adjustment mechanisms. Energy efficiency program
expenditures funded through the riders are reported as an operating expense with an equal amount of revenues recorded in other revenues, resulting in
no net impact on earnings.

Corporate Responsibility Initiatives

Overview: IDACORP’s and Idaho Power’s corporate governance and nominating committee, with considerable focus from the board of directors, is
primarily responsible for the oversight of the companies’ corporate responsibility initiatives and both are regularly informed of the goals, measures, and
results of the companies' corporate responsibility programs. Each committee of the board of directors is assigned a portion of the oversight of the
companies' corporate responsibility programs. Idaho Power has established an internal steering committee led by senior management and composed of
a cross-functional team of key employees from multiple departments to oversee corporate responsibility activities and inform leadership and the board of
directors on related activities and matters it identifies as material to the company's operations and financial condition.

IDACORP and Idaho Power publicly release an annual corporate responsibility report and the most current report is located on Idaho Power’s website,
together with other information on corporate responsibility issues relevant to Idaho Power. IDACORP's and Idaho Power's 2023 Corporate Responsibility
Report released in April 2024 incorporated elements of the Sustainability Accounting Standards Board reporting framework, as well as the Edison Electric
Institute (EEI) environmental, social, governance, and sustainability reporting template. The Corporate Responsibility Report and related website content
are not incorporated by reference into this report. IDACORP’s and Idaho Power’s corporate responsibility initiatives include:

« establishing responsible management goals and long-term strategies related to the companies’ impact on the environment; such as
> the "Clean Today. Cleaner Tomorrow.®" goal to provide Idaho Power's customers with 100-percent clean energy by 2045;
> the sustainability benefits from the B2H, GWW, and SWIP-N transmission projects, which include integrating renewable energy
generation and deferring or eliminating the need for development of additional fossil-fueled resources;
> integrating renewable resources into ldaho Power's generation mix and identifying and investigating new generation and storage
technologies; as part of this effort, Idaho Power has issued RFPs for additional energy resources, including renewables or natural gas
resource convertible to hydrogen gas power, and to-date has procured solar power, battery storage, and wind as a result of those RFPs;
o continuing various environmental stewardship programs along the Snake River, including fish habitat preservation, water temperature
reduction, and fish and plant restoration;
o wildfire mitigation planning and actions;
- wildlife habitat, archaeological and cultural resource, and raptor protection stewardship;
* operational excellence in safely providing reliable, affordable, clean energy, including enhancing grid resiliency and reliability;
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* engaging and empowering Idaho Power’s workforce (including succession planning at all levels, employee development, leadership education,
retirement planning education, and providing competitive compensation and benefits, including post-retirement benefits);

e promoting a culture of safety, integrity, and respect for all employees; and

*  building strong community partnerships for healthy, sustainable economic development in Idaho Power’s service area.

Reducing Carbon Emissions Intensity: Carbon emissions intensity is a measure of the pounds of CO 2 emitted per MWh of energy generated. Idaho
Power tracks carbon emissions intensity to measure the impact of its efforts to reduce carbon emissions relative to growing power demand in its service
area. Idaho Power has actively engaged in voluntary carbon emissions intensity reduction for over a decade. In 2020, IDACORP’s and Idaho Power’s
boards of directors approved an increased short-term goal to reduce carbon emission intensity by 35 percent for the period from 2021-2025 compared
with 2005. In 2024, Idaho Power posted its updated emissions reduction report on its website containing short-, medium-, and long-term targets for
further CO2 reductions. This report also includes target annual power generation levels and associated CO 2 emissions and emissions intensity for the
2024-2043 period. The emissions reduction report is not incorporated in this report. Idaho Power has significantly reduced its CO2 emissions since the
2005 baseline year, primarily by decreasing its coal generation levels, including terminating its participation in coal generation at the North Valmy Unit 1
in 2019 and at the Boardman plant in 2020 and converting two units at the Jim Bridger plant from coal to natural gas in 2024, and also by upgrading its
hydropower facilities, and through its energy efficiency, demand-side management, and cloud-seeding programs. Idaho Power plans to continue to
reduce CO2 emissions in future years, including a medium-term goal with a targeted 88 percent reduction in annual CO 2 emissions tons by 2030,
compared with the 2005 baseline year. In 2019, Idaho Power announced its long-term goal to provide 100-percent clean energy by 2045.

Reduction in Coal-Fired Generation: |daho Power monitors environmental requirements and assesses whether environmental control measures are or
remain economically appropriate. In 2017 and 2018, the IPUC and OPUC approved settlement stipulations allowing accelerated depreciation and cost
recovery for the North Valmy plant in connection with Idaho Power's plan to end its participation in the coal-fired operation of units 1 and 2. Idaho Power
ended its participation in the coal-fired operation of unit 1 in December 2019, as planned, and regulatory orders from the IPUC and OPUC provide for
Idaho Power to end its participation in coal-fired operations of unit 2 no later than the end of 2025. In October 2020, Idaho Power and co-owner Portland
General Electric ceased coal-fired operations at the Boardman plant, as planned.

In June 2022, the IPUC approved Idaho Power's amended application requesting, among other things, authorization to allow the Jim Bridger plant to be
fully depreciated and recovered by end-of-year 2030. The details of the IPUC's order relating to the Jim Bridger plant are described more fully in Part I,
Item 7 — MD&A — "Regulatory Matters."

Regulatory orders from the IPUC and OPUC provide for Idaho Power to cease coal-fired operations at all jointly-owned coal-fired generation plants by the
end of 2028. However, as noted previously, Idaho Power's 2023 IRP identified a preferred resource portfolio and action plan that includes the conversion
from coal to natural gas of two units at the Jim Bridger plant in 2024, the two units at the North Valmy plant in 2026, and the remaining two units at the
Jim Bridger plant in 2030. For more information on the 2023 IRP, refer to "Resource Planning” in this Item 1 — "Business." Idaho Power expects to seek
approval from the IPUC and OPUC for any necessary adjustments to plant retirement dates to align with its current resource plan.

Climate Change Resilience: For more than 100 years, Idaho Power has adapted to changes in temperatures, water conditions, economic conditions,
and regulatory requirements. To address the physical impacts of climate change, Idaho Power conducts cloud-seeding operations, implements a WMP,
enhances grid resiliency and reliability, and continues to further Snake River shading and in-stream river enhancement projects. ldaho Power considers
climate-related impacts in planning efforts, plans and advocates for additional transmission capacity to integrate additional renewable energy onto its
system, and identifies and investigates new technologies, including battery storage, hydrogen generation, and modular nuclear reactor technology.

Environmental Regulation and Costs

Idaho Power's activities are subject to a broad range of federal, state, regional, and local laws and regulations designed to protect, restore, and enhance
the quality of the environment. Environmental regulation impacts Idaho Power’s operations due to the cost of installation and operation of equipment and
facilities required for compliance with environmental regulations, the modification of system operations to accommodate environmental regulations, and
the cost of acquiring and complying with permits and licenses. In addition to generally applicable regulations, Idaho Power's jointly-owned coal-fired power
plant, jointly-owned coal- and gas-fired power plant, natural gas combustion turbine power plants, and hydropower generating plants are subject to a
broad range of environmental requirements, including those related to air and water quality, waste materials,
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and endangered species. For a more detailed discussion of these and other environmental issues, refer to Part Il - Item 7 - MD&A - "Environmental
Matters" in this report.

Environmental Expenditures: |daho Power's environmental compliance expenditures will remain significant for the foreseeable future. Idaho Power
estimates its environmental expenditures, based upon present environmental laws and regulations, will be as follows for the periods indicated, excluding
AFUDC (in millions of dollars):

2025 2026-2027

Capital expenditures:
License compliance and relicensing efforts at hydropower facilities $ 54 % 130
Investments in equipment and facilities at thermal plants 3 13
Total capital expenditures $ 57 $ 143

Operating expenses:
Operating costs for environmental facilities - hydropower $ 34 % 78
Operating costs for environmental facilities - thermal 10 29
Total other O&M $ 44 % 107

Idaho Power anticipates that finalization, implementation, or modification of a number of federal and state rulemakings and other proceedings addressing,
among other things, GHGs and endangered species, could result in substantial changes in operating and compliance costs, but Idaho Power is unable to
estimate those changes in costs given the uncertainty associated with existing and potential future regulations. Idaho Power expects that it would seek to
recover any increases in costs through the ratemaking process. Beyond changes in costs generally, these environmental laws and regulations could
affect IDACORP's and Idaho Power's results of operations and financial condition if the costs associated with these environmental requirements and
potential early plant retirements cannot be fully recovered in rates on a timely basis.

Idaho Power is actively pursuing the relicensing of the HCC, its largest hydropower generation source. As of the date of this report, Idaho Power believes
issuance of a new HCC license by the FERC will be as early as 2026; however, Idaho Power is unable to predict the exact timing of issuance by the
FERC of any license order or the ultimate capital investment and ongoing operating and maintenance costs ldaho Power will incur in complying with any
new license. Idaho Power estimates that the annual costs it will incur to obtain a new long-term license for the HCC, including AFUDC, are likely to range
from $35 million to $45 million until issuance of the license. Subsequent to the issuance of a new license, Idaho Power expects to incur increased annual
capital expenditures and operating and maintenance costs to comply with the requirements of any new license.

Human Capital Management

Overview: ldaho Power's purpose is powering lives by safely providing reliable, affordable, clean energy. Idaho Power believes that it will prosper by
committing to the needs, safety, and success of its customers, communities, employees, and owners. Idaho Power relies on its foundational core values
to guide its plan and actions: safety first; integrity always; and respect for all.

To further its objectives, Idaho Power’'s human capital management programs are designed to attract, retain, and develop high quality employees, without
regard to race, color, religion, national origin, sex (including pregnancy), age, sexual orientation, gender identity, genetic information, veteran status,
physical or mental disability, or marital status. Idaho Power believes it maintains a good relationship with its employees due to a strong safety culture, a
respectful environment, opportunities for development, and competitive compensation and benefits. Idaho Power regularly conducts employee
engagement surveys to seek feedback from its employees on a variety of topics, including safety reporting, support for development, understanding of
the company'’s objectives, communication, being treated with respect, and feeling valued. Idaho Power shares the survey results with employees, and
senior management incorporates the results of the surveys in their action plans in order to respond to the feedback and improve employee relations.

As of December 31, 2024, IDACORP had 2,130 full-time employee s, 2,122 of whom were employed by Idaho Power and 8 of whom were employed by
Ida-West. IDACORP had 11 part-time employees, 8 of whom were employed by Idaho Power and 3 of whom were employed by Ida-West. Of
IDACORP's full-time employees, 48 percent have worked at the company for over 10 years as of the date of this report. All IDACORP and Idaho Power
employees work in the United States. As of the date of this report, no Idaho Power employees are represented by unions.
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Board and Board Committee Oversight: The companies’ management updates the full board of directors and its committees regularly on safety
metrics, compensation for employees, benefit and pension programs, succession planning and training programs, and company culture initiatives, among
other things. Each committee of the board of directors is delegated and takes on specific roles in this oversight. The compensation and human resources
committee is responsible for overseeing employee compensation, benefit plans, general labor issues, company culture, and safety issues. The audit
committee is responsible for overseeing risk management, including compliance with the code of business conduct, physical security risks relating to
employees, and environmental compliance. The corporate governance and nominating committee is responsible for overseeing risks associated with
governance, lobbying and government relations, political contributions, and social issues associated with employees as part of its corporate responsibility
risk oversight function. The executive committee assists the board of directors in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities with respect to risk management
processes generally.

Safety: |daho Power is committed to the safety of its employees, customers, and the communities it serves. Idaho Power believes that safe, engaged,
and effective employees are critical to the company’s success and that the company’s record of safety helps keep its service reliable and affordable.

Compensation: |daho Power provides its employees with competitive pay and benefits, based in large part on salary studies and market data. Idaho
Power utilizes a structured compensation schedule and regularly conducts compensation analyses that helps mitigate the potential for gender, race, or
ethnicity-based disparities in compensation. Beyond base salaries and incentive compensation, benefits for all full-time employees include a 401k plan
with company matching contributions, healthcare and insurance benefits, health savings and flexible spending accounts, paid time off, family leave,
parental leave, employee assistance programs, and tuition assistance. After five years of employment, a full-time employee vests in Idaho Power’s
defined benefit pension plan. Idaho Power also ties annual employee incentive compensation to metrics based on the categories of financial
performance, power system reliability, and customer satisfaction reflective of broad stakeholder interests and each employee's contribution.

Idaho Power delivers a variety of training opportunities and continuous learning and development opportunities to all employees. Idaho Power's talent
development programs, overseen by a talent development team in the Human Resources department, are designed to help employees achieve their
career goals, build management skills, and lead their organizations.

IDACORP FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC.

IFS invests in real estate tax credit projects, such as affordable housing developments, which provide a return principally by reducing federal and state
income taxes through tax credits and accelerated tax depreciation benefits. IFS has focused on a diversified approach to its investment strategy in order
to limit both geographic and operational risk with most of IFS’s investments having been made through syndicated funds. At December 31, 2024, the
unamortized amount of IFS’s portfolio was approximately $55 million ($129 million in gross tax credit investments, net of $74 million of accumulated
amortization). IFS generated tax credits of $7.5 million in 2024, $6.9 million in 2023, and $6.4 million in 2022. IFS received distributions related to fully-
amortized real estate tax credit investments that reduced IDACORP's income tax expense by $1.6 million in 2024, $0.5 million in 2023, and $0.8 million in
2022.

IDA-WEST ENERGY COMPANY
Ida-West operates and has a 50 percent ownership interest in nine hydropower projects that have a total nameplate capacity of 44 MW. Four of the

projects are located in Idaho and five are in northern California. All nine projects are “qualifying facilities” under PURPA. Idaho Power purchased all of the
power generated by Ida-West's four Idaho hydropower projects at a cost of approximately $10 million in 2024, $9 million in 2023, and $8 million in 2022.
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INFORMATION ABOUT OUR EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

The names, ages, and positions of the executive officers of IDACORP and Idaho Power are listed below (in alphabetical order), along with their business
experience during at least the past five years. There are no family relationships among these officers, nor is there any arrangement or understanding
between any officer and any other person pursuant to which the officer was appointed.

RYAN N. ADELMAN, 50
*  Vice President of Power Supply of Idaho Power Company, August 2020 - present
* Vice President of Transmission & Distribution, Engineering and Construction of Idaho Power Company, October 2019 - August 2020

BRIAN R. BUCKHAM, 46
«  Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, and Treasurer of IDACORP, Inc. and Idaho Power Company, January 2024 - present
¢ Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of IDACORP, Inc. and Idaho Power Company, March 2022 - December 2023
«  Senior Vice President and General Counsel of IDACORP, Inc. and Idaho Power Company, February 2017 - March 2022

MITCH COLBURN, 41
¢ Vice President of Planning, Engineering and Construction of Idaho Power Company, August 2020 - present
« Director of Engineering and Construction of Idaho Power Company, March 2020 - August 2020
« Director of Resource Planning and Operations of Idaho Power Company, January 2018 - March 2020

SARAH E. GRIFFIN, 55
¢ Vice President of Human Resources of Idaho Power Company, October 2019 - present

LISA A. GROW, 59
¢ President and Chief Executive Officer of IDACORP, Inc. and Idaho Power Company, June 2020 - present
* President of Idaho Power Company, October 2019 - June 2020

JAMES BO D. HANCHEY, 49
¢ Vice President of Customer Operations and Chief Safety Officer of Idaho Power Company, October 2019 - present

JULIA A. HILTON, 47
¢ Vice President and General Counsel of IDACORP, Inc. and Idaho Power Company, March 2023 - present
* Deputy General Counsel and Director of Legal of Idaho Power Company, October 2019 - March 2023

JEFFREY L. MALMEN, 57
*  Senior Vice President of Public Affairs of IDACORP, Inc. and Idaho Power Company, April 2016 - present

ADAM J. RICHINS, 46
*  Senior Vice President and Chief Operating Officer of Idaho Power Company, October 2019 - present

AMY |. SHAW, 45
¢ Vice President of Finance, Compliance, and Risk of IDACORP, Inc. and Idaho Power Company, January 2024 - present
« Director of Investor Relations, Compliance, and Risk of IDACORP, Inc. and Idaho Power Company, August 2023 - December 2023
« Director of Compliance, Risk, and Security of Idaho Power Company, May 2017 - August 2023
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

IDACORP and Idaho Power operate in a highly regulated industry and business environment that involves significant risks, many of which are beyond the
companies' control. The circumstances and factors set forth below should not be considered a complete list of potential risks that the companies may
encounter. These risk factors, as well as additional risks and uncertainties either not known as of the date of this report or that are currently believed to
not be material to the business, may have a material impact on the business, financial condition, or results of operations of IDACORP and Idaho Power
and could cause actual results or outcomes to differ materially from those discussed in any forward-looking statements. These risk factors, as well as
other information in this report, including without limitation, in the "Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements" and Part Il - Item 7 - MD&A,
and in other reports the companies file with the SEC, should be considered carefully when making any investment decisions relating to IDACORP or
Idaho Power.

Below are certain important utility-specific regulatory, operational, legal and compliance, financial and investment, and general business risks that may
cause IDACORP's and Idaho Power's future business results to be different than anticipated as of the date of this report.

Utility-Specific Regulatory Risks

Utility-specific regulatory risk includes the risks that federal, state, or local regulators may impose additional requirements and costs on Idaho Power and
the utility industry, reduce authorized rates of return or otherwise adversely affect recovery of costs and the opportunity to earn a return on investments,
or require Idaho Power as a utility to make adverse changes to its business models, strategies, and practices.

State or federal regulators may not approve customer rates that provide timely or sufficient recovery of Idaho Power's costs or allow Idaho
Power to earn a reasonable rate of return, which could adversely affect IDACORP's and Idaho Power's financial condition and results of
operations. The prices that the IPUC and OPUC authorize Idaho Power to charge customers for its retail services, and the tariff rate that the FERC
permits Idaho Power to charge for its transmission services, are significant factors influencing IDACORP’s and Idaho Power’s business, results of
operations, liquidity, and financial condition. Idaho Power's ability to recover its costs and earn a reasonable rate of return can be affected by many
regulatory factors, including the time between when Idaho Power incurs costs and when Idaho Power recovers those costs in customers’ rates (often
called "regulatory lag" in the utility industry), and differences between the costs included in rates and the amount of actual costs incurred. Idaho Power
expects to incur increasing costs, which is likely to occur before the IPUC, OPUC, or FERC approve the recovery of those costs, such as construction
costs for new facilities and transmission resources, costs associated with changes in the long-term cost-effectiveness or operating conditions of Idaho
Power's assets that could result in early retirements of utility facilities, costs of compliance with legislative and regulatory requirements, fuel and
wholesale power costs, and increased funding levels of Idaho Power's defined benefit pension plan. The IPUC, OPUC, and FERC may not allow Idaho
Power to recover some or all of those costs or costs that have already been deferred as regulatory assets if they find Idaho Power did not reasonably or
prudently incur those costs or for other reasons. The IPUC and OPUC may adopt different methods of calculating the allocation of the total utility costs in
their respective jurisdictions, resulting in certain costs excluded in both states. Ratemaking has generally been premised on estimates of historic costs
based on a test year, so if a given year’s actual costs are higher than historic costs, rates may not be sufficient to cover actual costs. While rate
regulation is also premised on the assumption that rates established are fair, just, and reasonable, regulators have considerable discretion in applying this
standard.

Economic, political, legislative, public policy, or regulatory pressures may lead stakeholders to seek rate reductions or refunds, limits on rate increases, or
lower allowed rates of return on investments for Idaho Power. The ratemaking process typically involves multiple intervening parties, including
governmental bodies, consumer advocacy groups, and customers, generally with the common objective of limiting rate increases or even reducing rates.
With the large amount of ongoing and projected investments and the associated regulatory lag in cost recovery, Idaho Power filed rate cases in Idaho in
2023 and 2024 and Oregon in 2023 and expects that it will likely file rate cases or seek other types of regulatory relief on a regular basis in the next few
years. There can be no assurance that any rate case filed by Idaho Power will result in an outcome that is satisfactory for Idaho Power. In the past, Idaho
Power has been denied recovery, or required to defer recovery pending the next general rate case, including denials or deferrals related to capital
expenditures for long-term project expenses. Adverse outcomes in regulatory proceedings, or significant regulatory lag, may cause Idaho Power to incur
unrecovered project costs or result in cancellation of projects, or to record an impairment of its assets or otherwise adversely affect cash flows and
earnings. This may also result in lower credit ratings, reduced access to capital, higher financing costs, and reductions or delays in planned capital
expenditures.
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For additional information relating to Idaho Power's state and federal regulatory framework and regulatory matters, see Part | - Item 1 - "Business - Utility
Operations,"” Part Il - Item 7 - MD&A - "Regulatory Matters," and Note 3 - "Regulatory Matters" to the consolidated financial statements of Part Il - Item 8
in this report.

Idaho Power's regulatory cost recovery mechanisms may not function as intended and are subject to change or elimination, which may
adversely affect IDACORP's and Idaho Power's financial condition and results of operations. |daho Power has power cost adjustment
mechanisms in its ldaho and Oregon jurisdictions and an FCA mechanism in Idaho. The power cost adjustment mechanisms track Idaho Power's actual
net power supply costs (primarily fuel and purchased power less wholesale energy sales) and compare these amounts to net power supply costs being
recovered in retail rates. A majority of the differences between these two amounts is deferred for future recovery from, or refund to, customers through
rates. Volatility in power supply costs continues to be significant, in large part due to fluctuations in hydropower generation conditions, fuel cost variability
from factors including supply chain disruptions and inflation, supply and demand economics for fuel and power, the impact of high costs to purchase
renewable energy under mandatory long-term contracts, and market price variability for power purchases from third parties based on seasonal demands
and transmission system constraints. Changes in market dynamics due to the emergence of day ahead or other energy and transmission markets in the
western United States could also increase the volatility of power supply costs. While the power cost adjustment mechanisms function to mitigate the
potentially adverse impact on net income of power supply cost volatility, the mechanisms do not eliminate the cash flow impact of that volatility. When
power costs rise above the level recovered in current retail rates, Idaho Power incurs the costs but recovery of those costs is deferred to a subsequent
collection period, which can adversely affect operating cash flow and liquidity until those costs are recovered. The FCA mechanism is a decoupling
mechanism that allows Idaho Power to charge Idaho residential and small commercial customers when it recovers less than the base level of fixed costs
per customer that the IPUC authorized for recovery. The power cost adjustment and FCA mechanisms are generally subject to change at the discretion
of applicable state regulators, who could decide to modify or eliminate either mechanism in a manner that adversely impacts IDACORP's and Idaho
Power's financial condition, cash flows, and results of operations.

Operational Risks

Operational risk relates to risks arising from the systems, assets, processes, people, and external factors that affect the operation of IDACORP's or Idaho
Power's businesses.

Changes in customer growth and customer usage may negatively affect IDACORP's and Idaho Power's business, financial condition, and
results of operations. Changes in the number of customers and customers' use of electricity are affected by a number of factors, such as population
growth or decline in Idaho Power's service area, expansion or loss of service area, changes in customer needs and expectations, changes to customer
rates, adoption rates of energy efficiency measures, customer-generated power such as from solar panels and gas-fired generators, demand-side
management requirements, regulation or deregulation, and economic conditions. Continued inflationary pressures, including as a result of new or
increased tariffs or other trade restrictions, or an economic downturn or recession, could also negatively impact customer use and reduce revenues and
cash flows, thus adversely affecting results of operations. Many electric utilities, including Idaho Power, have experienced a long-term decline in usage
per customer, in part attributable to energy efficiency activities. State or federal regulations may be enacted to encourage or require mandatory energy
conservation or technological advances that increase energy efficiency, which could further reduce usage per customer. Also, changing customer needs
and expectations, such as a desire for increased renewable or low GHG-emitting sources of energy, increased customer rates as a result of recent rate
cases and any future rate cases, and increased competition from customer-owned generation could lead to lower customer satisfaction, reduced loyalty,
difficulty in obtaining rate increases, legislation to deregulate electric service, and customers seeking alternative sources of energy and electric service. If
customers choose to generate their own energy, discontinue a portion or all service from Idaho Power, or replace electric power for heating with natural
gas, demand for Idaho Power's energy may decline and adversely impact the affordability of its services for remaining customers.

While Idaho Power has recently experienced a net growth in usage due to an increase in the number of customers, when adjusted for the impacts of
weather, the average monthly usage on a per customer basis for Idaho Power's residential customers has declined from 1,032 kWh in 2012 to 914 kWh
in 2024. There is also no guarantee that Idaho Power will continue to experience an increase in the number of customers at the current rate of growth or
at all. Rate mechanisms, such as the Idaho FCA for residential and small commercial customers, are designed to address the financial disincentive
associated with promoting energy efficiency activities, but there is no assurance that the mechanism will result in full or timely collection of Idaho Power's
fixed costs, which are currently collected in large part through the company's volume-based energy rates that are based on historical sales volume. Any
undercollection of fixed costs would adversely impact revenues, earnings, and cash flows. The formation of municipal utilities or similar entities for
distribution systems within Idaho Power's service area could also result in a load decrease. Idaho Power is experiencing a rapid addition of new industrial
and commercial customer load. It
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is possible that such new industrial and commercial customers may not meet forecasted power usage ramp rates or amounts. The loss of loads resulting
from any of these events may result in excess infrastructure and stranded costs and require IDACORP and Idaho Power to modify or eliminate large
generation, storage, or transmission projects. This could in turn result in reduced revenues as well as write-downs or write-offs if regulators determine
that the costs of the projects were incurred imprudently, which could have a material adverse impact on IDACORP's and Idaho Power's financial
condition, results of operations, and cash flows.

Conversely, if Idaho Power were to experience an unanticipated increase in the demand for energy through, for example, the rapid addition of new
industrial and commercial customers or population growth in the service area, Idaho Power may be required to rely on higher-cost purchased power to
meet peak system demand and may need to accelerate investment in additional generation or transmission resources. Idaho Power's 2023 IRP preferred
resource portfolio and action plan included a need to acquire significant generation and storage resources to meet forecasted increasing energy and
capacity needs. There can be no assurance that these energy and capacity needs will not change or that the resources will be adequate to meet load
demands, in which case Idaho Power would need to rely on additional wholesale power purchases and would be subject to the volatility of wholesale
markets. If the incremental costs associated with unanticipated changes in loads exceed the incremental revenue received from the sales to the new
customers, and Idaho Power is unable to secure timely and full rate relief to recover those increased costs, the resulting imbalance could have an
adverse effect on IDACORP's and Idaho Power's financial condition, results of operations, and cash flows.

Changes in weather conditions, severe weather, and the impacts of climate change can affect IDACORP's and Idaho Power's operating results
and cause them to fluctuate seasonally. |daho Power's electric power sales are seasonal, with demand in Idaho Power's service area peaking during
the hot summer months, with a secondary peak during the cold winter months. Electric power demands by irrigation customers in Idaho Power's service
area, which are impacted by temperatures and the timing and amount of precipitation, can also create significant seasonal changes in usage. Seasonality
of revenues may be further impacted by Idaho Power's tiered rate structure, under which rates charged to customers are often higher during higher-load
periods, such as hot summers and cold winters. Market prices for power also often increase significantly during these peak periods, at times when ldaho
Power is required to purchase power in the wholesale markets to meet customer demand. While Idaho Power has regulatory mechanisms to help
mitigate the impact of weather on power supply costs, there is no assurance that it will continue to receive such regulatory protection in the future. By
contrast, when temperatures are relatively mild or where precipitation supplants irrigation systems, loads are often lower as customers are not using
electricity for heating and air conditioning or irrigation purposes. Thus, weather conditions and the timing and extent of precipitation can cause
IDACORP's and Idaho Power's results of operations and financial condition to fluctuate seasonally, quarterly, and from year to year.

Climate change could also have significant physical effects in Idaho Power’s service area, such as increased frequency and severity of storms, lightning,
high winds, icing events, droughts, heat waves, fires, floods, snow loading, and other extreme weather events. These extreme weather events and their
associated impacts could damage transmission, distribution, and generation facilities, causing service interruptions and extended or mass outages,
increasing costs, and limiting Idaho Power's ability to meet customer energy demand. Sustained drought conditions or decreased snow pack due to
reduced precipitation or higher temperatures are likely to decrease power generation from hydropower plants. Prolonged periods of unfavorable wind or
solar conditions will temporarily reduce or eliminate the availability of power from wind and solar facilities, respectively. This could limit Idaho Power's
ability to meet customer demand for those periods.

The costs of repairing and replacing infrastructure or any costs related to Idaho Power liability for personal injury, loss of life, and property damage from
utility equipment that fails, including as a result of significant weather and weather-related events and the increasing threat of fires, may not be covered
by insurance. Costs incurred in connection with such events might also not be recovered through customer rates if the costs incurred are greater than
those allowed for recovery by regulators.

Idaho Power's customers' energy needs vary with weather and to the extent weather conditions are affected by climate change, customers' energy use
could increase or decrease. Increased energy use due to weather changes may require Idaho Power to invest in generating assets and transmission and
distribution infrastructure, while decreased energy use due to weather changes may result in decreased revenues. Extreme weather conditions creating
high energy demand may raise wholesale electricity prices for power that Idaho Power purchases to serve customers, increasing the cost of energy ldaho
Power provides to its customers, and at the same time can increase the revenues ldaho Power receives for wholesale market sales of excess generation
during regional extreme weather events. Variations in hydropower generation that increase ldaho Power's reliance on market purchases may lead to
more costly power supply sources for its customers and reduce benefits from selling surplus hydropower in the wholesale market. The price of power in
the wholesale energy markets tends to be higher during periods of high regional demand that tends to occur with weather extremes, which may cause
Idaho Power to purchase power in the wholesale market during peak price periods, increasing power supply costs. Idaho Power has in place
mechanisms to help
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mitigate the effects of energy market price volatility, but there is no assurance these mechanisms will continue to be in place or function as intended.

In addition, state and federal legislation and regulations have been proposed in recent years and may be implemented in the future, intended to limit the
severity and impact of climate change. Proposals have included imposing mandatory reductions in GHG emissions, which could increase Idaho Power’s
power supply and compliance costs or require generation facilities to be retired early, resulting in potential stranded costs and write-downs or write-offs if
Idaho Power is unable to fully recover investments in such facilities. For additional information relating to legislation, regulations, and legal proceedings
related to environmental matters, see Part Il - Item 7 - MD&A - "Environmental Matters” in this report.

Liability from fires could adversely impact IDACORP's and Idaho Power's business, financial condition, and results of operations, and Idaho
Power's WMP and other protocols may not prevent such liability. Fires alleged to have been caused by Idaho Power's transmission, distribution, or
generation infrastructure, or that allegedly result from Idaho Power’s or its contractors’ operating or maintenance practices, have exposed, and in the
future could expose, Idaho Power to claims for fire suppression and clean-up costs, evacuation costs, fines and penalties, and liability for economic
damages, personal injury, loss of life, property damage, and environmental pollution, whether based on claims of negligence, trespass, or otherwise. The
risk of wildfires is exacerbated in forested areas where beetle infestations and rising tree mortality rates have caused a significant increase in the quantity
of standing dead and dying timber, increasing the risk that such trees may fall from either inside or outside Idaho Power's right-of-way into a powerline,
igniting a fire and increasing the severity of fires. A significant number of urban-wildland interfaces in and near Idaho Power's service area, and
commonly hot, dry summer conditions that may worsen as a result of climate change, increase the likelihood and magnitude of damages that may be
caused by fires burning into or allegedly originating from utility equipment. Idaho Power spends significant resources on initiatives designed to mitigate
wildfire risks, including through its WMP, but there is no assurance that the WMP and other protocols will be successful or effective in reducing wildfire-
related losses. Further, there has been an increasing trend in the degree of annual destruction from wildfires in the western United States, as well as
utility companies facing claims for significant damages resulting from wildfires. Idaho Power maintains insurance coverage for such risks, but insurance
coverage is subject to terms and limitations and may not be sufficient to cover Idaho Power’s ultimate liability. Coverage limits within wildfire insurance
policies could result in material self-insured costs due to self-insured retention amounts under the terms of Idaho Power’s insurance policies. Idaho
Power, its contractors, and its customers have experienced coverage reductions and increased wildfire insurance costs and may continue to do so in
future years. Idaho Power may be unable to recover costs in excess of insurance through customer rates or regulatory mechanisms and, even if such
recovery is possible, it could take several years to collect. If the amount of insurance is insufficient or otherwise unavailable, and if Idaho Power is unable
to fully recover in rates the costs of uninsured losses, IDACORP’s and Idaho Power’s business, financial condition, and results of operations could be
materially affected.

New advances in power generation, energy efficiency, alternative energy sources, or other technologies that impact the power utility industry
could decrease customer energy demand and revenues, which could have implications for generation and system planning. Advances in
technology and changes in customer demand and preferences in the electric utility industry have encouraged the development of new technologies for
power generation, renewable energy, energy storage, customer-owned generation, and energy efficiency. In particular, in recent years the net cost of
solar and wind generation and storage technology has decreased significantly, and there are federal and state regulations, laws, and other incentives in
place to help further reduce the net cost of solar, wind, and energy storage facilities. There is potential that customer-owned solar power generation
systems could become sufficiently cost-effective and efficient that an increasing number of Idaho Power's customers choose to install such systems on
their homes or businesses, which in turn could require changes in the way Idaho Power builds and manages its distribution systems and substantial grid
infrastructure costs, and at the same time reduce the demand for and sale of energy. Additionally, considerable emphasis has been placed on energy
efficiency, such as LED lighting and high-efficiency appliances. Energy efficiency programs, including programs sponsored by Idaho Power under a
directive from state regulatory commissions, are designed to reduce energy use and demand. The introduction of new technologies could pose risks in
the form of reduced sales and new business models for energy services. These changes in technology could also alter the channels through which
customers buy or utilize energy, including the potential formation of community-based, cooperative ownership or municipal structures, which could
reduce Idaho Power's revenues or impact Idaho Power's expenses. A reduction in load, however, would not necessarily reduce ldaho Power's need for
ongoing investments in its infrastructure to reliably serve its customers. If Idaho Power is unable to adjust its rate design or maintain adequate regulatory
mechanisms allowing for timely cost recovery, declining usage from customer-owned generation sources and energy efficiency could result in under-
recovery of Idaho Power's costs and investment in infrastructure, and reduce revenues, which would adversely impact IDACORP's and Idaho Power's
financial condition and results of operations.

Acts or threats of terrorism, acts of war, social unrest, cyber or physical security attacks, and other malicious acts of individuals or groups
seeking to disrupt Idaho Power's operations or the electric power grid or compromise data could
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adversely impact IDACORP's and Idaho Power's business, financial condition, and results of operations. ldaho Power operates in an industry
that requires the continuous use and operation of sophisticated information technology and increasingly complex operational technology systems and
network infrastructure. Idaho Power's generation and transmission facilities and its grid operations are potential targets for terrorist acts and threats, acts
of war, social unrest, cyber and physical security attacks, and other disruptive activities of individuals or groups, including by nation states or nation state-
sponsored groups. There have been cyber and physical attacks on energy infrastructure within the energy industry and on Idaho Power specifically in the
past, and there are likely to be additional attacks in the future. Idaho Power and its vendors have been subject to, and will likely continue to be subject to,
attempts to gain unauthorized access to systems and confidential information or to disrupt operations. The utility industry is continuing to experience an
increase in the frequency and sophistication of cybersecurity incidents.

Some of Idaho Power's facilities are deemed "“critical infrastructure” under federal standards, in that incapacity or destruction of the facilities could have a
debilitating impact on security, reliability, or operability of the bulk electric power system, national economic security, and public health and safety.
Infrastructure facilities, such as power generation facilities and electric transmission or distribution facilities, could be direct targets of, or potential indirect
casualties of, an act of terror or war or cyber or physical attack (whether originating internal to Idaho Power or externally), which might affect Idaho
Power's operations by limiting the ability to generate, purchase, or transmit power. Idaho Power's electric transmission systems are part of an
interconnected regional grid, and therefore, it faces the risk of causing or being subject to a long-term power outage due to grid disturbances or
disruptions on a neighboring interconnected grid system. Cyber and physical threats and attacks can have cascading impacts that unfold with increasing
speed across networks, information systems, and other technologies. Network, information systems, and technology-related events, including those
caused by IDACORP or Idaho Power through process breakdowns, human error, security architecture or design vulnerabilities, or by third parties through
cyber or physical security attacks, could result in a degradation or disruption in the energy grid and the services of the companies, as well as the ability to
record, process, and report customer, business, and financial information. Physical or cyber attacks against key suppliers or service providers could have
a similar effect on Idaho Power.

Idaho Power's business operations require the continuous availability of information technology systems and network infrastructure, and in the normal
course of business, Idaho Power or its vendors collect and store sensitive and confidential customer and employee information and proprietary
information of Idaho Power. Idaho Power’s technology systems are dependent upon connectivity to the internet and third-party vendors to host, maintain,
modify, and update its systems, which may experience significant system failures or cyber attacks that could compromise the security of Idaho Power's
assets and information. All information technology systems are vulnerable to being disabled, unauthorized access, unintentional defects, user error,
errors in system changes, and cybersecurity incidents. Idaho Power is in the process of pursuing complex business system upgrades, and these
significant changes increase the risk of system interruption. Any data security breaches, such as misappropriation, misuse, leakage, falsification or
accidental release or loss of information maintained in Idaho Power's information technology systems or on third-party systems, including customer or
employee data, could result in violations of privacy and other laws and associated litigation and liability for damages, fines, and penalties; financial loss to
Idaho Power or to its customers; customer dissatisfaction or diminished customer confidence; and damage to Idaho Power’s reputation, all of which could
materially adversely affect Idaho Power's financial condition and results of operations.

No security measures can completely shield Idaho Power's systems, infrastructure, and data from vulnerabilities to cyber attacks, human error,

intrusions, or other catastrophic events that could result in their failure or reduced functionality, and ultimately the potential loss of sensitive information or
the loss of Idaho Power's ability to fulfill critical business functions and provide reliable electric power to customers. Despite the steps Idaho Power may
take to detect, mitigate, or eliminate threats and respond to security incidents, the techniques used by those who seek to obtain unauthorized access, and
possibly disable or sabotage systems or abscond with information and data, change frequently and Idaho Power may not be able to protect against all
such actions. Idaho Power actively monitors developments in cybersecurity and is involved in various related government and industry groups, and the
company'’s board receives security updates at least quarterly. Although Idaho Power continues to make investments in its cybersecurity program,
including personnel, technologies, and training of personnel, there can be no assurance that these systems or their expected functionality will be
implemented, maintained, or expanded effectively; nor can security measures completely eliminate the possibility of a cybersecurity breach. Further, the
implementation of security guidelines and measures has resulted in, and Idaho Power expects to continue to result in, increased costs.

Terrorist attacks, acts of war, social unrest, cyber and physical security attacks, and similar incidents can also have indirect impacts by creating political,
economic, social, or financial market instability, and can cause damage to or interference with Idaho Power’s operating assets, customers, or suppliers.
This may result in business interruption, lost revenue, higher commodity prices, disruption in fuel supplies, lower energy consumption, and unstable
commodity and financial markets,
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particularly with respect to electricity and natural gas, any of which may materially adversely affect Idaho Power. These events, and governmental actions
in response, could result in a material decrease in revenues and increase costs to protect, repair, and insure Idaho Power's assets and operate its
infrastructure, systems, and business.

Changes in capital expenditures for infrastructure and the risks associated with permitting and construction of utility infrastructure can
significantly affect IDACORP's and Idaho Power's financial condition and results of operations. |daho Power’s business is capital intensive and
requires significant investments in power supply, transmission, and distribution infrastructure. A significant portion of Idaho Power’s facilities were
constructed many years ago, and thus require periodic upgrades and frequent maintenance. Also, short-term and long-term anticipated increases in both
the number of customers and the demand for energy require expansion and reinforcement of that infrastructure as described in Idaho Power's 2023 IRP.
Idaho Power is participating in three high-voltage transmission line projects and has also entered into contracts to purchase and own 300 MW of wind
generation and 1,320 MWh of new battery storage assets expected to come online from 2025 to 2027, as well as issued RFPs for new resources, which
are intended to help meet increasing customer energy demands. The level of investments that Idaho Power expects to make in capital improvements and
expenditures for infrastructure projects over the next five years is roughly double what it was in the immediately preceding five years. These projects are
subject to usual permitting and construction risks that can adversely affect project costs and the completion time. These risks include, as examples:

« the ability to timely obtain labor or materials at reasonable costs;

« defaults and delays by suppliers and contractors, including delays for specialty equipment that require significant lead times;

e increases in price and limitations on availability of commodities, materials, and equipment;

« imposition of tariffs or other trade restrictions on commodities, materials, and equipment;

e equipment, engineering, and design failures;

« credit quality of counterparties and suppliers and their ability to meet financial and operational commitments;

* unexpected environmental and geological problems;

» the effects of adverse weather conditions;

« catastrophic events, natural disasters, epidemics, pandemics and other public health or disruptive events that could result in supply chain
disruptions, as well as permitting and construction delays;

« availability of financing;

« the ability to obtain approval from local, state, or federal regulatory and governmental bodies and to comply with permits and land use rights, and
environmental constraints; and

« delays and costs associated with disputes and litigation with third parties.

The occurrence of any of these risks could cause Idaho Power to operate at reduced capacity levels, which in turn could reduce revenues and reliability,
increase expenses, or cause ldaho Power to incur penalties. If Idaho Power is unable to complete the permitting or construction of a project, or incurs
costs that regulators do not deem prudent, it may be unable to recover its costs in full through rates or on a timely basis. Further, if Idaho Power is unable
to secure permits or joint funding commitments to develop transmission infrastructure necessary to serve loads or if other resources become more
economical, it may terminate those projects and, as alternatives, seek to develop additional generation facilities within areas where ldaho Power has
available transmission capacity or pursue other more costly options to serve loads. To limit the timing-related risks of these projects, Idaho Power may
enter into purchase orders and construction contracts and incur engineering and design service costs in advance of receiving necessary regulatory
approvals or permits. If any of the projects are canceled for any reason, including Idaho Power's failure to receive necessary regulatory approvals or
permits or because the project is no longer economical, Idaho Power could incur significant cancellation penalties under purchase orders or construction
contracts. Additionally, termination of a project carries with it the potential for impairment of the associated asset if regulators deny full recovery of project
costs. Thus, termination of a project could negatively affect IDACORP's and Idaho Power's financial condition and results of operations.

Demand for power could exceed supply, particularly in light of the rapid addition of new industrial and commercial customer load, resulting in
deliverability risks and increased costs for, or difficulty in, purchasing capacity in the market or acquiring or constructing additional
generation resources and battery storage facilities. |daho Power's 2023 IRP identified a low-cost preferred resource portfolio and action plan for the
next 20-year period that includes adding substantial renewable resources and the conversion from coal to natural gas of two units at the Jim Bridger plant
in 2024, the two units at the North Valmy plant in 2026, and the remaining two units at the Jim Bridger plant in 2030. As Idaho Power implements the
IRP's action plan, it remains obligated to provide reliable and affordable energy to its customers, but there are certain potential deliverability and cost risks
associated with implementation. These risks include, but are not limited to, (1) the failure to timely obtain or construct additional resources to meet
forecast needs related to load growth, (2) the rapid addition of new industrial and
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commercial customer load and the volatility of such new load demand, (3) increased renewable energy generation presenting risks of uncertainty and
variability that could be further compounded as neighboring systems transition towards increasing levels of renewable resources, and (4) increased
potential resource volatility due to changes in the energy market. During peak periods, power demand could exceed, and on occasion has exceeded,
Idaho Power’s available generation capacity, particularly if Idaho Power’s power plants are not performing as anticipated and additional resources and
battery storage are not available as needed to meet demand. Competitive market forces or adverse regulatory actions may require ldaho Power to
purchase capacity and energy from the market, if such resources are even available for purchase, or build additional resources to meet customers’
energy needs in an expedited manner. If that occurs, Idaho Power may be unable to recover these additional costs and could experience a lag between
when costs are incurred and when regulators permit recovery in customers’ rates, which could have negative impacts on operations and cash flows.

Factors contributing to lower hydropower generation can increase costs and negatively impact IDACORP's and Idaho Power's financial
condition and results of operations. |daho Power derives a significant portion of its power supply from its hydropower facilities. During 2024 and 2023,
54 percent and 55 percent, respectively, of Idaho Power's electric power from Idaho Power-owned generation was from hydropower facilities. Due to
Idaho Power’s heavy reliance on hydropower generation, the impacts of factors such as precipitation and snowpack, the timing of run-off, requirements
for flood control, and the availability of water in the Snake River Basin can significantly affect its operations. The combination of a long-term trend of
declining Snake River base flows, over-appropriation of water, and periods of drought have led to water rights disputes and proceedings among surface
water and ground water irrigators and the State of Idaho. Recharging the Eastern Snake Plain Aquifer by diverting surface water to porous locations and
permitting it to sink into the aquifer is one approach to the over-appropriation dispute. Diversions from the Snake River for aquifer recharge or the loss of
water rights reduce Snake River flows available for hydropower generation. When hydropower generation is reduced, Idaho Power must increase its use
of more expensive thermal generating resources and market power purchases; therefore, costs increase and opportunities for wholesale energy sales
are reduced, reducing revenues and potentially earnings. Through its power cost adjustment mechanisms, Idaho Power expects to recover most (but not
all) of the increase in net power supply costs caused by lower hydropower generation. The timing of recovery of the increased costs, however, may not
occur until the subsequent power cost adjustment year, adversely affecting cash flows and liquidity.

Idaho Power’s use of coal and natural gas to fuel power generation facilities exposes it to commodity availability and price risk, which can
adversely affect IDACORP's and Idaho Power's results of operations and financial condition. As part of its normal business operations, Idaho
Power purchases coal and natural gas in the open market or under short-term or long-term contracts, often with variable pricing terms. Market prices for
coal and natural gas are volatile and influenced by factors impacting supply and demand such as weather conditions, the adequacy and type of
generating capacity, fuel transportation availability, economic conditions, regulations related to GHG emissions, changes in technology, moratoriums on
federally leased coal, and increases in coal lease costs. Natural gas transportation to Idaho Power's three natural gas plants in Idaho is limited to one
primary pipeline, and natural gas transportation to the Jim Bridger plant is also limited to a separate, single pipeline, presenting a heightened possibility of
supply constraint and disruptions separate from the risk of counterparty default. Idaho Power's current coal supply arrangements are under long-term
contracts for coal originating in Wyoming, Utah, and Colorado, and thus Idaho Power is exposed to risk of disruption of coal production in, or
transportation from, those regions. Idaho Power may from time to time enter into new, or renegotiate, these contracts but can provide no assurance that
such contracts will be negotiated or renegotiated on satisfactory terms, or at all. There also can be no assurance that counterparties to the natural gas or
coal supply agreements will fulfill their obligations to supply natural gas or coal, and they may experience regulatory, financial, or technical problems or
unforeseeable events that inhibit their ability to deliver natural gas or coal. Disruptions in transportation of fuel and defaults by coal and natural gas
suppliers may cause ldaho Power to seek alternative, and potentially more costly, sources of fuel or rely on other generation sources or wholesale market
power purchases. Idaho Power's failure to provide service due to such disruptions may also result in fines, penalties, or cost disallowances through the
regulatory process. Idaho Power may not be able to fully or timely recover these increased costs through rates and power cost adjustment mechanisms,
which may adversely affect IDACORP's and Idaho Power's financial condition and results of operations.

Idaho Power’s power supply, transmission, and distribution facilities are subject to numerous operational risks unique to it and its industry,
including circumstances causing power outages, injuries and property damage, loss of life, and fires. Operating risks associated with ldaho
Power's power supply, transmission, and distribution facilities include equipment failures, volatility in fuel and transportation pricing, interruptions in fuel
supplies, increased regulatory compliance costs, changes necessitated by environmental legislation or litigation, labor disputes or attrition, accidents and
workforce safety matters, environmental damage, property damage, wildfires, acts of terrorism or war or sabotage (both cyber and asset-based),
disruptions in supply chains or price increases resulting in the inability to obtain needed equipment or materials on reasonable terms or at all, the loss of
cost-effective disposal options for solid waste such as coal ash, operator error, and the occurrence of
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catastrophic events at the facilities. Idaho Power maintains business continuity and disaster recovery plans, but such plans may be inadequate or not
function as anticipated, which could result in delayed recovery after any such events. Diminished availability or performance of those facilities could result
in reduced customer satisfaction, reputational harm, liability to third parties (including tort liability), and regulatory inquiries and fines. Operation of Idaho
Power's owned and co-owned generating stations below expected capacity levels, or unplanned outages at these stations, could cause reduced energy
output and lower efficiency levels and result in lost revenues and increased expenses for alternative fuels or wholesale market power purchases. Further,
during high-load periods and other extraordinary events such as wildfires, the transmission system servicing Idaho Power's service area in the past has
been, and in the future may be, constrained, limiting the ability to transmit electric energy within the service area and access electric energy from outside
the service area. ldaho Power's transmission facilities are also interconnected with those of third parties, and thus operation of ldaho Power's and third-
parties' facilities could be adversely affected by unexpected or uncontrollable events, such as wildfires. These transmission constraints and events could
result in failure to provide reliable service to customers and the inability to deliver energy from generating facilities to the power grid, and the inability to
access lower cost sources of electric energy. [daho Power also enters into agreements with third-party contractors to perform work on its power supply,
transmission, and distribution facilities, and may in some circumstances retain liability for the quality and completion of those contractors’ work, potentially
subjecting Idaho Power to penalties, liability for personal injury, loss of life, or property damage, reputational harm, or enforcement actions or liability if a
contractor violates applicable laws, rules, regulations, or orders.

Accidents, acts of terrorism or war, electrical contacts, fires, explosions, catastrophic failures, general system damage or dysfunction, intentional acts of
destruction, uncontrolled release of water from hydropower dams, and other unplanned events related to Idaho Power's infrastructure would increase
repair costs and may expose Idaho Power to liability for personal injury, loss of life, and property damage. Idaho Power maintains insurance coverage for
such operating and event risks, but insurance coverage is subject to terms and limitations and may not be sufficient to cover Idaho Power’s ultimate
liability. Idaho Power may be unable to recover costs in excess of insurance through customer rates or regulatory mechanisms and, even if such recovery
is possible, it could take several years to collect. If the amount of insurance is insufficient or otherwise unavailable, and if Idaho Power is unable to fully
recover in rates the costs of uninsured losses, IDACORP’s and Idaho Power’s financial condition, results of operations, or cash flows could be materially
adversely affected.

IDACORP's and Idaho Power's activities are concentrated in one industry and in one region, which exposes it to risks from lack of
diversification, regional economic conditions, and regional legislation and regulation. IDACORP and Idaho Power do not have diversified
operations or sources of revenue. Idaho Power comprises nearly all of IDACORP's operations, and Idaho Power's business is concentrated solely in the
electric power industry. Furthermore, Idaho Power's provision of electric service to retail customers is conducted exclusively in its southern Idaho and
eastern Oregon service area. As a result, IDACORP's and Idaho Power's future performance, revenues, and collectability of revenues, as well as
expenses, will be affected by regional economic conditions, regulatory and legislative activity, weather conditions, and other events and conditions in its
service area and in the electric power industry.

The impacts of turnover in a workforce with specialized utility-specific functions and the inability to hire qualified third-party vendors could
increase costs and adversely affect IDACORP's and Idaho Power's financial condition and results of operations. |daho Power’s operations
require a skilled workforce to perform specialized utility functions. Many of these positions, such as linemen, grid operators, engineering and design
personnel, and generation plant operators, require extensive, specialized training. ldaho Power does not have employment contracts with its officers or
key employees and cannot guarantee that any member of its management or any key employee at the IDACORP parent or any subsidiary level will
continue to serve in any capacity for any particular period of time. Employee retention and recruitment may also be negatively impacted by more flexible
remote work opportunities, higher pay offered by other employers, lower cost of living in other areas, or other factors. The loss of skills and institutional
knowledge of experienced employees, the failure to foster an innovative, welcoming, and respectful company culture in order to hire appropriately
qualified employees, the costs associated with attracting, training, and retaining such employees to replace skilled individuals who retire or leave Idaho
Power or the inability to do so, and the operational and financial costs of unionization or the attempt to unionize all or part of the companies’ workforce,
could have a negative effect on IDACORP's and Idaho Power's financial condition and results of operations. [daho Power could incur increased costs as
a result of such turnover due to a loss of knowledge, errors due to inexperienced employees, substantial training time, loss of productivity, increased
compliance issues, and other factors.

Idaho Power also hires third-party vendors to assist in performing a variety of ordinary business functions, such as power plant maintenance, data
warehousing and management, software development and licensing, electric transmission and distribution operations, billing and metering processes,
and vegetation management, among other things. In recent years, ldaho Power has experienced increased competition and rising prices for many forms
of third-party vendor services. While Idaho Power does not rely entirely on third-party vendors for many of these business functions, the unavailability of
such vendors at a reasonable cost
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or at all could adversely affect the quality and cost of Idaho Power's electric service and negatively impact its results of operation.

Co-owners of Idaho Power’s generation and transmission assets may have unaligned goals and positions due to the effects of legislation,
regulations, capital requirements, load growth amounts, changes in its industry, or other factors, which could at times adversely impact Idaho
Power’s ability to construct and operate those facilities in a manner most suitable to Idaho Power. |daho Power owns certain of its generation
and transmission assets jointly with other owners, with varying ownership interests in such facilities, and Idaho Power plans to develop and own assets
jointly in the future. While there are advantages to joint ownership of resources, there are also restrictions imposed by the joint ownership and operating
agreements for those facilities that provide rights, but also restrictions, on when and how the facilities are constructed and on how they are operated.
Changes in the nature of Idaho Power’s industry and the economic viability of certain plants and facilities, including impacts resulting from types and
availability of other resources, fuel costs, and legislation and regulation, together with timing considerations related to expiration of permits or leases or
other agreements for such facilities and other factors, could result in unaligned positions among co-owners. While Idaho Power negotiates and enforces
its rights and obligations thoughtfully, differences in the co-owners’ willingness or ability to continue their participation or the timing of facility construction,
modification, or decommissioning could lead to restrictions and disruptions to operations, adverse financial impacts to Idaho Power, and/or uncertainty
related to the resulting cost recovery of such assets.

Legal and Compliance Risks

Legal and compliance risk relates to risks arising from government and regulatory action and from legal proceedings and compliance with applicable
laws, rules, orders, regulations, policies, and procedures, including those related to financial reporting, environment, health, and safety, and potential
changes in legal requirements.

Changes in legislation, regulation, and government policy may have a material adverse effect on IDACORP’s and Idaho Power’s business in
the future. Legislative and regulatory proposals and recently enacted legislation that could have a material impact on IDACORP and Idaho Power
include, but are not limited to, changes in tax policy or utility regulation, carbon-reduction initiatives, infrastructure renewal programs, climate change and
environmental regulation, and modifications to accounting and public company reporting requirements. Further, the proposals and new legislation could
have an impact on the rate of growth of Idaho Power’s customers and their willingness to expand operations and increase electric service requirements.
Under the new Presidential Administration, Idaho Power expects laws, regulations, executive orders, and policies relating to environmental compliance,
tax, and other matters to change from those of the previous Presidential Administration and could require IDACORP and Idaho Power and some of their
customers to modify their business strategy, activities, and projects due to change or uncertainty in the regulatory environment. For example, in January
2025, the United States again opted out of the Paris Agreement on climate change that would require commitments related to GHG emissions, among
other things. It is possible that a future Presidential Administration may cause the United States to adopt the Paris Agreement again or enter into a similar
agreement. Many states and localities may continue to pursue climate policies in addition to federal mandates. Failure to comply with environmental laws
and regulations, even if such non-compliance is caused by factors outside of Idaho Power's control, may result in the assessment of civil or criminal
penalties or fines, or government enforcement actions. ldaho Power could also become subject to climate change lawsuits and an adverse outcome
could require substantial expenditures and could possibly require payment of damages. IDACORP and Idaho Power expect federal, state, and local
governmental authorities to implement various recent and future executive orders from the new Presidential Administration and are unable to predict
whether and to what extent such actions will meaningfully change existing legislative and regulatory environments relevant to the companies, or if any
such changes would have a net positive or negative impact on the companies. Idaho Power is unable to estimate the costs of complying with such
legislative or regulatory changes due to the uncertainties associated with the nature and implementation of the changes, and may not be able to recover
the associated costs. To the extent that such changes have a negative impact on the companies or Idaho Power’s customers, including as a result of
related uncertainty, these changes may materially and adversely impact IDACORP’s and Idaho Power’s business, financial condition, results of
operations, and cash flows.

Changes in income tax laws and regulations, or differing interpretation or enforcement of applicable laws by the U.S. Internal Revenue
Service or other taxing jurisdictions, could have a material adverse impact on IDACORP’s or Idaho Power’s financial condition and results of
operations. IDACORP and Idaho Power must make judgments and interpretations about the application of the law when determining the provision for
income taxes. Amounts of income tax-related assets and liabilities involve judgments and estimates of the timing and probability of recognition of income,
deductions, and tax credits, which are subject to challenge by taxing authorities. These judgments may include estimates for potential outcomes
regarding tax positions that may be subject to challenge by the taxing authorities. Disputes over interpretations of tax laws may be settled with the taxing
authority in examination, upon appeal, or through litigation. The outcome of potential future income tax
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proceedings or laws, or the state public utility commissions' treatment of those outcomes, could differ materially from the amounts IDACORP and Idaho
Power record prior to conclusion of those proceedings, and the difference could negatively affect IDACORP’s and Idaho Power’s earnings and cash
flows. Further, in some instances, the treatment from a ratemaking perspective of any net income tax expense (including from increased tax rates) or
benefit could be different than IDACORP or Idaho Power anticipate or request from applicable state regulatory commissions, which could have a
negative effect on their financial condition and results of operations. The unavailability of expected tax credits or other tax benefits, whether due to a
change in law, interpretation, or otherwise, could also have an adverse impact on the economic viability of certain of its planned or existing facilities. In
addition, Idaho Power uses the regulatory flow-through income tax accounting method as described in Note 1 - "Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies" to the consolidated financial statements included in this report, and potential changes in income tax laws or interpretations may impact
IDACORP's and Idaho Power's income taxes and reporting obligations differently than most other companies.

IDACORP's and Idaho Power’s businesses are subject to an extensive set of environmental laws, rules, and regulations, which could impact
their operations and costs of operations, potentially rendering some generating units uneconomical to maintain or operate, and could
increase the costs and alter the timing of major projects. IDACORP's and Idaho Power's operations are subject to a number of federal, state, and
local environmental statutes, rules, and regulations relating to air and water quality, natural resources, endangered species and wildlife, renewable
energy, climate change, and health and safety. Many of these laws and regulations are described in Part Il - ltem 7 - MD&A - "Environmental Matters” in
this report. These laws and regulations generally require IDACORP and Idaho Power to obtain and comply with a wide variety of environmental licenses,
permits, and other approvals, including through substantial investment in pollution controls, and may be enforced by both public officials and private
individuals. Some of these regulations are pending, changing, or subject to interpretation, and failure to comply may result in penalties, mandatory
operational changes, and other adverse consequences, including costs associated with defending against claims by governmental authorities or private
parties and complying with new operating requirements. Idaho Power devotes significant resources to environmental monitoring, pollution control
equipment, and mitigation projects to comply with existing and anticipated environmental regulations. However, it is possible that federal, state, and local
authorities could attempt to enforce more stringent standards, stricter regulation, and more expansive application of environmental regulations.

Environmental regulations have created the need for Idaho Power to install new pollution control equipment at, and may cause Idaho Power to perform
environmental remediation on, its owned and co-owned power generation facilities, often at a substantial cost. Compliance with environmental
regulations can significantly increase capital spending, operating costs, and plant outages, and can negatively affect the affordability of Idaho Power's
services for customers. Idaho Power cannot predict with certainty the amount and timing of all future expenditures necessary to comply with these
environmental laws and regulations, although Idaho Power expects the expenditures could be substantial. In some cases, the costs to obtain permits and
ensure facilities are in compliance may be prohibitively expensive. If the costs of compliance with new regulations renders the generating facilities
uneconomical to maintain or operate, ldaho Power would need to identify alternative resources for power, potentially in the form of new generation and
transmission facilities, market power purchases, demand-side management programs, or a combination of these and other methods. Furthermore, Idaho
Power may not be able to obtain or maintain all environmental regulatory approvals necessary for operation of its existing infrastructure or construction of
new infrastructure.

In addition, some environmental regulations are currently subject to litigation or other uncertainty, including due to changes instituted by the new
Presidential Administration. As a result, approaches to comply with the regulations, including available control technologies or other allowed compliance
measures, are unpredictable and Idaho Power cannot foresee the potential impacts these regulations would have on Idaho Power's operations or
financial condition. In 2019, Idaho Power announced its long-term goal to serve customers with 100-percent clean energy by 2045, and Idaho Power has
short-term and medium-term goals for CO2 emission reductions, which could impact infrastructure resource decisions and costs. [daho Power's ability to
achieve these targets are subject to a number of risks and uncertainties, including the company's regulatory obligation to serve its customers, the
availability and cost of new generation resources, legal and permitting requirements, system operation and energy integration, and grid balancing, among
others. Additionally, Idaho Power is not guaranteed timely or full recovery through customer rates of costs associated with environmental regulations,
environmental compliance, its clean energy initiatives, plant closures, or clean-up of contamination. If there is a delay in obtaining any required
environmental regulatory approval or if Idaho Power fails to obtain, maintain, or comply with any such approval, construction and/or operation of Idaho
Power's generation or transmission facilities could be delayed, halted, terminated, or subjected to additional costs. For further discussion of
environmental matters that may affect Idaho Power, see "Environmental Matters" in ltem 7 - MD&A in this report.

Obligations imposed in connection with hydropower license renewals and permitting may require large capital expenditures, increase
operating costs, reduce hydropower generation, and negatively affect IDACORP's or Idaho Power's results of
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operations and financial condition. Since 2003, Idaho Power has been engaged in an effort to renew its federal license for its largest hydropower
generation source, the HCC. Relicensing and ongoing permitting requirements include an extensive public review process that involves numerous natural
resource issues and environmental conditions. The existence of endangered and threatened species in the watershed may result in major operational
changes to the region’s hydropower projects, which may be reflected in hydropower licenses, including for the HCC and the American Falls facility.
Federal land use agencies may also impose conditions under the FPA that could impact costs and operations if FERC deems them necessary for the
adequate protection and utilization of the public lands and reservations of the United States. In addition, new agency requirements and new
interpretations of existing laws and regulations could be adopted or become applicable to hydropower facilities, which could further increase required
expenditures for flood control, marine life recovery and endangered species protection and may reduce the amount of hydropower generation available to
meet Idaho Power’s generation requirements. Idaho Power cannot predict the requirements that might be imposed during the relicensing and permitting
process, the financial impact of those requirements, whether a new multi-year license will ultimately be issued, and whether the IPUC or OPUC will allow
recovery through rates of the substantial costs incurred in connection with the licensing process and subsequent compliance. Imposition of onerous
conditions in the relicensing and permitting processes could result in Idaho Power incurring significant capital expenditures, increase operating costs
(including power purchase costs), and reduce hydropower generation, which could negatively affect results of operations and financial condition.

Idaho Power could be subject to penalties, reputational harm, and operational changes if it violates mandatory reliability and security
requirements, which could adversely impact IDACORP's and Idaho Power's results of operations and financial condition. As an owner and
operator of a bulk power transmission system, Idaho Power is subject to mandatory reliability and security standards issued by the FERC and other
regulators. The standards are based on the functions that need to be performed to ensure the bulk power system operates reliably and are guided by
reliability, security, and market interface principles. Compliance with reliability standards subjects Idaho Power to higher operating costs and increased
capital expenditures. Idaho Power has received in recent years notices of violations from, and regularly self-reports reliability standard compliance issues
to, the FERC, the North American Electric Reliability Corporation, and the Western Electricity Coordinating Council. Potential monetary and non-
monetary penalties for a violation of FERC regulations may be substantial, and in some circumstances monetary penalties may exceed $1.5 million per
day per violation. As a utility with a large customer base, Idaho Power is subject to adverse publicity focused on the reliability of its services and the
speed with which it is able to respond to electric outages caused by storm damage or other unanticipated events. Adverse publicity could harm the
reputations of IDACORP and Idaho Power; may make state legislatures, utility commissions, and other regulatory authorities less likely to view the
companies in a favorable light; and may cause Idaho Power to be subject to less favorable legislative and regulatory outcomes or increased regulatory
oversight. The imposition of any of the foregoing on Idaho Power for its actual or alleged failure to comply with reliability and security requirements could
also have a negative effect on its and IDACORP’s results of operations and financial condition.

IDACORP and Idaho Power are subject to costs and other effects of legal and regulatory proceedings, disputes, and claims . From time to time
in the normal course of business, IDACORP and Idaho Power are subject to various lawsuits, regulatory proceedings, disputes, and claims that could
result in adverse judgments or settlements, fines, penalties, injunctions, or other adverse consequences. These matters are subject to a number of
uncertainties, and management is often unable to predict the outcome of such matters; resulting liabilities could exceed amounts currently reserved or
insured against with respect to such matter. The legal costs and final resolution of matters in which IDACORP or Idaho Power are involved could have
reputational impact and a short- or long-term negative effect on their financial condition and results of operations. Addressing any adverse publicity or
governmental scrutiny could be time consuming and expensive, regardless of the basis of the assertions being made, and could impact Idaho Power's
relationship with employees, stakeholders, and regulators. Further, the terms of resolution could require the companies to change their operational
practices and procedures, which could also have a negative effect on their financial positions and results of operations.

Changes in accounting standards or rules may impact IDACORP's and Idaho Power's financial results and disclosures. The Financial
Accounting Standards Board and the SEC have made and may continue to make changes to accounting standards that impact presentation and
disclosures of financial condition and results of operations. Further, new accounting orders issued by the FERC could significantly impact IDACORP's
and Idaho Power's reported financial condition. IDACORP and Idaho Power do not have any control over the impact these changes may have on their
financial conditions or results of operations nor the timing of such changes. Idaho Power meets the requirements under GAAP to reflect the impact of
regulatory decisions in its financial statements and to defer certain costs as regulatory assets until those costs are collected in rates, and to defer some
items as regulatory liabilities. If recovery of these amounts ceases to be probable, if Idaho Power determines that it no longer meets the criteria for
applying regulatory accounting or if accounting rules change to no longer provide for regulatory assets and liabilities, Idaho Power could be required to
eliminate some or all of those regulatory assets or liabilities. Any of these
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circumstances could result in write-offs and have a material effect on IDACORP's and Idaho Power’s financial condition and results of operations.

Financial and Investment Risks

Financial and investment risks relate to IDACORP's and Idaho Power's ability to meet financial obligations and mitigate exposure to market risks,
including liquidity risks and the ability to raise capital and cost of funding, risks related to credit ratings, credit risk, liquidity, interest rates, and commodity
prices.

Volatility or disruptions in the financial markets, failure of IDACORP or Idaho Power to satisfy conditions necessary for obtaining loans or
issuing debt securities, and denial of regulatory authority to issue debt or equity securities, may negatively affect IDACORP’s and Idaho
Power’s ability to access capital and/or increase their cost of borrowing and ability to execute on their strategic plans. IDACORP and Idaho
Power use credit facilities, commercial paper markets, long-term debt, and equity securities as significant sources of liquidity and funding for operating
and capital requirements and debt maturities not satisfied by operating cash flow. Credit facilities represent commitments by the participating banks to
make loans and issue letters of credit. However, the ability and obligation of the participating banks to make those loans and issue letters of credit is
subject to specified conditions and volatility or disruptions in the financial markets could affect the companies' ability to obtain debt financing or draw upon
or renew existing credit facilities on favorable terms and comply with debt covenants. Idaho Power's ability to issue long-term debt is also subject to a
number of conditions included in an indenture, and IDACORP's and Idaho Power's ability to issue long-term debt, commercial paper, and equity securities
is subject to the availability of purchasers willing to purchase the securities under reasonable terms or at all. Because of these limitations, IDACORP and
Idaho Power may be unable to issue commercial paper, short-term or long-term debt, or equity securities on reasonable terms or at all. Higher interest
rates on short-term borrowings with variable interest rates could also have an adverse effect on IDACORP's and Idaho Power's operating results.
Changes in interest rates may also impact the fair value of the debt securities in Idaho Power's pension funds, as well as Idaho Power's ability to earn a
return on short-term investments of excess cash. Also, while the credit facilities represent a contractual obligation to make loans, one or more of the
participating banks may default on their obligations to make loans under, or may withdraw from, the credit facilities.

Idaho Power is required to obtain regulatory approval in Idaho, Oregon, and Wyoming in order to borrow money or to issue securities and is therefore
dependent on the public utility commissions of those states to issue favorable orders in a timely manner to permit them to finance their operations, capital
expenditures, and debt maturities. IDACORP's and Idaho Power's credit facilities consist of revolving lines of credit not to exceed an aggregate principal
amount outstanding at any one time of $100 million and $400 million, respectively (Credit Facilities). Each of the Credit Facilities includes a financial
covenant that limits the amount of debt that can be outstanding as a percentage of total capital, and Idaho Power's long-term debt has also been issued
under an indenture that contains a number of financial covenants. The companies must also make specified representations in connection with requests
for loans and it is possible that they may be unable to do so at the time of such request, which would limit or eliminate the obligation of the banks to
provide loans. Failure to maintain these representations and covenants could preclude IDACORP and Idaho Power from issuing commercial paper,
borrowing under their Credit Facilities, or issuing long-term debt, and could trigger a default and repayment obligation under debt instruments, which
could limit their ability to pursue certain projects, acquisitions, or improvements, to support future growth, and adversely impact IDACORP's and Idaho
Power's financial condition, results of operations, and liquidity.

A downgrade in IDACORP’s and Idaho Power’s credit ratings could affect the companies’ ability to access capital, increase their cost of
borrowing, and require the companies to post collateral with transaction counterparties. Credit rating agencies periodically review the corporate
credit ratings and long-term ratings of IDACORP and Idaho Power. These ratings are premised on financial ratios and performance, the regulatory
environment and rate mechanisms, the effectiveness of management, resource risks and power supply costs, and other factors. IDACORP and Idaho
Power also have borrowing arrangements that rely on the ability of the banks to fund loans or support commercial paper, a principal source of short-term
financing. In addition, IDACORP's or Idaho Power's credit ratings may change as a result of change in the methodologies used by the various rating
agencies. Downgrades of IDACORP’s or Idaho Power’s credit ratings, or those affecting relationship banks, could limit the companies’ ability to access
short- and long-term capital under reasonable terms or at all, reduce the pool of potential lenders, increase borrowing costs under the Credit Facilities,
limit access to the commercial paper market, require the companies to pay a higher interest rate on their debt, limit the ability of IDACORP to declare and
make dividends, and require the companies to post additional performance assurance collateral with transaction counterparties. If access to capital were
to become significantly constrained or costs of capital increased significantly due to lowered credit ratings, prevailing industry conditions, regulatory
constraints, the volatility of the capital markets, or other factors, IDACORP's and Idaho Power's ability to pursue improvements or acquisitions (including
generating capacity and transmission assets, which may be necessary for future growth), liquidity, financial condition, and results of operations could be
adversely affected.
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Stakeholder actions and regulatory activity related to sustainability matters, particularly global climate change and reducing GHG emissions,
could negatively impact IDACORP and Idaho Power. The power and gas utility industry faces stakeholder scrutiny related to sustainability matters.
Certain stakeholders, such as investors, customers, suppliers, and lenders focus on the impact and social cost associated with climate change.
Customers, suppliers, or other stakeholders could pursue, and in some cases have pursued, alternatives to Idaho Power's services or business as a
result of their sustainability-related expectations. GHG emissions, including, most significantly CO,, could be further restricted in the future in response to
additional state and federal regulatory requirements, increased scrutiny, and changing stakeholder expectations with respect to environmental and
climate change programs, judicial decisions, and international accords. If new laws, regulations, or enforcement policies were to become effective, they
could result in significant additional compliance and remediation costs that could negatively impact Idaho Power's future financial position, results of
operations, and cash flows if such costs are not timely recovered through regulated rates. In addition, the focus on climate change and regulatory and
legal requirements may result in Idaho Power facing adverse reputational risks associated with certain of its operations producing GHG emissions. If
Idaho Power is unable to satisfy the climate-related expectations of certain stakeholders, IDACORP and Idaho Power may suffer reputational harm,
which could cause IDACORP’s stock price to decrease or cause certain investors and financial institutions not to purchase the companies’ debt or equity
securities or otherwise provide the companies with capital or credit on favorable terms, which may cause IDACORP’s and Idaho Power’s cost of capital to
increase.

Idaho Power’s energy risk management policy and programs relating to economically hedging commodity exposures and credit risk may not
always perform as intended, and as a result, IDACORP and Idaho Power may suffer losses. |daho Power enters into transactions to buy and sell
power, natural gas, and transmission service, enters into transactions to hedge its positions in coal, natural gas, power, and other commodities, and
enters into economic hedge transactions to mitigate in part exposure to variable commaodity prices. IDACORP and Idaho Power could recognize losses
as a result of volatility in the market value of these contracts or if a counterparty fails to perform. The derivative instruments used for hedging might not
offset the underlying exposure being mitigated as intended, due to pricing inefficiencies or other terms of the derivative instruments, and any such failure
to mitigate exposure could result in losses. Certain of Idaho Power's purchase or sale, hedging, and derivative agreements may result in the receipt of, or
posting of, collateral with counterparties. Fluctuations in commodity prices that lead to the posting of collateral with counterparties negatively impact
liquidity, and downgrades in Idaho Power's credit ratings may lead to additional collateral posting requirements. In 2024, Idaho Power recorded losses on
economic hedges of $63.3 million, compared with $16.2 million of losses in 2023. At times, Idaho Power’s energy risk management policy results in Idaho
Power entering into economic hedges in an environment where prices are high, and if prices are lower at the time the economic hedge settles, Idaho
Power will record losses on the economic hedges. Depending on the volume of economic hedges and the degree of price volatility, those losses can be
substantial, and the power cost adjustment mechanisms generally provide that Idaho Power will incur a portion of those losses. Forecasts of future fuel
needs and loads and available resources to meet those loads are inherently uncertain and may cause Idaho Power to over- or under-hedge actual
resource needs, exposing the company to market risk on the over- or under-hedged position. To the extent that commodity markets are illiquid, Idaho
Power may not be able to execute its risk management strategies, which could result in undesired over-exposure to unhedged positions that Idaho Power
may not be able to collect in customer rates. The FERC may take action to limit volatility in the energy market by imposing price limits or other market
restrictions to control rates in market-based sales, which could adversely affect the companies' financial results. As a result, risk management actions, or
the failure or inability to manage commodity availability and price and counterparty risk, may adversely affect IDACORP’s and Idaho Power’s financial
condition and results of operations. Idaho Power has additional indirect credit exposures to financial institutions in the form of letters of credit provided as
security by power suppliers under various purchased power contracts, by vendors for infrastructure development projects, and by customers or potential
customers. If any of the credit ratings of the letter of credit issuers were to drop below investment grade, the vendor, supplier, customer, or potential
customer would need to replace the security with an acceptable substitute, which may be impracticable and may expose Idaho Power to losses resulting
from a default of the counterparty. If the security were not replaced, the counterparty could be in default under the contract and Idaho Power's remedies
for default may be inadequate to fully compensate Idaho Power for its losses. Further, the bankruptcy or insolvency of a counterparty to commaodity or
other transactions could impair Idaho Power’s ability to collect amounts receivable from those counterparties, potentially including the ability to collect or
retain collateral posted by a counterparty.

Idaho Power is a participant in the energy markets, including the Western EIM, and engages in direct and indirect power purchase and sale transactions
in connection with that participation. The Western EIM has collateral posting requirements based on established credit criteria, but there is no assurance
the collateral will be sufficient to cover obligations that counterparties may owe each other in the Western EIM and any such credit losses could be
socialized to all Western EIM participants, including Idaho Power. A significant failure of a participant in the Western EIM to make payments when due on
its obligations could have a ripple effect on various Idaho Power counterparties in the power, gas, and derivative markets if those
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counterparties experience ancillary liquidity issues, and could generally result in a decline in the ability of Idaho Power’s counterparties to perform on their
obligations.

The performance of pension and postretirement benefit plan investments, increasing health care costs, and other factors impacting plan costs
and funding obligations could adversely affect IDACORP's and Idaho Power's financial condition and results of operations - primarily cash
flows and liquidity. |daho Power provides a noncontributory defined benefit pension plan covering most employees, as well as a defined benefit
postretirement benefit plan (consisting of health care and death benefits) that covers eligible retirees. Costs of providing these benefits are based in part
on the value of the plans' assets and, therefore, adverse investment performance for these assets or the failure to maintain sustained growth in pension
investments over time could increase Idaho Power’s plan costs and funding requirements related to the plans. Idaho Power's self-insured costs of health
care benefits for eligible employees and retirees have increased in recent years and Idaho Power believes that future legislative changes related to the
provision of health care benefits and other external market conditions and factors, could cause such costs to continue to rise. As benefit costs continue to
rise, there is no assurance that the IPUC and OPUC will continue to allow recovery.

The key actuarial assumptions that affect pension funding obligations are the expected long-term return on plan assets and the discount rate used in
determining future benefit obligations. Idaho Power evaluates the actuarial assumptions on an annual basis, taking into account changes in market
conditions, trends, and future expectations. Estimates of future investment market performance, changes in interest rates, and other factors Idaho Power
and its actuary firms use to develop the actuarial assumptions are inherently uncertain, and actual results could vary significantly from the estimates.
Changes in demographics, including timing of retirements or changes in life expectancy assumptions, may also increase ldaho Power's plan costs and
funding requirements. Future pension funding requirements and the timing of funding payments are also subject to the impacts of changes in legislation.
Depending on the timing of contributions to the plans and Idaho Power's ability to recover costs through rates, cash contributions to the plans could
reduce the cash available for the companies' businesses and payment of dividends. For additional information regarding Idaho Power's funding
obligations under its benefit plans, see Note 11 - "Benefit Plans" to the consolidated financial statements included in this report.

If the assumptions underlying coal mine reclamation at BCC and related forecast trust fund growth are materially inaccurate, Idaho Power’s
costs could be greater than anticipated or be incurred sooner than anticipated. BCC, an indirect jointly-owned investment of Idaho Power located in
the state of Wyoming, uses surface mining to extract coal to be used for power generation at the Jim Bridger plant. The federal Surface Mining Control
and Reclamation Act and state laws and regulations establish operational, reclamation, bonding, and closure obligations and standards for mining of coal.
BCC's estimate of reclamation liability and bonding obligations is reviewed periodically by Idaho Power's management committee, audit committee of the
board of directors, external and internal auditors, and by government regulators. Idaho Power funds a trust and posts collateral in the form of a surety
bond purchased jointly with the co-owner of BCC to cover such projected mine reclamation costs pursuant to the laws of the state of Wyoming. The trust
funds are invested in debt and equity securities and poor performance of these investments would reduce the amount of funds available for their intended
purpose, which could require Idaho Power to make additional cash contributions. If actual costs related to those obligations exceed estimates,
government regulations relating to those obligations change significantly, or unexpected cash funding obligations are required, IDACORP’s and Idaho
Power’s results of operations and financial condition could be adversely affected.

As a holding company, IDACORP does not have its own operating income and must rely on the cash flows from its subsidiaries to pay
dividends and make debt payments. IDACORP is a holding company with no significant operations of its own, and its primary assets are shares or
other ownership interests of its subsidiaries, primarily Idaho Power. IDACORP'’s subsidiaries are separate and distinct legal entities and have no
obligation to pay any amounts to IDACORP, whether through dividends, loans, or other means. The ability of IDACORP’s subsidiaries to pay dividends or
make distributions to IDACORP depends on several factors, including each subsidiary's actual and projected earnings and cash flow, capital
requirements and general financial condition, regulatory and legal restrictions, tax obligations, covenants contained in credit facilities to which they are
parties, and the prior rights of holders of their existing and future first mortgage bonds and other debt or equity securities. Further, the amount and
payment of dividends is at the discretion of the board of directors, which may reduce or cease payment of dividends at any time. See Note 6 - "Common
Stock" to the consolidated financial statements included in this report for a further description of restrictions on IDACORP's and Idaho Power's payment of
dividends.

The market price of IDACORP's common stock may be volatile . The market price of IDACORP's common stock could be subject to significant
fluctuations in response to factors such as the following, some of which are beyond its control:

¢ variations in IDACORP and Idaho Power's quarterly operating results;
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« operating results that vary from the expectations of management, securities analysts, and investors and other impacts from the risks identified in
this "Risk Factors" section and elsewhere in this report;

« changes in expectations as to future financial performance, including financial estimates by securities analysts or investors;

« developments generally affecting IDACORP and Idaho Power's industry;

¢ announcements by IDACORP and Idaho Power of significant contracts, acquisitions, divestitures, joint ventures, or capital commitments;

* announcements by third parties of significant claims or proceedings against IDACORP or Idaho Power;

« favorable or adverse regulatory or legislative developments;

* IDACORP's dividend policy;

* change in IDACORP or Idaho Power's management;

e future sales of IDACORP's equity or equity-linked securities; and

¢ general domestic and international economic conditions.

In addition, the stock market in general has experienced volatility that has often been unrelated to the operating performance of a particular company.
These broad market fluctuations may adversely affect the market price of IDACORP's common stock.

IDACORP's charter and bylaws and Idaho or Oregon law could delay or prevent a change in control that shareholders may favor. The terms of
some of the provisions in IDACORP's articles of incorporation and bylaws and provisions of Idaho or Oregon law could delay or prevent a change in
control that shareholders may favor or may impede the ability of shareholders to change IDACORP's management. In particular, the provisions of
IDACORP's articles of incorporation and bylaws authorize issuance of up to 20,000,000 shares of preferred stock without further action by shareholders;
limit the shareholders’ right to remove directors, fill vacancies, and change the number of directors; regulate how shareholders may present proposals or
nominate directors for election at shareholders’ meetings; and require a supermajority vote of shareholders to amend certain provisions. IDACORP is
also subject to the provisions of the Idaho Control Share Acquisition Act and the Idaho Business Combination Act, which provide for certain procedures
and restrictions in connection with acquisitions or business combinations. In addition, Oregon law requires shareholders to obtain advance approval from
the OPUC before acquiring 5% stock ownership in an Oregon public utility. Any of the above provisions could delay or prevent a change in control of
Idaho Power.

Statutory and regulatory factors will limit another party’s ability to acquire IDACORP and could deprive shareholders of the opportunity to
gain a takeover premium for their shares of common stock. Even if IDACORP's board of directors favors a sale of the company, a sale would require
approval of a number of federal and state regulatory agencies, including the FERC, the IPUC, the OPUC, and the WPSC. The approval process could be
lengthy and the outcome uncertain, which may deter otherwise interested parties from proposing or attempting a business combination.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.

ITEM 1C. CYBERSECURITY

Assessing, identifying, managing, and mitigating risks from cybersecurity threats that may affect Idaho Power's systems and service are essential to its
business. IDACORP's and Idaho Power's board of directors oversees risks from cybersecurity threats through the audit committee and the executive
committee. The audit committee assists the board in the oversight of Idaho Power's major cybersecurity risk exposures, including oversight of
management’s information security activities. Those activities include briefing the audit committee and the board on information security matters several
times a year in their regular meetings and on an ad hoc basis, conducting an annual security training program, and arranging for external security
assessments . Together with the audit committee, the board's executive committee assists the board in monitoring management’s risk management
framework for cybersecurity on a regular basis.

IDACORP and Idaho Power include risks from cybersecurity threats, including from use of third-party service providers, as part of the companies'
enterprise risk assessment process. The companies have utilized and continue to utilize recognized third-party cybersecurity standards such as those
published by the Center for Internet Security and the U.S. National Institute of Standards and Technology in developing their risk management
framework for cybersecurity, their cybersecurity processes, controls, and procedures, and risk identification. The companies engage with consultants and
other third parties as necessary to design, enhance, and implement appropriate cybersecurity measures in seeking to mitigate risks from cybersecurity
threats. As
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part of the companies' strategy to manage risks from cybersecurity threats with third-party service providers , the companies seek to include appropriate
security clauses in their contracts with those providers, including incident reporting requirements.

A dedicated cybersecurity team lead by a cybersecurity manager and director of security oversee the assessment and management of risks from
cybersecurity threats on a day-to-day basis at IDACORP and Idaho Power. The cybersecurity manager reports to Idaho Power's director of security. The
cybersecurity team has a range of expertise including architecture, forensics, cloud, incident response, auditing/logging, and software administration, with
several industry-recognized certifications among the team, including Certified Information Systems Security Professional and Certified Information
Security Manager.

The cybersecurity team monitors and reviews threat intelligence feeds from various sources, including security vendors and U.S. federal and state
agencies, to determine potential risks to the companies' information and control systems. Additionally, the team utilizes a defense-in-depth approach to
cybersecurity that provides layers of defenses and monitoring/alerting to which the team responds. The team also monitors the companies' third-party
service providers for risks related to the confidentiality, availability, and integrity of the companies' data and services hosted through those third parties.

The companies have an established cybersecurity incident response plan to provide structure and guidance when responding to cybersecurity incidents.
In appropriate cases, an incident response team is activated to lead the companies' response. The team is composed of individuals from the
cybersecurity team and other departments within the companies with relevant expertise, as well as third-party contractors and vendors.

Utilities are the operators of critical infrastructure and maintain sensitive information, and as such the industry has been subject to, and will likely continue
to be subject to, attempts to gain unauthorized access to systems and confidential information to disrupt operations or for monetary gain. ldaho Power,
like other entities in the utility industry, is experiencing an increase in the frequency and sophistication of these attempts. For the year ended

December 31, 2024, and the subsequent period to the date of this report, IDACORP and Idaho Power believe that no risks from known cybersecurity
incidents have materially affected or are reasonably likely to materially affect IDACORP or Idaho Power, including their business strategy, results of
operations, and financial condition. However, the companies can provide no assurance that there will not be cybersecurity threats or incidents in the
future or that any such threat or incident will not materially affect the companies, including their business strategy, results of operations, or financial
condition. For more information regarding the risks the companies face from cybersecurity threats, see ltem 1A. “Risk Factors” included in this report.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Idaho Power's properties consist of the physical assets necessary to support its utility operations, which include generation, battery storage,
transmission, and distribution facilities. In addition to these physical assets, Idaho Power has rights-of-way and water rights that enable it to use its
facilities. Idaho Power’s system is composed of 17 hydropower generating plants located in southern Idaho and eastern Oregon, three natural gas-fired
plants in southern Idaho, and interests in a coal-fired and natural gas-fired steam generating plant located in Wyoming and a coal-fired steam generating
plant in Nevada. As of December 31, 2024, the system also includes approximately 4,755 pole miles of high-voltage transmission lines, 23 step-up
transmission substations located at power plants, 21 transmission substations, 12 switching stations, 30 mixed-use transmission and distribution
substations, 187 energized distribution substations (excluding mobile substations and dispatch centers), approximately 29,660 linear miles of distribution
lines, and a capacity of 908 MWh of battery storage, comprised of 7 facilities, located in southern Idaho and eastern Oregon.

IDACORP's and Idaho Power's headquarters are located in Boise, Idaho. The corporate headquarters campus consists of approximately 305,741 square
feet of owned office space. Excluding Idaho Power's power generation facilities and substations, Idaho Power owns an additional 1,218,813 square feet
of office, warehouse, and industrial space to support its operations in Idaho and Oregon.

Idaho Power owns all of its interests in principal plants and other important units of real property, except for portions of certain projects licensed under the
FPA and reservoirs and other easements. Substantially all of Idaho Power’s property is subject to the lien of its Mortgage and Deed of Trust and the
provisions of its project licenses. Idaho Power’s property is subject to minor defects common to properties of such size and character that it believes do
not materially impair the value to, or the use by, Idaho Power of such properties. Idaho Power considers its properties to be well-maintained and in good
operating condition.
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Through IERCo, Idaho Power owns a one-third interest in BCC and coal leases near the Jim Bridger plant in Wyoming from which coal is mined and
supplied to the plant. Ida-West holds 50-percent interests in nine hydropower plants that have a total nameplate capacity of 44 MW. These plants are
located in Idaho and California.

Idaho Power's hydropower projects and other owned and co-owned generating facilities and their nameplate capacities, as of the date of this report, are
included in the table below.

Nameplate Capacity
Project (Kilowatt (kw))® License Expiration

Hydropower Projects:

Properties Subject to Federal Licenses: @

Lower Salmon 60,000 2034
Bliss 75,038 2034
Upper Salmon 34,500 2034
Shoshone Falls 14,729 2040
CJ Strike 82,800 2034
Upper Malad - Lower Malad 21,770 2035
HCC: Brownlee, Oxbow, and Hells Canyon 1,276,076 2005 (3)
Swan Falls 27,170 2042
American Falls 92,340 2025
Cascade 12,420 2031
Milner 59,448 2038
Twin Falls 52,898 2040
Other Hydropower:
Clear Lake - Thousand Springs 9,300
Total Hydropower 1,818,489
Steam and Other Generating Plants:
Jim Bridger Units 1 and 2 (gas-fired) @® 388,008
Jim Bridger Units 3 and 4 (coal-fired) @® 387,278
North Valmy Unit 2 (coal-fired) @® 144,900
Danskin (gas-fired) 270,900
Langley Gulch (gas-fired) 318,453
Bennett Mountain (gas-fired) 172,800
Salmon (diesel-internal combustion) 5,000
Total Steam and Other 1,687,339
Total Generation 3,505,828

(1) Actual generation capacity from a facility may be greater or less than the rated nameplate generation capacity.

(2) Idaho Power holds FERC licenses for all of its hydropower projects that are subject to federal licensing. Relicensing of Idaho Power’s hydropower projects is discussed in Part Il -

Item 7 - MD&A - "Regulatory Matters — Relicensing of Hydropower Projects” in this report.

(3) Licensed on an annual basis while the application for a new multi-year license is pending.

(4) Idaho Power’s ownership interests are one-third for Jim Bridger and 50 percent for North Valmy. Amounts shown represent Idaho Power’s share.

(5) The conversion of two generating units from coal to natural gas at the Jim Bridger plant was completed in the spring of 2024. Idaho Power's 2023 IRP identified a preferred
resource portfolio and action plan that includes the conversion of the two remaining generating units from coal to natural gas at the Jim Bridger plant in 2030.

(6) Pursuant to an agreement with NV Energy, Idaho Power ceased participation in coal-fired operations of North Valmy in December 2019 at unit 1. Idaho Power's 2023 IRP

identified a preferred resource portfolio and action plan that includes the conversion of the two generating units at the North Valmy plant from coal to natural gas in 2026.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Refer to Note 10 — “Contingencies” to the consolidated financial statements included in this report. SEC regulations require IDACORP and Idaho Power
to disclose certain information about proceedings arising under federal, state or local environmental provisions if the companies reasonably believe that
such proceedings may result in monetary sanctions above a stated threshold. Pursuant to the SEC regulations, the companies use a threshold of $1
million or more for purposes of determining whether disclosure of any such proceedings is required.
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ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Information concerning mine safety violations or other regulatory matters required by Section 1503(a) of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and
Consumer Protection Act and Item 104 of Regulation S-K (17 CFR 229.104) is included in Exhibit 95.1 of this report, which is incorporated herein by
reference.
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PART I

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS, AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY
SECURITIES

IDACORP’s common stock, without par value, is traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the trading symbol "IDA". On February 14, 2025, there
were 6,768 holders of record of IDACORP common stock. The outstanding shares of Idaho Power’'s common stock, $2.50 par value, are held by
IDACORP and are not traded. IDACORP became the holding company of Idaho Power on October 1, 1998.

For information regarding IDACORP's dividend policy, see Part Il - tem 7 - MD&A - "Liquidity and Capital Resources - Dividends" in this report. For
information relating to restrictions on dividends, see Note 6 - "Common Stock" to the consolidated financial statements in this report.

IDACORP did not repurchase any shares of its common stock during the fourth quarter of 2024.
Performance Graph

The graph below shows a comparison of the five-year cumulative total shareholder return for IDACORP common stock, the S&P 500 Index, and the EEI
Electric Utilities Index. The data assumes that $100 was invested on December 31, 2019, with beginning-of-period weighting of the peer group indices
(based on market capitalization) and monthly compounding of returns.

Comparison of Cumulative Total Return
$100 Invested December 31, 2019
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Period Ending December 31

Source: Bloomberg and EEI

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
IDACORP $ 100.00 $ 9253 $ 112.38 $ 110.06 $ 103.50 $ 118.97
S&P 500 100.00 118.39 152.34 124.72 157.48 196.85
EEI Electric Utilities Index 100.00 98.84 115.76 117.09 106.91 127.32

The foregoing performance graph and data shall not be deemed “filed” as part of this Form 10-K for purposes of Section 18 of the Exchange Act or
otherwise subject to the liabilities of that section and shall not be deemed incorporated by reference into any other filing of IDACORP or Idaho Power
under the Securities Act of 1933 or the Exchange Act, except to the extent IDACORP or Idaho Power specifically incorporates it by reference into such
filing.
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ITEM 6. [RESERVED]

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

In MD&A in this report, the general financial condition and results of operations for IDACORP and its subsidiaries and Idaho Power and its subsidiary are
discussed. The discussion of IDACORP's and Idaho Power's general financial condition and results of operations for 2023 compared with 2022 can be
found in their Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2023. See Part Il - Item 7 - MD&A in that report for further information on
the companies' prior period results of operations. While reading the MD&A, please refer to the accompanying consolidated financial statements of
IDACORP and Idaho Power. Also refer to "Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements" and Part | - ltem 1A - "Risk Factors" in this report
for important information regarding forward-looking statements made in this MD&A and elsewhere in this report.

INTRODUCTION

IDACORP is a holding company whose principal operating subsidiary is Idaho Power. IDACORP’s common stock is listed and trades on the New York
Stock Exchange under the trading symbol "IDA". Idaho Power is an electric utility whose rates and other matters are regulated by the IPUC, OPUC, and
FERC. Idaho Power generates revenues and cash flows primarily from the sale and distribution of electricity to customers in its Idaho and Oregon service
areas, as well as from the wholesale sale and transmission of electricity.

Idaho Power is the parent of IERCo, a joint-owner of BCC, which mines and supplies coal to the Jim Bridger plant owned in part by Idaho Power.
IDACORP’s other notable subsidiaries include IFS, an investor in affordable housing and other real estate tax credit investments; and lda-West, an
operator of small PURPA-qualifying hydropower generation projects.

EXECUTIVE OVERVIEW

IDACORP is committed to its focus on competitive total returns and generating long-term value for shareholders. IDACORP'’s business strategy
emphasizes ldaho Power as IDACORP’s core business, since Idaho Power’s regulated electric utility operations are the primary driver of IDACORP’s
operating results. This strategy is described in Part I, ltem 1 - "Business - Business Strategy" of this report. Examples of IDACORP's and Idaho Power's
achievements, notable events, and milestones during 2024 and during 2025, through the date of this report, include the following:

« |IDACORP achieved net income growth for a seventeenth consecutive year in 2024.

« ldaho Power continues to focus on timely recovery of costs and earning a reasonable return on investment. In December 2024 and January
2025, the IPUC issued an order and an errata to the order, respectively, in Idaho Power's limited issue rate case filing, with new rates effective
January 1, 2025, designed to increase annual Idaho-jurisdiction retail revenue by $50.1 million. In addition, in September 2024, the OPUC
approved three partial settlement stipulations related to Idaho Power's Oregon general rate case filing that it made in December 2023, with rates
effective October 15, 2024, designed to increase annual Oregon-jurisdiction retail revenue by $6.7 million. The Idaho limited issue rate case and
Oregon general rate case filings are described more fully in Note 3 - "Regulatory Matters" to the consolidated financial statements included in
this report and in "Regulatory Matters" in this MD&A.

« Idaho Power's customer count grew 2.6 percent in 2024 and Idaho Power's MWh sales to retail customers in 2024 were the highest in its history,
surpassing the previous record set in 2022, reflecting considerable growth in its service area.

« Idaho Power reached new winter and summer peaks during 2024. Idaho Power's new winter peak demand of 2,719 MW and summer peak
demand of 3,793 MW were reached on January 16, 2024 and July 22, 2024, respectively. The prior highest demand peaks were 2,604 MW and
3,751 MW, reached in December 2022 and June 2021, respectively.

¢ In 2024, Idaho Power’s reliability metrics continued to be among the best in company history, as Idaho Power provided uninterrupted service to
its retail customers 99.96 percent of the time.

» Idaho Power’s third-party ratings for residential and business customer satisfaction remain strong — it was the third-ranked utility among peers in
the segment for overall customer satisfaction, the highest in the segment for business customer satisfaction, and the third highest in the segment
for residential customer satisfaction in 2024.

* In September 2024, IDACORP's board of directors approved an increase in the regular quarterly cash dividend on IDACORP’s common stock
from $0.83 per share to $0.86 per share, as a part of a 187 percent increase in quarterly dividends approved over the last thirteen years.
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« In connection with its resource planning process, Idaho Power has updated the estimate of load growth that it intends to use for its 2025 IRP.
While subject to adjustment, Idaho Power currently plans to use an 8.3 percent annual rate of growth in retail sales volumes over the 2025-2029
time period, representative of anticipated continued strong growth in Idaho Power's service area.

» ldaho Power's estimate of capital expenditures from 2025 to 2029 is in the range of $5.4 billion to $6.1 billion. Part of the increase is driven by
Idaho Power's need to acquire additional power supply and transmission resources to meet growing demand. Idaho Power has procured
resources under several RFPs, and has RFPs for 2028 and 2029 resources outstanding.

Summary of 2024 Financial Results

The following is a summary of Idaho Power's net income, net income attributable to IDACORP, and IDACORP's earnings per diluted share for the years
ended December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022 (in thousands, except earnings per share amounts):

Year Ended December 31,

2024 2023 2022
Idaho Power net income $ 280,605 $ 256,810 $ 254,867
Net income attributable to IDACORP, Inc. $ 289,174 $ 261,195 $ 258,982
Average outstanding shares — diluted (000’s) 52,615 50,806 50,699
IDACORP, Inc. earnings per diluted share $ 550 $ 514 $ 5.11

The table below provides a reconciliation of net income attributable to IDACORP for the year ended December 31, 2024, from the year ended December
31, 2023 (items are in millions and are before tax unless otherwise noted):

Net income attributable to IDACORP, Inc. - December 31, 2023 $ 261.2
Increase (decrease) in Idaho Power net income:

Retail revenues per MWh, net of power cost adjustment and FCA mechanisms 52.7

Customer growth, net of associated power supply costs and power cost adjustment mechanisms 19.0

Usage per retail customer, net of associated power supply costs and power cost adjustment mechanisms 4.5

Transmission wheeling-related revenues, net of PCA mechanism impacts (3.0)

Other O&M expenses (61.1)

Depreciation expense (28.1)

Other changes in operating revenues and expenses, net 30.8

Increase in Idaho Power operating income 14.8

Non-operating expense, net (2.2)

Additional ADITC amortization 29.8

Income tax expense, excluding additional ADITC amortization (18.6)
Total increase in Idaho Power net income 23.8
Other IDACORP changes (net of tax) 4.2
Net income attributable to IDACORP, Inc. - December 31, 2024 $ 289.2

IDACORP's net income increased $28 million for 2024 compared with 2023, due primarily to higher net income at Idaho Power.

The net increase in retail revenues per MWh, net of power cost adjustment and FCA mechanisms, increased operating income by $52.7 million in 2024
compared with 2023. This benefit was primarily due to an overall increase in ldaho base rates, effective January 1, 2024, per the terms of the 2023
Settlement Stipulation. For more information on the 2023 Settlement Stipulation, see Note 3 - "Regulatory Matters" to the consolidated financial
statements included in this report.

Idaho Power's customer growth of 2.6 percent added $19.0 million to Idaho Power's operating income in 2024 compared with 2023. Usage per retail
customer increased operating income by $4.5 million in 2024 compared with 2023. Overall, usage per
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customer was relatively flat for most customer classes, with irrigation customers representing an increase, as higher temperatures during the summer led
irrigation customers to run irrigation pumps more frequently.

Transmission wheeling-related revenues, net of PCA impacts, decreased $3.0 million during 2024 compared with 2023. Effective January 1, 2024,
financial settlement of transmission line losses were subject to the PCA mechanism, as approved in the 2023 Settlement Stipulation, resulting in a
smaller contribution of those revenues to net income compared with 2023 when the financial settlement of transmission losses was not subject to the
PCA mechanism.

Other O&M expenses in 2024 were $61.1 million higher than in 2023, primarily related to approximately $17.7 million of increased pension-related
expenses and an approximate $29.5 million increase in wildfire mitigation program and related insurance expenses. Both of these increases were
partially offset by increases in retail revenues, as more of those costs are now recovered in base rates pursuant to the 2023 Settlement Stipulation.
Inflationary pressures on labor-related costs also contributed to the increase in other O&M expenses. These increases were partially offset by an $8.5
million increase in deferral of other O&M expenses related to the conversion from coal to natural gas for two units at the Jim Bridger plant.

Depreciation expense increased $28.1 million in 2024 compared to 2023, due primarily to an increase in plant-in-service.

Other changes in operating revenues and expenses, net, increased operating income by $30.8 million in 2024 compared to 2023, due partially to a
decrease in net power supply expenses that were not deferred for future recovery in rates through ldaho Power's power cost adjustment mechanisms.
More moderate wholesale natural gas and power market prices in the western United States and increased wholesale energy sales decreased Idaho
Power's net power supply expenses in 2024 compared with 2023. In addition, property taxes contributed to the increase from 2023 to 2024, due primarily
to the successful conclusion of multi-year litigation efforts challenging Idaho and Oregon property tax valuations, which resulted in refunds of prior year
taxes being finalized in 2024. The change was also partially due to the timing of recording and adjusting regulatory accruals and deferrals.

Non-operating expense, net, increased $2.2 million in 2024 compared with 2023. Interest expense on long-term debt increased in 2024 compared with
2023, due primarily to an increase in long-term debt balances. In addition, Idaho Power's earnings from its investment in BCC decreased due to a
decrease in the amount included and recovered in base rates pursuant to the 2023 Settlement Stipulation. These increases were partially offset by an
increase in AFUDC income in 2024 compared with 2023, as the average construction work in progress balance was higher. Additionally, interest income
increased due to higher average cash balances and interest rates compared with 2023.

Idaho Power recorded $29.8 million of additional ADITC amortization under its Idaho regulatory settlement stipulation during 2024, but recorded no
additional ADITC amortization during 2023. The $18.6 million increase in income tax expense, excluding additional ADITC amortization, in 2024
compared with 2023 was primarily due to higher income before income taxes and variances in flow-through tax adjustments.

Overview of General Factors and Trends Affecting Results of Operations and Financial Condition

IDACORP's and Idaho Power's results of operations and financial condition are affected by a number of factors, and the impact of those factors is
discussed in more detail below in this MD&A. To provide context for the discussion elsewhere in this report, some of the more notable factors include the
following:

* Regulatory Filings: The prices that Idaho Power is authorized to charge for its electric and transmission service are a critical factor in
determining IDACORP's and Idaho Power's results of operations and financial condition. Those rates are established by state regulatory
commissions and the FERC and are intended to allow Idaho Power an opportunity to recover its expenses and earn a reasonable return on
investment. Idaho Power is focused on timely recovery of its costs through filings with its regulators and prudent management of expenses and
investments.

To address the regulatory lag in recovery of costs primarily associated with Idaho Power’s current and anticipated significant infrastructure
investments, including those that are intended to help meet projected near-term capacity deficits, Idaho Power filed a limited-issue rate case in
Idaho on May 31, 2024. The IPUC approved, with modifications, the limited-issue rate case in December 2024, with rates effective January 1,
2025, designed to increase annual Idaho-jurisdiction retail revenue by $50.1 million. In September 2024 the OPUC approved the 2024 Oregon
Settlement Stipulations related to Idaho Power's Oregon general rate case filing, designed to increase annual Oregon-jurisdiction retail revenue
by $6.7 million. The IPUC order related to the limited-issue rate case and the 2024 Oregon
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Settlement Stipulations are described more fully in Note 3 - "Regulatory Matters" to the consolidated financial statements included in this report.

Given the limited-scope nature of the filing Idaho Power made in 2024 and its ongoing infrastructure investment, Idaho Power believes it is likely
that it will file a general rate case in Idaho during 2025, as early as May 2025.

¢ Rate Base Growth and Infrastructure Investment: The rates established by the IPUC, OPUC, and FERC are determined with the intent to
provide an opportunity for Idaho Power to recover authorized operating expenses and depreciation and earn a reasonable return on “rate base.”
Rate base is generally determined by reference to the original cost (net of accumulated depreciation) of utility plant in service and certain other
assets, subject to various adjustments for deferred income taxes and other items. Over time, rate base is increased by additions to utility plant in
service and reduced by depreciation of utility plant and write-offs as authorized by the IPUC and OPUC. Idaho Power is pursuing significant
enhancements to its utility infrastructure in an effort to maintain system reliability, ensure an adequate supply of electricity, and provide service to
new customers, including major ongoing transmission projects such as the B2H, GWW, and SWIP-N projects. Idaho Power's existing
hydropower and thermal generation facilities also require continuing upgrades and equipment replacement, and Idaho Power is undertaking a
significant relicensing effort for the HCC, its largest hydropower generation resource. Idaho Power intends to pursue timely inclusion of any
significant completed capital projects into rate base as part of a future general rate case or other appropriate regulatory proceeding, but the
company incurs the cash requirements of constructing and the costs of financing those resources before they are in rates and customer
revenues.

Idaho Power expects its capital expenditures on infrastructure investments in the next five years or more will be considerable as it works to
address projected energy and capacity deficits. For more information about forecasted capital expenditures and expected rate base growth, see
the "Liquidity and Capital Resources" section of this MD&A.

¢« Economic Conditions and Loads: Economic conditions impact consumer demand for energy, revenues, collectability of accounts, the volume
of wholesale energy sales, and the need to construct and improve infrastructure, purchase power, and implement programs to meet customer
load demands. In recent years, Idaho Power has seen significant growth in the number of customers in its service area. In 2024, Idaho Power's
customer count grew by 2.6 percent. While recessionary or volatile economic conditions could slow the rate of customer growth, Idaho Power
expects its number of customers and, to a greater extent its load due to anticipated commercial and industrial customer growth, to increase for
the foreseeable future.

Idaho Power is preparing its 2025 IRP, its 20-year forecast of load and power supply resource options. Included in the below table are the load
forecast assumptions the company anticipates using in the 2025 IRP as of the date of this report, and for comparison purposes, the analogous
average annual growth rates Idaho Power used in the prior two IRPs.

5-Year Forecasted Annual Growth Rate 20-Year Forecasted Annual Growth Rate
Retail Sales Annual Peak Retail Sales Annual Peak
(Billed MWh) (Peak Demand) (Billed MWh) (Peak Demand)
2025 IRP (preliminary) 8.3% 5.1% 2.7% 1.9%
2023 IRP 5.5% 3.7% 2.1% 1.8%
2021 IRP 2.6% 2.1% 1.4% 1.4%

Customer growth has contributed to increases in peak loads experienced in recent years. For example, Idaho Power's highest all-time winter
peak demand of 2,719 MW occurred on January 16, 2024, and on July 22, 2024, Idaho Power reached a new all-time summer peak demand of
3,793 MW. Idaho Power's prior all-time summer peak demand was 3,751 MW, set in June 2021. Idaho Power believes that existing and
sustained growth in customers, load, and peak demand for electricity, along with changes in the regional transmission markets that have
constrained the availability of transmission outside Idaho Power’s service area to import energy during peak load periods, require [daho Power to
increase its investment in capacity resources, transmission, and distribution infrastructure. This includes the B2H, GWW, and SWIP-N
transmission projects, along with other capacity, energy, and transmission resource procurements, described in "Liquidity and Capital
Resources" in this MD&A.
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*  Weather Conditions: Weather and agricultural growing conditions have a significant impact on Idaho Power's energy sales. Relatively low and
high temperatures result in greater energy use for heating and cooling, respectively. During the agricultural growing season, which in large part
occurs during the second and third quarters of each year, irrigation customers use electricity to operate irrigation pumps, and weather conditions
can impact the timing and extent of use of those pumps. Idaho Power also has tiered rates and seasonal rates, which contribute to increased
revenues during higher-load periods, most notably during the third quarter of each year when overall customer demand is highest. Much of the
adverse or favorable impact of weather on sales of energy to residential and small commercial customers is mitigated through the Idaho FCA
mechanism, which is described in Note 3 - "Regulatory Matters" to the consolidated financial statements included in this report.

Further, as Idaho Power's hydropower facilities comprise over one-half of Idaho Power's nameplate generation capacity, precipitation levels
impact the mix of Idaho Power's generation resources. When hydropower generation decreases, ldaho Power must rely on more expensive
generation resources and purchased power. When favorable hydropower generating conditions exist for Idaho Power, they also may exist for
other Pacific Northwest hydropower facility operators, lowering regional wholesale market prices and impacting the revenue Idaho Power
receives from wholesale energy sales. Much of the adverse or favorable impact of this volatility is addressed through the Idaho and Oregon
power cost adjustment mechanisms, which lessen the potential earnings benefit or detriment of volatile hydrological conditions and their impact
on overall power supply costs. For 2025, Idaho Power expects generation from its hydropower resources to be in the range of 6.5 million to 8.5
million MWh, compared with 7.2 million MWh in 2024 and average total annual hydropower generation of approximately 7.7 million MWh over
the last 30 years.

« Mitigation of Impact of Fuel and Purchased Power Expense: In addition to hydropower generation, Idaho Power relies significantly on natural
gas and coal to fuel its generation facilities, long-term PPAs (including PURPA agreements), and power purchases in the wholesale markets.
Fuel costs are impacted by electricity sales volumes, the terms and conditions of contracts for fuel, Idaho Power's generation capacity, the
availability of hydropower generation resources, transmission capacity, energy market prices, and ldaho Power's hedging program for managing
fuel costs. Purchased power costs are impacted by the terms and conditions of contracts for purchased power, the rate of expansion of
alternative energy generation sources such as wind or solar energy, generation resource maintenance outages, wholesale energy market prices,
transmission availability, and the outcome of Idaho Power’s hedging programs. The Idaho and Oregon power cost adjustment mechanisms
mitigate in large part the potential adverse earnings impacts to ldaho Power of fluctuations in power supply costs. However, collection from
customers or return to customers of most of the difference between actual power supply costs compared with those included in retail rates is
deferred to a subsequent period, which can affect Idaho Power’s operating cash flow and liquidity until those costs are recovered from or
returned to customers.

* Regulatory and Environmental Compliance Costs; Coal Plant Retirements: ldaho Power is subject to extensive federal and state laws,
policies, and regulations, as well as regulatory actions and audits by agencies and quasi-governmental agencies, including the FERC, the North
American Electric Reliability Corporation, and the Western Electricity Coordinating Council. Compliance with these requirements directly
influences Idaho Power's operating environment and affects Idaho Power's operating costs. Moreover, environmental laws and regulations may
increase the cost of constructing new facilities, may increase the cost of operating generation plants, may require that Idaho Power install
additional pollution control devices at existing generating plants, may result in penalties for non-compliance, even where inadvertent, or may
require that Idaho Power curtail or cease operating certain generation plants. ldaho Power expects to spend significant amounts on
environmental compliance and controls for the foreseeable future. Due to economic factors in part associated with the costs of compliance with
environmental regulation, Idaho Power accelerated the retirement date of its North Valmy plant, ceasing participation in coal-fired operations at
one unit in 2019 and planning to cease its participation in coal-fired operations at the remaining unit by year-end 2025. Idaho Power's jointly-
owned coal plant in Boardman, Oregon, ceased operations as planned in October 2020. In 2022, the IPUC approved Idaho Power's request to
allow the coal-related assets at the Jim Bridger plant to be fully depreciated and recovered by end-of-year 2030. Idaho Power's 2023 IRP
identified a preferred resource portfolio and action plan that included the conversion from coal to natural gas of two units at the Jim Bridger plant
in 2024, the two units at the North Valmy plant in 2026, and the remaining two units at the Jim Bridger plant in 2030. Units 1 and 2 at the Jim
Bridger plant were successfully converted to natural gas in the second quarter of 2024. In July 2024, Idaho Power executed an agreement with
its co-owner to facilitate the planned conversion of the two units at the North Valmy plant from coal to natural gas by mid-2026.

e Water Management and Relicensing of Hydropower Projects: Because of Idaho Power's reliance on stream flow in the Snake River and its
tributaries, ldaho Power participates in numerous proceedings and venues that may affect its
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water rights, seeking to preserve the long-term availability of its rights for its hydropower projects. Also, Idaho Power is involved in renewing its
long-term federal licenses for the HCC, its largest hydropower generation source, and for American Falls, its second largest hydropower
generation source. Given the number of parties involved, Idaho Power's relicensing costs have been and are expected to continue to be
substantial. As of the date of this report, Idaho Power cannot determine the ultimate terms of, and costs associated with, any resulting long-term
licenses for the HCC or American Falls hydroelectric facilities.

«  Wildfire Mitigation Efforts: In recent years, the western United States has experienced an increasing number of wildfires of unprecedented
severity. A variety of factors have contributed to this trend including increased wildland-urban interfaces, historical land management practices,
climate change, and overall wildland and forest health. Idaho Power is taking a proactive approach to wildfire risk in its service area and
transmission corridors. Idaho Power has adopted a WMP that outlines actions Idaho Power is taking or is working to implement in the future to
reduce wildfire risk and to strengthen the resiliency of its transmission and distribution system to wildfires. Idaho Power's approach to achieve
these objectives includes identifying areas subject to elevated risk; system hardening programs, vegetation management, and field personnel
practices to mitigate wildfire risk; incorporating current and forecasted weather and field conditions into operational practices; PSPS protocols;
and evaluating the performance and effectiveness of the strategies identified in the WMP through metrics and monitoring. Idaho Power has
regulatory authorization in both Idaho and Oregon to defer, for potential future amortization, certain actual incremental O&M expenses necessary
to implement the WMP. The WMP regulatory deferrals are described in more detail in Note 3 - "Regulatory Matters" to the consolidated financial
statements included in this report.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

This section of MD&A takes a closer look at the significant factors that affected IDACORP’s and Idaho Power’s earnings. In this analysis, the results for
2024 are compared with 2023.

The table below presents Idaho Power’s energy sales and supply (in thousands of MWh) for the last two years ended December 31.

2024 2023
Retail energy sales 15,971 15,515
Wholesale energy sales 1,412 840
Energy sales bundled with RECs 1,406 1,255
Total energy sales 18,789 17,610
Hydropower generation 7,203 6,548
Steam generation® 2,474 2,473
Natural gas-fired and other generation 3,843 2,917
Total system generation 13,520 11,938
Purchased power 6,541 7,027
Line losses (1,272) (1,355)
Total energy supply 18,789 17,610

(1) "Steam generation" is composed of generation from steam plants that are fueled by only coal or by both coal and natural gas.
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For purposes of illustration, Boise, Idaho weather-related information for the last two years ended December 31 is presented in the table that follows.

2024 2023 Normal®@
Heating degree-days® 4,844 5,042 5,321
Cooling degree-days® 1,432 1,342 1,045
Precipitation (inches) 15.6 13.8 115

(1) Heating and cooling degree-days are common measures used in the utility industry to analyze the demand for electricity and indicate when a customer would use electricity for
heating and air conditioning. A degree-day measures how much the average daily temperature varies from 65 degrees. Each degree above 65 degrees is counted as one cooling
degree-day, and each degree below 65 degrees is counted as one heating degree-day. While Boise, Idaho weather conditions are not necessarily representative of weather
conditions throughout Idaho Power's service area, the greater Boise area has the majority of Idaho Power's customers.

(2) Normal heating degree-days and cooling degree-days elements are, by convention, the arithmetic mean of the elements computed over 30 consecutive years. The annual normal

amounts are the sum of the 12 monthly normal amounts. These normal amounts are computed by the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration.
Sales Volume and Generation: In 2024, retail sales volumes increased 3 percent compared with the prior year, primarily due to growth in the number of
Idaho Power customers. The number of Idaho Power customers grew by 2.6 percent in 2024. For more information on the changes in sales volume, see

the "Operating Revenues" section below in this MD&A.

Total system generation increased 13 percent in 2024 compared with 2023, due primarily to higher natural gas generation and hydropower generation.
For more information on the changes in sales volume, see the "Operating Expenses" section below in this MD&A.

The financial impacts of fluctuations in wholesale energy sales, purchased power, fuel expense, and other power supply-related expenses are addressed
in Idaho Power's Idaho and Oregon power cost adjustment mechanisms, which are described below in "Power Cost Adjustment Mechanisms."

Operating Revenues

Retail Revenues: The tables below present Idaho Power’s retail revenues (in thousands), MWh sales (in thousands), and number of retail customers for
the last two years ended December 31.

2024 2023
Retail revenues:

Residential (includes ($2,686) and $37,233, respectively, related to the FCA @) 700,586 $ 684,649
Commercial (includes ($170) and $1,338, respectively, related to the FCA @) 397,385 378,330
Industrial 267,211 244,538
Irrigation 196,401 173,929
Deferred revenue related to HCC relicensing AFUDC @ (8,803) (8,780)

Total retail revenues 1,552,780 $ 1,472,666

(1) The FCA mechanism is an alternative revenue program in the Idaho jurisdiction and does not represent revenue from contracts with customers.

(2) The IPUC allows Idaho Power to recover a portion of the AFUDC on construction work in progress related to the HCC relicensing process, even though the relicensing process is

not yet complete and the costs have not been moved to utility plant in service. Idaho Power is collecting approximately $8.8 million annually in the Idaho jurisdiction but is

deferring revenue recognition of the amounts collected until the license is issued and the accumulated license costs approved for recovery are placed in service.

MWh Sales Retail Customers
2023 2024 2023
Residential 5,964 5,903 547,010 531,885
Commercial 4,332 4,269 79,496 78,586
Industrial 3,680 3,538 145 132
Irrigation 1,995 1,805 22,554 22,333
Total 15,971 15,515 649,205 632,936
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Changes in rates, changes in customer demand, and changes in FCA mechanism revenues are the primary reasons for fluctuations in retail revenues
from period to period. See "Regulatory Matters" in this MD&A for a list of rate changes implemented over the last two years. The primary influences on
customer demand for electricity are weather, economic conditions, and energy efficiency. Extreme temperatures increase sales to customers who use
electricity for cooling and heating, while mild temperatures decrease sales. Precipitation levels and the timing of precipitation during the agricultural
growing season also affect sales to customers who use electricity to operate irrigation pumps. Rates are also seasonally adjusted, providing for higher
rates during summer peak load periods, and residential customer rates are tiered, providing for higher rates based on higher levels of usage. The
seasonal and tiered rate structures contribute to seasonal fluctuations in revenues and earnings.

Retail Revenues: Retail revenues increased $80.1 million in 2024 compared with 2023. The primary factors affecting retail revenues during the period
were the following:

¢ Rates: Customer rates, excluding revenues related to power cost adjustment mechanisms and net of FCA mechanism revenues, increased retail
revenues by $52.7 million in 2024 compared with 2023, due primarily to the January 1, 2024, rate increase for Idaho Power's Idaho retail
customers under the 2023 Settlement Stipulation. Customer rates also include the collection from customers of amounts related to the power
cost adjustment mechanisms, which decreased revenues by $14.2 million in 2024 compared with 2023. The adjustments related to the Idaho-
jurisdiction PCA in rates do not have a significant effect on operating income as a corresponding amount is recorded in expense in the same
period it is collected through rates.

* Customers: Customer growth of 2.6 percent increased retail revenues by $30.5 million in 2024 compared with 2023.

* Usage: Increased usage (on a per customer basis) in most customer classes increased retail revenues by $11.2 million during 2024 compared
with 2023. Warmer and drier summer weather during 2024 led to an increase in energy usage per residential customer for cooling purposes and
an increase in energy usage per irrigation customer, which was patrtially offset by a decrease in usage per residential customer due to milder
temperatures during January to May and September to December 2024, compared with temperatures during 2023.

Wholesale Energy Sales: Wholesale energy sales consist primarily of long-term sales contracts, opportunity sales of surplus system energy, and sales
into the western EIM, and do not include derivative transactions. The table below presents Idaho Power’s wholesale energy sales for the last two years
ended December 31 (in thousands, except for revenue per MWh amounts).

2024 2023
Wholesale energy revenues $ 73,908 $ 63,421
Wholesale MWh sold 1,412 840
Wholesale energy revenues per MWh $ 5234 $ 75.50

In 2024, wholesale energy revenue increased by $10.5 million, or 17 percent, compared with 2023, as higher wholesale energy sales volumes were
partially offset by lower wholesale market prices. Wholesale energy prices were lower during 2024 compared with 2023 as more moderate winter and
spring weather resulted in lower natural gas fuel costs in the wholesale markets in the region. The financial impacts of fluctuations in wholesale energy
sales are largely mitigated by Idaho Power's Idaho and Oregon power cost adjustment mechanisms, which are described below in "Power Cost
Adjustment Mechanisms" in this MD&A.

Energy Efficiency Program Revenues: In both Idaho and Oregon, energy efficiency riders fund energy efficiency program expenditures. Expenditures
funded through the riders are reported as an operating expense with an equal amount recorded in revenues, resulting in no net impact on earnings. The
cumulative variances between expenditures and amounts collected through the riders are recorded as regulatory assets or liabilities. A liability balance
indicates that Idaho Power has collected more than it has spent and an asset balance indicates that Idaho Power has spent more than it has collected. At
December 31, 2024, Idaho Power's energy efficiency rider balances were a $7.6 million regulatory liability in the Idaho jurisdiction and a $1.7 million
regulatory liability in the Oregon jurisdiction.
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Operating Expenses

Purchased Power: The table below presents Idaho Power’s purchased power expenses and volumes for the last two years ended December 31 (in
thousands, except for per MWh amounts).

2024 2023
Purchased power expense $ 425,082 $ 501,531
MWh purchased 6,541 7,027
Average cost per MWh $ 6499 $ 71.37

Purchased power expense decreased $76.4 million, or 15 percent, in 2024 compared with 2023. The decrease in purchased power expense in 2024 is
primarily due to lower wholesale energy market prices as milder winter and spring weather resulted in lower demand and lower fuel costs (natural gas
and coal) in the wholesale markets in the region. Increased system generation led to a decrease in total MWh purchased of 7 percent compared with
2023. For further information on purchased power activities, see Part |, ltem 1 — Utility Operations — "Power Supply — Purchased Power."

Fuel Expense: The table below presents Idaho Power’s fuel expenses and thermal generation for the last two years ended December 31 (in thousands,
except for per MWh amounts).

Fuel Expense MWh Generated Cost per MWh
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
Steam® $ 97,427 $ 95,499 2,474 2,473 $ 39.38 $ 38.62
Natural gas@ 161,777 179,906 3,843 2,917 42.10 61.68
Total/Weighted average, all $ 259,204 $ 275,405 6,317 5390 $ 4103 $ 51.10

(1) "Steam" is composed of expenses and generation from steam plants that are fueled only by coal or by both coal and natural gas.

(2) Includes a negligible amount of expense and generation related to the Salmon diesel-fired generation plant.

The majority of the fuel for Idaho Power’s jointly-owned coal-fired plants is purchased through long-term contracts, including purchases from BCC, a one-
third owned investment of IERCo. The price of coal from BCC is subject to fluctuations in mine operating expenses, geologic conditions, and production
levels. BCC supplies the majority of the coal used by the Jim Bridger plant and BCC does not have significant sales to third parties. Natural gas is mainly
purchased on the regional wholesale spot market at published index prices. In addition to commodity (variable) costs, both natural gas and coal expenses
include costs that are more fixed in nature for items such as capacity charges, transportation, and fuel handling. Period to period variances in fuel
expense per MWh are noticeably impacted by these fixed charges when generation output is substantially different between the periods.

Fuel expense decreased $16.2 million, or 6 percent, in 2024 compared with 2023. In 2024, steam and natural gas generation increased to serve load and
provide power for wholesale energy sales compared with 2023. The impact of this generation increase on fuel expense was more than offset during 2024
by lower natural gas market prices compared with 2023.

Included in fuel expense are losses and gains on settled financial gas hedges entered into in accordance with Idaho Power's energy risk management
policy. In 2024 and 2023, losses on financial gas hedges of $63.3 million and $16.2 million, respectively, increased natural gas fuel expense. Most of
these realized hedging losses and gains are passed on to customers through the power cost adjustment mechanisms described below.

Power Cost Adjustment Mechanisms: ldaho Power's power supply costs (primarily purchased power and fuel expense, less wholesale energy sales)
can vary significantly from year to year. Volatility of power supply costs arises from factors such as weather conditions, wholesale market prices, volumes
of power purchased and sold in the wholesale markets, Idaho Power's hydropower and thermal generation volumes and fuel costs, generation plant
availability, and retail loads. To address the volatility of power supply costs, Idaho Power's power cost adjustment mechanisms in the Idaho and Oregon
jurisdictions allow Idaho Power to recover from customers, or refund to customers, most of the fluctuations in power supply costs. In the Idaho
jurisdiction, the PCA includes a cost or benefit sharing ratio that allocates the deviations in net power supply expenses between customers (95 percent)
and Idaho Power (5 percent), with the exception of PURPA power purchases and demand response program incentives, which are allocated 100 percent
to customers. The Idaho deferral period, or PCA year, runs from April 1 through March 31. Amounts deferred during the PCA year are primarily
recovered or refunded during the subsequent June 1
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through May 31 period. However, the IPUC directed Idaho Power to spread recovery of the March 31, 2023 PCA deferral balance over a two-year period
from June 1, 2023, to May 31, 2025. Because of the power cost adjustment mechanisms, the primary financial impacts of power supply cost variations is
that cash is paid out but recovery from customers does not occur until a future period, or cash that is collected is refunded to customers in a future
period, resulting in fluctuations in operating cash flows from year to year.

The table below presents the components of the Idaho and Oregon power cost adjustment mechanisms for the last two years ended December 31 (in
thousands).

2024 2023
Idaho power supply cost deferral $ (5,606) $ (66,728)
Oregon power supply cost accrual 1,954 1,169
Amortization of prior year authorized balances 93,409 72,444
Total power cost adjustment (income statement) $ 89,757 $ 6,885

The power supply (deferrals) accruals represent the portion of the power supply cost fluctuations (deferred) accrued under the power cost adjustment
mechanisms. When actual power supply costs are lower than the amount forecasted in power cost adjustment rates, most of the difference is accrued as
an increase to a regulatory liability or decrease to a regulatory asset. When actual power supply costs are higher than the amount forecasted in power
cost adjustment rates, most of the difference is deferred as an increase to a regulatory asset or decrease to a regulatory liability. During both 2024 and
2023, higher purchased power expense and fuel costs led to higher actual power supply costs compared with the forecasted amount, which resulted in
the deferral of power supply costs. The amortization of the prior year's balances represents the offset to the amounts being collected or refunded in the
current power cost adjustment year that were deferred or accrued in the prior power cost adjustment year (the true-up component of the power cost
adjustment mechanism).

Other Operations and Maintenance Expenses : Other O&M expenses increased $61.1 million in 2024 compared with 2023, primarily related to
approximately $17.7 million of increased pension-related expenses and an approximate $29.5 million increase in wildfire mitigation program and related
insurance expenses. Both of these increases were partially offset by increases in retail revenues, as more costs are now recovered in base rates
pursuant to the 2023 Settlement Stipulation. Inflationary pressures on labor-related costs also contributed to the increase in other O&M expenses. These
increases were partially offset by an $8.5 million increase in deferral of other O&M expenses related to the conversion from coal to natural gas for two
units at the Jim Bridger plant.

Income Taxes

IDACORP's and Idaho Power's 2024 income tax expense decreased $12.2 million and $11.2 million, respectively, when compared with 2023. The
decreases were primarily due to increased ADITC amortization described in Note 3 - “Regulatory Matters” to the consolidated financial statements
included in this report, offset partially by an increase in income taxes due to higher income before income taxes. For additional information relating to
IDACORP's and Idaho Power's income taxes, see Note 2 - “Income Taxes” to the consolidated financial statements included in this report.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Overview

Idaho Power continues to pursue significant enhancements to its utility infrastructure in an effort to ensure an adequate supply of electricity, to provide
service to new customers, and to maintain system reliability. Idaho Power's existing hydropower and thermal generation facilities also require continuing
upgrades and component replacement. Cash capital expenditures, excluding AFUDC and net costs of removing assets from service, were $981 million in
2024 and $591 million in 2023. Idaho Power expects an increase in capital expenditures over the next several years, with estimated total capital

expenditures of up to $6.1 billion over the period from 2025 through 2029.

Idaho Power funds its liquidity needs for capital expenditures through cash flows from operations, debt offerings, commercial paper markets, credit
facilities, and capital contributions from IDACORP.

As of February 14, 2025, IDACORP's and Idaho Power's access to debt, equity, and credit arrangements included:
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» their respective $100 million and $400 million revolving Credit Facilities;

« their issuance of commercial paper, with program sizes of $100 million and $300 million, respectively. Idaho Power's commercial paper program
may be increased up to the $400 million capacity of its credit facility;

* IDACORP's shelf registration statement filed with the SEC on May 16, 2022, which may be used for the issuance of debt securities and common
stock, including a remaining aggregate gross sales price of up to $208 million in shares of IDACORP common stock available for issuance
through its at-the-market (ATM) offering program;

« |IDACORP's executed FSAs under its ATM offering program, which may be physically settled with common stock in exchange for net proceeds,
which as of February 14, 2025, would have been approximately $91 million; and

« ldaho Power's shelf registration statement filed with the SEC on May 16, 2022, which may be used for the issuance of first mortgage bonds and
debt securities; $900 million remains available for issuance pursuant to state regulatory authority.

In January 2024, IDACORP began using original issuances of shares for the IDACORP, Inc. Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan and also
intends to use original issuances for share purchases within the Idaho Power Company Employee Savings Plan beginning in the first half of 2025.
IDACORP may discontinue using original issuances of shares for these plans at any time.

In November and December 2024, IDACORP executed FSAs under its ATM offering program with various counterparties, at an aggregate gross sales
price of $92 million. IDACORP may settle the FSAs at any time up to the maturity date of approximately one year following execution. Depending on
settlement timing, if IDACORP elects to physically settle by delivering shares of common stock, cash proceeds are expected to be approximately $92
million.

As described in the "Financing Cash Flows" section below, during 2024, IDACORP physically settled FSAs with shares of common stock in exchange for
cash proceeds and contributed a portion of the net proceeds to Idaho Power. For more detailed information about IDACORP's and Idaho Power's equity
transactions, see Note 6 - "Common Stock" to the consolidated financial statements included in this report. Further, during 2024, Idaho Power issued first
mortgage bonds and repaid pollution control revenue bonds. For more detailed information about Idaho Power's long-term debt transactions, see Note 5
- "Long-Term Debt" to the consolidated financial statements included in this report.

IDACORP and Idaho Power monitor capital markets with a view toward favorable debt and equity transactions, taking into account current and potential
future long-term needs. As a result, IDACORP may issue debt securities or common stock, and Idaho Power may issue first mortgage bonds or other
debt securities, if the companies believe terms available in the capital markets are favorable and that issuances would be financially prudent. IDACORP
may also elect to issue common stock, from time to time, under its ATM offering program, depending on market conditions and capital needs. Idaho
Power also periodically analyzes whether partial or full early redemption of one or more existing outstanding series of first mortgage bonds is desirable,
and in some cases, may refinance indebtedness with new indebtedness.

Based on planned capital expenditures and other O&M expenses, the companies believe they will be able to meet capital and debt service requirements
and fund corporate expenses during at least the next twelve months and thereafter for the foreseeable future with a combination of existing cash,
operating cash flows generated by Idaho Power's utility business, availability under existing credit facilities, access to commercial paper, short-term, and
long-term debt markets, and equity issuances.

IDACORP and Idaho Power generally seek to maintain capital structures of approximately 50 percent debt and 50 percent equity. Maintaining this ratio
influences IDACORP's and Idaho Power's debt and equity issuance decisions. As of December 31, 2024, IDACORP's and Idaho Power's capital
structures, as calculated for purposes of applicable debt covenants, were as follows:

IDACORP Idaho Power
Debt 48% 50%
Equity 52% 50%

IDACORP and Idaho Power generally maintain their cash and cash equivalents in highly liquid investments, such as U.S. Treasury Bills, money market
funds, and bank deposits.
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Operating Cash Flows

IDACORP's and Idaho Power's principal sources of cash flows from operations are Idaho Power's sales of electricity and transmission capacity.
Significant uses of cash flows from operations include the purchase of fuel and power, other operating expenses, interest, income taxes, and plan
contributions. Operating cash flows can be significantly influenced by factors such as weather conditions, rates and the outcome of regulatory
proceedings, and economic conditions. As fuel and purchased power are significant uses of cash, Idaho Power has regulatory mechanisms in place that
provide for the deferral and recovery of the majority of the fluctuation in those costs. However, if actual costs rise above the level currently allowed in
retail rates, deferral balances increase (reflected as a regulatory asset), negatively affecting operating cash flows until such time as those costs, with
interest, are recovered from customers.

IDACORP’s and Idaho Power’s operating cash inflows in 2024 were $594 million and $561 million, respectively, an increase in cash flows from
operations of $327 million for IDACORP and $354 million for Idaho Power, when compared with the same period in 2023. With the exception of cash
flows related to income taxes, IDACORP's operating cash flows are principally derived from operating cash flows from Idaho Power. Significant items that
affected the companies' operating cash flows in 2024 when compared with the same period in 2023 were as follows:

* a$28 million and $24 million increase in IDACORP and Idaho Power net income, respectively;

« changes in regulatory assets and liabilities, mostly related to the relative amounts of costs deferred and collected under the PCA and FCA
mechanisms, increased IDACORP and Idaho Power operating cash inflows by $120 million;

« changes in deferred taxes and taxes accrued and receivable combined to decrease operating cash flows for IDACORP and Idaho Power by $34
million and $41 million, respectively;

« changes in pension and postretirement benefits plan contributions and expenses combined to increase IDACORP and Idaho Power cash flows
by $49 million, which was primarily due to the timing and amount of funding decisions and an increase in the amount of pension-related
expenses approved for recovery in base rates pursuant to the 2023 Settlement Stipulation; and

¢ changes in working capital balances due primarily to timing, including fluctuations as follows:

- the timing of collections of accounts receivable and unbilled revenues increased operating cash flows by $49 million for IDACORP and
$51 million for Idaho Power;

o the changes in materials, supplies, and fuel stock decreased operating cash flows by $31 million for IDACORP and Idaho Power, which was
primarily due to an increase in material and supply inventory offset by the timing of purchases and consumption of coal at Idaho Power's
jointly-owned coal-fired generating plants;

> the changes in accounts and wages payable increased operating cash flows by $98 million for IDACORP and $137 million for Idaho Power,
which was primarily due to a decrease in power supply costs and associated timing of payments, and includes a $40 million difference
between IDACORP and Idaho Power related to intercompany estimated tax payments; and

> the changes in other assets and liabilities increased operating cash flows by $21 million for IDACORP and Idaho Power, which was primarily
related to a PPA security deposit and performance assurance collateral activity for margin agreements relating to wholesale commodity
contracts.

Investing Cash Flows

Investing activities consist primarily of capital expenditures related to new construction of, and improvements to, Idaho Power’s power supply,
transmission, and distribution facilities. IDACORP's and Idaho Power's net investing cash outflows for 2024 were $918 million and $915 million,
respectively, decreasing cash $328 million for IDACORP and $333 million for Idaho Power, when compared with the same period in 2023. Investing cash
outflows for 2024 and 2023 were primarily for construction of utility infrastructure needed to address Idaho Power’s customer growth and peak resource
needs, aging plant and equipment, and environmental and regulatory compliance requirements. Significant items and transactions that affected investing
cash flows in 2024 and 2023 included:

*  $1.0 billion and $611 million, respectively, of additions to property, plant, and equipment;

*  $84 million and $27 million, respectively, from B2H project joint permitting participants relating to a portion of the permitting expenditures;

*  $4 million and $3 million, respectively, of tax credit investments in affordable housing and other real estate, which provide a return principally by
reducing federal and state income taxes through tax credits and accelerated tax depreciation benefits at IDACORP; and
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e $11 million in purchases of equity securities and $2 million in purchases of held-to-maturity securities in 2024 and 2023, and $11 million and $9
million in sales of equity securities in 2024 and 2023, respectively, held in a rabbi trust, which is designated to provide funding for obligations
related to Idaho Power's SMSP.

Financing Cash Flows

Financing activities primarily provide supplemental cash for both day-to-day operations and capital requirements as needed. IDACORP's and Idaho
Power's net financing cash inflows for 2024 were $365 million and $271 million, respectively, a decrease of $108 million for IDACORP and $267 million
for Idaho Power, when compared with the same period in 2023. Idaho Power funds liquidity needs for capital investment, working capital, managing
commodity price risk, dividends, and other financial commitments through cash flows from operations, debt offerings, commercial paper markets, credit
facilities, and capital contributions from IDACORP. IDACORP funds its cash requirements, such as payment of taxes, payment of dividends, capital
contributions to Idaho Power, and non-utility expenses allocated to IDACORP, through cash flows from operations, commercial paper markets, sales of
common stock, and credit facilities. Significant items and transactions that affected financing cash flows in 2024 and 2023 were as follows:

* in 2024 and 2023, Idaho Power issued $300 million and $872 million, respectively, in aggregate principal amount of first mortgage bonds;

* in 2024, Idaho Power repaid $50 million in principal amount of pollution control revenue bonds;

* in 2024, IDACORP received $292 million of aggregate cash proceeds from the settlement of FSAs;

* in 2024, Idaho Power received $200 million of capital contributed from IDACORP;

* in 2023, Idaho Power repaid the entire $150 million in principal amount of a March 2022 term loan agreement, and $75 million in principal
amount of first mortgage bonds; and

» |IDACORP and Idaho Power paid respective dividends of $177 million and $176 million in 2024, and $164 million and $102 million in 2023.

Financing Programs and Available Liquidity

IDACORP Equity Programs: IDACORP fully settled its 2023 FSAs with 3.2 million shares of its common stock in exchange for cash of $292 million in
2024. In November and December 2024, IDACORP executed FSAs under its ATM offering program with various counterparties, at an aggregate gross
sales price of $92 million. IDACORP has a remaining aggregate gross sales price of up to $208 million in shares of its common stock available for
issuance through the ATM offering program. As described elsewhere in this MD&A, IDACORP has significant planned capital expenditures in the near-
term, and the company may settle the FSAs at any time up to the maturity date of approximately one year following execution. See Note 6 - "Common
Stock" to the consolidated financial statements included in this report. Depending on market conditions, its financial and regulatory strategy, and other
factors, IDACORP could determine to issue additional equity securities in 2025.

Idaho Power First Mortgage Bonds: |[daho Power's issuance of long-term indebtedness is subject to the approval of the IPUC, OPUC, and WPSC. In
February and March 2024, Idaho Power received orders from the IPUC, OPUC, and WPSC authorizing the company to issue and sell from time to time
up to $1.2 billion in aggregate principal amount of debt securities and first mortgage bonds, subject to conditions specified in the orders. At December 31,
2024, $900 million remained available for debt issuance under the regulatory orders. For more detailed information about Idaho Power First Mortgage
Bonds, see Note 5 - "Long-term Debt" to the consolidated financial statements included in this report.

IDACORP and Idaho Power Credit Facilities : In December 2023, IDACORP and Idaho Power entered into Credit Agreements for $100 million and
$400 million Credit Facilities, respectively. These facilities replaced IDACORP's and Idaho Power's then existing credit agreements. The IDACORP
Credit Facility, which may be used for general corporate purposes, consists of a revolving line of credit not to exceed the aggregate principal amount at
any one time outstanding of $100 million, including swingline loans in an aggregate principal amount at any time outstanding not to exceed $10 million,
and letters of credit in an aggregate principal amount at any time outstanding not to exceed $50 million. The Idaho Power Credit Facility, which may be
used for general corporate purposes, consists of a revolving line of credit, through the issuance of loans and standby letters of credit, not to exceed the
aggregate principal amount at any one time outstanding of $400 million, including swingline loans in an aggregate principal amount at any time
outstanding not to exceed $50 million, and letters of credit in an aggregate principal amount at any time outstanding not to exceed $50 million. IDACORP
and Idaho Power have the right to request an increase in the aggregate principal amount of the facilities to $150 million and $600 million, respectively, in
each case subject to certain conditions.
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The IDACORP and Idaho Power Credit Facilities have similar terms and conditi ons. The interest rates for any borrowings under the facilities are based
on either (1) a floating rate that is equal to the highest of the prime rate, federal funds rate plus 0.5 percent, or Adjusted Term Secured Overnight
Financing Rate (SOFR) plus 1.0 percent, or 1.0 percent, or (2) the Adjusted Term SOFR, plus, in each case an applicable margin, provided that the
Adjusted Term SOFR will not be less than 0.0 percent. If during any period the SOFR rate is unavailable or unascertainable, an alternate benchmark
rate selected by the administrative agent and the borrower would apply. The applicable margin is based on IDACORP's or Idaho Power's, as applicable,
senior unsecured long-term indebtedness credit rating by rating agencies, as set forth on a schedule to the credit agreements. Under their respective
Credit Facilities, the companies pay a facility fee on the commitment based on the respective company's credit rating for senior unsecured long-term
debt. While the credit facilities provide for an original maturity date of December 8, 2028, the credit agreements grant IDACORP and Idaho Power the
right to request up to two one-year extensions, in each case subject to certain conditions. On December 9, 2024, IDACORP and Idaho Power executed
extension agreements, extending the maturity date under both credit agreements to December 7, 2029. No other terms of the credit facilities, including
the amount of permitted borrowing under the credit agreements, were affected by the extensions.

Each facility contains a covenant requiring each company to maintain a leverage ratio of consolidated indebtedness to consolidated total capitalization
equal to or less than 65 percent as of the end of each fiscal quarter. In determining the leverage ratio, “consolidated indebtedness” broadly includes all
indebtedness of the respective borrower and its subsidiaries, including, in some instances, indebtedness evidenced by certain hybrid securities (as
defined in the credit agreement). “Consolidated total capitalization” is calculated as the sum of all consolidated indebtedness, consolidated stockholders'
equity of the borrower and its subsidiaries, and the aggregate value of outstanding hybrid securities. At December 31, 2024, the leverage ratios for
IDACORP and Idaho Power were 48 percent and 50 percent, respectively. IDACORP's and Idaho Power's ability to utilize their respective Credit
Facilities is conditioned upon their continued compliance with the leverage ratio covenants included in the Credit Facilities. There are additional
covenants, subject to exceptions, that prohibit certain mergers, acquisitions, and investments, restrict the creation of certain liens, and prohibit entering
into any agreements restricting dividend payments from any material subsidiary. At December 31, 2024, IDACORP and Idaho Power believe they were
in compliance with all of their respective Credit Facility covenants and, as of the date of this report, do not believe they will be in violation or breach of
such covenants during 2025.

The events of default under the Credit Facilities include, without limitation, non-payment of principal, interest, or fees; materially false representations or
warranties; breach of covenants; bankruptcy or insolvency events; condemnation of property; cross-default to certain other indebtedness; failure to pay
certain judgments; change of control; failure of IDACORP to own free and clear of liens the voting stock of Idaho Power; the occurrence of specified
events or the incurring of specified liabilities relating to benefit plans; and the occurrence of certain events related to the environment, subject, in certain
instances, to cure periods.

Upon any event of default relating to the voluntary or involuntary bankruptcy of IDACORP or Idaho Power or the appointment of a receiver, the obligations
of the lenders to make loans under the applicable facility and to issue letters of credit will automatically terminate and all unpaid obligations will become
due and payable. Upon any other event of default, the lenders holding greater than 50 percent of the outstanding loans or greater than 50 percent of the
aggregate commitments (required lenders), or the administrative agent with the consent of the required lenders, may terminate or suspend the
obligations of the lenders to make loans under the facility and to issue letters of credit under the facility and/or declare the obligations to be due and
payable. During an event of default under the facilities, the lenders may, at their option, increase the applicable interest rates then in effect and the letter
of credit fee by 2.0 percentage points per annum. A ratings downgrade would result in an increase in the cost of borrowing but would not result in a
default or acceleration of the debt under the facilities. However, if Idaho Power's ratings are downgraded below investment grade, Idaho Power must
extend or renew its authority for borrowings under its IPUC and OPUC regulatory orders.

In November and December 2023, Idaho Power obtained approval from the IPUC, the OPUC, and the WPSC for unsecured short-term borrowings at
any one time outstanding not to exceed $600 million through December 2030, subject to certain requirements under the order.

IDACORP and Idaho Power Commercial Paper: IDACORP and Idaho Power have commercial paper programs under which they issue unsecured
commercial paper notes up to a maximum aggregate amount outstanding at any time not to exceed the available capacity under their respective Credit
Facilities, described above. IDACORP's and Idaho Power's Credit Facilities are available to the companies to support borrowings under their commercial
paper programs. The commercial paper issuances are used to provide an additional financing source for the companies' short-term liquidity needs. The
maturities of the commercial paper issuances will vary, but may not exceed 270 days from the date of issue. Individual instruments carry a fixed rate
during
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their respective terms, although the interest rates are reflective of current market conditions, subjecting the companies to fluctuations in interest rates.

Available Short-Term Borrowing Liquidity

The following table outlines available short-term borrowing liquidity as of the dates specified (in thousands):

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
IDACORP® Idaho Power IDACORP® Idaho Power
Revolving credit facility $ 100,000 $ 400,000 $ 100,000 $ 400,000
Commercial paper outstanding — — — —
Identified for other use — (19,885) — (19,885)
Net balance available $ 100,000 $ 380,115 $ 100,000 $ 380,115

(1) American Falls bonds that Idaho Power could be required to purchase prior to maturity under the optional or mandatory purchase provisions of the bonds, if the remarketing
agent for the bonds were unable to sell the bonds to third parties.

(2) Holding company only.

At February 14, 2025, IDACORP and Idaho Power had no loans outstanding under their respective revolving credit facilities and had no commercial
paper outstanding. The table below presents additional information about short-term commercial paper borrowing during the year ended December 31
(in thousands, except percentages).

2024 2023
IDACORP® Idaho Power IDACORPW Idaho Power

Commercial Paper:
Period end:

Amount outstanding $ — $ — 8 = $ =

Weighted average interest rate — % — % — % — %
Daily average amount outstanding during the period $ = $ 191 % = $ 9,201
Weighted average interest rate during the period — % 5.62 % — % 4.94 %
Maximum month-end balance $ = $ 10,000 $ = $ 110,000

(1) Holding company only.

Impact of Credit Ratings on Liquidity and Collateral Obligations

IDACORP’s and Idaho Power’s access to capital markets, including the commercial paper market, and their respective financing costs in those markets,
depends in part on their respective credit ratings. The following table outlines the ratings of Idaho Power’s and IDACORP’s securities, and the ratings
outlook, by Moody's and Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services as of the date of this report:

Moody's Standard & Poor's
IDACORP Idaho Power IDACORP Idaho Power
Rating Outlook Negative Negative Stable Stable
Issuer Rating/Corporate Baa2 Baal BBB BBB
First Mortgage Bonds None A2
Senior Secured Debt None A2 None A-
Commercial Paper/Short-Term P-2 P-2 A-2 A-2

These security ratings reflect the views of the ratings agencies. An explanation of the significance of these ratings may be obtained from each rating
agency. Such ratings are not a recommendation to buy, sell, or hold securities. Any rating can be revised upward or downward or withdrawn at any time
by a rating agency if it decides that the circumstances warrant the change.
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Idaho Power maintains margin agreements relating to its wholesale commaodity contracts that allow performance assurance collateral to be requested of
and/or posted with certain counterparties, which are discussed further in Part Il - Item 7A "Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk"
included in this report.

Capital Requirements

Idaho Power's cash capital expenditures, excluding AFUDC, were $981 million during the year ended December 31, 2024. The cash expenditure amount
excludes net costs of removing assets from service. The table below presents Idaho Power's estimated accrual-basis additions to property, plant, and
equipment for 2025 through 2029 (in billions of dollars). The amounts in the table exclude AFUDC but include net costs of removing assets from service
that Idaho Power expects would be eligible to be included in rate base in future rate case proceedings. Given the uncertainty associated with the timing
of infrastructure projects and associated expenditures, actual expenditures and their timing could deviate substantially from those set forth in the table.
The timing and amount of actual constructed projects and capital expenditures could be affected by Idaho Power’s ability to timely obtain labor or
materials at reasonable costs, supply chain disruptions and delays, regulatory determinations, inflationary pressures, macroeconomic conditions, or other
issues, including those described below.

2025 2026 2027-2029
Expected capital expenditures (excluding AFUDC), in billions of dollars $ 1.00-1.10 $ 1.25-135 % 3.10 - 3.60

Infrastructure Projects: A significant portion of expected capital expenditures included in the five-year forecast above relate to a large number of
relatively small projects as Idaho Power continues to add to its system to accommodate growth and maintain reliability and operational effectiveness.
These projects involve significant capital expenditures in the aggregate. Examples of anticipated system enhancements planned for 2025 through 2029
and estimated costs include the following:

e $90-$225 million per year for construction and replacement of transmission lines and stations other than the B2H, GWW, and SWIP-N projects
discussed below;

*  $215-$260 million per year for construction and replacement of distribution lines and stations;

e $10-$70 million per year for ongoing improvements and replacements at thermal plants;

*  $105-$165 million per year for hydropower plant improvement programs, including relicensing costs; and

e $75-$105 million per year for general plant improvements, such as land and buildings, vehicles, information technology, and communication
equipment.

Other Major Infrastructure Projects: |daho Power has recently completed or is engaged in the development of a number of significant projects and has
entered into arrangements with third parties for joint development of infrastructure projects. The most notable projects are described below.

Resource Additions to Address Projected Energy and Capacity Deficits : Idaho Power's existing and sustained growth in customers, load, and peak
demand for electricity, along with transmission constraints, has created the need for Idaho Power to acquire significant generation, transmission, and
storage resources to meet energy and capacity needs over the next several years. To help meet peak needs in 2025 through 2027, Idaho Power entered
into:

* contracts or plans to purchase, own, and operate 330 MW of battery storage assets with expected useful lives of approximately 20 years;

¢ acontract to purchase and own a 300 MW wind facility;

* two 20-year agreements to purchase the storage capacity from battery storage facilities totaling 250 MW;

¢ an energy and capacity market purchase agreement with an energy marketer giving Idaho Power the right to acquire 200 MW on a daily basis
during summer months beginning in 2026 for a term of at least five years;

* aPPA for 300 MW output of a planned third-party wind facility; and

« four PPAs for the combined 745 MW output of planned third-party solar facilities. Idaho Power plans to sell the output of three of these solar
PPAs totaling 645 MW exclusively to a large industrial customer pursuant to an agreement under Idaho Power’s Clean Energy Your Way
program.

The capital requirements table above includes capital expenditures of approximately $1.1 billion from 2025 through 2027 for resource additions to
address projected energy and capacity deficits in those years. To help address the additional capacity deficits projected for 2027 and beyond, Idaho
Power continues to evaluate its RFP for additional resources. Depending on factors such as RFP results, the timing of project in-service dates, estimated
load and resource balances and customer growth,
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the nature and quantity of resources owned versus acquired under PPAs or similar agreements, and the outcome of regulatory proceedings, actual
expenditures and their timing could deviate substantially from Idaho Power's expected expenditures.

B2H Transmission Line: The B2H line, a planned 300-mile high-voltage transmission project between a substation near Boardman, Oregon, and the
Hemingway substation near Boise, Idaho, is expected to provide transmission service to meet future resource needs. Material procurement is in process
and long-lead-time materials are arriving in Oregon. Idaho Power expects construction will begin in the summer of 2025 and expects the in-service date
for the transmission line will be no earlier than 2027.

Under the permitting phase of the project, Idaho Power had a joint funding agreement with PacifiCorp and BPA, with Idaho Power having an approximate
21 percent interest, BPA having an approximate 24 percent interest, and PacifiCorp having an approximate 55 percent interest in the permitting phase of
the project. In March 2023, BPA, PacifiCorp, and Idaho Power signed various agreements to facilitate certain asset transfers and other coordination
efforts among the parties as the transmission line moves toward construction. In particular, an agreement between Idaho Power and BPA transferred
BPA's total interest in the project to Idaho Power, increasing Idaho Power's interest to approximately 45 percent, and provided that Idaho Power will
deliver long-term transmission service to BPA's customers across southern Idaho. The agreement also required BPA to make a $10 million security
payment to Idaho Power. On Idaho Power's consolidated balance sheet, the agreement increased construction work in progress by $31 million for the
acquired permitting interest, cash and cash equivalents by $10 million for the additional security payment, and other non-current liabilities by $41 million
for Idaho Power's obligation to pay for the permitting interest and to return the security deposit to BPA. Payments to BPA for the permitting interest are
expected to be made over a 15-year period beginning 10 years after energization of the transmission line project, while the security deposit is due to be
returned to BPA upon energization.

Idaho Power has spent approximately $380 million, including Idaho Power's AFUDC, on the B2H project through December 31, 2024. Pursuant to the
terms of the joint funding arrangements, Idaho Power has received $208 million in reimbursement as of December 31, 2024, from project co-participants
for their share of costs (including $31 million related to BPA's share, which was transferred to Idaho Power in March 2023 as part of the agreement
described above) and continues to receive reimbursement as costs are incurred. PacifiCorp is obligated to reimburse Idaho Power for its share of any
future project permitting expenditures or agreed upon early construction expenditures incurred by Idaho Power under the terms of the joint funding
agreement. In June 2023, Idaho Power and PacifiCorp executed a construction funding agreement and filed it with the FERC. The agreement became
fully effective in September 2023.

The permitting phase of the B2H project was subject to federal review and approval by various federal agencies. Federal agency records of decision have
been received and all lawsuits challenging the federal rights-of-way have been resolved. In the separate State of Oregon permitting process, the state's
Energy Facility Siting Council (EFSC) approved Idaho Power's site certificate in September 2022. The Oregon Department of Energy subsequently
issued a final order and site certificate. Idaho Power is pursuing two amendments to the site certificate to accommodate route changes, many of which
are for the benefit of landowners along the route, and to enhance constructability. In September 2023, EFSC approved Idaho Power's first amendment
request. One party contested the EFSC's approval of the first amendment in Union County Circuit Court. On October 28, 2024, the Union County Circuit
Court issued an order to dismiss the proceeding. Separately, in August 2024, EFSC approved Idaho Power's second amendment request. The approval
of the second amendment is being contested, and a decision of the Oregon Supreme Court in the case is pending. During the second quarter of 2023,
the IPUC, OPUC, and WPSC granted Idaho Power and PacifiCorp their respective CPCNs related to the construction of the B2H project.

Total cost estimates for the project are between $1.5 billion and $1.7 billion, including Idaho Power's AFUDC. The capital requirements table above
includes approximately $500 million of Idaho Power's share of estimated costs (excluding AFUDC) related to the remaining permitting phase, design,
material procurement, and construction phases of the project. Actual construction costs could differ from Idaho Power's estimates based upon Idaho
Power’s or its contractors ability to timely obtain labor or materials at reasonable costs, supply chain disruptions and delays, inflationary pressures,
macroeconomic conditions, or other issues.

GWW Transmission Line: Idaho Power and PacifiCorp are pursuing the joint development of the GWW project, a high-voltage transmission line project
between a substation located near Douglas, Wyoming, and the Hemingway substation located near Boise, Idaho. In 2012, Idaho Power and PacifiCorp
entered a joint funding agreement for permitting of the project. Idaho Power has expended approximately $67 million, including Idaho Power's AFUDC,
for its share of the permitting phase of the project through December 31, 2024. As of the date of this report, Idaho Power estimates the total cost for its
share of the project (including both permitting and construction) to be between $900 million and $1.1 billion, including Idaho Power's AFUDC. The
estimated cost range is based on assumptions about Idaho Power participation levels in the construction of certain project
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segments and any changes in those assumptions or in Idaho Power's actual participation could affect future estimates and actual project costs. The
capital requirements table above includes approximately $615 million of Idaho Power's share of estimated costs (excluding AFUDC) for the permitting
phase of the project and early construction costs, based on Idaho Power's current estimate that it may commence construction of applicable segments
during that time period. Actual construction costs could differ from Idaho Power's estimates based upon the ability of Idaho Power, PacificCorp, or their
respective contractors to timely obtain labor or materials at reasonable costs, supply chain disruptions and delays, inflationary pressures, macroeconomic
conditions, or other issues.

The permitting phase of the GWW project was subject to review and approval of the BLM. The BLM has published its records of decision for all segments
of the transmission line. In 2020 and 2024, PacifiCorp completed construction and commissioned segments of its portion of the project in Wyoming. In
March 2023, PacifiCorp initiated the pre-construction phase of 620 miles of 500-kV transmission line from the Populus substation near Downey, Idaho, to
the Hemingway substation near Boise, Idaho. Current permitting and pre-construction activities are focused on the section of line between the
Hemingway substation and the Midpoint substation, near Jerome, Idaho. Idaho Power expects the in-service date for this section of line or a portion of
this section will be 2028 or later. Idaho Power and PacifiCorp continue to coordinate the timing of next steps to best meet customer and system needs,
including potentially modifying the ownership structure of a few segments of the project.

SWIP-N: In February 2025, Idaho Power entered into a commitment to become a partial owner of SWIP-N, a planned 285-mile, high-voltage
transmission line between the Robinson Summit Substation near Ely, Nevada, and the Midpoint Substation near Jerome, Idaho. Upon the project being
placed into service, the applicable agreements provide that Idaho Power will purchase an approximate 11 percent ownership interest in the project,
entitling Idaho Power to approximately 11 percent of the total capacity of the SWIP-N line. In addition, Idaho Power entered into a capacity entitlement
agreement entitling Idaho Power to approximately 11 percent of additional capacity on the SWIP-N line over a 40-year term commencing upon the project
being placed in service. Idaho Power expects construction of the project to commence as early as 2025 and take approximately two years to complete.
Idaho Power is responsible for approximately 11 percent of the total costs to develop and construct the project. The capital requirements table above
includes Idaho Power's share of the costs to develop and construct the project. The project agreements do not require ldaho Power to incur any costs to
purchase its ownership interest or begin paying for capacity under the capacity entitlement agreement until the line is in service. Idaho Power has an
option to purchase the ownership interest associated with such capacity entitiement upon expiration of the 40-year term.

Hells Canyon Complex Relicensing: The HCC, located on the Snake River where it forms the border between Idaho and Oregon, provides approximately
70 percent of Idaho Power's hydropower generating nameplate capacity and 36 percent of its total generating nameplate capacity. Idaho Power has been
engaged in the process of obtaining a new long-term license for the HCC from the FERC. The past and anticipated future costs associated with obtaining
a new long-term license for the HCC are significant. Costs for the relicensing of Idaho Power's hydropower projects are recorded in construction work in
progress until new multi-year licenses are issued by the FERC, at which time the charges are transferred to electric plant in service. ldaho Power expects
to seek recovery of relicensing costs and costs related to a new long-term license through the regulatory process.

Relicensing costs of $497 million (including AFUDC) for the HCC were included in construction work in progress at December 31, 2024. As of the date of
this report, the IPUC authorizes Idaho Power to include in its Idaho jurisdiction rates approximately $8.8 million of AFUDC annually relating to the HCC
relicensing project. Collecting these amounts currently will reduce future collections when HCC relicensing costs are approved for recovery in base rates.
As of December 31, 2024, Idaho Power's regulatory liability for collection of AFUDC relating to the HCC was $251 million.

As of the date of this report, Idaho Power believes issuance of a new HCC license by the FERC will be as early as 2026. Idaho Power is unable to predict
the exact timing that the FERC will issue a new license or the ultimate capital investment and ongoing operating and maintenance costs Idaho Power will
incur in complying with a new license. Idaho Power estimates that the annual costs it will incur to obtain a new long-term license for the HCC, including
AFUDC but excluding costs expected to be incurred for complying with the license after issuance, are likely to range from $35 million to $45 million until
issuance of the license. Upon issuance of a long-term license, Idaho Power expects that the annual capital expenditures and operating and maintenance
expenses associated with compliance with the terms and conditions of the long-term license could also be substantial. In December 2016, Idaho Power
filed an application with the IPUC requesting a determination that Idaho Power's expenditures of $220.8 million through year-end 2015 on relicensing of
the HCC were prudently incurred, and thus eligible for future inclusion in retail rates in a future rate proceeding. In April 2018, the IPUC issued an order
approving a settlement stipulation signed by Idaho Power, the IPUC staff, and a third-party intervenor recognizing that a total of $216.5 million in
expenditures were reasonably incurred, and therefore should be eligible for inclusion in customer rates at a later date.
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Jackalope Wind Project: In October 2024, Idaho Power entered into agreements with a counterparty and certain of its affiliates to develop the Jackalope
Project, which consists of (i) a 35-year PPA between Jackalope Wind, LLC and Idaho Power, supplying approximately 300 MW of generation to Idaho
Power's system from a wind-powered generation facility located in Sweetwater County, Wyoming, and (ii) a co-located wind turbine generator power
plant to be owned by Idaho Power, providing approximately 300 MW of generation. The capital requirements table above includes Idaho Power's share of
the costs to develop and construct the project but does not include any of the expected costs of the PPA. As of the date of this report, the Jackalope
Project is expected to begin operations in 2027.

Environmental Regulation Costs: |daho Power anticipates that it will continue to incur significant expenditures for its compliance with environmental
regulations related to the operation of its hydropower and thermal generation facilities. In addition, Idaho Power expects it will continue to incur significant
expenditures for its hydropower relicensing efforts. The near-term cost estimates for environmental matters are summarized in Part |, Item 1 - "Business -
Environmental Regulation and Costs" of this report. The capital portion of these amounts is included in the Capital Requirements table above but does
not include costs related to possible changes in current or new environmental laws or regulations and enforcement policies that may be enacted in
response to issues such as climate change and emissions from coal-fired and gas-fired generation plants.

Defined Benefit Pension Plan Contributions and Recovery

Idaho Power contributed $20 million in 2024 and $48 million in 2023 to its defined benefit pension plan. Idaho Power estimates that it has no minimum
required contribution to be made during 2025. Depending on market conditions and cash flow considerations, Idaho Power could contribute up to $20
million to the pension plan during 2025. Idaho Power's contributions are made in a continued effort to balance the regulatory collection of these
expenditures with the amount and timing of contributions to mitigate the cost of being in an underfunded position. Beyond 2025, Idaho Power expects
continuing contributions under the pension plan could be significant. Refer to Note 11 — “Benefit Plans” to the consolidated financial statements included
in this report for information relating to those obligations.

Idaho Power defers its Idaho-jurisdiction pension expense as a regulatory asset until recovered from Idaho customers. At December 31, 2024 and 2023,
Idaho Power's deferral balance associated with the Idaho jurisdiction was $252 million and $255 million, respectively. Deferred pension costs are
amortized to expense to match the revenues received when contributions are recovered through rates. Idaho Power only records a carrying charge on
the unrecovered balance of cash contributions. In December 2023, the IPUC authorized Idaho Power to increase its annual recovery and amortization of
deferred pension costs in 2024 from $17 million to $35 million annually. Idaho Power has applied $68 million against the deferred amount under its Idaho
sharing mechanisms since 2011. The primary impact of pension contributions is on the timing of cash flows, as cost recovery lags behind the timing of
contributions. Additional information on the regulatory assets related to Idaho Power's pension and postretirement programs can be found in Note 3 -
"Regulatory Matters" to the consolidated financial statements included in this report.

Contractual Obligations

IDACORP’s and Idaho Power’s contractual cash obligations as of December 31, 2024, include long-term debt, interest payments, purchase obligations,
pension and post-retirement benefit plans, and other long-term liabilities specific to IDACORP, most of which are discussed throughout this MD&A. Refer
to Note 9 — “Commitments” to the consolidated financial statements included in this report for additional information relating to purchase obligations and
other long-term liabilities.

Dividends

The amount and timing of dividends paid on IDACORP’s common stock are within the discretion of IDACORP’s board of directors. IDACORP's board of
directors reviews the dividend rate periodically to determine its appropriateness in light of IDACORP’s current and long-term financial position and results
of operations, capital requirements, rating agency considerations, contractual and regulatory restrictions, legislative and regulatory developments
affecting the electric utility industry in general and Idaho Power in particular, competitive conditions, and any other factors the board of directors deems
relevant. The ability of IDACORP to pay dividends on its common stock is generally dependent upon dividends paid to it by its subsidiaries, primarily
Idaho Power.

IDACORP has a dividend policy that provides for a target long-term dividend payout ratio of between 60 percent and 70 percent of sustainable IDACORP
earnings, with the flexibility to achieve that payout ratio over time and to adjust the payout ratio or to deviate from the target payout ratio from time to time
based on the various factors that drive IDACORP's board of directors' dividend decisions. Notwithstanding the dividend policy adopted by IDACORP's
board of directors, the dividends
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IDACORP pays remain in the discretion of the board of directors who, when evaluating the dividend amount, will continue to take into account the factors
above, among others. In September 2024 and 2023, IDACORP's board of directors voted to increase the quarterly dividend to $0.86 per share and $0.83
per share of IDACORP common stock, respectively. IDACORP's dividends during 2024 were 60.9 percent of actual 2024 earnings.

For additional information relating to IDACORP and Idaho Power dividends, including restrictions on IDACORP’s and Idaho Power’s payment of
dividends, see Note 6 — “Common Stock” to the consolidated financial statements included in this report.

Contingencies and Proceedings

IDACORP and Idaho Power are involved in a number of litigation, alternative dispute resolution, and administrative proceedings, and are subject to
claims and legal actions arising in the ordinary course of business that could affect their future results of operations and financial condition. In many
instances IDACORP and Idaho Power are unable to predict the outcomes of the matters or estimate the impact the proceedings may have on their
financial positions, results of operations, or cash flows.

Idaho Power is also actively monitoring various environmental regulations that may have a significant impact on its future operations. Given uncertainties
regarding the outcome, timing, and compliance plans for these environmental matters, ldaho Power is unable to determine the financial impact of
potential new regulations but does believe that future capital investment for infrastructure and modifications to its electric generating facilities to comply
with these regulations could be significant.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

IDACORP’s and Idaho Power’s off-balance sheet arrangements as of December 31, 2024, include guarantees of Idaho Power's portion of reclamation
activities and obligations at BCC, of which IERCo owns a one-third interest. See Note 9 — “Commitments” to the consolidated financial statements
included in this report for additional information relating to off-balance sheet arrangements.

REGULATORY MATTERS
Introduction

Idaho Power is under the jurisdiction (as to rates, service, accounting, and other general matters of utility operation) of the IPUC, the OPUC, and the
FERC. The IPUC and OPUC determine the rates that Idaho Power is authorized to charge to its retail customers. Idaho Power is also under the
regulatory jurisdiction of the IPUC, the OPUC, and the WPSC as to the issuance of debt and equity securities. As a public utility under the FPA, Idaho
Power has authority to charge market-based rates for wholesale energy sales under its FERC tariff and to provide transmission services under its OATT.
Additionally, the FERC has jurisdiction over Idaho Power's sales of transmission capacity and wholesale electricity, hydropower project relicensing, and
system reliability, among other items.

Idaho Power develops its regulatory filings taking into consideration short-term and long-term needs for rate relief and several other factors that can affect
the structure and timing of those filings. These factors include in-service dates of major capital investments, the timing and magnitude of changes in major
revenue and expense items, and customer growth rates, as well as other factors. Idaho Power filed general rate cases in Idaho and Oregon in 2023,
which were resolved by the 2023 Settlement Stipulation in Idaho and the 2024 Oregon Settlement Stipulations in Oregon. Idaho Power filed the 2024
Idaho Limited-Issue Rate Case in May 2024, focused on revenue requirements for 2024 incremental plant additions and incremental ongoing labor costs.
On December 31, 2024, the IPUC issued its order (Order) in the 2024 Idaho Limited-Issued Rate Case, providing that Idaho Power implement revised
tariff schedules designed to increase annual Idaho-jurisdictional retail revenue by $50.6 million, or 3.7 percent, effective January 1, 2025. The Order was
subsequently modified by an errata issued on January 21, 2025, which reduced the revenue increase called for under the Order to $50.1 million. Given
the limited-scope nature of the 2024 Idaho Limited-Issued Rate Case and its ongoing infrastructure investment, Idaho Power believes it is likely that it will
file a general rate case in Idaho during 2025, as early as May 2025.

Between general rate cases, Idaho Power relies upon customer growth, an FCA mechanism, power cost adjustment mechanisms, limited-issue rate

cases, WMP cost deferrals, project-specific cases, tariff riders, and other mechanisms to mitigate the impact of regulatory lag, which refers to the period
of time between making an investment or incurring an expense and recovering that investment or expense and earning a return.
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Notable Retail Rate Changes in Idaho and Oregon

The table below presents notable recent retail rate changes that affected Idaho Power's results for the periods of this report or that will likely affect future
periods. Note 3 - "Regulatory Matters" to the consolidated financial statements included in this report also provides a description of regulatory
mechanisms and associated orders of the IPUC and OPUC, and should be read in conjunction with the discussion of regulatory matters in this MD&A.

Estimated Annualized

Description Effective Date Rate Impact (millions)®
2024 |daho limited-issue rate case 1/1/2025 $ 50.1
2024 |daho PCA 6/1/2024 (35.7)
2024 |daho FCA 6/1/2024 11.7
2023 Oregon general rate case 10/15/2024 6.7
2023 Idaho general rate case 1/1/2024 54.7
2023 Idaho PCA 6/1/2023 105.1
2023 Idaho FCA 6/1/2023 (10.1)

(1) The annual amount collected or refunded in rates is typically not recovered or refunded on a linear basis (i.e., 1/12th per month), and is instead recovered or refunded in
proportion to retail sales volumes. The rate changes for the Idaho PCA and FCA are applicable only for one-year periods and represent the net change to the deferral balance
from the prior year's filing, as well as a forecast component for the PCA.

Idaho and Oregon Rate Cases

As noted above, on December 31, 2024, the IPUC issued the Order in connection with ldaho Power's 2024 Idaho Limited-Issue Rate Case. The Order
provided for Idaho Power to implement revised tariff schedules designed to increase annual Idaho-jurisdictional retail revenue by $50.6 million, or 3.7
percent, effective January 1, 2025. The Order was subsequently modified by an errata issued on January 21, 2025, which reduced the revenue increase
called for under the Order to $50.1 million.

The 2023 Settlement Stipulation provided for revised tariff schedules designed to increase annual Idaho-jurisdictional retail revenue by $54.7 million, or
4.25 percent, effective January 1, 2024, net of an Idaho-jurisdiction PCA rate decrease of $168.3 million and a reduction to annual energy efficiency rider
collection of $3.5 million, each of which was transferred into base rates. The 2023 Settlement Stipulation also provided for a 9.6 percent return on equity
and a 7.247 percent authorized rate of return based on a non-specified cost of debt and capital structure, applied to an Idaho-jurisdictional rate base of
approximately $3.8 billion. For more information on the 2023 Idaho general rate case and related 2023 Settlement Stipulation, see Note 3 - "Regulatory
Matters" to the consolidated financial statements included in this report.

At December 31, 2024, Idaho Power estimates that it had $77 million of deferred credits available for future use under the ADITC and Revenue Sharing
mechanism. Under the modified ADITC and Revenue Sharing mechanism, Idaho Power may seek approval from the IPUC to replenish the total amount
of additional ADITC it is permitted to amortize, and if there are no remaining amounts of additional ADITC authorized to be amortized, the remainder of
the revenue sharing provisions would not be applicable until additional ADITC is replenished.

In December 2023, Idaho Power filed a general rate case with the OPUC. In September 2024, the OPUC issued an order approving the 2024 Oregon
Settlement Stipulations, which are settlement stipulations among Idaho Power and intervening parties settling the general rate case. The OPUC order
and the 2024 Oregon Settlement Stipulations provided for revised tariff schedules designed to increase annual Oregon-jurisdiction revenue by $6.7
million, or 12.14 percent, effective October 15, 2024. The stipulations were premised on a 9.5 percent Oregon-jurisdiction return on year-end equity, and
a 7.302 percent Oregon-jurisdiction authorized rate of return based on a 5.104 percent cost of debt and capital structure of 50 percent debt and 50
percent equity, applied to an Oregon-jurisdictional rate base of approximately $188.9 million. For more information on the Oregon general rate case and
the 2024 Oregon Settlement Stipulations, see Note 3 - "Regulatory Matters" to the consolidated financial statements included in this report.

Other Notable Regulatory Matters
Integrated Resource Plan and Resource Procurement Filings: Idaho Power filed its most recent IRP with the IPUC and OPUC in September 2023

and expects to file its next IRP during 2025, as described in Part 1, Item 1 - "Business - Resource
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Planning" in this report. The 2023 IRP, which was acknowledged by the IPUC in June 2024 and by the OPUC in August 2024, identified the need for
resources to meet projected capacity deficits in the near-term.

In March and April 2024, Idaho Power filed applications with the IPUC for two of the bids from its 2023 RFP to procure resources for its anticipated
energy and capacity needs in 2026 and 2027. In the March 2024 application, Idaho Power requested that the IPUC approve a market purchase
agreement with an energy marketer to purchase 200 MW of firm capacity for specified periods of time. The IPUC approved this application in August
2024. In the April 2024 application, Idaho Power applied for a CPCN to acquire and own 150 MW of battery storage with an expected useful life of 20
years. The IPUC approved this application in November 2024.

In August 2024, following review by an independent evaluator appointed by the OPUC, OPUC staff, and other intervenors, the OPUC issued an order
approving Idaho Power's final RFP to procure resources for its anticipated energy and capacity needs in 2028 and beyond. Idaho Power issued the RFP
in August 2024 soliciting resources with a commercial operation date (COD) no later than April 1, 2028 (2028 bids), as well as bids with a COD after April
1, 2028 (beyond 2028 bids), and filed a request with the OPUC on January 10, 2025, for acknowledgment of its final shortlist of 2028 bids in the RFP. As
of the date of this report, the OPUC's acknowledgment of the final shortlist of 2028 bids is pending. Idaho Power has received and is currently evaluating
beyond 2028 bids.

In December 2024, Idaho Power filed an application with the IPUC for the Jackalope Project, one of the bids from an RFP to procure resources for its
anticipated energy and capacity needs in 2027. The Jackalope Project consists of (i) a 35-year PPA between Jackalope Wind, LLC and Idaho Power,
supplying approximately 300 MW of generation to Idaho Power's system, and (ii) a wind turbine generator power plant to be owned by Idaho Power,
providing approximately 300 MW of generation. In its application, Idaho Power requested that the IPUC approve the PPA and grant a CPCN for the wind
turbine generator power plant. As of the date of this report, the IPUC's decision is pending.

Also in December 2024, Idaho Power filed an application with the IPUC to grant a CPCN for Idaho Power to acquire and own two battery storage facilities
with a total of 100 MW of operating capacity to address Idaho Power's identified capacity deficiency in 2026. As of the date of this report, the IPUC's
decision is pending.

Filing for Approval of Conversion of North Valmy Plant to Natural Gas: In January 2025, Idaho Power filed an application with the IPUC to grant
approval of an agreement between Idaho Power and the co-owner of the North Valmy plant, NV Energy, to convert the two coal-fired units at the North
Valmy plant to natural gas-fired steam turbines by mid-2026. As of the date of this report, the IPUC's decision is pending.

For more information on other notable regulatory matters, see Note 3 - "Regulatory Matters" to the consolidated financial statements included in this
report.

Large Customer Rate Proceedings

Brisbie, LLC (Brisbie) Data Center and Clean Energy Your Way - Construction Arrangements : In May 2023, the IPUC approved a special contract
(Brisbie Special Contract) between Idaho Power and a large load customer, Brisbie, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Meta Platforms, Inc., for service to a
new enterprise data center. The Brisbie Special Contract allows Idaho Power to procure enough renewable resources to provide Brisbie with 100 percent
renewable energy on an annual basis for Brisbie's facility. In April 2023, Idaho Power received IPUC approval of a contract with a 200 MW solar project
that is scheduled to begin operating as early as March 2025. Idaho Power will assign the cost and renewable attributes of the energy from the solar
facility to Brisbie in accordance with the Brisbie Special Contract. In May 2024, Idaho Power received IPUC approval of a contract with a 125 MW solar
project to be online as early as December 2026 for energy to be purchased by Brisbie. In November 2024, Idaho Power filed for IPUC approval of an
additional contract for Brisbie with a 320 MW solar project to be online as early as December 2027. As of the date of this report, the IPUC's decision
regarding the additional contract is pending.

In May 2024, Idaho Power also filed an application with the IPUC for approval of the second amendment to the Brisbie Special Contract providing for
changes in certain pricing elements under the Brishie Special Contract. The IPUC approved the application in November 2024.

Micron Clean Energy Your Way - Construction Arrangements and Micron Fab Special Contract : In August 2022, the IPUC issued an order approving,
with modifications, Idaho Power's application for a revised special contract for electric service
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between Idaho Power and Micron Technology, Inc. (Micron). The application was modeled after the Clean Energy Your Way program and included an
arrangement under which Micron would purchase from Idaho Power energy generated by a to-be-constructed 40 MW solar facility pursuant to a 20-year
PPA between Idaho Power and a third party. The solar facility began operating in May 2023.

In May 2024, Idaho Power filed an application for approval of the third amendment to the special contract between Micron and Idaho Power, which
provides for changes in certain pricing elements under the special contract. The IPUC approved the application in November 2024.

In December 2024, Idaho Power filed an application with the IPUC for approval of a special contract for electric service for Micron Idaho Semiconductor
Manufacturing (Triton) LLC, a subsidiary of Micron, for electric service for Micron's new memory manufacturing fabrication complex (fab) located in Boise.
Idaho regulations require any utility customer with an average load exceeding 20 MW to enter into a special contract with Idaho Power. The special
contract anticipates a significant increase in load on Idaho Power's system that will ramp over a number of years beginning in 2026. As of the date of this
report, the IPUC's decision is pending.

Deferred Net Power Supply Costs

Deferred (accrued) power supply costs represent certain differences between Idaho Power's actual net power supply costs and the costs included in its
retail rates, the latter being based on annual forecasts of power supply costs. Deferred (accrued) power supply costs are recorded on the balance sheets
for future recovery or refund through customer rates.

Idaho Power's power cost adjustment mechanisms in its Idaho and Oregon jurisdictions address the volatility of power supply costs and provide for
annual adjustments to the rates charged to retail customers. The power cost adjustment mechanisms and associated financial impacts are described in
"Results of Operations" in this MD&A and in Note 3 - "Regulatory Matters" to the consolidated financial statements included in this report.

Factors that have influenced power cost adjustment rate changes in recent years include year-to-year volatility in hydropower generation conditions,
market energy prices and the volume of wholesale energy sales, power purchase costs from renewable energy projects, income tax reform, and revenue
sharing under Idaho regulatory settlement stipulations. From year to year, these factors can vary significantly, which can result in significant accruals and
deferrals under the power cost adjustment mechanisms. The power cost adjustment rate changes reflected in the table under the heading "Notable
Retail Rate Changes in Idaho and Oregon" in this MD&A are illustrative of the volatility of net power supply costs and the impact on power cost
adjustment rates.

The following table summarizes the change in deferred (accrued) net power supply costs over last year (in millions):

Idaho Oregon Total
Balance at December 31, 2023 $ 1156 $ 3) $ 114.3
Current period net power supply costs deferred (accrued) 5.6 (2.9) 3.7
Prior amounts collected through rates (93.3) (0.2) (93.4)
REC sales (12.2) (0.5) (12.7)
Interest and other 2.8 (0.1) 2.7
Balance at December 31, 2024 $ 185 $ 39 % 14.6

Open Access Transmission Tariff Rate

Idaho Power uses a formula rate for transmission service provided under its OATT, which provides that transmission rates will be updated annually
based primarily on financial and operational data Idaho Power files with the FERC. In August 2024, Idaho Power filed its 2024 final transmission rate with
the FERC, reflecting a transmission rate of $31.55 per kilowatt-year (kW-year), to be effective for the period from October 1, 2024, to September 30,
2025. Idaho Power's final rate was based on a net annual transmission revenue requirement of $137.9 million. The OATT rate in effect from October 1,
2023, to September 30, 2024, was $30.74 per kW-year based on a net annual transmission revenue requirement of $135.7 million. A kW-year is a unit of
electrical capacity equivalent to 1 kW of power used for 8,760 hours.
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Relicensing of Hydropower Projects

Overview: Idaho Power, like other utilities that operate non-federal hydropower projects on qualified waterways, obtains licenses for its hydropower
projects from the FERC. These licenses have a term of 30 to 50 years depending on the size, complexity, and cost of the project. The expiration dates for
the FERC licenses for each of the facilities are included in Part | - Item 2 - "Properties" in this report. See Note 12 - "Property, Plant and Equipment and
Jointly-Owned Projects" to the consolidated financial statements included in this report for information regarding relicensing costs for the HCC. In addition
to the discussion below, refer to “Hells Canyon Complex Relicensing” in “Liquidity and Capital Resources” in this MD&A for a discussion of the costs and
expected timing of an HCC license and "Environmental Matters" in this MD&A for a discussion of environmental compliance under FERC licenses for
Idaho Power's hydropower generating plants.

Hells Canyon Complex Relicensing: In 2003, Idaho Power filed an application with the FERC for a new license in anticipation of the 2005 expiration of
the then-existing license. Since the expiration of that license, Idaho Power has been operating the project under annual licenses issued by the FERC. In
2004, Idaho Power and eleven other parties involved in the HCC relicensing process, including NMFS and USFWS, entered into an interim agreement
that addresses the effects of the ongoing operations of the HCC on ESA-listed species pending the relicensing of the project. The FERC staff issued a
final EIS in 2007.

In connection with its relicensing efforts, ldaho Power filed annual water quality certification applications, required under Section 401 of the CWA, with the
states of Idaho and Oregon requesting that each state certify that any discharges from the HCC comply with applicable state water quality standards.
Challenges regarding how to meet water temperature standards below the HCC for spawning fall Chinook salmon, and a conflict in laws between Oregon
and Idaho regarding the reintroduction and passage of fish above the HCC, delayed the issuance of the states' 401 certifications for several years. In
2016, Idaho Power filed a petition with the FERC requesting that the FERC resolve the conflict between Oregon's and Idaho's conditions and declare that
the FPA pre-empts the Oregon state law requiring reintroduction and passage, which the FERC denied in 2017. In 2018, Idaho Power appealed the
FERC's 2017 order with the United States Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia Circuit, which is pending.

In 2019, the states of Idaho and Oregon, along with Idaho Power, reached a settlement pertaining to the CWA Section 401 certification that requires
Idaho Power, among other measures, to increase the number of Chinook salmon it releases each year through expanded hatchery production. In 2019,
Oregon and Idaho issued final CWA Section 401 certifications which have been submitted to the FERC as part of the relicensing process. Also in 2019,
Idaho Power filed an Offer of Settlement with the FERC requesting specific language be included in the new HCC license based upon the settlement
among ldaho, Oregon, and Idaho Power. The FERC's decision relating to the Offer of Settlement is pending as of the date of this report.

In 2020, Idaho Power submitted to the FERC its supplement to the final license application, incorporating the settlement agreement reached between
Idaho and Oregon on the CWA Section 401 certifications. The supplement included feedback on proposed modifications of the 2007 final EIS for the
HCC, as well as an updated cost analysis of the HCC and a request that the FERC issue a 50-year license and initiate a supplemental NEPA process at
the FERC. In 2022, the FERC issued a notice of intent to prepare a supplemental EIS in accordance with NEPA. The FERC also reinstated informal
consultation with the USFWS and the NMFS under section 7 of the ESA. In May 2024, the FERC issued an updated schedule for the supplemental EIS,
indicating that the draft and final supplemental EIS would be issued no later than July 2024 and February 2025, respectively. As of the date of this report,
the FERC has not issued the draft supplemental EIS.

In February 2025, Idaho Power submitted to the FERC, to be included in the final HCC license, agreed-upon language between Idaho Power and the
U.S. Army Corps of Engineers regarding flood control requirements applicable to the HCC.

American Falls Relicensing: In 2020, Idaho Power filed with the FERC a notice of intent to file an application to relicense the American Falls
hydropower facility, which is Idaho Power's largest hydropower facility outside of the HCC, with a nameplate generating capacity of 92.3 MW. Idaho
Power owns the generation facility but not the structural dam or reservoir, which are owned by the U.S. Bureau of Reclamation. Idaho Power filed the
final relicensing application with the FERC in February 2023. In September 2023, Idaho Power filed an application for CWA Section 401 water quality
certification with the IDEQ. In September 2024, IDEQ issued a final CWA Section 401 water quality certification. In October 2024, FERC issued a revised
notice of intent to prepare an environmental assessment, signaling that FERC staff did not anticipate that licensing the project would constitute a major
federal action that would significantly affect the quality of the human environment. FERC released its environmental assessment on January 16, 2025,
which initiated a 30-day comment period. Idaho Power is reviewing the environmental assessment, including the mitigation measures that FERC
recommended in it.
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Idaho Power's current license at American Falls expires on February 28, 2025. As of the date of this report, Idaho Power anticipates the FERC will issue
a new license for this facility in late 2025. If the current license expires before the new license is issued, Idaho Power expects to continue to operate its
American Falls facility on annual licenses issued by the FERC with the same conditions as the current license.

ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS
Overview

Idaho Power is subject to a broad range of federal, state, regional, and local laws and regulations designed to protect, restore, and enhance the
environment, including the CAA, the CWA, the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, the Toxic Substances Control Act, the Comprehensive
Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act, and the ESA, among other laws. These laws are administered by a number of federal, state,
and local agencies. In addition to imposing continuing compliance obligations and associated costs, these laws and regulations provide authority to
regulators to levy substantial penalties for noncompliance, injunctive relief, and other sanctions. Idaho Power's co-owned coal-fired power plant, its co-
owned coal- and gas-fired power plant, and its three wholly-owned natural gas-fired combustion turbine power plants are subject to many of these
regulations. Idaho Power's hydropower projects are also subject to a number of water discharge standards and other environmental requirements.

Compliance with current and future environmental laws and regulations may:

¢ increase the operating costs of generating plants;

* increase the construction costs and lead time for new facilities;

¢ require the modification of existing generating plants, which could result in additional costs;

« require the curtailment, fuel-switching, or shut-down of existing generating plants;

¢ reduce the output from current generating facilities; or

* require the acquisition of alternative sources of energy or storage technology, increased transmission wheeling, or construction of additional
generating facilities, which could result in higher costs.

Current and future environmental laws and regulations could significantly increase the cost of operating fossil fuel-fired generation plants and

constructing new generation and transmission facilities, in large part through the substantial cost of permitting activities and the required installation of
additional pollution control devices. In many parts of the United States, some higher-cost, high-emission coal-fired plants have ceased operation or the
plant owners have announced a near-term cessation of operation or conversion to natural gas, as the cost of compliance makes coal plants uneconomical
to operate. The decision to cease operation of the Boardman power plant in 2020 was based in part on the significant cost of compliance with
environmental laws and regulations. The decision to end participation in coal-fired operations of one unit at the North Valmy plant was also based in part
on the economics of continuing coal-fired generation at the plant. Beyond increasing costs generally, these environmental laws and regulations could
affect IDACORP's and Idaho Power's results of operations and financial condition if the costs associated with these environmental requirements and

early plant retirements cannot be fully recovered in rates on a timely basis.

Part |, Item 1 - “Business - Utility Operations - Environmental Regulation and Costs” in this report includes a summary of Idaho Power's expected capital
and operating expenditures for environmental matters during the period from 2025 to 2027. Given the uncertainty of future environmental regulations and
technological advances, there is uncertainty around near-term estimates, and Idaho Power is also unable to predict its environmental-related
expenditures beyond 2027, though they could be substantial. Changes in Presidential Administrations and Congressional elections since 2017 have
resulted, and in the future could result, in significant changes in, and uncertainty with respect to, legislation, regulation, and government policy regarding
environmental matters. Executive orders that could be issued by the current Presidential Administration and the outcome of U.S. federal agencies' review
of regulations covered by executive orders and revocation of executive orders is difficult to predict.

In addition, the court system has become more active in reviewing agency actions, resulting in even less certainty as to the outcome and durability of
rules that are administratively implemented. Changes to or elimination of regulations may lower Idaho Power's costs of operating and maintaining fossil
fuel-fired generation plants and transmission lines, due to the reduction of potential environmental infrastructure upgrades or conversions, or reduction or
elimination of permitting requirements. More strict or robust regulations, or additional regulations, on the other hand, would likely increase Idaho Power's
costs of operating and maintaining its facilities, and could impact Idaho Power's plans and pre-construction activities related to its major transmission
projects, which could lead to substantially higher construction and permitting costs and could delay construction.
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Executive orders may be affected by Congressional action and challenged in court. Further, state and local governmental authorities could choose to
challenge or replace the federal regulations or bolster or undermine environmental compliance and enforcement efforts at the local level. Therefore, as of
the date of this report, and except as specifically described below in this MD&A, Idaho Power is uncertain whether and to what extent the orders, any
future executive orders, and the implementation of these and any future executive orders could affect its business, results of operations, and financial
condition. Idaho Power will continue to monitor actions associated with or resulting from executive orders and new or revised legislation or regulation.

Endangered Species Act Matters

Overview: The listing of a species of fish, wildlife, or plants as threatened or endangered under the ESA may have an adverse impact on ldaho Power's
ability to construct power supply, transmission, or distribution facilities or relicense or operate its hydropower facilities.

Over the past few years and as a result of changes in Presidential Administrations, regulatory developments and executive orders have called into
question the existing requirements under the ESA. Subsequent federal court decisions have in some cases undermined the effectiveness of those
regulations and orders. The uncertainty in the regulatory landscape makes it difficult to predict the scope, timing and complexity of project-related ESA
matters to be addressed.

There are a number of threatened or endangered species within Idaho Power's service area located in waterways in which Idaho Power has hydropower
facilities, and within or near proposed transmission line routes. To date, efforts to protect these species have not significantly affected generation levels
or operating costs at any of Idaho Power's hydropower facilities. However, the ongoing relicensing of the HCC presents endangered species and
fisheries issues that may require operational adjustments and could adversely impact the amount of output from hydropower dams, potentially causing
Idaho Power to rely on more expensive sources for power generation or market purchases. These ESA regulations could impact the timing and feasibility
of the HCC relicensing project and the GWW and B2H transmission projects and other infrastructure projects, which could lead to substantially higher
construction, permitting, and licensing costs and could delay construction.

Developments in Regulation of Sage Grouse Habitat: In 2016, a group of lawsuits were filed in federal court to challenge the BLM's sage grouse
resource management and land use plan revisions that became effective in 2015 under the Federal Land Policy and Management Act. The lawsuits
challenge the plans and associated EISs across the sage grouse range, including in Idaho and North Dakota, and allege that the plans fail to ensure that
sage grouse populations and habitats will be protected and restored in accordance with the best available science and legal mandates. Further, the
lawsuits challenge certain exemptions provided for the B2H and GWW transmission line projects. Idaho Power has intervened in the proceedings in an
effort to support the exemptions provided for in the BLM's plans. If the exemptions are overturned, Idaho Power may be required to re-route the projects,
which could lead to substantially higher construction and permitting costs and could delay construction. As of the date of this report, the above lawsuits
are stayed, as the parties and the courts have agreed that the processes initiated by the BLM may result in further administrative actions that could
remove the need for the lawsuits.

In June 2017, the Secretary of the Interior issued an order directing the BLM to review the 2015 sage grouse resource management and land use plan
revisions and to identify provisions that may require modification or rescission to address energy and other development of public lands. Following a
series of interim measures, in February 2022, the BLM issued a notice of intent to amend its land use plans regarding sage grouse conservation and
prepare associated EISs, and in November 2024, the BLM issued a proposed resource management plan amendment and final EIS. Idaho Power
protested the 2024 plan amendment and EIS. As of the date of this report, the BLM has not signed the record of decision for the land use plan
amendments in Idaho.

Reinstatement of "Blanket Rule" for Threatened Species: The listing of a species, or changes to the critical habitat designations, of fish, wildlife, or
plants as threatened or endangered under the ESA and the associated mitigation policies may have an adverse impact on Idaho Power's ability to
construct power supply, transmission, or distribution facilities or relicense or operate its hydropower facilities. In March 2024, the USFWS published a
final rule which, among other items, reinstated the “blanket rule” that allows the USFWS to treat threatened species the same (or similar) as endangered
species under Section 4(d) of the ESA. Based on ESA listings as of the date of this report, Idaho Power anticipates that the rule will have limited or no
impact on its projects.

ESA Issues Related to Specific Projects:
Hells Canyon Relicensing Project: In December 2004, Idaho Power and eleven other parties, including the NMFS and the USFWS, entered into an

interim agreement that addresses the effects of the ongoing operations of the HCC on ESA listed
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species pending the relicensing of the project. In 2007, the FERC requested initiation of formal consultation under the ESA with the NMFS and the
USFWS regarding potential effects of HCC relicensing on several listed aquatic and terrestrial species. Idaho Power prepared draft biological
assessments in consultation with the USFWS and the NMFS and filed those with the FERC in October 2020. In June 2022, the FERC issued a notice of
intent to prepare a draft supplemental EIS and a final supplemental EIS in accordance with NEPA. The FERC also reinstated informal consultation with
the USFWS and NMFS under section 7 of the ESA. As of the date of this report, Idaho Power anticipates that the final biological opinions will likely be
issued after the FERC issues a final supplemental EIS, which is scheduled for February 2025 according to the FERC's updated schedule for issuance of
the supplemental EIS. As of the date of this report, the FERC has not issued the supplemental EIS in draft or final form.

GWW and B2H Transmission Projects and Other Infrastructure - Slickspot Peppergrass Designation : In 2016, the USFWS re-instated the threatened
species status of slickspot peppergrass under the ESA. In 2020, the USFWS published a revised proposed rule designating critical habitat for the
species, most of which are located on federal land. Idaho Power expects the listing of the slickspot peppergrass and its existence within or near the
proposed route for the GWW transmission line project and other transmission and distribution lines to increase the cost and timing of permitting and
construction of the projects, as it requires an ESA Section 7 consultation and potential mitigation. As of the date of this report, Idaho Power is uncertain
whether such increases will be significant.

National Environmental Policy Act Matters

NEPA is a federal law that requires federal agencies to consider the environmental impacts of their actions and decisions. NEPA applies to Idaho Power’s
transmission and distribution lines that are located on federal land, as well as other company activities involving federal actions. In April 2022, the
previous Presidential Administration’s Council on Environmental Quality (CEQ) published a final rule that restored a prior NEPA requirement, eliminated
under the preceding Administration, that federal agencies consider all indirect and cumulative environmental impacts of infrastructure projects in their
decision-making, among other things, which could delay and increase the cost of Idaho Power’s infrastructure projects. In May 2024 the CEQ finalized a
second phase of NEPA reform to revise regulations for implementing NEPA. Key changes in the Phase 2 rule relate to the definition of “reasonably
foreseeable effects,” how the agency interprets a reasonable range of alternatives, what constitutes a major federal action, and the incorporation of
environmental justice into the NEPA analysis.

In November 2024, the U.S. Court of Appeals for the D.C. Circuit ruled in the Marin Audubon Society v. Federal Aviation Administration case that the
CEQ has no authority to issue regulations implementing NEPA and, therefore, NEPA regulations issued by CEQ are invalid. This was followed by
Executive Order 14154 that revoked CEQ’s authority to issue NEPA regulations and directed CEQ to rescind all NEPA regulations. In February 2025, the
U.S. District Court for the District of North Dakota ruled in lowa v. CEQ, that CEQ has no rulemaking authority, invalidated CEQ’s 2024 NEPA rule, and
restored the 2020 CEQ NEPA rule, as amended by the 2022 NEPA rule. On February 16, 2025, CEQ issued a notice that it intends to rescind all CEQ
NEPA implementing regulations. These actions have raised significant questions regarding how CEQ’s NEPA regulations and agency-specific NEPA
procedures will be interpreted and enforced going forward. Idaho Power is unable to predict what impact these actions will have on Idaho Power and its
operations.

Climate Change and the Regulation of Greenhouse Gas Emissions

Overview: Federal and state regulations pertaining to GHG emissions under the CAA have raised uncertainty about the future viability of fossil fuels,
most notably coal, as an economical energy source for new and existing electric generation facilities because many new technologies for reducing CO,
emissions from coal, including carbon capture and storage, are still in the development stage and are not yet proven. Stringent emissions standards
could result in significant increases in capital expenditures and operating costs, which may accelerate the retirement of coal-fired units and create power
system reliability issues. Some higher-cost, high-emission coal-fired plants have ceased operation or the plant owners have announced a cessation of
operation, as the cost of compliance makes the plants uneconomical to operate. As a result, Idaho Power ended its participation in coal-fired operations
at the Boardman power plant in October 2020 and the North Valmy plant unit 1 in December 2019. Idaho Power's 2023 IRP identified a preferred
resource portfolio and action plan that anticipates (1) converting North Valmy plant units 1 and 2 to natural gas by summer 2026; (2) converting units 1
and 2 at the Jim Bridger plant from coal to natural gas in 2024; and (3) converting units 3 and 4 at the Jim Bridger plant from coal to natural gas in 2030.

A variety of factors contribute to the financial, regulatory, and logistical uncertainties related to GHG reductions. These include the specific GHG
emissions limits imposed, the timing of implementation of these limits, the level of emissions allowances allocated and the level that must be purchased,
the purchase price of emissions allowances, the development and commercial availability of technologies for renewable energy and for the reduction of
emissions, the degree to which offsets may be used

67



Table of Contents

for compliance, provisions for cost containment (if any), the impact on coal and natural gas prices, and the timing and amount of cost recovery through
rates. Accordingly, Idaho Power cannot predict the effect on its results of operations, financial condition, or cash flows of any GHG emissions or other
climate change requirements that may be adopted, although the costs to implement and comply with any such requirements could be substantial. A more
detailed discussion of legislative and regulatory developments related to climate change follows.

National GHG Initiatives; Clean Power Plan/Affordable Clean Energy Rule: The EPA has been active in the regulation of GHGs. The EPA's
endangerment finding in 2009 that GHGs threaten public health and welfare resulted in the enactment of a series of EPA regulations to address GHG
emissions.

In 2010, the EPA issued the “Tailoring Rule,” which set thresholds for GHG emissions that define when permits are required for new and existing
industrial facilities. While the rule is complex, Idaho Power believes that its owned and co-owned fossil fuel-fired generation plants are, as of the date of
this report, in compliance with the GHG Tailoring Rule.

In 2015, the EPA issued the Clean Power Plan (CPP) under Section 111(d) of the CAA, which required states to adopt plans to collectively reduce 2005
levels of power sector CO, emissions by 32 percent by 2030. In 2019, the EPA repealed the CPP and replaced it with the Affordable Clean Energy (ACE)
rule under Section 111(d) of the CAA for existing electric utility generating units. In subsequent litigation, the ACE rule was vacated without reinstating
the CPP.

In April 2024, the EPA released a final rule under Section 111 of the CAA (New Section 111 Rule) that regulates CO , emissions from coal- and natural
gas-fired electric generating units. Under the final rule, applicable standards of emission reduction vary based upon the retirement date of coal units and
the capacity factor of existing and new natural gas units. The EPA based some of its requirements on carbon capture and storage technology. Idaho
Power, among many other parties, filed suit in May 2024 in the U.S. Court of Appeals, D.C. Circuit, to challenge the New Section 111 Rule. Idaho Power's
suit was consolidated with other similar suits, and the proceedings were placed on hold in February 2025 at the request of the EPA.

As of the date of this report, Idaho Power continues to evaluate the specific impacts the New Section 111 Rule could have on its operations at its three
natural gas facilities, as well as the North Valmy and Jim Bridger plants. [daho Power anticipates that the GHG emissions reductions may under certain
circumstances only be achievable by reducing unit runtimes.

Climate-Related Disclosures: In March 2024, the SEC issued a final rule on the enhancement and standardization of climate-related disclosures for
investors. In April 2024, the SEC voluntarily stayed the effectiveness of the rule, pending the resolution of litigation challenging the rule in the U.S. Court
of Appeals for the Eighth Circuit. If the rule becomes effective, it could require IDACORP and Idaho Power to make various additional climate-related
disclosures, including regarding its Scope 1 and Scope 2 GHG emissions, if material. The position that the new Presidential Administration will take
toward this rule is not yet known, though it is possible that it could seek to modify, delay, or rescind this rule. As of the date of this report, IDACORP and
Idaho Power are evaluating the potential impacts of the final rule.

State GHG Initiatives and Idaho Power’s Voluntary GHG Reduction Initiative: In 2007, Oregon enacted legislation setting goals of reducing GHG
levels to 10 percent below 1990 levels by 2020 and at least 75 percent below 1990 levels by 2050. Oregon also established its Oregon Clean Electricity
and Coal Transition Plan in 2016, which requires certain Oregon utilities to remove coal-fired generation from their Oregon retail rates by 2030. Oregon
utilities would be permitted to sell the output of coal-fired plants into the wholesale market or reallocate such plants to other states. To the extent Idaho
Power is subject to the legislation, it plans to seek recovery, through the ratemaking process, of operating and capitalized costs related to its coal-fired
generation assets and removal of any of those assets from Oregon rate base.

Idaho has not passed legislation specifically regulating GHGs. Wyoming has enacted legislation to regulate GHG emissions of utilities serving over
10,000 electric customers in Wyoming, which does not apply to Idaho Power. Nevada has not enacted legislation to regulate GHG emissions and does
not have a reporting requirement, but it does prepare a greenhouse gas emissions inventory for the state of Nevada. Idaho Power is engaged in
voluntary GHG emissions intensity reduction efforts, which is discussed in Part I, Item 1 - “Business - Utility Operations - Environmental Regulation and
Costs."

Other Clean Air Act Matters

In addition to the CAA developments related to GHG emissions described above, several other regulatory programs developed under the CAA apply to
Idaho Power. These include the final MATS Rule and the Good Neighbor Plan.

The CAA requires the EPA to set ambient air quality standards for six "criteria" pollutants considered harmful to public health
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and the environment. These six pollutants are carbon monoxide, lead, ozone, particulate matter, nitrogen dioxide, and sulfur dioxide. States are then
required to develop emissions reduction strategies through SIPs, based on attainment of these ambient air quality standards. Recent developments and
pending actions related to certain of those items are relevant to Idaho Power.

Regional Haze / Good Neighbor Plan: In June 2023, the EPA published the final rule under the CAA called the Federal "Good Neighbor Plan" for the
2015 Ozone National Ambient Air Quality Standards (Good Neighbor Plan), which took effect on August 4, 2023. The Good Neighbor Plan establishes
nitrogen oxides (NOx) emissions budgets requiring fossil fuel-fired power plants to participate in an allowance-based ozone season trading program. The
EPA's final rule temporarily excluded power plants located in Wyoming, while the EPA reevaluated the proposed disapproval of the Wyoming SIP. In
December 2023, the EPA approved the Wyoming SIP, removing it from the Federal Implementation Plan (FIP).

In April 2024, the EPA proposed to approve revisions to the Wyoming Regional Haze SIP for the first planning period of 2008-2018. The proposed SIP
replaces Wyoming's previously approved source-specific nitrogen oxide determination for Idaho Power’s jointly-owned Jim Bridger plant. Operations at
the Jim Bridger plant have previously been modified to comply in advance with the proposed SIP. Accordingly, Idaho Power does not expect the
proposed SIP, if approved, to require any additional changes to current operations at the Jim Bridger plant. As of the date of this report, the EPA's
approval of the Wyoming SIP for the first planning period is pending.

In August 2024, the EPA proposed to approve in part and disapprove in part the proposed Wyoming Regional Haze SIP for the second planning period
of 2018-2028. The public comment period for the EPA's proposed action ended in September 2024. |daho Power submitted comments requesting that
the EPA approve in full Wyoming's Regional Haze SIP for the second planning period. In December 2024, EPA published its final partial disapproval of
Wyoming's Regional Haze SIP for the second planning period based in part on Wyoming's failure to consider the four statutory factors for the Jim
Bridger plant. In January 2025, Idaho Power filed a petition with the EPA for reconsideration of its final partial disapproval and also filed suit in the 10th
Circuit Court of Appeals to challenge the EPA's final partial disapproval, both of which remain pending.

On June 27, 2024, the U.S. Supreme Court issued an opinion in Ohio v. EPA that granted an application to stay the EPA’s FIP promulgated under the
Good Neighbor Provision of the CAA. This action puts a hold on any related compliance obligations for the North Valmy plant, which is co-owned by
Idaho Power and NV Energy and operated by NV Energy. The stay is expected to remain in place until the U.S. Court of Appeals, D.C. Circuit, reaches a
decision on the applicants' challenge to the FIP.

As of the date of this report, Idaho Power continues to evaluate the specific impacts the Good Neighbor Plan could have on its operations at the North
Valmy plant. If the Good Neighbor Plan is implemented in Nevada, Idaho Power anticipates that, under certain conditions, it could reduce the ability to
use the full available output, or require additional controls for NOx and/or the purchase of allowances in order to utilize the full available output, at the
North Valmy plant during the EPA defined ozone season (May through September).

Mercury and Air Toxic Standards: The Mercury and Air Toxic Standards in Section 112 of the CAA for coal-fired power plants (MATS Rule) provide
that sources must comply with certain emission limits. Idaho Power and the co-owners of Jim Bridger and North Valmy coal-fired generating plants
installed mercury continuous emission monitoring systems on all coal-fired units at the plants, along with control technology to reduce mercury, acid
gases, and particulate matter emissions for purposes of compliance with the MATS rule.

In April 2024, EPA finalized updated standards for coal-fired power plants under the MATS Rule. As applicable to Idaho Power, the MATS Rule amends
the filterable particulate matter (fPM) surrogate emission standard for non-mercury metal hazardous air pollutants to existing coal-fired power plants and
the fPM emission standard compliance demonstration requirements. For the units at the Jim Bridger plant that are still operating on coal, the MATS Rule
will require additional monitoring equipment and possibly other equipment upgrades, but as of the date of this report, this remains under evaluation.

Clean Water Act Matters

Section 401 Water Quality Certification: As described more fully under “Relicensing of Hydropower Projects” in the "Regulatory Matters" section of this
MDG&A, Idaho Power filed water quality certification applications, required under Section 401 of the CWA, with Idaho and Oregon requesting that each
state certify that any discharges from the HCC comply with applicable state water quality standards. The states issued final certifications in May 2019. In
September 2023, Idaho Power filed an application for CWA Section 401 water quality certification with the IDEQ for the American Falls facility. In
September 2024, IDEQ issued a final CWA Section 401 water quality certification for the American Falls facility.
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CWA Permitting: |daho Power's hydropower generation facilities are subject to compliance and permitting obligations under the CWA. Idaho Power has
been engaged for several years with the EPA, and is now engaged with the IDEQ, regarding Idaho Power's CWA permitting obligations and compliance
status for those facilities. Idaho Power has in the past, and expects in the future, to incur costs associated with those permitting and compliance
obligations, but as of the date of this report, Idaho Power is unable to estimate with any reasonable certainty those costs. Idaho Power also expects to
incur additional costs associated with the relicensing of its hydropower facilities, as discussed elsewhere in this report.

In June 2022, Idaho Power and the IDEQ entered into a consent judgment in the Idaho state district courts to resolve a National Pollutant Discharge
Elimination System permitting issue related to 15 of Idaho Power’s hydropower projects that required Idaho Power to pay a $1.1 million fine, implement
interim measures for compliance, and ultimately submit applications for new permits at each of the dams subject to the consent judgment. Due to a
misinterpretation of law, the EPA cancelled water discharge permits in the mid-1990’s, which Idaho Power subsequently determined were applicable for
operation of the dams. Idaho Power believes that the dams would have been in compliance with the earlier permits had they remained in place. As of the
date of this report, Idaho Power has submitted new permit applications for all 15 of the dams.

Effluent Limitations: In April 2024, EPA finalized effluent limitation guidelines and standards that set new water treatment standards for coal plants.
Idaho Power's co-owned coal-fired plants, the Jim Bridger plant and the North Valmy plant, are non-discharge facilities and are not impacted by this rule.

Resource Conservation and Recovery Act Matters

Under the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, EPA finalized changes to the coal combustion residual regulations for inactive surface
impoundments at inactive electric utilities. EPA is establishing groundwater monitoring, corrective action, closure and post closure care requirements for
these areas. Idaho Power continues to work with the co-owners of its coal-fired generation plants to evaluate the potential impacts of these regulations,
which could affect the amount of asset retirement obligations recorded in Idaho Power's consolidated balance sheets.

Invasive Species Management

Quagga mussels are an invasive species that were first detected in the Snake River system in 2023 in the mid-Snake River near Twin Falls in [daho
Power's service area. Quagga mussel infestations can clog and damage irrigation, hydropower, and water delivery facilities and increase the costs to
maintain such facilities. The Idaho State Department of Agriculture (ISDA) treated the affected area in 2023 with a copper-based, EPA-approved
treatment. ISDA sampling in September 2024 detected the continued presence of quagga mussels. As a result, the ISDA performed additional
treatments in 2024 to eradicate quagga mussels in the affected area. As of the date of this report, Idaho Power cannot predict the extent to which the
additional treatments will be successful in eradicating quagga mussels from the Snake River or the potential increase in other O&M expenses related to
guagga mussel mitigation efforts. If a quagga mussel infestation occurs, it may result in increased other O&M costs for mitigation efforts and other
adverse impacts for Idaho Power's operation of its hydropower facilities in any infested areas.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

When preparing financial statements in accordance with GAAP, IDACORP'’s and Idaho Power’s management must apply accounting policies and make
estimates that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues, and expenses and related disclosures. These estimates often involve judgment
about factors that are difficult to predict and are beyond management’s control. Management adjusts these estimates based on historical experience and
on other assumptions and factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual amounts could materially differ from the estimates.
Management believes the accounting policies and estimates discussed below are the most critical to the portrayal of their financial condition and results
of operations and require management’s most difficult, subjective, or complex judgments, often as a result of the need to make estimates about the effect
of matters that are inherently uncertain and may change in subsequent periods.

Accounting for Rate Regulation
Entities that meet specific conditions are required by GAAP to reflect the impact of regulatory decisions in their consolidated financial statements and to

defer certain costs as regulatory assets until matching revenues can be recognized. Similarly, certain items must be deferred as regulatory liabilities.
Idaho Power must satisfy three conditions to apply regulatory accounting: (1) an
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independent regulator must set rates; (2) the regulator must set the rates to cover specific costs of delivering service; and (3) the service area must lack
competitive pressures to reduce rates below the rates set by the regulator.

Idaho Power has determined that it meets these conditions, and its financial statements reflect the effects of the different rate-making principles followed
by the jurisdictions regulating Idaho Power. The primary effect of this policy is that Idaho Power had recorded approximately $1.5 billion of regulatory
assets and $1.0 billion of regulatory liabilities at December 31, 2024. Idaho Power expects to recover these regulatory assets from customers through
rates and refund these regulatory liabilities to customers through rates, but recovery or refund is subject to final review by the regulatory bodies. If future
recovery or refund of these amounts ceases to be probable, or if Idaho Power determines that it no longer meets the criteria for applying regulatory
accounting, or if accounting rules change to no longer provide for regulatory assets and liabilities, Idaho Power could be required to eliminate those
regulatory assets or liabilities, which could have a material effect on Idaho Power’s financial condition or results of operations.

Refer to Note 3 - “Regulatory Matters” to the consolidated financial statements included in this report for additional information relating to regulatory
matters.

Income Taxes

IDACORP and Idaho Power use judgment and estimation in developing the provision for income taxes and the reporting of tax-related assets and
liabilities. Refer to Note 1 - “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies” and Note 2 - “Income Taxes” to the consolidated financial statements included in
this report for additional information relating to income taxes.

Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits

Idaho Power maintains a tax-qualified, noncontributory defined benefit pension plan covering most employees, and two unfunded nonqualified deferred
compensation plans for certain senior management employees and directors called the Security Plan for Senior Management Employees | and Security
Plan for Senior Management Employees Il, and a postretirement benefit plan (consisting of health care and death benefits).

The costs IDACORP and Idaho Power record for these plans depend on the provisions of the plans, changing employee demographics, actual returns on
plan assets, and several assumptions used in the actuarial valuations from which the expense is derived. The key actuarial assumptions that affect
expense are the expected long-term return on plan assets and the discount rate used in determining future benefit obligations. Management evaluates
the actuarial assumptions on an annual basis, taking into account changes in market conditions, trends, and future expectations. Estimates of future
capital markets performance, changes in interest rates, and other factors used to develop the actuarial assumptions are uncertain, and actual results
could vary significantly from the estimates.

The assumed discount rate is based on reviews of market yields on high-quality corporate debt. Specifically, IDACORP and Idaho Power determined the
discount rate for each plan through the construction of hypothetical portfolios of bonds selected from high-quality corporate bonds available as of
December 31, 2024, with maturities matching the projected cash outflows of the plans. Based on the results of this analysis, the discount rate used to
calculate the 2025 defined benefit plan pension expense increased to 5.70 percent from the 5.10 percent rate used in 2024.

Rate-of-return projections for plan assets are based on historical risk/return relationships among asset classes. The primary measure is the historical risk
premium each asset class has delivered versus the yield on the Moody's AA Corporate Bond Index. This historical risk premium is then added to the
current yield on the Moody's AA Corporate Bond Index, and Idaho Power believes the result provides a reasonable prediction of future investment
performance. Additional analysis is performed to measure the expected range of returns, as well as worst-case and best-case scenarios. The long-term
rate of return used to calculate the 2025 pension expense will be 7.4 percent, the same assumption as used in 2024.

Total net periodic pension and other postretirement benefit cost for these plans totaled $31.0 million and $28.5 million for the years ended December 31,
2024 and 2023, respectively, including amounts deferred as regulatory assets (see discussion below) and amounts allocated to capitalized labor. For
2025, total net periodic pension costs and other postretirement benefit costs are expected to total approximately $27.2 million, which takes into account
the change in the discount rate noted above.
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Had different actuarial assumptions been used, net periodic pension costs and other postretirement benefit costs could have varied significantly. The
following table reflects the sensitivities associated with changes in the discount rate and rate-of-return on plan assets actuarial assumptions on historical
and future net periodic pension costs and other postretirement benefit costs:
Discount rate Rate of return
2025 2024 2025 2024

(millions of dollars)

Effect of 0.5% rate increase on total net periodic pension costs and other

postretirement benefit costs $ 27) % (3.00 $ 49 $ 4.7)
Effect of 0.5% rate decrease on total net periodic pension costs and other
postretirement benefit costs 34 8.1 4.7 4.7

Additionally, a 0.5 percent increase in the plans' discount rates would have resulted in a $71.2 million decrease in the combined benefit obligations of the
plans as of December 31, 2024. A 0.5 percent decrease in the plans' discount rates would have resulted in an $79.3 million increase in the combined
benefit obligations of the plans as of December 31, 2024.

The IPUC has authorized Idaho Power to account for its defined benefit pension plan expense on a cash basis, and to defer and account for accrued
pension expense as a regulatory asset. The IPUC acknowledged that it is appropriate for Idaho Power to seek recovery in its revenue requirement of
reasonable and prudently incurred pension expense based on actual cash contributions. In 2007, Idaho Power began deferring pension expense to a
regulatory asset account to be matched with revenue when future pension contributions are recovered through rates. At December 31, 2024, a total of
$252 million of expense was deferred as a regulatory asset. Idaho Power expects net amortization of the regulatory asset of approximately $18 million in
2025. Idaho Power recorded pension expense on its consolidated statements of income related to its tax-qualified defined benefit pension plan of
approximately $36 million in 2024 and $18 million in 2023.

Refer to Note 11 — “Benefit Plans” to the consolidated financial statements included in this report for additional information relating to pension and
postretirement benefit plans.

RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

For discussion of new and recently adopted accounting pronouncements, see Note 1 - "Summary of Significant Accounting Policies" to the consolidated
financial statements included in this report.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

IDACORP and Idaho Power are exposed to market risks, including changes in interest rates, changes in commodity prices, credit risk, and equity price
risk. The following discussion summarizes these risks and the financial instruments, derivative instruments, and derivative commodity instruments
sensitive to changes in interest rates, commodity prices, and equity prices that were held at December 31, 2024. Neither IDACORP nor Idaho Power
have entered into any of these market-risk-sensitive instruments for speculative purposes.

Interest Rate Risk

IDACORP and Idaho Power manage interest expense and short- and long-term liquidity through a combination of fixed rate and variable rate debt.
Generally, the amount of each type of debt is managed through market issuance, but interest rate swap and cap agreements with highly-rated financial
institutions may be used to achieve the desired combination.

Variable Rate Debt: As of December 31, 2024, both IDACORP and Idaho Power had no net variable rate debt, as the carrying value of short-term
investments exceeded the carrying value of outstanding variable rate debt.

Fixed Rate Debt: As of December 31, 2024, both IDACORP and Idaho Power had $3.1 billion in fixed rate debt, with a fair value of approximately $2.8
billion. These instruments are fixed rate and, therefore, do not expose the companies to a loss in earnings due to changes in market interest rates.
However, the fair value of these instruments would increase by approximately $327 million if market interest rates were to decline by one percentage
point from their December 31, 2024, levels.
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Commodity Price Risk

IDACORP's exposure to changes in commodity prices is related to Idaho Power's ongoing utility operations that produce electricity to meet the demand of
its retail electric customers. To supplement its power supply resources and balance its supply of power with the demand of its retail customers, Idaho
Power participates in the wholesale marketplace. Purchased power arrangements allow Idaho Power to respond to fluctuations in the demand for
electricity and variability in generating plant operations. Idaho Power also enters into arrangements for the purchase of fuel for natural gas- and coal-fired
generating plants. These contracts for the purchase of power and fuel expose Idaho Power to commodity price risk. The effects of changes in commodity
prices on Idaho Power's net income are mitigated in large part by Idaho Power's Idaho and Oregon power cost adjustment mechanisms. However,
collection from customers or return to customers of most of the difference between actual power supply costs compared with those included in retail rates
is deferred to a subsequent period, which can affect Idaho Power’s operating cash flow and liquidity until those costs are recovered from or returned to
customers.

A number of factors associated with the structure and operation of the energy markets influence the level and volatility of prices for energy commodities
and related derivative products. The weather is a major uncontrollable factor affecting the local and regional demand for electricity and the availability and
cost of power generation. Other factors include the occurrence and timing of demand peaks due to seasonal, daily, and hourly power demand; power
supply; power transmission capacity; changes in federal and state regulation and compliance obligations; fuel supplies; market liquidity; and tariffs and
other cross-border considerations.

The primary objectives of Idaho Power's energy purchase and sale activity are to meet the demand of retail electric customers, to maintain appropriate
physical reserves to ensure reliability, and to make economic use of temporary surpluses that may develop. Idaho Power has adopted an energy risk
management program, overseen by the risk management committee (RMC), and described in Idaho Power’s Energy Risk Management Policy and
associated standards (ERMP). The ERMP has been reviewed and accepted by the IPUC, designed to reduce exposure to power supply cost-related
uncertainty, further mitigating commodity price risk. The RMC, composed of Idaho Power officers and senior managers, oversees the risk management
program. The RMC is responsible for communicating the status of risk management activities to Idaho Power's board of directors. In its energy risk
management process, Idaho Power considers both demand-side and supply-side options consistent with its IRP. The primary tools for risk mitigation are
physical and financial forward power transactions and fueling alternatives for utility-owned generation resources. Idaho Power only engages in a nominal
amount of trading activity for non-retail purposes.

The ERMP require monitoring monthly volumetric electricity position and total monthly dollar (net power supply cost) exposure on a rolling 18-month
forward view. The power supply business unit produces and evaluates projections of the operating plan based on factors such as forecasted resource
availability, stream flows, and load, and orders risk mitigating actions, including resource optimization and hedging strategies, dictated by the limits stated
in the ERMP to bring exposures within pre-established risk guidelines. The RMC evaluates the actions initiated by the power supply unit for consistency
and compliance with the ERMP.

Credit Risk

IDACORP is subject to credit risk based on Idaho Power's activity with market counterparties. Idaho Power is exposed to this risk to the extent that a
counterparty may fail to fulfill a contractual obligation to provide energy, purchase energy, or complete financial settlement for market activities. Idaho
Power mitigates this exposure by actively establishing credit limits; measuring, monitoring, and reporting credit risk using appropriate contractual
arrangements; and transferring of credit risk through the use of financial guarantees, cash, bonds, or letters of credit. Idaho Power maintains a current list
of acceptable counterparties and credit limits.

The use of performance assurance collateral in the form of cash, letters of credit, bonds, or guarantees is common industry practice. Idaho Power
maintains margin agreements relating to its wholesale commodity contracts that allow performance assurance collateral to be requested of and/or posted
with certain counterparties. As of December 31, 2024, Idaho Power posted $25 million of cash performance assurance collateral related to these
contracts. Should Idaho Power experience a reduction in its credit rating on Idaho Power’s unsecured debt to below investment grade, Idaho Power could
be subject to requests by its wholesale counterparties to post additional performance assurance collateral. Counterparties to derivative instruments and
other forward contracts could request immediate payment or demand immediate ongoing full daily collateralization on derivative instruments and
contracts in net liability positions. Based upon Idaho Power’s energy and fuel portfolio and then existing market conditions as of December 31, 2024, the
amount of additional collateral that could have been requested upon a downgrade to below investment grade was approximately $46 million. To minimize
capital requirements, Idaho Power actively
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monitors the portfolio exposure and the potential exposure to additional requests for performance assurance collateral calls through sensitivity analysis.

Idaho Power is obligated to provide service to all electric customers within its service area. Credit risk for Idaho Power’s retail customers is managed by
credit and collection policies that are governed by rules issued by the IPUC or OPUC. Idaho Power records a provision for uncollectible accounts, based
upon historical experience, to provide for the potential loss from nonpayment by these customers. Idaho Power continuously monitors levels of
nonpayment from customers and makes any necessary adjustments to its provision for uncollectible accounts accordingly.

Idaho utility customer relations rules prohibit Idaho Power from terminating electric service during the months of December through February to any
residential customer who declares that he or she is unable to pay in full for utility service and whose household includes children, elderly, or infirm
persons. ldaho Power’s provision for uncollectible accounts could be affected by changes in future prices as well as changes in IPUC or OPUC
regulations.

Equity Price Risk

IDACORP is exposed to price fluctuations in equity markets, primarily through Idaho Power's defined benefit pension plan assets, a mine reclamation
trust fund owned by an equity-method investment of Idaho Power, and other equity security investments at ldaho Power. The equity securities held by the
pension plan and in such accounts are diversified to achieve broad market participation and reduce the impact of any single investment, sector, or
geographic region. Idaho Power has established asset allocation targets for the pension plan holdings, which are described in Note 11 - "Benefit Plans"
to the consolidated financial statements included in this report.
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IDACORP, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Income

Year Ended December 31,

2024 2023 2022

Operating Revenues:

(thousands of dollars except for per share amounts)

Electric utility revenues $ 1,822,965 $ 1,762,894 $ 1,641,040
Other 3,668 3,462 2,941
Total operating revenues 1,826,633 1,766,356 1,643,981
Operating Expenses:
Electric utility:
Purchased power 425,082 501,531 544,345
Fuel expense 259,204 275,405 230,210
Power cost adjustment 89,757 6,885 (100,659 )
Other operations and maintenance 460,951 399,855 399,375
Energy efficiency programs 27,580 31,948 33,197
Depreciation 223,410 195,341 170,077
Other electric utility operating expenses 8,798 38,550 37,325
Total electric utility expenses 1,494,782 1,449,515 1,313,870
Other 4,012 3,364 2,933
Total operating expenses 1,498,794 1,452,879 1,316,803
Operating Income 327,839 313,477 327,178
Nonoperating (Income) Expense:
Allowance for equity funds used during construction (53,238) (43,221) (37,285)
Earnings of unconsolidated equity-method investments (4,539) (12,426) (11,511)
Interest on long-term debt 139,196 116,216 87,259
Other interest 24,454 20,253 16,030
Allowance for borrowed funds used during construction (27,785) (20,012) (13,914)
Other income, net (55,253) (36,522) (10,805)
Total nonoperating expense, net 22,835 24,288 29,774
Income Before Income Taxes 305,004 289,189 297,404
Income Tax Expense 15,053 27,296 37,844
Net Income 289,951 261,893 259,560
Adjustment for income attributable to noncontrolling interests (777) (698) (578)
Net Income Attributable to IDACORP, Inc. $ 289,174 $ 261,195 $ 258,982
Weighted Average Common Shares Outstanding - Basic (000's) 52,543 50,717 50,658
Weighted Average Common Shares Outstanding - Diluted (000’s) 52,615 50,806 50,699
Earnings Per Share of Common Stock:
Earnings Attributable to IDACORP, Inc. - Basic $ 550 $ 515 $ 5.11
Earnings Attributable to IDACORP, Inc. - Diluted $ 550 $ 514 $ 511

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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IDACORP, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

Year Ended December 31,

2024 2023 2022
(thousands of dollars)

Net Income $ 289,951 $ 261,893 $ 259,560
Other Comprehensive Income:
Unfunded pension liability adjustment, net of tax

of $1,245, $( 1,477 ), and $ 9,399 , respectively 3,592 (4,262) 27,118
Total Comprehensive Income 293,543 257,631 286,678
Comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling interests (777) (698) (578)
Comprehensive Income Attributable to IDACORP, Inc. $ 292,766 $ 256,933 $ 286,100

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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IDACORP, Inc.
Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31,

2024 2023

(in thousands)
Assets

Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 368,865 $ 327,429
Receivables:

Customer (net of allowance of $ 5,071 and $ 4,869 , respectively) 114,824 107,256

Other (net of allowance of $ 628 and $ 716 , respectively) 29,627 44,661
Income taxes receivable 13,932 24,574
Accrued unbilled revenues 97,711 90,521
Materials and supplies (at average cost) 201,064 140,515
Fuel stock (at average cost) 43,656 19,952
Prepayments 29,461 22,840
Current regulatory assets 89,315 226,235
Other — 71

Total current assets 988,455 1,004,054
Investments 161,340 163,971

Property, Plant, and Equipment:

Utility plant in service 7,957,763 7,291,532
Accumulated provision for depreciation (2,714,706) (2,557,744)
Utility plant in service - net 5,243,057 4,733,788
Construction work in progress 1,244,559 985,502
Utility plant held for future use 13,211 9,511
Other property, net of accumulated depreciation 16,491 16,429
Property, plant, and equipment - net 6,517,318 5,745,230
Other Assets:
Company-owned life insurance 92,062 82,038
Regulatory assets 1,418,057 1,426,815
Other 62,131 53,810
Total other assets 1,572,250 1,562,663
Total $ 9,239,363 $ 8,475,918

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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IDACORP, Inc.
Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31,

2024

2023

Liabilities and Equity

Current Liabilities:

(in thousands)

Current maturities of long-term debt 19,885 $ 49,800
Accounts payable 307,133 308,504
Taxes accrued 6,981 6,854
Interest accrued 42,681 38,292
Accrued compensation 70,548 64,645
Current regulatory liabilities 7,523 7,952
Advances from customers 165,229 104,297
Other 80,821 53,732
Total current liabilities 700,801 634,076
Other Liabilities:
Deferred income taxes 822,231 882,724
Regulatory liabilities 976,803 874,601
Pension and other postretirement benefits 165,992 233,965
Other 181,804 160,019
Total other liabilities 2,146,830 2,151,309
Long-Term Debt 3,053,777 2,775,790
Commitments and Contingencies
Equity:
IDACORP, Inc. shareholders’ equity:
Common stock, no par value ( 120,000 shares authorized; 53,962 and 50,615 shares issued, respectively) 1,194,998 888,615
Retained earnings 2,149,548 2,036,138
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (13,592) (17,184)
Total IDACORP, Inc. shareholders’ equity 3,330,954 2,907,569
Noncontrolling interests 7,001 7,174
Total equity 3,337,955 2,914,743
Total 9,239,363 $ 8,475,918

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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IDACORP, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows



Year Ended December 31,

2024 2023 2022
(thousands of dollars)
Operating Activities:
Net income 289,951 $ 261,893 $ 259,560
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 228,091 199,908 173,555
Deferred income taxes and investment tax credits (17,592) 39,613 (511)
Changes in regulatory assets and liabilities 115,026 (4,748) (79,693)
Pension and postretirement benefit plan expense 45,800 27,155 29,286
Contributions to pension and postretirement benefit plans (25,463) (55,337) (44,192)
Earnings of equity-method investments (4,539) (12,426) (11,511)
Distributions from equity-method investments 7,850 2,950 11,586
Allowance for equity funds used during construction (53,238) (43,221) (37,285)
Other non-cash adjustments to net income, net 10,443 8,414 14,892
Change in:
Accounts receivable and unbilled revenues 31,434 (17,628) (81,545)
Prepayments (8,931) (3,220) (2,156)
Materials, supplies, and fuel stock (84,261) (53,243) (11,626)
Accounts and wages payable 16,939 (81,244) 112,602
Taxes accrued/receivable 10,769 (12,551) (4,628)
Other assets and liabilities 32,138 10,712 22,951
Net cash provided by operating activities 594,417 267,027 351,285
Investing Activities:
Additions to property, plant and equipment, net (1,009,279) (611,137) (432,589)
Payments received from transmission project joint funding partners 83,708 26,501 17,778
Investments in affordable housing and other real estate tax credit projects (3,814) (2,533) (9,881)
Distributions from equity-method investments, return of investment — — 8,489
Purchase of equity securities (11,642) (12,235) (45,572)
Purchases of held-to-maturity securities (1,845) (1,617) (31,224)
Proceeds from sale of investment securities 10,641 8,921 63,857
Purchases of short-term investments — — (25,000)
Maturities of short-term investments — — 25,000
Other 14,570 2,153 4,875
Net cash used in investing activities (917,661 ) (589,947) (424,267)
Financing Activities:
Issuance of long-term debt 300,000 872,000 198,000
Discount on issuance of long-term debt (186) (7,006) —
Retirement of long-term debt (49,800) (225,000) (4,360)
Dividends on common stock (176,565) (163,545) (154,287)
Issuance of common stock 298,450 — —
Tax withholdings on net settlements of share-based awards (3,782) (3,274) (3,111)
Debt issuance costs and other (3,437) (403) (926)
Net cash provided by financing activities 364,680 472,772 35,316
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 41,436 149,852 (37,666)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 327,429 177,577 215,243
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 368,865 $ 327,429 $ 177,577
Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information:
Cash paid for income taxes 25200 $ 6,200 45,885
Cash paid for interest (net of amount capitalized) 109,067 97,742 85,985
Non-cash investing activities:
Additions to property, plant and equipment in accounts payable 168,107 $ 185,400 $ 84,324

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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IDACORP, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Equity

Year Ended December 31,

2024 2023 2022
(thousands of dollars)
Common Stock:

Balance at beginning of year $ 888,615 $ 882,189 $ 874,896
Issuance 298,450 — —
Share-based compensation expense 11,708 9,578 10,279
Tax withholdings on net settlements of share-based awards (3,782) (3,274) (3,111)
Other 7 122 125

Balance at end of year 1,194,998 888,615 882,189

Retained Earnings:

Balance at beginning of year 2,036,138 1,937,972 1,833,580
Net income attributable to IDACORP, Inc. 289,174 261,195 258,982
Common stock dividends ($ 3.35, $ 3.20 , and $ 3.04 per share, respectively) (175,764 ) (163,029 ) (154,590 )

Balance at end of year 2,149,548 2,036,138 1,937,972

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss:

Balance at beginning of year (17,184) (12,922) (40,040)
Unfunded pension liability adjustment (net of tax) 3,592 (4,262) 27,118

Balance at end of year (13,592) (17,184) (12,922)
Total IDACORP, Inc. shareholders’ equity at end of year 3,330,954 2,907,569 2,807,239

Noncontrolling Interests:

Balance at beginning of year 7,174 7,376 6,798
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests 777 698 578
Distributions to noncontrolling interests (950) (900) —

Balance at end of year 7,001 7,174 7,376
Total equity at end of year $ 3337955 $ 2,914,743 $ 2,814,615

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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Idaho Power Company
Consolidated Statements of Income

Year Ended December 31,

2024 2023 2022
(thousands of dollars)
Operating Revenues $ 1,822,965 $ 1,762,894 $ 1,641,040
Operating Expenses:
Operation:
Purchased power 425,082 501,531 544,345
Fuel expense 259,204 275,405 230,210
Power cost adjustment 89,757 6,885 (100,659 )
Other operations and maintenance 460,951 399,855 399,375
Energy efficiency programs 27,580 31,948 33,197
Depreciation 223,410 195,341 170,077
Other operating expenses 8,798 38,550 37,325
Total operating expenses 1,494,782 1,449,515 1,313,870
Operating Income 328,183 313,379 327,170
Nonoperating (Income) Expense:
Allowance for equity funds used during construction (53,238) (43,221) (37,285)
Earnings of unconsolidated equity-method investments (2,671) (10,540) (10,211)
Interest on long-term debt 139,196 116,216 87,259
Other interest 24,105 19,913 15,693
Allowance for borrowed funds used during construction (27,785) (20,012) (13,914)
Other income, net (49,710) (34,713) (9,147)
Total nonoperating expense, net 29,897 27,643 32,395
Income Before Income Taxes 298,286 285,736 294,775
Income Tax Expense 17,681 28,926 39,908
Net Income $ 280,605 $ 256,810 $ 254,867

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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Idaho Power Company
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

Year Ended December 31,

2024 2023 2022
(thousands of dollars)
Net Income $ 280,605 $ 256,810 $ 254,867
Other Comprehensive Income:
Unfunded pension liability adjustment, net of tax
of $1,245, $( 1,477 ), and $ 9,399 , respectively 3,592 (4,262) 27,118
Total Comprehensive Income $ 284,197 % 252,548 $ 281,985

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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Idaho Power Company
Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31,

2024

2023

Assets

Current Assets:

(in thousands)

Cash and cash equivalents 188,916 $ 271,791
Receivables:
Customer (net of allowance of $ 5,071 and $ 4,869 , respectively) 114,824 107,256
Other (net of allowance of $ 628 and $ 716 , respectively) 28,874 44,335
Income taxes receivable 11,811 22,926
Accrued unbilled revenues 97,711 90,521
Materials and supplies (at average cost) 201,064 140,515
Fuel stock (at average cost) 43,656 19,952
Prepayments 29,328 22,710
Current regulatory assets 89,315 226,235
Other — 71
Total current assets 805,499 946,312
Investments 92,921 93,037
Property, Plant, and Equipment:
Plant in service 7,957,763 7,291,532
Accumulated provision for depreciation (2,714,706) (2,557,744)
Plant in service - net 5,243,057 4,733,788
Construction work in progress 1,244,559 985,502
Plant held for future use 13,211 9,511
Other property 4,858 4,310
Property, plant, and equipment, net 6,505,685 5,733,111
Other Assets:
Company-owned life insurance 92,062 82,038
Regulatory assets 1,418,057 1,426,815
Other 52,744 42,218
Total other assets 1,562,863 1,551,071
Total 8,966,968 $ 8,323,531

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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Idaho Power Company
Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31,

2024

2023

Liabilities and Equity

Current Liabilities:

(in thousands)

Current maturities of long-term debt $ 19,885 $ 49,800
Accounts payable 305,248 307,538
Accounts payable to affiliates 3,403 16,456
Taxes accrued 6,981 6,834
Interest accrued 42,681 38,292
Accrued compensation 70,319 64,408
Current regulatory liabilities 7,623 7,952
Advances from customers 165,229 104,297
Other 61,309 44,907
Total current liabilities 682,578 640,484
Other Liabilities:
Deferred income taxes 829,446 881,050
Regulatory liabilities 976,803 874,601
Pension and other postretirement benefits 165,992 233,965
Other 167,775 135,468
Total other liabilities 2,140,016 2,125,084
Long-Term Debt 3,053,777 2,775,790
Commitments and Contingencies
Equity:
Common stock, $ 2.50 par value ( 50,000 shares authorized; 39,151 shares outstanding) 97,877 97,877
Premium on capital stock 912,258 712,258
Capital stock expense (2,097) (2,097)
Retained earnings 2,096,151 1,991,319
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (13,592) (17,184)
Total equity 3,090,597 2,782,173
Total $ 8,966,968 $ 8,323,531

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Idaho Power Company

Year Ended December 31,

2024 2023 2022
(thousands of dollars)
Operating Activities:
Net income 280,605 $ 256,810 $ 254,867
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 227,480 199,307 172,976
Deferred income taxes and investment tax credits (15,151) 35,080 (11,744)
Changes in regulatory assets and liabilities 115,026 (4,748) (79,693)
Pension and postretirement benefit plan expense 45,763 27,138 29,269
Contributions to pension and postretirement benefit plans (25,427) (55,319) (44,175)
Earnings of equity-method investments (2,671) (10,540) (10,211)
Distributions from equity-method investments 5,750 650 10,211
Allowance for equity funds used during construction (53,238) (43,221) (37,285)
Other non-cash adjustments to net income, net (1,502) (1,243) 4,493
Change in:
Accounts receivable and unbilled revenues 32,702 (17,882) (81,163)
Prepayments (8,927) (3,212) (2,153)
Materials, supplies, and fuel stock (84,261) (53,243) (11,626)
Accounts and wages payable 15,781 (121,609 ) 166,635
Taxes accrued/receivable (2,850) (12,085) (2,995)
Other assets and liabilities 32,171 10,776 22,876
Net cash provided by operating activities 561,251 206,759 380,282
Investing Activities:
Additions to utility plant, net (1,009,138) (610,913) (432,430)
Payments received from transmission project joint funding partners 83,708 26,501 17,778
Distributions from equity-method investments, return of investment — — 8,489
Purchase of equity securities (10,991) (11,233) (43,953)
Purchases of held-to-maturity securities (1,845) (1,617) (31,224)
Proceeds from sale of investment securities 10,641 8,921 63,857
Other 12,249 6,198 7,605
Net cash used in investing activities (915,376) (582,143) (409,878)
Financing Activities:
Issuance of long-term debt 300,000 872,000 198,000
Discount on issuance of long-term debt (186) (7,006) —
Retirement of long-term debt (49,800) (225,000) (4,360)
Dividends on common stock (175,772) (101,790) (114,447)
Capital contribution from parent 200,000 — —
Other (2,992) 38 (739)
Net cash provided by financing activities 271,250 538,242 78,454
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (82,875) 162,858 48,858
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 271,791 108,933 60,075
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 188,916 $ 271,791  $ 108,933
Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information:
Cash paid to IDACORP related to income taxes 37,118 $ 51,815 2,532
Cash paid for interest (net of amount capitalized) 108,718 97,402 85,648
Non-cash investing activities:
Additions to utility plant in accounts payable 168,107 $ 185,400 $ 84,324

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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Idaho Power Company

Consolidated Statements of Retained Earnings

Year Ended December 31,

2024 2023

2022

Retained Earnings, Beginning of Year
Net Income

Dividends on Common Stock

(thousands of dollars)

1,991,319 $ 1,836,547 $

280,605 256,810

(175,773) (102,038)

1,696,304
254,867
(114,624)

Retained Earnings, End of Year

2,096,151 $ 1,991,319 $

1,836,547

87
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IDACORP, INC. AND IDAHO POWER COMPANY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This Annual Report on Form 10-K is a combined report of IDACORP and Idaho Power. Therefore, these Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
apply to both IDACORP and Idaho Power. However, Idaho Power makes no representation as to the information relating to IDACORP’s other operations.

Nature of Business

IDACORP is a holding company formed in 1998 whose principal operating subsidiary is Idaho Power. Idaho Power is an electric utility engaged in the
generation, transmission, distribution, sales, and purchase of electric energy and capacity with a service area covering approximately 24,000 square
miles in southern Idaho and eastern Oregon. Idaho Power is regulated primarily by the state utility regulatory commissions of Idaho and Oregon and the
FERC. Idaho Power is the parent of IERCo, a joint-owner of BCC, which mines and supplies coal to the Jim Bridger plant owned in part by Idaho Power.

IDACORP’s other notable subsidiaries include IFS, an investor in affordable housing and other real estate tax credit investments, and lda-West, an
operator of small PURPA-qualifying hydropower generation projects.

Principles of Consolidation

IDACORP’s and Idaho Power’s consolidated financial statements include the assets, liabilities, revenues, and expenses of each company and its
subsidiaries listed above, as well as any variable interest entity (VIE) for which the respective company is the primary beneficiary. Investments in VIEs
for which the companies are not the primary beneficiaries, but have the ability to exercise significant influence over operating and financial policies, are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting.

IDACORP also consolidates one VIE, Marysville Hydro Partners (Marysville), which is a joint venture owned 50 percent by Ida-West and 50 percent by
Environmental Energy Company (EEC). At December 31, 2024, Marysville had approximately $ 14.6 million of primarily hydropower plant assets. EEC
has borrowed amounts from Ida-West to fund a portion of its required capital contributions to Marysville. The loans are payable from EEC'’s share of
distributions from Marysville and are secured by the stock of EEC and EEC's interest in Marysville. Ida-West is identified as the primary beneficiary
because the combination of its ownership interest in the joint venture and the EEC note result in Ida-West's ability to control the activities of the joint
venture.

The BCC investment is also a VIE, but because the power to direct the activities that most significantly impact the economic performance of BCC is
shared with the joint-owner, ldaho Power is not the primary beneficiary. The carrying value of Idaho Power's investment in BCC was $ 21.0 million at
December 31, 2024, and Idaho Power's maximum exposure to loss is the carrying value, any additional future contributions to BCC, and a $ 47.5 million
guarantee for mine reclamation costs. BCC has a reclamation trust fund set aside specifically for the purpose of paying the reclamation costs. At
December 31, 2024, the value of BCC's reclamation trust fund exceeded the guarantee requirement for the total reclamation obligation. The guarantee,
reclamation obligation, and reclamation trust are discussed further in Note 9 - "Commitments."

IFS's affordable housing limited partnership and other real estate tax credit investments are also VIEs for which IDACORP is not the primary beneficiary.
IFS's limited partnership interests range from 10 to 100 percent and were acquired between 2004 and 2023. As a limited partner, IFS does not control
these entities and they are not consolidated. IFS’s maximum exposure to loss in these developments is limited to its net carrying value, which was $ 54.7
million at December 31, 2024.

Ida-West's other investments in PURPA facilities, Idaho Power's investment in BCC, and IFS's investments are accounted for under the equity method of
accounting (see Note 14 - "Investments").

Except for amounts related to sales of electricity by Ida-West's PURPA projects to Idaho Power, all intercompany transactions and balances have been
eliminated in consolidation.
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The accompanying consolidated financial statements include Idaho Power's proportionate share of utility plant and related operations resulting from its
interests in jointly-owned plants (see Note 12 - "Property, Plant and Equipment and Jointly-Owned Projects").

Regulation of Utility Operations

As a regulated utility, many of Idaho Power's fundamental business decisions are subject to the approval of governmental agencies, including the prices
that Idaho Power is authorized to charge for its electric service. These approvals are a critical factor in determining IDACORP's and Idaho Power's results
of operations and financial condition.

Idaho Power meets the requirements under GAAP to prepare its financial statements applying the specialized rules to account for the effects of cost-
based rate regulation. IDACORP’s and Idaho Power’s financial statements reflect the effects of the different ratemaking principles followed by the
jurisdictions regulating Idaho Power. Accounting for the economics of rate regulation impacts multiple financial statement line items and disclosures, such
as property, plant, and equipment; regulatory assets and liabilities; operating revenues; O&M expense; depreciation expense; and income tax expense.
The application of accounting principles related to regulated operations sometimes results in Idaho Power recording expenses and revenues in a different
period than when an unregulated entity would record such expenses and revenues. In these instances, the amounts are deferred or accrued as
regulatory assets or regulatory liabilities on the balance sheet. Regulatory assets represent incurred costs that have been deferred because it is probable
they will be recovered from customers through future rates. Regulatory liabilities represent obligations to make refunds to customers for previous
collections, or represent amounts collected in advance of incurring an expense. The effects of applying these regulatory accounting principles to Idaho
Power’s operations are discussed in more detail in Note 3 - "Regulatory Matters."

Management Estimates

Management makes estimates and assumptions when preparing financial statements in conformity with GAAP. These estimates and assumptions
include, among others, those related to rate regulation, retirement benefits, contingencies, asset impairment, income taxes, unbilled revenues, and the
allowance for uncollectible accounts. These estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
These estimates involve judgments with respect to, among other things, future economic factors that are difficult to predict and are beyond
management’s control. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

System of Accounts

The accounting records of Idaho Power conform to the Uniform System of Accounts prescribed by the FERC and adopted by the public utility
commissions of Idaho, Oregon, and Wyoming.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on-hand and highly liquid temporary investments that mature within 90 days of the date of acquisition.
Receivables and Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts

Customer receivables are recorded at the invoiced amounts and do not bear interest. A late payment fee of one percent and 2.3 percent in Idaho Power's
Idaho and Oregon jurisdictions, respectively, may be assessed per month on account balances after 30 days. An allowance is recorded for potential
uncollectible accounts. The measurement of expected credit losses on Idaho Power accounts receivable is based on historical experience, current
economic conditions, and forecasted information that may affect collections on the outstanding balance. Generally, this includes adjustments based upon
a combination of historical write-off experience, aging of accounts receivable, an analysis of specific customer accounts, and an evaluation of whether
there are current or forecasted economic conditions that might cause variation in collection from the historical experience. Adjustments are charged to
income. Customer accounts receivable balances that remain outstanding after reasonable collection efforts are written off.

89



Table of Contents

The following table provides a rollforward of the allowance for uncollectible accounts related to customer receivables (in thousands of dollars):

Year Ended
December 31,
2024 2023

Balance at beginning of period $ 4,869 $ 5,034
Additions to the allowance 4,523 3,617
Write-offs, net of recoveries (4,321) (3,782)
Balance at end of period $ 5,071 $ 4,869
Allowance for uncollectible accounts as a percentage of customer receivables 42 % 43 %

Other receivables, primarily notes receivable from business transactions, are also reviewed for impairment periodically, based upon transaction-specific
facts. When it is probable that IDACORP or Idaho Power will be unable to collect all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the agreement, an
allowance is established for the estimated uncollectible portion of the receivable and charged to income.

There were no impaired receivables without related allowances at December 31, 2024 and 2023. Once a receivable is determined to be impaired, any
further interest income recognized is fully reserved.

Derivative Financial Instruments

Financial instruments such as commaodity futures, forwards, options, and swaps are used to manage exposure to commodity price risk in the electricity
and natural gas markets. All derivative instruments are recognized as either assets or liabilities at fair value on the balance sheet unless they are
designated as normal purchases and normal sales. With the exception of forward contracts for the purchase of natural gas for use at Idaho Power's
natural gas generation facilities and a nominal number of power transactions, Idaho Power’s physical forward contracts are designated as normal
purchases and normal sales. Because of Idaho Power’s regulatory accounting mechanisms, Idaho Power records the unrealized changes in fair value of
derivative instruments related to power supply as regulatory assets or liabilities.

Revenues

Operating revenues are generally recorded when service is rendered or energy is delivered to customers. Idaho Power accrues estimated unbilled
revenues for electric services delivered to customers but not yet billed at year-end. Idaho Power does not report any collections of franchise fees and
similar taxes related to energy consumption on the income statement. In addition, regulatory mechanisms in place in Idaho and Oregon affect the
reported amount of revenue. The effects of applying these regulatory mechanisms are discussed in more detail in Note 4 - "Revenues."

Property, Plant, and Equipment and Depreciation

The cost of utility plant in service represents the original cost of contracted services, direct labor and material, AFUDC, and indirect charges for
engineering, supervision, and similar overhead items. Repair and maintenance costs associated with planned major maintenance are expensed as the
costs are incurred, as are maintenance and repairs of property and replacements and renewals of items determined to be less than units of property. For
utility property replaced or renewed, the original cost plus removal cost less salvage is charged to accumulated provision for depreciation, while the cost
of related replacements and renewals is added to property, plant, and equipment.

All utility plant in service is depreciated using the straight-line method at rates approved by regulatory authorities. Annual depreciation provisions as a
percent of average depreciable utility plant in service approximated 3.1 percent in 2024, 2.9 percent in 2023, and 2.7 percent in 2022.

During the period of construction, costs expected to be included in the final value of the constructed asset, and depreciated once the asset is complete
and placed in service, are classified as construction work in progress on the consolidated balance sheets. If the project becomes probable of being
abandoned, these costs are expensed in the period such determination is made. Idaho Power may seek recovery of these costs in customer rates,
although there can be no guarantee such recovery would be granted.
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Long-lived assets are periodically reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may
not be recoverable. If the sum of the undiscounted expected future cash flows from an asset is less than the carrying value of the asset, impairment is
recognized in the financial statements. There were no material impairments of long-lived assets in 2024, 2023, or 2022.

Allowance for Funds Used During Construction

AFUDC represents the cost of financing construction projects with borrowed funds and equity funds. With one exception, for the HCC relicensing project,
cash is not realized currently from such allowance; it is realized under the ratemaking process over the service life of the related property through
increased revenues resulting from a higher rate base and higher depreciation expense. The component of AFUDC attributable to borrowed funds is
included as a reduction to total nonoperating expense, net. Idaho Power’s weighted-average monthly AFUDC rate was 7.2 percent for 2024, and 7.4
percent for both 2023 and 2022.

Income Taxes

IDACORP and Idaho Power account for income taxes under the asset and liability method, which requires the recognition of deferred tax assets and
liabilities for the expected future tax consequences of events that have been included in the financial statements. Under this method (commonly referred
to as normalized accounting), deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on the differences between the financial statements and tax basis
of assets and liabilities using enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which the differences are expected to reverse. In general, deferred income tax
expense or benefit for a reporting period is recognized as the change in deferred tax assets and liabilities from the beginning to the end of the period.
The effect of a change in tax rates on deferred tax assets and liabilities is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date unless
Idaho Power's primary regulator, the IPUC, orders direct deferral of the effect of the change in tax rates over a longer period of time.

Consistent with orders and directives of the IPUC, unless contrary to applicable income tax guidance, Idaho Power does not record deferred income tax
expense or benefit for certain income tax temporary differences and instead recognizes the tax impact currently (commonly referred to as flow-through
accounting) for rate making and financial reporting. Therefore, Idaho Power's effective income tax rate is impacted as these differences arise and reverse.
Idaho Power recognizes such adjustments as regulatory assets or liabilities if it is probable that such amounts will be recovered from or returned to
customers in future rates.

IDACORP and Idaho Power use judgment, estimation, and historical data in developing the provision for income taxes and the reporting of tax-related
assets and liabilities, including development of current year tax depreciation, capitalized repair costs, capitalized overheads, and other items. Income
taxes can be impacted by changes in tax laws and regulations, interpretations by taxing authorities, changes to accounting guidance, and actions by
federal or state public utility regulators. Actual income taxes could vary from estimated amounts and may result in favorable or unfavorable impacts to net
income, cash flows, and tax-related assets and liabilities.

In compliance with the federal income tax requirements for the use of accelerated tax depreciation, Idaho Power records deferred income taxes related to
its plant assets for the difference between income tax depreciation and book depreciation used for financial statement purposes. Deferred income taxes
are recorded for other temporary differences unless accounted for using flow-through.

Investment tax credits earned on regulated assets are deferred and amortized to income over the estimated service lives of the related properties.
Income taxes are discussed in more detail in Note 2 - "Income Taxes."

Other Accounting Policies

Debt discount, expense, and premium are deferred and amortized over the terms of the respective debt issuances. Losses on reacquired debt and
associated costs are amortized over the life of the associated replacement debt, as allowed under regulatory accounting.
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New and Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements
Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

In November 2023, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2023-07, Segment Reporting (Topic
280): Improvements to Reportable Segment Disclosures, which expands annual and interim disclosure requirements for reportable segments, primarily
through enhanced disclosures about significant segment expenses. This ASU is effective for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2023, and for
interim periods beginning after December 15, 2024, with early adoption permitted. IDACORP and Idaho Power adopted this ASU on January 1, 2024, for
annual periods, and subsequently on January 1, 2025, for interim periods. The amendments in this ASU have been applied retrospectively, as required.
See Note 17 - "Segment Information" for expanded disclosure required by this ASU.

There have been no other recently adopted accounting pronouncements that have had a material impact on IDACORP's or Idaho Power's consolidated
financial statements.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements Not Yet Adopted

In December 2023, the FASB issued ASU 2023-09, Income Taxes (Topic 740): Improvements to Income Tax Disclosures which expands the disclosure
requirements for income taxes, specifically related to the rate reconciliation and income taxes paid. This ASU is effective for annual periods beginning
after December 15, 2024, with early adoption permitted. The amendments in this ASU are required to be applied prospectively and are allowed to be
applied retrospectively. IDACORP and Idaho Power are currently evaluating the impact that adoption of this ASU will have on the notes to their respective
consolidated financial statements.

In November 2024, the FASB issued ASU 2024-03, Disaggregation of Income Statement Expenses which requires disclosure of certain disaggregated
income statement expense categories on an annual and interim basis. This ASU is effective for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2026, and
for interim periods beginning after December 15, 2027, with early adoption permitted. The amendments in this ASU are required to be applied
prospectively and are allowed to be applied retrospectively. IDACORP and Idaho Power are currently evaluating the impact that adoption of this ASU wiill
have on the notes to their respective consolidated financial statements.

There have been no other recent accounting pronouncements not yet adopted that are expected to have a material impact on IDACORP's or Idaho
Power's consolidated financial statements.
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2. INCOME TAXES

A reconciliation between the statutory federal income tax rate and the effective tax rate is as follows:

IDACORP Idaho Power
2024 2023 2022 2024 2023 2022
(thousands of dollars)
Federal income tax expense at statutory rate $ 63888 $ 60583 $ 62333 $ 62640 $ 60,005 $ 61,903
Change in taxes resulting from:
AFUDC (17,015) (13,279) (10,752) (17,015) (13,279) (10,752)
Capitalized interest 5,493 3,097 1,633 5,493 3,097 1,633
Investment tax credits (8,271) (5,451) (3,119) (8,271) (5,451) (3,119)
ADITCs (29,831) — — (29,831) — —
Removal costs (5,109) (6,312) (4,900) (5,109) (6,312) (4,900)
Capitalized overhead costs (2,200) (2,100) (3,150) (2,100) (2,100) (3,150)
Capitalized repair costs (19,320) (24,360) (19,320) (19,320) (24,360) (19,320)
State income taxes, net of federal benefit 20,463 15,802 18,139 20,500 16,081 18,352
Depreciation 18,705 18,041 11,897 18,705 18,041 11,897
Excess deferred income tax reversal (10,047) (10,684 ) (11,405) (10,047) (10,684) (11,405)
Income tax return adjustments 1,844 (8,229) (2,692) 1,794 (7,732) (2,827)
Real estate-related tax credits (7,499) (6,869) (6,362) — — —
Real estate-related investment distributions (1,611) (507) (812) — — —
Real estate-related investment amortization 5,203 5,570 4,355 — — —
Other, net 260 1,994 1,999 242 1,620 1,596
Total income tax expense $ 15053 $ 2729 $ 37844 $ 17681 $ 28926 $ 39,908
Effective tax rate 4.9 % 9.5 % 12.7 % 5.9 % 10.1 % 13.5%
The items comprising income tax expense are as follows:
IDACORP Idaho Power
2024 2023 2022 2024 2023 2022
(thousands of dollars)
Income taxes current:
Federal $ 19,252 $ (13,253) $ 31668 $ 20447 $ (4,757) $ 37,696
State 15,750 5,634 5,474 12,674 3,627 11,715
Total 35,002 (7,619) 37,142 33,121 (1,130) 49,411
Income taxes deferred:
Federal (73,565) (18,419) (13,696) (67,549) (19,086) (13,127)
State (15,608) (3,269) 4,087 (12,735) (1,051) (2,202)
Total (89,173) (21,688) (9,609) (80,284) (20,137) (15,329)
Investment tax credits:
Deferred 102,946 55,644 8,945 102,946 55,644 8,945
Restored (38,102) (5,451) (3,119) (38,102) (5,451) (3,119)
Total 64,844 50,193 5,826 64,844 50,193 5,826
Real estate-related investments at IFS 4,380 6,410 4,485 — — —
Total income tax expense $ 15053 $ 27296 $ 37844 $ 17681 $ 28926 $ 39,908
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The components of the net deferred tax liability are as follows:

IDACORP Idaho Power

2024 2023 2024 2023

(thousands of dollars)
Deferred tax assets:

Regulatory liabilities $ 127,634 $ 108,641 $ 127,634 $ 108,641
Deferred compensation 24,782 24,288 24,782 24,288
Deferred revenue 64,592 58,860 64,592 58,860
Tax credits 66,783 52,010 53,859 49,734
Partnership investments 18,450 12,652 18,450 12,652
Retirement benefits 26,495 44,803 26,495 44,803
Other 24,869 26,537 24,826 26,416
Total 353,605 327,791 340,638 325,394
Deferred tax liabilities:
Property, plant and equipment 243,454 266,992 243,454 266,992
Regulatory assets 811,054 774,672 811,054 774,672
Power cost adjustment 2,747 29,742 2,747 29,742
Partnership investments 4,613 3,593 — —
Retirement benefits 75,716 94,231 75,716 94,231
Other 38,252 41,285 37,113 40,807
Total 1,175,836 1,210,515 1,170,084 1,206,444
Net deferred tax liabilities $ 822,231 $ 882,724 $ 829,446 $ 881,050

IDACORP's tax allocation agreement provides that each member of its consolidated group compute its income taxes on a separate company basis.
Amounts payable or refundable are settled through IDACORP and are reported as taxes accrued or income taxes receivable, respectively, on the
consolidated balance sheets of Idaho Power. See Note 1 - "Summary of Significant Accounting Policies" for further discussion of accounting policies
related to income taxes.

Tax Credit Carryforwards

As of December 31, 2024, IDACORP had $7.5 million of general business credit carryforwards for federal income tax purposes and $ 59.3 million of
Idaho investment tax credit carryforward. The general business credit carryforward period expires in 2044, and the Idaho investment tax credits expire
from 2031 to 2038.

Uncertain Tax Positions

IDACORP and Idaho Power believe that they have no material income tax uncertainties for 2024 and prior tax years. Both companies recognize interest
accrued related to unrecognized tax benefits as interest expense and penalties as other expense.

IDACORP and Idaho Power are subject to examination by their major tax jurisdictions - United States federal and the State of Idaho. The open tax years
for examination are 2023 and 2024 for federal and 2022 through 2024 for Idaho. In May 2009, IDACORP formally entered the U.S. Internal Revenue
Service Compliance Assurance Process (CAP) program for its 2009 tax year and has remained in the CAP program for all subsequent years.

3. REGULATORY MATTERS

IDACORP’s and Idaho Power's financial statements reflect the effects of the different ratemaking principles followed by the jurisdictions regulating Idaho
Power. Included below is a summary of Idaho Power's regulatory assets and liabilities, as well as a discussion of notable regulatory matters.

Regulatory Assets and Liabilities
The application of accounting principles related to regulated operations sometimes results in Idaho Power recording some expenses and revenues in a

different period than when an unregulated enterprise would record those expenses and revenues. Regulatory assets represent incurred costs that have
been deferred because it is probable they will be recovered from customers
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through future rates. Regulatory liabilities represent obligations to make refunds to customers for previous collections, or represent amounts collected in
advance of incurring an expense.

The following table presents a summary of Idaho Power’s regulatory assets and liabilities (in thousands of dollars):

As of December 31, 2024

Total as of December 31,

Remaining Earninga Not Earning a
Description Amortization Period Return(® Return 2024 2023

egulatory Assets:

Income taxes® $ —3 811,054% 811,054% 774,672
Unfunded postretirement benefits® — 18,824 18,824 87,318
Pension expense deferrals 249,409 2,788 252,197 255,244
Power supply costs(®) 2025-2026 10,672 7,835 18,507 115,525
Fixed cost adjustment ® 2025-2026 1,274 16,487 17,761 51,285
North Valmy plant settlements® 2025-2028 80,767 — 80,767 82,917
Jim Bridger plant settlement®) 2025-2030 124,089 23,362 147,451 123,632
Wildfire Mitigation Plan deferral ®) — 63,966 63,966 51,329
Asset retirement obligations(® — 37,842 37,842 35,270
Long-term service agreement 2025-2043 11,996 7,800 19,796 20,955
Other 2025-2056 3,317 35,890 39,207 54,903
Total $ 481,524 % 1,025,848% 1,507,372% 1,653,050
egulatory Liabilities:

Income taxes(” $ —$ 127,634% 127,634% 108,641
Depreciation-related excess deferred income taxes®) 137,903 — 137,903 147,950
Removal costs(® — 166,181 166,181 175,369
Investment tax credits — 230,322 230,322 165,479
Deferred revenue-AFUDC®) 197,889 53,053 250,942 228,671
Energy efficiency program costs 9,277 — 9,277 1,507
Power supply costs(®) 2025-2026 3,949 — 3,949 1,240
Tax reform accrual for future amortization (19) — 42,266 42,266 40,891
Other 9,802 6,050 15,852 12,805
Total $ 358,820% 625,506% 984,326% 882,553

(1) Earning a return includes either interest or a return on the investment as a component of rate base at the allowed rate of return. The interest rate on deferral accounts is published
annually by the IPUC and OPUC. The applicable rates for 2024 were 5.0% and 5.5%, respectively.

(2) Represents flow-through income tax accounting differences which have a corresponding deferred tax liability disclosed in Note 2 - "Income Taxes."

(3) Represents the unfunded obligation of Idaho Power’s pension and postretirement benefit plans, which are discussed in Note 11 - "Benefit Plans."

(4) Idaho Power records a regulatory asset for the difference between net periodic pension cost and pension cost considered for rate-making purposes relating to Idaho Power's
defined benefit pension plan. In its Idaho jurisdiction, Idaho Power’s inclusion of pension costs for the establishment of retail rates is based upon contributions made to the
pension plan. This regulatory asset account represents the difference between cumulative cash contributions and amounts collected in rates. Deferred costs are amortized into
expense as the amounts are provided for in Idaho retail revenues.

(5) This item is discussed in more detail in this Note 3 - "Regulatory Matters."

(6) Asset retirement obligations and removal costs are discussed in Note 13 - "Asset Retirement Obligations (ARO)."

(7) Represents the tax gross-up related to the depreciation-related excess deferred income taxes and investment tax credits included in this table and has a corresponding deferred
tax asset disclosed in Note 2 - "Income Taxes."

(8) In 2017, income tax reform reduced deferred income tax assets and liabilities. For depreciation-related temporary differences under the normalized tax accounting method, the
resulting excess deferred taxes will flow back to customers ratably over the remaining regulatory lives of Idaho Power's plant assets under the alternative method provided in the
statute.

(9) Idaho Power is collecting revenue in the Idaho jurisdiction for AFUDC on HCC relicensing costs but is deferring revenue recognition of the amounts collected until the license is
issued and the asset is placed in service under the new license.

(10) Represents amount accrued under the May 2018 Idaho tax reform settlement stipulation (described below) for the future amortization of existing or future unspecified regulatory
deferrals that would otherwise be a future liability recoverable from Idaho customers.
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Idaho Power’s regulatory assets and liabilities are typically amortized over the period in which they are reflected in customer rates. In the event that
recovery of ldaho Power’s costs through rates becomes unlikely or uncertain, regulatory accounting would no longer apply to some or all of Idaho
Power’s operations and the items above may represent stranded investments. If not allowed full recovery of these items, Idaho Power would be required
to write off the applicable portion, which could have a materially adverse financial impact.

Power Cost Adjustment Mechanisms and Deferred Power Supply Costs

In both its Idaho and Oregon jurisdictions, Idaho Power's power cost adjustment mechanisms address the volatility of power supply costs and provide for
annual adjustments to the rates charged to its retail customers. The power cost adjustment mechanisms compare Idaho Power's actual net power supply
costs (primarily fuel and purchased power less wholesale energy sales) against net power supply costs being recovered in Idaho Power's retail rates.
Under the power cost adjustment mechanisms, certain differences between actual net power supply costs incurred by Idaho Power and costs being
recovered in retail rates are recorded as a deferred charge or accrued as a credit on the balance sheets for future recovery or refund. The power supply
costs deferred or accrued primarily result from changes in the levels of Idaho Power's own hydroelectric generation, changes in contracted power
purchase prices and volumes, changes in wholesale market prices and transaction volumes, and changes in fuel prices.

Idaho Jurisdiction Power Cost Adjustment Mechanism: In the Idaho jurisdiction, the annual PCA consists of (a) a forecast component, based on a
forecast of net power supply costs in the coming year as compared with net power supply costs included in base rates; and (b) a balancing component
that trues up the difference between the previous year’s actual net power supply costs and the costs collected in the previous year's forecast component.
The latter component ensures that, over time, the actual collection or refund of net power supply costs matches the amounts authorized. The PCA
mechanism includes:

* acost or benefit sharing ratio that allocates the deviations in net power supply expenses between customers ( 95 percent) and Idaho Power ( 5
percent), with the exceptions of expenses associated with PURPA power purchases and demand response incentive payments, which are
allocated 100 percent to customers; and

¢ asales-based adjustment intended to ensure that power supply expense recovery resulting solely from sales volume changes does not distort
the results of the mechanism.

The Idaho-jurisdiction PCA year runs from April 1 through March 31. Amounts deferred or accrued during the PCA year are primarily recovered or
refunded during the subsequent June 1 through May 31 period. In May 2023, the IPUC approved recovery of an incremental $ 200.2 million of Idaho-
jurisdiction PCA revenues, but directed Idaho Power to spread recovery of the $ 190.2 million deferral balance component of the PCA over a two-year
period from June 1, 2023, to May 31, 2025. The order deferred collection of $ 95.1 million of deferred PCA costs to the annual PCA collection period
from June 1, 2024, to May 31, 2025. In May 2024, the IPUC issued an order approving a $ 35.7 million net decrease in PCA revenues as compared to
the prior collection period, effective for the PCA collection period from June 1, 2024, to May 31, 2025. The net decrease in PCA revenues reflected
forecasted improved hydropower generation during the April 2024 to March 2025 PCA deferral period.

The table below summarizes the three most recent Idaho-jurisdiction PCA rate adjustments, which also include non-PCA-related rate adjustments as
ordered by the IPUC:

$ Change
Effective Date (millions) Notes

June 1, 2024 $ (35.7) The $35.7 million net decrease in PCA rates reflects forecasted improved hydropower generation during the
April 2024 to March 2025 PCA deferral period.

June 1, 2023 $ 105.1 The $105.1 million increase in PCA rates reflects higher market energy and natural gas prices, combined with
lower than-expected low-cost hydropower generation and limited coal supply. The increased rate also reflects
an expectation of continued elevated market energy prices and natural gas prices in the forecast period.

Junel,2022 $ 94.9 " The increase in PCA rates reflected a forecasted reduction in low-cost hydroelectric generation as well as

higher costs associated with market energy prices and natural gas prices. The rate also reflected $0.6 million
of 2021 earnings shared with customers under the 2018 Settlement Stipulation described below.

Oregon Jurisdiction Power Cost Adjustment Mechanism: ldaho Power’s power cost recovery mechanism in Oregon has two components: an annual
power cost update (APCU) and a power cost adjustment mechanism (PCAM). The APCU allows Idaho Power to reestablish its Oregon base net power
supply costs annually, separate from a general rate case, and to forecast net
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power supply costs for the upcoming water year. The PCAM is a true-up filed annually in February. The PCAM filing calculates the deviation between
actual net power supply expenses incurred for the preceding calendar year and the net power supply expenses recovered through the APCU for the
same period. Actual 2024 Oregon-jurisdiction power supply costs were less than the amount recovered through the APCU, resulting in a $ 2.9 million
difference between revenue and cost. In 2023, Oregon jurisdiction power supply costs were less than the amount recovered through the APCU, but
because Idaho Power’s earnings in 2023 were below the threshold of plus or minus 100 basis points of its authorized return on year-end equity, the
difference was not refunded to customers. ldaho Power's annual June 1 APCU rate changes were a decrease of $ 6.9 million, an increase of $ 7.7
million, and an increase of $ 4.0 million in 2024, 2023, and 2022, respectively.

Notable Idaho Base Rate Adjustments

Idaho base rates were most recently established through the 2024 Idaho Limited-Issue Rate Case, with rate changes effective January 1, 2025.
Previously, base rates were established in a general rate case in 2023, which was resolved by the 2023 Settlement Stipulation.

2024 Idaho Limited-Issue Rate Case: |daho Power filed the 2024 Idaho Limited-Issue Rate Case in May 2024, focused on revenue requirements for
2024 incremental plant additions and incremental ongoing labor costs. On December 31, 2024, the IPUC issued its order (Order) in the 2024 Idaho
Limited-Issue Rate Case, providing that Idaho Power implement revised tariff schedules designed to increase annual Idaho-jurisdictional retail revenue by
$50.6 million, or 3.7 percent, effective January 1, 2025. The Order was subsequently modified by an errata issued on January 21, 2025, which reduced
the revenue increase called for under the Order to $ 50.1 million. The Order did not adjust the overall rate of return approved in the 2023 Settlement
Stipulation or make changes to Idaho regulatory mechanisms such as the PCA, FCA, and energy efficiency rider. The Order also did not preclude Idaho
Power from filing another rate case in Idaho at any time in the future.

2023 Idaho General Rate Case: In June 2023, Idaho Power filed a general rate case with the IPUC. In December 2023, the IPUC issued an order
approving the 2023 Settlement Stipulation settling the general rate case. The order and the 2023 Settlement Stipulation provided for the following
significant terms, among other items:

« Implementation of revised tariff schedules designed to increase annual Idaho-jurisdictional retail revenue by $ 54.7 million, or 4.25 percent,
effective January 1, 2024. The $54.7 million of additional annual revenue was net of an Idaho-jurisdiction PCA rate decrease of $ 168.3 million
and a reduction to annual energy efficiency rider collection of $ 3.5 million, each of which was transferred into base rates;

« A9.6 percent return on equity and a 7.247 percent authorized rate of return based on a non-specified cost of debt and capital structure, applied
to an Idaho-jurisdictional rate base of approximately $3.8 billion;

« Modifications to the PCA including establishment of a new level of base net power supply expense of $ 484.9 million, which included the transfer
of $ 168.3 million from then-current PCA rates to base rates;

* Maodifications to the FCA mechanism to support Idaho Power’s rate designs and to reflect updated fixed costs;

¢ Continued deferral of incremental vegetation management and insurance costs, as measured from 2022 actual costs, through the earlier of
Idaho Power’s next Idaho general rate case or 2025;

¢ Anannual $ 18 million increase in collection of Idaho Power’s regulatory asset associated with its defined benefit pension plan contributions;

« Maodifications to Idaho Power’s ADITC and revenue sharing mechanism beginning in 2024 to (1) include an additional amount of investment tax
credits equal to the incremental investment tax credits generated from Idaho Power’s investment in 2023 battery storage projects; (2) remove the
existing $ 25 million annual cap on the amount of accelerated amortization of ADITCs; (3) establish a minimum specified Idaho-jurisdiction
return on year-end equity (Idaho ROE) of 9.12 percent for additional amortization of ADITCs; (4) establish a 9.6 percent Idaho ROE as the
threshold for revenue sharing of Idaho-jurisdiction earnings between Idaho Power and Idaho customers; and (5) implement all revenue sharing
through the PCA rather than a portion offsetting customer-funded pension obligations;

* Agreement that Idaho Power’s capital expenditures through year-end 2022 were prudently incurred;

« Deferral and amortization of annual differences between certain periodic maintenance costs at Idaho Power's natural gas-fired power plants; and

* Aresidential price modernization plan and updated rate designs.

Under the modified ADITC and Revenue Sharing mechanism, if Idaho Power's annual Idaho ROE in any year exceeds 9.6 percent, the amount of

earnings exceeding 9.6 percent will be allocated 80.0 percent to Idaho Power's Idaho customers as a rate reduction to be effective at the time of the
subsequent year's PCA, and 20.0 percent to Idaho Power.
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In 2024, Idaho Power recorded amortization of $ 29.8 million of ADITC. Accordingly, at December 31, 2024, $ 77 million of ADITC remained available for
future use under the terms of the 2023 Settlement Stipulation and the 2018 Settlement Stipulation described below.

May 2018 Idaho Tax Reform Settlement Stipulation: In May 2018, the IPUC issued an order approving a settlement stipulation (2018 Settlement
Stipulation) related to income tax reform. Beginning June 1, 2018, the 2018 Settlement Stipulation provided an annual (a) $ 18.7 million reduction to
Idaho customer base rates and (b) $ 7.4 million amortization of existing regulatory deferrals for specified items or future amortization of other existing or
future unspecified regulatory deferrals that would otherwise be a future regulatory asset recoverable from Idaho customers. The 2018 Settlement
Stipulation also provided for the indefinite extension, with modifications, of a previous 2014 settlement stipulation beyond its termination date of
December 31, 2019, with modified terms related to the ADITC and revenue sharing mechanism that became effective January 1, 2020. Idaho Power’'s
base rates and ADITC and revenue sharing mechanism were modified by the 2023 Settlement Stipulation, as described above.

North Valmy Base Rate Adjustment Settlement Stipulations: |daho Power has settlement stipulations in place in Idaho and Oregon related to the
planned end of its participation in coal-fired operations of both units of its jointly-owned North Valmy plant. Idaho Power ceased coal-fired operations at
unit 1 in 2019, as planned, and these settlement stipulations provide for Idaho Power to cease participation in coal-fired operations at unit 2 in 2025. The
IPUC-approved settlement stipulation provides for (1) accelerated depreciation for the North Valmy plant to allow the coal-related plant assets to be fully
depreciated and recovered by December 31, 2028, (2) Idaho Power to use prudent and commercially reasonable efforts to end its participation in coal-
fired operations at the North Valmy plant as described above, (3) a balancing account to track the incremental costs, benefits, and required regulatory
accounting associated with ceasing participation in coal-fired operations at the North Valmy plant, and (4) increased customer rates related to the
associated incremental annual levelized revenue requirement. If actual costs incurred differ from forecasted amounts included in the settlement
stipulation, collection or refund of any differences would be subject to regulatory approval.

Jim Bridger Power Plant Rate Base Adjustment and Recovery and Non-Fuel O&M Expenses: In June 2022, the IPUC issued an order approving,
with modifications, Idaho Power’'s amended application requesting authorization to (1) accelerate depreciation for the Jim Bridger plant to allow the coal-
related plant assets to be fully depreciated and recovered by December 31, 2030, (2) establish a balancing account to track the incremental costs,
benefits, and required regulatory accounting associated with ceasing participation in coal-fired operations at the Jim Bridger plant, and (3) increase
customer rates related to the associated incremental annual levelized revenue requirement (Bridger Order).

The Bridger Order allows for regulatory accounting entries and establishes balancing accounts (recorded as regulatory assets or liabilities on Idaho
Power’s and IDACORP’s consolidated balance sheets) to track differences between amounts recovered in rates and actual incremental costs and
benefits associated with Idaho Power’s plan at the time of the Bridger Order to cease its participation in coal-fired operations at the Jim Bridger plant by
the end of 2028. The incremental costs and benefits include the revenue requirement associated with the incremental Jim Bridger plant coal-related
investments made from 2012 through the end of 2020, forecasted coal-related investments, and near-term decommissioning costs, offset by other O&M
cost savings. The Bridger Order deemed all coal-related investments at the Jim Bridger plant from 2012 through 2020 to be prudent for recovery.

In the Bridger Order, the IPUC reduced Idaho Power's requested rate increase from 2.1 percent in its amended filing to 1.5 percent, a reduction from a
requested $ 27.1 million to $ 18.8 million annually. The Bridger Order provides that any uncollected amount resulting from the reduction in the rate
increase will be recorded in the balancing account for future recovery with no carrying charge. The uncollected amounts tracked in this balancing account
were included for recovery in the 2023 Settlement Stipulation. Idaho Power anticipates making future filings with the IPUC that may result in periodic
adjustments to rates to true up variances between revenue collections and actual revenue requirement amounts. The Bridger Order allows Idaho Power
to earn a return on and recover through 2030 the net book value of coal-related assets at the Jim Bridger plant as of December 31, 2020, as well as
forecasted coal-related investments.

In September 2024, the IPUC issued an order authorizing Idaho Power to include all non-fuel O&M expenses associated with operations of the Jim
Bridger plant in the balancing account previously established to track the incremental costs, benefits, and required regulatory accounting associated with
ceasing participation in coal-fired operations at the Jim Bridger plant, which resulted in a $ 11.3 million deferral of costs in 2024 to a regulatory asset
account for future recovery.
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Other Notable Idaho Regulatory Matters

Fixed Cost Adjustment: The FCA mechanism, applicable to Idaho residential and small commercial customers, is designed to remove a portion of Idaho
Power’s financial disincentive to invest in energy efficiency programs by separating (or decoupling) the recovery of fixed costs from the variable kwWh
charge and linking it instead to a set amount per customer. Under Idaho Power's current rate design, recovery of a portion of fixed costs is included in the
variable kWh charge, which may result in over-collection or under-collection of fixed costs. To return over-collection to customers or to collect under-
collection from customers, the FCA mechanism allows Idaho Power to accrue, or defer, the difference between the authorized fixed-cost recovery
amount per customer and the actual fixed costs per customer recovered by Idaho Power during the year. The IPUC has discretion to cap the annual
increase in the FCA recovery at 3 percent of base revenue, with any excess deferred for collection in a subsequent year. In May 2024, the IPUC issued
an order approving a $ 11.7 million increase in recovery from the FCA from $ 25.1 million to $ 36.8 million for the 2023 FCA deferral, with new rates
effective for the period from June 1, 2024, to May 31, 2025. Beginning with the 2024 FCA deferral, the 2023 Settlement Stipulation updates the
authorized fixed-cost recovery amount per customer and modifies parts of the FCA mechanism to support Idaho Power's proposed rate designs, as noted
above.

The following table summarizes FCA amounts approved for collection in the prior three FCA years:

Annual Amount

FCA Year Period Rates in Effect (in millions)
2023 June 1, 2024 to May 31, 2025 $36.8
2022 June 1, 2023 to May 31, 2024 $25.1
2021 June 1, 2022 to May 31, 2023 $35.2

Wildfire Mitigation Cost Recovery: In June 2021 and March 2023, the IPUC issued orders authorizing Idaho Power to defer for future amortization
incremental O&M and depreciation expense for certain capital investments necessary to implement Idaho Power's WMP. As a result of the 2023
Settlement Stipulation, in 2024, Idaho Power recovered and amortized $ 3.8 million of its WMP deferral balance through 2022 of $ 26.7 million. As of
December 31, 2024, Idaho Power’s deferral balance of Idaho-jurisdiction costs related to the WMP was $ 63.2 million, of which $ 22.9 million is
approved to be amortized and collected in Idaho rates. In January 2024, the OPUC authorized Idaho Power to defer the Oregon jurisdictional share of
costs associated with the WMP for the 12-month period beginning December 29, 2022, and ending on December 28, 2023, resulting in an Oregon-
jurisdiction deferral balance of approximately $ 750 thousand.

On February 13, 2025, Idaho Power filed an application with the IPUC for review of the Company's current WMP and request for an order authorizing the
Company to defer through calendar year 2025, or until the Company's next general rate case goes into effect, newly identified costs associated with
expanded wildfire mitigation efforts.

Notable Oregon Regulatory Matters

Oregon Base Rate Changes: Oregon base rates were most recently established in a general rate case that Idaho Power filed with the OPUC in
December 2023. In September 2024, the OPUC issued an order approving the 2024 Oregon Settlement Stipulations, which are settlement stipulations
among Idaho Power and intervening parties settling the general rate case. The OPUC order and the 2024 Oregon Settlement Stipulations contain the
following significant terms, among other items:

« Implementation of revised tariff schedules designed to increase annual Oregon-jurisdiction revenue by $ 6.7 million, or 12.14 percent; and

¢ A 9.5 percent Oregon-jurisdiction return on year-end equity and a 7.302 percent Oregon-jurisdiction authorized rate of return based on a 5.104
percent cost of debt and capital structure of 50 percent debt and 50 percent equity, applied to an Oregon-jurisdictional rate base of approximately
$ 188.9 million. The $188.9 million of rate base excludes rate base associated with Idaho Power's jointly-owned North Valmy coal facilities, the
costs of which are recovered under the separate rate mechanism noted below.

Rate changes from the 2024 Oregon Settlement Stipulations became effective on October 15, 2024. The 2024 Oregon Settlement Stipulations do not
preclude Idaho Power from filing another general rate case or other limited issue proceeding in Oregon at any time in the future.
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Federal Regulatory Matters - Open Access Transmission Tariff Rates

Idaho Power uses a formula rate for transmission service provided under its OATT, which allows transmission rates to be updated annually based
primarily on actual financial and operational data Idaho Power files with the FERC and allows Idaho Power to recover costs associated with its
transmission system. Idaho Power's OATT rates submitted to the FERC in Idaho Power's four most recent annual OATT Final Informational Filings were
as follows:

OATT Rate (per kw-
Period Rates in Effect year)

October 1, 2024 to September 30, 2025 $ 31.55
October 1, 2023 to September 30, 2024 $ 30.74
October 1, 2022 to September 30, 2023 $ 31.42
October 1, 2021 to September 30, 2022 $ 31.19

Idaho Power's current OATT rate is based on a net annual transmission revenue requirement of $ 137.9 million, which represents the OATT formulaic
determination of Idaho Power's net cost of providing OATT-based transmission service.

4. REVENUES

The following table provides a summary of electric utility operating revenues for IDACORP and Idaho Power (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2024 2023 2022
Electric utility operating revenues:
Revenue from contracts with customers $ 1,768,881 $ 1,639,612 $ 1,557,974
Alternative revenue programs and derivative revenues 54,084 123,282 83,066
Total electric utility operating revenues $ 1,822965 $ 1,762,894 $ 1,641,040

Revenues from Contracts with Customers
Revenues from contracts with customers are primarily related to Idaho Power’s regulated tariff-based sales of energy or related services. Generally, tariff-

based sales do not involve a written contract, but are classified as revenues from contracts with customers. Idaho Power assesses revenues on a
contract-by-contract basis to determine the nature, amount, timing, and uncertainty, if any, of revenues being recognized.
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The following table presents revenues from contracts with customers disaggregated by revenue source (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2024 2023 2022
Revenues from contracts with customers:
Retail revenues:
Residential (includes $( 2,686 ), $ 37,233, and $ 22,595, respectively, related to the FCA () $ 700586 $ 684,649 $ 645236
Commerecial (includes $( 170 ), $ 1,338, and $ 922, respectively, related to the FCA () 397,385 378,330 347,970
Industrial 267,211 244,538 217,368
Irrigation 196,401 173,929 170,964
Deferred revenue related to HCC relicensing AFUDC @ (8,803) (8,780) (8,780)
Total retail revenues 1,552,780 1,472,666 1,372,758
Less: FCA mechanism revenues® 2,856 (38,571) (23,517)
Wholesale energy sales 73,908 63,421 66,519
Transmission wheeling-related revenues 79,173 80,357 80,527
Energy efficiency program revenues 27,581 31,948 33,197
Other revenues from contracts with customers 32,583 29,791 28,490
Total revenues from contracts with customers $ 1,768,881 $ 1,639,612 $ 1,557,974

(1) The FCA mechanism is an alternative revenue program in the Idaho jurisdiction and does not represent revenue from contracts with customers.

(2) The IPUC allows Idaho Power to recover a portion of the AFUDC on construction work in progress related to the HCC relicensing process, even though the relicensing process is
not yet complete and the costs have not been moved to electric plant in service. Idaho Power is collecting $ 8.8 million annually in the Idaho jurisdiction but is deferring revenue
recognition of the amounts collected until the license is issued and the accumulated license costs approved for recovery are placed in service.

Retail Revenues: Idaho Power’s retail revenues primarily relate to the sale of electricity to customers based on regulated tariff-based prices. Idaho
Power recognizes retail revenues in amounts for which it has the right to invoice the customer in the period when energy is delivered or services are
provided to customers. The total energy price generally has a fixed component related to having service available and a usage-based component related
to the demand, delivery, and consumption of energy. The revenues recognized reflect the consideration Idaho Power expects to be entitled to in
exchange for energy and services. Retail customers are classified as residential, commercial, industrial, or irrigation. Approximately 95 percent of Idaho
Power's retail revenue originates from customers located in Idaho, with the remainder originating from customers located in Oregon. Idaho Power’s retail
customer rates are based on Idaho Power’s cost of service and are determined through general rate case proceedings, settlement stipulations, and other
filings with the IPUC and OPUC. Changes in rates and changes in customer demand are typically the primary causes of fluctuations in retail revenue
from period to period. The primary influences on changes in customer demand for electricity are weather, economic conditions (including growth in the
number of Idaho Power customers), and energy efficiency. Idaho Power's utility revenues are not earned evenly during the year.

Retail revenues are billed monthly based on meter readings taken throughout the month. Payments for amounts billed are generally due from the
customer within 15 days of billing. Idaho Power accrues estimated unbilled revenues for energy or related services delivered to customers but not yet
billed at period-end based on actual meter readings at period-end and estimated rates.

Residential Customers: Idaho Power’s energy sales to residential customers typically peak during the summer cooling season and winter heating
season. Extreme temperatures increase sales to residential customers who use electricity for cooling and heating, compared with normal temperatures.
Idaho Power's rate structure provides for higher rates during the summer when overall system loads are at their highest, and includes tiers such that
rates increase as a customer's consumption level increases. These seasonal and tiered rate structures contribute to the seasonal fluctuations in
revenues and earnings. Economic and demographic conditions can also affect residential customer demand; strong job growth and population growth in
Idaho Power’s service area have led to higher customer growth in recent years. Residential demand is also impacted by energy efficiency initiatives.
Idaho Power’'s FCA mechanism mitigates some of the fluctuations caused by weather and energy efficiency initiatives.
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Commercial Customers: Most businesses are included in Idaho Power's commercial customer class, as are small industrial companies, and public street
and highway lighting accounts. Idaho Power’s commercial customers are less influenced by weather conditions than residential customers, although
weather does still affect commercial customer energy use. Economic conditions, including manufacturing activity levels, and energy efficiency initiatives
also affect energy use of commercial customers.

Industrial Customers: Industrial customers consist of large industrial companies, including special contract customers. Energy use of industrial customers
is primarily driven by economic conditions, with weather having little impact on this customer class.

Irrigation Customers: Irrigation customers use electricity to operate irrigation pumps, primarily during the agricultural growing season. The amount and
timing of precipitation as well as temperature levels affect the timing and amounts of sales to irrigation customers, with increased precipitation during the
agricultural growing season generally resulting in decreased sales.

Wholesale Energy Sales: As a public utility under the FPA, Idaho Power has the authority to charge market-based rates for wholesale energy sales
under its FERC tariff. Idaho Power’s wholesale electricity sales are primarily to utilities and power marketers and are predominantly short-term and
consist of a single performance obligation satisfied as energy is transferred to the counterparty. Idaho Power's wholesale energy sales depend largely on
the availability of generation resources in excess of the amount necessary to serve customer loads as well as adequate market power prices and demand
at the time when those resources are available. A reduction in any of those factors may lead to lower wholesale energy sales.

Transmission Wheeling-Related Revenues: As a public utility under the FPA, Idaho Power has the authority to provide cost-based wholesale and retail
access transmission services under its OATT. Services under the OATT are offered on a nondiscriminatory basis such that all potential customers have
an equal opportunity to access the transmission system. Idaho Power's transmission revenue is primarily related to third parties reserving capacity on
Idaho Power’s transmission system to transmit electricity through Idaho Power's service area. Reservations are predominantly short-term contracts or on-
demand when available, but may be part of a long-term capacity contract. Transmission wheeling-related revenues consist of a single performance
obligation satisfied as capacity on Idaho Power’s transmission system is provided to the third party. Transmission wheeling-related revenues are affected
by changes in Idaho Power’'s OATT rate and customer demand. Demand for transmission services can be affected by regional market factors, such as
loads and generation of utilities in Idaho Power’s region.

Energy Efficiency Program Revenues: ldaho Power collects most of its energy efficiency program costs through an energy efficiency rider on customer
bills. The rider collections are deferred until expenditures are incurred. Energy efficiency program expenditures funded through the rider are reported as
an operating expense with an equal amount recognized in revenues, resulting in no net impact on earnings. The cumulative variance between
expenditures and amounts collected through the rider is recorded as a regulatory asset or liability. A liability balance indicates that Idaho Power has
collected more than it has spent, and an asset balance indicates that Idaho Power has spent more than it has collected. At December 31, 2024, Idaho
Power's energy efficiency rider balances were a $ 7.6 million regulatory liability in the Idaho jurisdiction and a $ 1.7 million regulatory liability in the
Oregon jurisdiction.

Alternative Revenue Programs and Other Revenues

While revenues from contracts with customers make up most of Idaho Power’s revenues, the IPUC has authorized the use of an additional regulatory
mechanism, the FCA mechanism, which may increase or decrease tariff-based customer rates. The FCA mechanism is described in Note 3 -
"Regulatory Matters." The FCA mechanism revenues include only the initial recognition of FCA revenues when they meet the regulator-specified
conditions for recognition. Revenue from contracts with customers excludes the portion of the tariff price representing FCA revenues that Idaho Power
initially recorded in prior periods when revenues met regulator-specified conditions. When Idaho Power includes those amounts in the price of utility
service and billed to customers, Idaho Power records such amounts as recovery of the associated regulatory asset or liability and not as revenues.

Derivative revenues include gains from settled electricity swaps and sales of electricity under forward sales contracts that are bundled with RECs.
Related to these forward sales, Idaho Power simultaneously enters into forward purchases of electricity for the same quantity at the same location, which
are recorded in purchased power on the consolidated statements of income. For more information on settled electricity swaps, see Note 15 - "Derivative
Financial Instruments."
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The table below presents the FCA mechanism revenues and derivative revenues (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2024 2023 2022
Alternative revenue programs and derivative revenues:
FCA mechanism revenues $ (2,856) $ 38571 $ 23,517
Derivative revenues 56,940 84,711 59,549
Total alternative revenue programs and derivative revenues $ 54,084 $ 123,282 $ 83,066

IDACORP's Other Operating Revenues

Other operating revenues on IDACORP's consolidated statements of income are primarily comprised of revenues from IDACORP’s subsidiary, Ida-West.
Ida-West operates small PURPA-qualifying hydropower generation projects.
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5. LONG-TERM DEBT

The following table summarizes IDACORP's and Idaho Power's long-term debt at December 31 (in thousands of dollars):

2024 2023
First mortgage bonds:
1.90 % Series due 2030 $ 80,000% 80,000
6.00 % Series due 2032 100,000 100,000
4.99 % Series due 2032 23,000 23,000
5.50 % Series due 2033 70,000 70,000
5.50 % Series due 2034 50,000 50,000
5.875 % Series due 2034 55,000 55,000
5.20 % Series due 2034 300,000 —
5.30 % Series due 2035 60,000 60,000
6.30 % Series due 2037 140,000 140,000
6.25 % Series due 2037 100,000 100,000
4.85 % Series due 2040 100,000 100,000
4.30 % Series due 2042 75,000 75,000
5.06 % Series due 2042 25,000 25,000
5.06 % Series due 2043 60,000 60,000
4.00 % Series due 2043 75,000 75,000
3.65 % Series due 2045 250,000 250,000
4.05 % Series due 2046 120,000 120,000
4.20 % Series due 2048 450,000 450,000
5.20 % Series due 2053 62,000 62,000
5.50 % Series due 2053 400,000 400,000
5.80 % Series due 2054 350,000 350,000
Total first mortgage bonds 2,945,000 2,645,000
Pollution control revenue bonds:
1.45 % Series due 2024 — 49,800
1.70 % Series due 2026 M 116,300 116,300
Total pollution control revenue bonds 116,300 166,100
American Falls Variable Rate bond guarantee due 2025 19,885 19,885
Unamortized premium/discount and issuance costs (7,523) (5,395)
Total IDACORP and Idaho Power outstanding debt @ 3,073,662 2,825,590
Current maturities of long-term debt (19,885) (149,800)
Total long-term debt $ 3,053,777% 2,775,790

(1) Sweetwater County Pollution Control Revenue Bonds are secured by the first mortgage bonds, bringing the total first mortgage bonds outstanding at December 31, 2024, to $
3.061 billion .

(2) At December 31, 2024 and 2023, the overall effective cost rate of Idaho Power's outstanding debt was 5.03 percent and 4.98 percent, respectively.

At December 31, 2024, the maturities for the aggregate amount of IDACORP and Idaho Power long-term debt outstanding were as follows (in thousands
of dollars):

2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 Thereafter
$ 19,885 $ 116,300 $ — $ — 3 — 3 2,945,000
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Long-Term Debt Issuances, Maturities, and Redemptions
On February 3, 2025, Idaho Power repaid $ 19.9 million in aggregate principal amount of maturing variable rate American Falls Bonds.

On December 2, 2024, Idaho Power repaid $ 49.8 million in aggregate principal amount of maturing 1.45 % Humboldt County Pollution Control Revenue
Bonds.

On August 12, 2024, under the shelf registration statement with the SEC, Idaho Power issued $ 300 million in aggregate principal amount of 5.20 % first
mortgage bonds, secured medium-term notes, Series M, maturing on August 15, 2034.

On September 11, 2023, under the shelf registration statement with the SEC, Idaho Power issued $ 350 million in aggregate principal amount of 5.80 %
first mortgage bonds, secured medium-term notes, Series M, maturing on April 1, 2054.

On April 1, 2023, Idaho Power repaid $ 75 million in aggregate principal amount of maturing 2.50 % first mortgage bonds due 2023, Series I.

On March 14, 2023, under the shelf registration statement with the SEC, Idaho Power issued $ 400 million in aggregate principal amount of 5.50 % first
mortgage bonds, secured medium-term notes, Series M, maturing on March 15, 2053.

On March 8, 2023, pursuant to the Bond Purchase Agreement defined below, Idaho Power issued $ 60 million in aggregate principal amount of 5.06 %
first mortgage bonds, secured medium-term notes, Series N, maturing on March 8, 2043; and $ 62 million in aggregate principal amount of 5.20 % first
mortgage bonds, secured medium-term notes, Series N, maturing on March 8, 2053.

On December 22, 2022, Idaho Power entered into a Bond Purchase Agreement with certain institutional purchasers relating to the sale by Idaho Power
of $ 170 million of first mortgage bonds, secured medium-term notes, Series N (Series N Notes), as described in more detail below.

Idaho Power First Mortgage Bonds

Idaho Power's issuance of long-term indebtedness is subject to the approval of the IPUC, OPUC, and WPSC. In February and March 2024, Idaho Power
received orders from the IPUC, OPUC, and WPSC authorizing the company to issue and sell from time to time up to $ 1.2 billion in aggregate principal
amount of debt securities and first mortgage bonds, subject to conditions specified in the orders. Authority from the IPUC is effective through December
31, 2026, subject to extensions upon request to the IPUC. The OPUC's and WPSC's orders do not impose a time limitation for issuances, but the OPUC
order does impose a number of other conditions, including a requirement that the interest rates for the debt securities or first mortgage bonds fall within
either (a) designated spreads over comparable U.S. Treasury rates or (b) a maximum interest rate limit of 8.0 percent. At December 31, 2024, $ 900
million remained available for debt issuance under the regulatory orders.

In May 2022, Idaho Power filed a shelf registration statement with the SEC, which became effective upon filing, for the offer and sale of an unspecified
principal amount of its first mortgage bonds. The issuance of first mortgage bonds requires that ldaho Power meet interest coverage and security
provisions set forth in Idaho Power's Indenture of Mortgage and Deed of Trust, dated as of October 1, 1937, as amended and supplemented from time to
time (Indenture). Future issuances of first mortgage bonds are subject to satisfaction of covenants and security provisions set forth in the Indenture,
market conditions, regulatory authorizations, and covenants contained in other financing agreements.

In June 2022, Idaho Power entered into a selling agency agreement with six banks named in the agreement in connection with the potential issuance
and sale from time to time of up to $1.2 billion aggregate principal amount of first mortgage bonds, secured medium term notes, Series M (Series M
Notes), under Idaho Power’s Indenture. Also in June 2022, Idaho Power entered into the Fiftieth Supplemental Indenture, dated effective as of June 30,
2022, to the Indenture (Fiftieth Supplemental Indenture). The Fiftieth Supplemental Indenture provides for, among other items, the issuance of up to $1.2
billion in aggregate principal amount of Series M Notes pursuant to the Indenture. In October 2022, Idaho Power entered into the Fifty-first Supplemental
Indenture to increase the limit of the amount of first mortgage bonds at any one time outstanding to $ 3.5 billion as provided in the Indenture. The
amount issuable is also restricted by property, earnings, and other provisions of the Indenture and supplemental indentures to the Indenture. The
Indenture requires that Idaho Power's net earnings be at least twice the annual interest requirements on all outstanding debt of equal or prior rank,
including the bonds that Idaho Power may propose
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to issue. Under certain circumstances, the net earnings test does not apply, including the issuance of refunding bonds to retire outstanding bonds that
mature in less than two years or that are of an equal or higher interest rate, or prior lien bonds.

In December 2022, Idaho Power entered into the Bond Purcha se Agreement with certain institutional purchasers, relating to the sale by Idaho Power of $
170 million in aggregate principal amount of Series N Notes. Also in December 2022, Idaho Power entered into the Fifty-second Supplemental

Indenture, dated effective as of December 30, 2022, to the Indenture (Fifty-second Supplemental Indenture). The Fifty-second Supplemental Indenture
provided for, among other items, the issuance of Series N Notes pursuant to the Indenture. The Series N Notes consist of:

* $ 23 million in aggregate principal amount of Idaho Power’s 4.99% first mortgage bonds due 2032, Series N Notes, Tranche 1 (Tranche 1

Bonds);

* $25 million in aggregate principal amount of Idaho Power’s 5.06% first mortgage bonds due 2042, Series N Notes, Tranche 2 (Tranche 2
Bonds);

* $60 million in aggregate principal amount of Idaho Power’s 5.06% first mortgage bonds due 2043, Series N Notes, Tranche 3 (Tranche 3
Bonds); and

* $ 62 million in aggregate principal amount of Idaho Power’s 5.20% first mortgage bonds due 2053, Series N Notes, Tranche 4 (Tranche 4
Bonds).

The Tranche 1 Bonds and Tranche 2 Bonds were issued on December 22, 2022, and the Tranche 3 Bonds and Tranche 4 Bonds were issued on March
8, 2023, each under the Indenture.

The mortgage of the Indenture secures all bonds issued under the Indenture equally and ratably, without preference, priority, or distinction. First mortgage
bonds issued in the future will also be secured by the mortgage of the Indenture. The lien constitutes a first mortgage on all the properties of Idaho
Power, subject only to certain limited exceptions including liens for taxes and assessments that are not delinquent and minor excepted encumbrances.
Certain of the properties of Idaho Power are subject to easements, leases, contracts, covenants, workmen's compensation awards, and similar
encumbrances and minor defects common to properties. The mortgage of the Indenture does not create a lien on revenues or profits, or notes or
accounts receivable, contracts or choses in action, except as permitted by law during a completed default, securities, or cash, except when pledged, or
merchandise or equipment manufactured or acquired for resale. The mortgage of the Indenture creates a lien on the interest of Idaho Power in property
subsequently acquired, other than excepted property, subject to limitations in the case of consolidation, merger, or sale of all or substantially all of the
assets of Idaho Power. The Indenture requires Idaho Power to spend or appropriate 15 percent of its annual gross operating revenues for maintenance,
retirement, or amortization of its properties. Idaho Power may, however, anticipate or make up these expenditures or appropriations within the 5 years
that immediately follow or precede a particular year.

As of December 31, 2024, the maximum amount of additional first mortgage bonds Idaho Power could issue was approximately $ 439 million.
Separately, the Indenture also limits the amount of additional first mortgage bonds that Idaho Power may issue to the sum of (a) the principal amount of
retired first mortgage bonds and (b) 60 percent of total unfunded property additions, as defined in the Indenture. As of December 31, 2024, Idaho Power
could issue approximately $ 2.1 billion of additional first mortgage bonds based on retired first mortgage bonds and total unfunded property additions.
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6. COMMON STOCK

IDACORP Common Stock

The following table summarizes IDACORP common stock transactions during the last three years and shares reserved at December 31, 2024:

Shares issued Shares reserved
2024 2023 2022 December 31, 2024

Balance at beginning of year 50,615,237 50,561,892 50,516,479
Dividend reinvestment and stock purchase plan 63,084 — — 2,778,618
Employee savings plan — — — 3,567,954
At-the-market offering program(®) — — — See table note @
Equity forward sale agreements 3,221,982 — — —
Long-term incentive and compensation plan @ 61,997 53,345 45,413 1,099,512
Continuous equity program (inactive) — — — 3,000,000

Balance at end of year 53,962,300 50,615,237 50,561,892

(1) At December 31, 2024, IDACORP had reserved shares of its common stock through the ATM offering program, up to an aggregate gross sales price of $ 300 million. For more
details, see "At-the-Market Offering Program” below in this Note 6.

(2) During 2024, 2023, and 2022, IDACORP granted 103,771, 75,295 , and 73,131 restricted stock unit awards, respectively, to employees and 15,616 , 12,459 , and 12,021 shares
of common stock, respectively, to directors. During 2024, 2023, and 2022, IDACORP issued 61,997 , 53,345 , and 45,413 shares of common stock, respectively, using original

issuances of shares pursuant to the LTICP, including 10,571 , 13,842 , and 8,674 shares of common stock, respectively, issued to members of the board of directors.

Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan: Effective January 1, 2024, IDACORP instructed the plan administrator of the IDACORP, Inc.
Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan to use original issuance of common stock from IDACORP, as opposed to market purchases of
IDACORP common stock, to acquire shares of IDACORP common stock for the plan. However, IDACORP may determine at any time to resume market
purchases of common stock under the plan.

Employee Savings Plan: As directed by IDACORP, the plan administrator of the Idaho Power Company Employee Savings Plan used market
purchases of IDACORP common stock to acquire shares of IDACORP common stock for the plan.

At-the-Market Offering Program: On May 20, 2024, IDACORP entered into an Equity Distribution Agreement (EDA) pursuant to which it may issue,
offer, and sell, from time to time, up to an aggregate gross sales price of $ 300 million of shares of its common stock through an ATM offering program,
which includes the ability to enter into FSAs. In 2024, IDACORP did not issue common stock pursuant to the EDA.

In 2024, IDACORP executed FSAs under its ATM offering program with various counterparties who borrowed and sold 801,914 shares of IDACORP’s
common stock at an aggregate gross sales price of $ 92.4 million. At December 31, 2024, $ 207.6 million in shares of IDACORP’s common stock
remained available for issuance through its ATM offering program. At December 31, 2024, IDACORP could have settled the FSAs with physical delivery
of 801,914 shares of common stock to the counterparty in exchange for cash of $ 91.6 million.

At December 31, 2024, IDACORP had the following FSAs outstanding under its ATM offering program (in thousands of dollars, except for shares and
forward price amounts):

Maturity Shares Net Proceeds Available Forward Price
November 12, 2025 500,000 $ 56,912 $ 113.82
December 31, 2025 301,914 34,669 114.83
Total 801,914 $ 91581 ¢ 114.20

The FSAs will be physically settled with common shares issued by IDACORP, unless IDACORP elects to settle the agreements in net cash or net
shares, subject to certain conditions. On a settlement date or dates, if IDACORP elects to physically settle the
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FSAs, IDACORP will issue shares of common stock to the various counterparties at the then-applicable forward sale price and receive issuance proceeds
at that time.

At December 31, 2024, IDACORP could have settled the FSAs with net receipt from various counterparties of approximately $ 1.2 million of cash or
approximately 11,270 shares of common stock, if IDACORP had elected to net cash or net share settle, respectively. The FSAs have been classified as
an equity transaction because they are indexed to IDACORP’s common stock and the other requirements necessary for equity classification are met. As
a result of the equity classification, no gain or loss will be recognized within earnings due to subsequent changes in the fair value of the FSAs.

Equity Forward Sale Agreements: On November 7, 2023, IDACORP announced a registered public offering of 2,801,724 shares of its common stock
at a public offering price of $ 92.80 per share, for an issuance amount of $ 260.0 million. In conjunction with this offering, IDACORP granted the
underwriters an option to purchase up to 420,258 additional shares, which was subsequently exercised in full on November 8, 2023, for an additional
issuance amount of $ 39.0 million. The 3,221,982 shares were sold by the counterparty to the underwriters under FSAs. The forward sale price was
initially $ 90.016 per share and was subject to certain adjustments in accordance with the terms of the FSAs through the date of settlement.

On May 14, 2024, IDACORP partially settled the FSAs with physical delivery of 2,542,442 shares of common stock to the counterparty in exchange for
cash of $ 230.0 million. On November 4, 2024, IDACORP settled the remainder of the FSAs with physical delivery of 679,540 shares of common stock to
the counterparty in exchange for cash of $ 62.2 million. Settlement of the FSAs are reflected in IDACORP’s equity.

FSA Earnings Per Shares Dilution: Prior to settlement, the potentially issuable shares pursuant to the FSAs will be reflected in IDACORP’s diluted
earnings per share calculations using the treasury stock method. Under this method, the number of shares of IDACORP’s common stock used in
calculating diluted earnings per share for a reporting period would be increased by the number of shares, if any, that would be issued upon physical
settlement of the FSAs less the number of shares that could be purchased by IDACORP in the market with the proceeds received from issuance (based
on the average market price during that reporting period). Share dilution occurs when the average market price of IDACORP’s stock during the reporting
period is higher than the then-applicable forward sale price as of the end of the reporting period. As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, approximately
47,000 and 34,000 incremental shares, respectively, were included in the calculation of diluted EPS related to the securities under the FSAs. See Note 8
- "Earnings Per Share" for additional information concerning IDACORP's diluted earnings per share.

Idaho Power Common Stock

During 2024, IDACORP contributed $ 200 million of additional capital to Idaho Power. No additional shares of Idaho Power common stock were issued.

Restrictions on Dividends

Idaho Power’s ability to pay dividends on its common stock held by IDACORP and IDACORP’s ability to pay dividends on its common stock are limited to
the extent payment of such dividends would violate the covenants in their respective credit facilities or Idaho Power’s Statement of Policy and Code of
Conduct. A covenant under IDACORP'’s credit facility and Idaho Power’s credit facility requires IDACORP and Idaho Power to maintain leverage ratios of
consolidated indebtedness to consolidated total capitalization, as defined therein, of no more than 65 percent at the end of each fiscal quarter. At
December 31, 2024, the leverage ratios for IDACORP and Idaho Power were 48 percent and 50 percent, respectively. Based on these restrictions,
IDACORP’s and Idaho Power’s dividends were limited to $ 1.7 billion and $ 1.4 billion, respectively, at December 31, 2024. There are additional facility
covenants, subject to exceptions, that prohibit or restrict the sale or disposition of property without consent and any agreements restricting dividend
payments to IDACORP and Idaho Power from any material subsidiary. At December 31, 2024, IDACORP and Idaho Power were in compliance with
those covenants.

Idaho Power’s Statement of Policy and Code of Conduct relating to transactions between and among Idaho Power, IDACORP, and other affiliates, which
was approved by the IPUC in April 2008, provides that Idaho Power will not pay any dividends to IDACORP that will reduce Idaho Power's common
equity capital below 35 percent of its total adjusted capital without IPUC approval. At December 31, 2024, Idaho Power's common equity capital was 50
percent of its total adjusted capital. Further, Idaho Power must obtain approval from the OPUC before it can directly or indirectly loan funds or issue notes
or give credit on its books to IDACORP.
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Idaho Power’s articles of incorporation contain restrictions on the payment of dividends on its common stock if preferred stock dividends are in arrears. As
of the date of this report, Idaho Power has no preferred stock outstanding.

In addition to contractual restrictions on the amount and payment of dividends, the FPA prohibits the payment of dividends from "capital accounts." The
term "capital account" is undefined in the FPA or its regulations, but Idaho Power does not believe the restriction would limit Idaho Power's ability to pay
dividends out of current year earnings or retained earnings.

7. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

IDACORP has one share-based compensation plan — the LTICP. The LTICP (for officers, key employees, and directors) permits the grant of stock
options, restricted stock and restricted stock units, performance shares and performance-based units, and several other types of share-based awards. At
December 31, 2024, the maximum number of shares available under the LTICP was 110,302 .

Restricted Stock Unit and Performance-Based Unit Awards

Restricted stock unit awards have three-year vesting periods, entitle the recipients to dividend equivalents, and units do not have voting rights until the
units are vested and settled in shares. Unvested awards are restricted as to disposition and subject to forfeiture under certain circumstances. The fair
value of these awards is based on the closing market price of common stock on the grant date and is charged to compensation expense over the vesting
period, reduced for any forfeitures during the vesting period.

Performance-based unit awards have three-year vesting periods and do not have voting rights until the units are vested and settled in shares. Unvested
awards are restricted as to disposition, subject to forfeiture under certain circumstances, and subject to the attainment of specific performance conditions
over the three-year vesting period. The performance conditions are two equally-weighted metrics, cumulative earnings per share (CEPS) and total
shareholder return (TSR) relative to a peer group. Depending on the level of attainment of the performance conditions and the year issued, the final
number of shares awarded can range from zero to 200 percent of the target award. Dividend equivalents are accrued during the vesting period and paid
out based on the final number of shares awarded.

The grant-date fair value of the CEPS portion is based on the closing market value at the date of grant, reduced by the loss in time-value of the estimated
future dividend payments. The fair value of this portion of the awards is charged to compensation expense over the requisite service period based on the
estimated achievement of performance targets, reduced for any forfeitures during the vesting period. The grant-date fair value of the TSR portion is
estimated using the market value at the date of grant and a statistical model that incorporates the probability of meeting performance targets based on
historical returns relative to the peer group. The fair value of this portion of the awards is charged to compensation expense over the requisite service
period, provided the requisite service period is rendered, regardless of the level of TSR metric attained.

A summary of restricted stock units and performance-based units award activity is presented below. Idaho Power unit amounts represent the portion of
IDACORP amounts related to Idaho Power employees:

IDACORP Idaho Power
Weighted- Weighted-
Average Average

Number of Grant Date Number of Grant Date

Units Fair Value Units Fair Value
Nonvested units at January 1, 2024 210,100 $ 97.35 209,224 $ 97.34
Units granted 124,893 85.80 124,375 85.80
Units forfeited (7,454) 92.57 (7,454) 92.57
Units vested (92,730) 88.80 (92,568) 88.80
Nonvested units at December 31, 2024 234,809 $ 94.73 233577 $ 94.73

The total fair value of shares vested was $ 8.5 million in 2024, $ 7.5 million in 2023, and $ 6.9 million in 2022. At December 31, 2024, IDACORP had $
9.7 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to nonvested share-based compensation, nearly all of which was Idaho Power's share. These
costs are expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 1.7 years. IDACORP uses original issue shares for these awards.
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In 2024, a total of 15,616 shares were awarded to directors at an average grant date fair value of $ 88.11 per share. Directors elected to defer receipt of
5,426 of these shares, which are being held as deferred stock units with dividend equivalents reinvested in additional stock units.

Compensation Expense: The following table shows the compensation cost recognized in income and the tax benefits resulting from the LTICP, as well
as the amounts allocated to Idaho Power for those costs associated with Idaho Power’s employees (in thousands of dollars):

IDACORP Idaho Power
2024 2023 2022 2024 2023 2022
Compensation cost $ 11,708 $ 9,578 $ 10,279 $ 11,608 $ 9508 $ 10,204
Income tax benefit 3,014 2,465 2,646 2,988 2,447 2,627

No equity compensation costs have been capitalized. These costs are primarily reported within "Other operations and maintenance" expense on the
consolidated statements of income.

8. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The following table presents the computation of IDACORP’s basic and diluted earnings per share for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023, and
2022 (in thousands, except for per share amounts):

Year Ended December 31,

2024 2023 2022

Numerator:

Net income attributable to IDACORP, Inc. $ 289,174 $ 261,195 $ 258,982
Denominator:

Weighted-average common shares outstanding - basic 52,543 50,717 50,658

Effect of dilutive securities® 72 89 41

Weighted-average common shares outstanding - diluted 52,615 50,806 50,699
Basic earnings per share $ 550 $ 515 $ 511
Diluted earnings per share $ 550 $ 514 $ 5.11

(1) The effect of dilutive securities amount includes approximately 47 thousand and 34 thousand incremental shares related to FSAs as of December 31, 2024 and 2023,
respectively. See Note 6 - "Common Stock" for additional information concerning IDACORP's FSAs.

9. COMMITMENTS

Purchase Obligations

At December 31, 2024, Idaho Power had the following long-term commitments relating to purchases of energy, capacity, transmission rights, and fuel (in
thousands of dollars):

2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 Thereafter
Cogeneration, power production, and battery storage $ 340,395 $ 372,123 $ 407,819 $ 455245 $ 447,778 $ 5,040,605
Fuel 112,045 58,181 26,559 26,665 26,745 247,770

As of December 31, 2024, Idaho Power had power purchase obligations with respect to 1,524 MW nameplate capacity of online PURPA and non-PURPA
projects, with an additional 1,048 MW nameplate capacity of projects that are scheduled to be online through 2027. The agreements for these projects
have original contract terms ranging from one to 35 years. ldaho Power's purchased power expense associated with long-term agreements (including
PURPA) was approximately $ 294 million in 2024, $ 258 million in 2023, and $ 238 million in 2022.

In February 2025, Idaho Power entered into a 100 MW solar facility PPA and agreement to purchase the storage capacity from a 100 MW battery
storage facility; both with a scheduled online date of April 2027 and 20 -year terms. Also, in February 2025, Idaho Power entered into agreements
providing ownership of 250 MW and rights to 250 MW of transmission capacity on the
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SWIP-N in Nevada, with an expected online date in late 2027 or in 2028. The agreements collectively increased Idaho Power's contractual obligations by
$ 1.1 billion over their respective terms.

Idaho Power also has the following long-term commitments (in thousands of dollars):

2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 Thereafter
Joint-operating agreement payments® $ 5266 $ 5266 $ 5266 $ 5266 $ 5266 $ 26,331
Easements and other payments @ 2,163 2,209 2,255 2,302 2,351 12,515
Maintenance, service, and materials agreements ()@ 324,817 492,185 352,817 7,376 7,103 37,575
FERC and other industry-related fees @ 17,512 17,183 16,416 16,272 16,218 82,560

(1) Approximately $ 53 million, $ 1 million, $ 14 million, and $ 164 million of the commitments included in joint-operating agreement payments, easements and other payments,
maintenance, service, and materials agreements, and FERC and other industry-related fees, respectively, have contracts that do not specify terms related to expiration. As these
contracts are presumed to continue indefinitely, ten years of information, estimated based on current contract terms, has been included in the table for presentation purposes.

(2) As of December 31, 2024, Idaho Power had a remaining $ 904 million commitment related to contracts to acquire and own capacity and generation resources with in-service
dates in 2026 and 2027.

At IDACORP, long-term purchase commitments of $ 34.7 million are mostly comprised of other long-term liabilities at Ida-West and IFS. At December 31,
2024, IDACORP had a commitment to invest an additional $ 5.2 million into a private market investment fund, which is expected to occur over the next
few years. IDACORP’s expense for operating leases was not material for the years ended 2024, 2023, and 2022.

Acquisition of Additional Interest in B2H Transmission Project

In March 2023, Idaho Power executed a purchase, sale, and security agreement with the BPA to transfer BPA's 24 percent interest in the B2H
transmission line project to Idaho Power, bringing Idaho Power's interest in the project to approximately 45 percent. Pursuant to the agreement, Idaho
Power has a commitment to provide long-term transmission service to BPA. The agreement also required BPA to make a $ 10 million security payment
to Idaho Power. On Idaho Power's consolidated balance sheet, the agreement increased construction work in progress by $ 31.4 million for the acquired
permitting interest, cash and cash equivalents by $ 10.0 million for the additional security payment, and other non-current liabilities by $ 41.4 million for
Idaho Power's obligation to pay for the permitting interest and to return the security deposit to BPA. Payments to BPA for the permitting interest are
expected to be made over a 15 -year period beginning 10 years after energization of the transmission line project, while the security deposit is due to be
returned to BPA upon energization.

Guarantees

Idaho Power guarantees its portion of reclamation activities and obligations at BCC, of which IERCo owns a one-third portion. This guarantee, which is
renewed annually with the Wyoming Department of Environmental Quality (WDEQ), was $ 47.5 million at December 31, 2024, representing IERCo's
one-third share of BCC's total reclamation obligation of $ 142.5 million. BCC has a reclamation trust fund set aside specifically for the purpose of paying
these reclamation costs. At December 31, 2024, the value of BCC's reclamation trust fund exceeded WDEQ's guarantee requirement for the total
reclamation obligation. BCC periodically assesses the adequacy of the reclamation trust fund and its estimate of future reclamation costs. To ensure that
the reclamation trust fund maintains adequate reserves, BCC has the ability to, and does, add a per-ton surcharge to coal sales, all of which are made to
the Jim Bridger plant. Because of the existence of the fund and the ability to apply a per-ton surcharge, the estimated fair value of this guarantee is
minimal.

IDACORP and Idaho Power enter into financial agreements and power purchase and sale agreements that include indemnification provisions relating to
various forms of claims or liabilities that may arise from the transactions contemplated by these agreements. Generally, a maximum obligation is not
explicitly stated in the indemnification provisions and, therefore, the overall maximum amount of the obligation under such indemnification provisions
cannot be reasonably estimated. IDACORP and Idaho Power periodically evaluate the likelihood of incurring costs under such indemnities based on their
historical experience and the evaluation of the specific indemnities. As of December 31, 2024, management believes the likelihood is remote that
IDACORP or Idaho Power would be required to perform under such indemnification provisions or otherwise incur any significant losses with respect to
such indemnification obligations. Neither IDACORP nor Idaho Power has recorded any liability on their respective consolidated balance sheets with
respect to these indemnification obligations.
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10. CONTINGENCIES

IDACORP and Idaho Power have in the past and expect in the future to become involved in various claims, controversies, disputes, and other contingent
matters, some of which involve litigation and regulatory or other contested proceedings. The ultimate resolution and outcome of litigation and regulatory
proceedings is inherently difficult to determine, particularly where (a) the remedies or penalties sought are indeterminate, (b) the proceedings are in the
early stages or the substantive issues have not been well developed, or (c) the matters involve complex or novel legal theories or a large number of
parties. In accordance with applicable accounting guidance, IDACORP and Idaho Power, as applicable, establish an accrual for legal proceedings when
those matters proceed to a stage where they present loss contingencies that are both probable and reasonably estimable. If the loss contingency at issue
is not both probable and reasonably estimable, IDACORP and Idaho Power do not establish an accrual and the matter will continue to be monitored for
any developments that would make the loss contingency both probable and reasonably estimable. As of the date of this report, IDACORP's and Idaho
Power's accruals for loss contingencies are not material to their financial statements as a whole; however, future accruals could be material in a given
period. IDACORP's and Idaho Power's determination is based on currently available information, and estimates presented in financial statements and
other financial disclosures involve significant judgment and may be subject to significant uncertainty. For matters that affect Idaho Power's operations,
Idaho Power intends to seek, to the extent permissible and appropriate, recovery through the ratemaking process of costs incurred, although there is no
assurance that such recovery would be granted.

IDACORP and Idaho Power are parties to legal claims and legal, tax, and regulatory actions and proceedings in the ordinary course of business and, as
noted above, record an accrual for associated loss contingencies when they are probable and reasonably estimable. In connection with its utility
operations, Idaho Power is subject to claims by individuals, entities, and governmental agencies for damages for alleged personal injury, property
damage, and economic losses, relating to the company’s provision of electric service and the operation of its power supply, transmission, and distribution
facilities. Some of those claims relate to electrical contacts, service quality, property damage, and wildfires. In recent years, utilities in the western United
States have been subject to significant liability for personal injury, loss of life, property damage, trespass, and economic losses, and in some cases,
punitive damages and criminal charges, associated with wildfires that originated from utility property, most commonly transmission and distribution

lines. Idaho Power has also regularly received claims by governmental agencies and private landowners for damages for fires allegedly originating from
Idaho Power’s transmission and distribution system. As of the date of this report, the companies believe that resolution of existing claims will not have a
material adverse effect on their respective consolidated financial statements.

Idaho Power is also actively monitoring various pending environmental regulations and executive orders related to environmental matters that may have a
significant impact on its future operations. Given uncertainties regarding the outcome, timing, and compliance plans for these environmental matters,
Idaho Power is unable to estimate the financial impact of these regulations.

11. BENEFIT PLANS

Idaho Power sponsors defined benefit and other postretirement benefit plans that cover the majority of its employees. Idaho Power also sponsors a
defined contribution 401(k) employee savings plan and provides certain post-employment benefits.

Pension Plans
Idaho Power has a noncontributory defined benefit pension plan (pension plan) and two nonqualified defined benefit plans for certain senior management
employees, the SMSP. Idaho Power also has a nonqualified defined benefit pension plan for directors that was frozen in 2002. Remaining vested

benefits from that plan are included with the SMSP in the disclosures below. The benefits under these plans are based on years of service and the
employee's final average earnings.

112



Table of Contents

The following table summarizes the changes in benefit obligations and plan assets of these plans (in thousands of dollars):

Pension Plan SMSP

2024 2023 2024 2023
Change in projected benefit obligation:
Benefit obligation at January 1 $ 1,028,016 $ 953,769 105,809 $ 99,976
Service cost 33,992 29,843 1,051 612
Interest cost 52,181 51,277 5,332 5,322
Actuarial (gain) loss (65,972) 41,539 (3,321) 6,518
Plan amendment — — 15 11
Benefits paid (50,051) (48,412) (6,568) (6,630)
Projected benefit obligation at December 31 998,166 1,028,016 102,318 105,809
Change in plan assets:
Fair value at January 1 917,513 839,728 — —
Actual return on plan assets 63,680 78,197 — —
Employer contributions 20,000 48,000 — —
Benefits paid (50,051) (48,412) — —
Fair value at December 31 951,142 917,513 — —
Funded status at end of year $ (47,024) $ (110,503) (102,318) $ (105,809)
Amounts recognized in the balance sheet consist of:
Other current liabilities $ — 3 — (6,827) $ (6,608)
Noncurrent liabilities (47,024) (110,503) (95,491) (99,201)
Net amount recognized $ (47,024) $ (110,503) (102,318) $ (105,809)
Amounts recognized in AOCI consist of:
Net loss $ 43516 $ 108,334 16,442 $ 21,074
Prior service cost 24 31 1,995 2,200
Subtotal 43,540 108,365 18,437 23,274
Less amount recorded as regulatory asset® (43,540) (108,365 ) — —
Net amount recognized in AOCI $ — 3 — 18,437 $ 23,274
Accumulated benefit obligation $ 863,705 $ 892,325 96,487 $ 99,786

(1) Changes in the funded status of the pension plan that would be recorded in AOCI for an unregulated entity are recorded as a regulatory asset for Idaho Power as Idaho Power

believes it is probable that an amount equal to the regulatory asset will be collected through the setting of future rates.

The actuarial gains reflected in the benefit obligations for the pension and SMSP plans in 2024 are due primarily to increases in the assumed discount
rates of both plans from December 31, 2023, to December 31, 2024. The actuarial losses reflected in the benefit obligations for the pension and SMSP
plans in 2023 are due primarily to decreases in the assumed discount rates of both plans from December 31, 2022, to December 31, 2023. For more

information on discount rates, see “Plan Assumptions” below in this Note 11.

As a non-qualified plan, the SMSP has no plan assets. However, Idaho Power has a rabbi trust designated to provide funding for SMSP obligations. The
rabbi trust holds investments in marketable securities and corporate-owned life insurance. The recorded value of these investments was approximately $
159.1 million and $ 146.2 million at December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively, and is reflected in Investments and in Company-owned life insurance on

the consolidated balance sheets.
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The following table shows the components of net periodic pension cost for these plans (in thousands of dollars). For purposes of calculating the expected
return on plan assets, the market-related value of assets is equal to the fair value of the assets.

Pension Plan SMSP
2024 2023 2022 2024 2023 2022
Service cost $ 33992 $ 29843 $ 52,025 $1051 $ 612 $ 1,185
Interest cost 52,181 51,277 39,670 5,332 5,322 3,897
Expected return on assets (66,533) (61,728) (72,348) — — —
Amortization of net loss 1,700 — 12,273 1,312 570 4,229
Amortization of prior service cost 6 6 6 220 219 279
Net periodic pension cost 21,346 19,398 31,626 7,915 6,723 9,590
Regulatory deferral of net periodic pension cost® (20,425) (18,553) (30,197) — — —
Previously deferred pension cost recognized ) 35,182 17,154 17,154 — — —
Net periodic pension cost recognized for financial reporting?@ $ 36,103 $ 17,999 $ 18583 $ 7,915 $ 6,723 $ 9,590

(1) Net periodic pension costs for the pension plan are recognized for financial reporting based upon the authorization of each regulatory jurisdiction in which Idaho Power operates.
Under an IPUC order, the Idaho portion of net periodic pension cost is recorded as a regulatory asset and is recognized in the income statement as those costs are recovered
through rates.

(2) Of total net periodic pension cost recognized for financial reporting $ 35.9 million, $ 18.2 million, and $ 19.0 million respectively, was recognized in "Other operations and
maintenance” and $ 8.1 million, $ 6.5 million, and $ 9.2 million respectively, was recognized in "Other income, net" on the consolidated statements of income of the companies for
the twelve months ended December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022.

The following table shows the components of other comprehensive income (loss) for the plans (in thousands of dollars):

Pension Plan SMSP
2024 2023 2022 2024 2023 2022

Actuarial gain (loss) during the year $ 63,119 $ (25,071) $ 227,372 $ 3320 $ (6,517) $ 32,009

Plan amendment service cost — — — (15) (11) —
Reclassification adjustments for:

Amortization of net loss 1,700 — 12,273 1,312 570 4,229

Amortization of prior service cost 6 6 6 220 219 279
Adjustment for deferred tax effects (16,686 ) 6,452 (61,686) (1,245) 1,477 (9,399)
Adjustment due to the effects of regulation (48,139) 18,613 (177,965) — — —
Other comprehensive income (loss) recognized related to

pension benefit plans $ —  $ — 3 — 8 3592 $ (4,262) $ 27,118

The following table summarizes the expected future benefit payments of these plans (in thousands of dollars):

2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030-2034
Pension Plan $ 50,774 $ 52,436 $ 54,119 $ 55,778 $ 57,568 $ 317,695
SMSP 6,827 6,836 6,846 6,997 7,237 37,188

Idaho Power’s funding policy for the pension plan is to contribute at least the minimum required under the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of
1974 (ERISA) but not more than the maximum amount deductible for income tax purposes. In 2024, 2023, and 2022, Idaho Power elected to contribute
more than the minimum required amounts in order to bring the pension plan to a more funded position, to reduce future required contributions, and to
reduce Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation premiums. As of the date of this report, IDACORP and Idaho Power have no estimated minimum required
contributions to the pension plan for 2025. Depending on market conditions and cash flow considerations in 2025, Idaho Power could contribute up to $
20 million to the pension plan during 2025 in order to help balance the regulatory collection of these expenditures with the amount and timing of
contributions and to mitigate the cost of being in an underfunded position.
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Postretirement Benefits

Idaho Power maintains a defined benefit postretirement benefit plan (consisting of health care and death benefits) that covers all employees who were
enrolled in the active-employee group plan at the time of retirement as well as their spouses and qualifying dependents. Retirees hired on or after
January 1, 1999, have access to the standard medical option at full cost, with no contribution by Idaho Power. Benefits for employees who retire after
December 31, 2002, are limited to a fixed amount, which has limited the growth of Idaho Power’s future obligations under this plan.

The following table summarizes the changes in benefit obligation and plan assets (in thousands of dollars):

2024 2023
hange in accumulated benefit obligation:
enefit obligation at January 1 $ 56,064% 59,099
ervice cost 698 658
iterest cost 2,824 2,980
ctuarial gain (778) (2,004)
enefits paid® (4,204) (4,669)
enefit obligation at December 31 54,604 56,064
hange in plan assets:
air value of plan assets at January 1 31,804 28,565
ctual return on plan assets 4,669 7,219
mployer contributions® (1,141) 690
enefits paid® (4,204) (4,670)
air value of plan assets at December 31 31,128 31,804
unded status at end of year (included in noncurrent liabilities) $ (23,4769 (24,260)

(1) Contributions and benefits paid are each net of $ 2.3 million and $ 2.6 million of plan participant contributions for 2024 and 2023, respectively.

Amounts recognized in AOCI consist of the following (in thousands of dollars):

2024 2023
Net gain $ (29,353) $ (27,231)
Prior service cost 4,636 6,184
Subtotal (24,717) (21,047)
Less amount recognized in regulatory assets 24,717 21,047
Net amount recognized in AOCI $ — 3 =
The net periodic postretirement benefit cost was as follows (in thousands of dollars):
2024 2023 2022
Service cost $ 698 $ 658 $ 1,071
Interest cost 2,824 2,980 2,112
Expected return on plan assets (1,831) (1,650) (2,351)
Amortization of net loss (1,494) (1,237) (31)
Amortization of prior service cost 1,548 1,665 295
Net periodic postretirement benefit cost $ 1,745 $ 2,416 $ 1,096
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The following table shows the components of other comprehensive income for the plan (in thousands of dollars):

2024 2023 2022
Actuarial gain during the year $ 3,616 $ 7572 % 12,908
Prior service cost arising during the year — — (8,065)
Reclassification adjustments for:

Amortization of net loss (1,494) (1,237) (31)
Amortization of prior service cost 1,548 1,665 295
Adjustment for deferred tax effects (945) (2,059) (1,315)
Adjustment due to the effects of regulation (2,725) (5,941) (3,792)

Other comprehensive income related to postretirement benefit plans $ — 3 — 3 —

The following table summarizes the expected future benefit payments of the postretirement benefit plan (in thousands of dollars):

2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030-2034
Expected benefit payments $ 4931 $ 4753 $ 4563 $ 4436 $ 4355 $ 20,500

Plan Assumptions

The following table sets forth the weighted-average assumptions used at the end of each year to determine benefit obligations for all Idaho Power-
sponsored pension and postretirement benefits plans:

Postretirement

Pension Plan SMSP Benefits
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
Discount rate 570 % 510 % 570 % 520 % 570 % 515 %
Rate of compensation increase® 443 % 443 % 475 % 475 % — —
Medical trend rate — — — — 6.3 % 71 %
Dental trend rate — — — — 35 % 35 %
Measurement date 12/31/2024 12/31/2023 12/31/2024 12/31/2023 12/31/2024 12/31/2023

(1) The 2024 rate of compensation increase assumption for the pension plan includes an inflation component of 2.40 % plus a 2.03 % composite merit increase component that is
based on employees' years of service. Merit salary increases are assumed to be 10.6 % for employees in their first year of service and scale down to 3.4 % for employees in their
fortieth year of service and beyond.

The following table sets forth the weighted-average assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit cost for all Idaho Power-sponsored pension and
postretirement benefit plans:

Postretirement

Pension Plan SMSP Benefits
2024 2023 2022 2024 2023 2022 2024 2023 2022

Discount rate 5.10 % 545 % 3.05 % 5.20 % 5.50 % 3.00 % 515 % 545 % 295 %
Expected long-term rate of return on

assets 740 % 740 % 7.40 % — — — 6.00 % 6.00 % 6.00 %
Rate of compensation increase 4.43 % 4.49 % 4.49 % 4.75 % 4.75 % 4.75 % — — % — %
Medical trend rate — — — — — — 7.1 % 6.7 % 5.8 %
Dental trend rate — — — — — — 35 % 35 % 35 %

The assumed health care cost trend rate used to measure the expected cost of health benefits covered by the postretirement plan was 7.1 percent in
2024 and is assumed to decrease to 6.3 percent in 2025, 5.5 percent in 2026, decrease to 5.4 percent in 2027, and to gradually decrease to 3.8 percent
by 2074. The assumed dental cost trend rate used to measure the expected cost of dental benefits covered by the plan was 3.5 percent, or equal to the
medical trend rate if lower, for all years.
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Plan Assets

Pension Asset Allocation Policy: The target allocation and actual allocations at December 31, 2024, for the pension asset portfolio by asset class is set
forth below:

Actual
Target Allocation
Asset Class Allocation December 31, 2024
Debt securities 25 % 24 %
Equity securities 56 % 5 %
Real estate 8 % 8 %
Other plan assets 11 % 9 %
Total 100 % 100 %

Assets are rebalanced as necessary to keep the portfolio close to target allocations. The plan’s principal investment objective is to maximize total return
(defined as the sum of realized interest and dividend income and realized and unrealized gain or loss in market price) consistent with prudent parameters
of risk and the liability profile of the portfolio. Emphasis is placed on preservation and growth of capital along with adequacy of cash flow sufficient to fund
current and future payments to plan participants.

The three major goals in Idaho Power's asset allocation process are to:

« determine if the investments have the potential to earn the rate of return assumed in the actuarial liability calculations;

« match the cash flow needs of the plan. Idaho Power sets debt security allocations sufficient to cover approximately five years of benefit
payments. Idaho Power then utilizes growth instruments (equities, real estate, venture capital) to fund the longer-term liabilities of the plan; and

¢ maintain a prudent risk profile consistent with ERISA fiduciary standards.

Allowable plan investments include stocks and stock funds, investment-grade bonds and bond funds, real estate funds, private infrastructure funds,
private direct lending funds, private equity funds, and cash and cash equivalents. With the exception of real estate holdings, private infrastructure
holdings, private direct lending loans, and private equity, investments must be readily marketable so that an entire holding can be disposed of quickly with
only a minor effect upon market price.

Rate-of-return projections for plan assets are based on historical risk/return relationships among asset classes. The primary measure is the historical risk
premium each asset class has delivered versus the yield on the Moody's AA Corporate Bond Index. This historical risk premium is then added to the
current yield on the Moody's AA Corporate Bond Index. Additional analysis is performed to measure the expected range of returns, as well as worst-case
and best-case scenarios. Based on the current interest rate environment, current rate-of-return expectations are lower than the nominal returns
generated over the past 30 years when interest rates were generally higher.

Idaho Power’s asset modeling process also utilizes historical market returns to measure the portfolio’s exposure to a “worst-case” market scenario, to
determine how much performance could vary from the expected “average” performance over various time periods. This “worst-case” modeling, in
addition to cash flow matching and diversification by asset class and investment style, provides the basis for managing the risk associated with investing
portfolio assets.
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Fair Value of Plan Assets: |daho Power classifies its pension plan and postretirement benefit plan investments using the three-level fair value hierarchy
described in Note 16 - "Fair Value Measurements." The following table presents the fair value of the plans' investments by asset category (in thousands
of dollars).

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets at December 31, 2024
Cash and cash equivalents $ 24946 $ — 3 — $ 24946
Intermediate bonds 40,177 184,528 — 224,705
Equity Securities: Large-Cap 49,848 — — 49,848
Equity Securities: Mid-Cap 103,117 — — 103,117
Equity Securities: Small-Cap 82,932 — — 82,932
Equity Securities: Micro-Cap 38,871 — — 38,871
Equity Securities: Global and International 58,767 — — 58,767
Equity Securities: Emerging Markets 6,093 — — 6,093
Plan assets measured at NAV (not subject to hierarchy disclosure)
Commingled Fund: Equity Securities: Large-Cap 54,346
Commingled Fund: Equity Securities: Global and International 124,559
Commingled Fund: Equity Securities: Emerging Markets 41,590
Direct Lending Fund: Fixed Income 5,479
Real estate 72,913
Private market investments 62,976
Total $ 404,751 $ 184528 $ — 951,142
Postretirement plan assets @ $ 3054 $ 28,074 $ — 31,128
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets at December 31, 2023
Cash and cash equivalents $ 28830 $ — 3 — 28,830
Intermediate bonds 35,747 182,280 — 218,027
Equity Securities: Large-Cap 93,879 — — 93,879
Equity Securities: Mid-Cap 105,700 — — 105,700
Equity Securities: Small-Cap 75,596 — — 75,596
Equity Securities: Micro-Cap 37,759 — — 37,759
Equity Securities: Global and International 58,401 — — 58,401
Equity Securities: Emerging Markets 7,850 — — 7,850
Plan assets measured at NAV (hot subject to hierarchy disclosure)
Commingled Fund: Equity Securities: Global and International 131,921
Commingled Fund: Equity Securities: Emerging Markets 40,398
Direct Lending Fund: Fixed Income 2,970
Real estate 74,426
Private market investments 41,756
Total $ 443,762 $ 182,280 $ — $ 917,513
Postretirement plan assets @ $ 1,726 $ 30,078 $ — $ 31,804

(1) The postretirement benefits assets are primarily life insurance contracts.

For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, there were no material transfers into or out of Levels 1, 2, or 3.

Fair Value Measurement of Level 2 Plan assets and Plan assets measured at NAV:
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Level 2 Bonds: These investments represent United States government, agency bonds, and corporate bonds. The United States government and agency
bonds, as well as the corporate bonds, are not traded on an exchange and are valued utilizing market prices for similar assets or liabilities in active
markets.

Level 2 Postretirement Asset: This asset represents an investment in a life insurance contract and is recorded at fair value, which is the cash surrender
value, less any unpaid expenses. The cash surrender value of this insurance contract is contractually equal to the insurance contract's proportionate
share of the market value of an associated investment account held by the insurer. The investments held by the insurer's investment account are all
instruments traded on exchanges with readily determinable market prices.

Commingled Funds: These funds, made up of global, international and emerging markets equity securities are measured at NAV, are not publicly traded,
and therefore no publicly quoted market price is readily available. The values of the commingled funds are presented at estimated fair value, which is
determined based on the unit value of the fund. The values of these investments are calculated by the custodian for the fund company on a monthly or
more frequent basis, and are based on market prices of the assets held by each of the commingled funds divided by the number of fund shares
outstanding for the respective fund. The investments in commingled funds have redemption limitations that permit monthly redemption following notice
requirements of 5 to 7 days.

Direct Lending Funds: Direct lending strategies are closed-end funds that provide senior secured loans primarily to private, non-investment-grade
companies. Direct lending fund investments are valued by the fund companies, or an independent external advisor based on the estimated fair value of
the underlying loans divided by the fund shares outstanding. These direct lending funds also furnish annual audited financial statements that are used to
further validate the information provided. These closed-end funds are formed with a stated life of 6 to 10 years, which can be further extended with the
approval of the limited partners. There are generally no redemption rights associated with these funds. The limited partner must hold the fund for the life
of the fund or find a third-party buyer.

Real Estate: Real estate holdings represent investments in open-end and closed-end commingled real estate funds. As the property interests held in
these real estate funds are not frequently traded, establishing the market value of the property interests held by the fund, and the resulting unit value of
fund shareholders, is based on unobservable inputs including property appraisals by the fund companies, property appraisals by independent appraisal
firms, analysis of the replacement cost of the property, discounted cash flows generated by property rents and changes in property values, and
comparisons with sale prices of similar properties in similar markets. These real estate funds also furnish annual audited financial statements that are also
used to further validate the information provided. Redemptions on the open-end funds are generally available on a quarterly basis, with 10 to 35 days
written notice, depending on the individual fund. If the fund has sufficient liquidity, the redemption will be processed at the fund NAV or the fund’s
estimate of fair value at the end of the quarter. If the fund does not have sufficient liquidity to honor the full redemption, the remainder will be set for
redemption the following quarter on a pro-rata basis with other redemption requests. This same process will repeat until the redemption request has been
completed. To protect other fund holders, real estate funds have no duty to liquidate or encumber funds to meet redemption requests. The closed-end
funds are formed for a stated life of 7 to 10 years. The fund can be further extended with the approval of the limited partners. There are generally no
redemption rights associated with these funds. The limited partner must hold the fund for the life of the fund or find a third-party buyer.

Private Market Investments: Private market investments represent three categories: venture capital funds, private infrastructure funds, and fund of hedge
funds. These funds are valued by the fund companies based on the estimated fair values of the underlying fund holdings divided by the fund shares
outstanding or multiplied by the ownership percentages of the holder. Venture capital fund investments are valued by the fund companies based on
estimated fair value of the underlying fund holdings divided by the fund shares outstanding. Some venture capital investments have progressed to the
point that they have readily available exchange-based market valuations. Early stage venture investments are valued based on unobservable inputs
including cost, operating results, discounted cash flows, the price of recent funding events, or pending offers from other viable entities. These private
market investments furnish annual audited financial statements that are also used to further validate the information provided. These funds are formed for
a stated life of 10 to 15 years. The general partner can extend the fund life for 2 or 3 one-year periods. The fund can be further extended with the
approval of the limited partners. There are generally no redemption rights associated with these funds. The limited partner must hold the fund for the life
of the fund or find a third-party buyer. The private infrastructure fund investment is valued by the fund manager through a process involving an
independent third-party external valuator on a quarterly basis, with each investment undergoing a full independent valuation at least once per year.
Redemption on the infrastructure fund are available on a quarterly basis beginning in April of 2027 with 90 days written notice. If the fund has sufficient
liquidity, the redemption will be processed at the fund NAV at the end of the quarter. If the fund does not have sufficient liquidity to honor the full
redemption, the remainder will be set for redemption the
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following quarter on a pro-rata basis with other redemption requests. This same process will repeat until the redemption request has been completed.
The value of the fund of hedge funds investment is the residual value of an immaterial non-liquid position in a single fund of hedge funds.

Employee Savings Plan

Idaho Power has a defined contribution plan designed to comply with Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code and that covers substantially all
employees. Idaho Power matches specified percentages of employee contributions to the plan. Matching annual contributions were approximately $ 10.4
million, $ 9.8 million, and $ 8.8 million in 2024, 2023, and 2022, respectively.

Post-employment Benefits

Idaho Power provides certain benefits to former or inactive employees, their beneficiaries, and covered dependents after employment but before
retirement, in addition to the health care benefits required under the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act. These benefits include salary
continuation, health care and life insurance for those employees found to be disabled under Idaho Power’s disability plans, and health care for surviving
spouses and dependents. Idaho Power accrues a liability for such benefits. The post-employment benefits included in other liabilities on both IDACORP’s
and Idaho Power’s consolidated balance sheets at December 31, 2024 and 2023, were approximately $ 3 million.

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND JOINTLY-OWNED PROJECTS

The following table presents the major classifications of Idaho Power’s utility plant in service, annual depreciation provisions as a percent of average
depreciable balance, and accumulated provision for depreciation for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 (in thousands of dollars):

2024 2023
Balance Avg Rate Balance Avg Rate

Production $ 2,858,678 390 % $ 2,794,534 3.50 %
Transmission 1,534,474 1.89 % 1,392,338 1.90 %
Distribution 2,858,435 231 % 2,454,458 2.18 %
General and Other 706,176 5.18 % 650,202 521 %
Total in service 7,957,763 3.06 % 7,291,532 2.89 %
Accumulated provision for depreciation (2,714,706) (2,557,744)

In service - net $ 5,243,057 $ 4,733,788

At December 31, 2024, Idaho Power's construction work in progress balance of $ 1.2 billion included relicensing costs of $ 496.9 million for the HCC,
Idaho Power's largest hydropower complex. In 2024, 2023, and 2022, Idaho Power had IPUC authorization to include in its Idaho jurisdiction rates $ 6.5
million annually ($ 8.8 million when grossed-up for the effect of income taxes) of AFUDC relating to the HCC relicensing project. Collecting these
amounts will reduce the amount collected in the future once the HCC relicensing costs are approved for recovery in base rates. At December 31, 2024,
Idaho Power's regulatory liability for collection of AFUDC relating to the HCC was $ 250.9 million.

Idaho Power's ownership interest in two jointly-owned generating facilities is included in the table above. Under the joint operating agreements for these
facilities, each participating utility is responsible for financing its share of construction, operating, and leasing costs. [daho Power's proportionate share of
operating expenses for each facility is included in the Consolidated Statements of Income. These jointly-owned facilities, including balance sheet
amounts and the extent of Idaho Power’s participation, were as follows at December 31, 2024 (in thousands of dollars):

Construction Accumulated
Utility Plant Work in Provision for
Name of Plant Location in Service Progress Depreciation Ownership % MWL)
Jim Bridger units 1-4 Rock Springs, WY $ 790,883 $ 1,387 $ 548,307 33 775
North Valmy unit 2 @ Winnemucca, NV 267,135 8,938 244,020 50 145

(1) Idaho Power’s share of nameplate capacity.
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(2) Pursuant to an agreement with NV Energy, Idaho Power ceased participation in coal-fired operations of North Valmy in December 2019 at unit 1. Idaho Power's 2023 IRP
identified a preferred resource portfolio and action plan that includes the conversion of the two generating units at the North Valmy plant from coal to natural gas in 2026.

IERCo, Idaho Power’s wholly-owned subsidiary, is a joint-owner of BCC. Idaho Power’s coal purchases from BCC were $ 51.6 million in 2024, $ 67.9
million in 2023, and $ 60.4 million in 2022.

13. ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATIONS (ARO)

The guidance relating to accounting for AROs requires that legal obligations associated with the retirement of property, plant, and equipment be
recognized as a liability at fair value when incurred and when a reasonable estimate of the fair value of the liability can be made. Under the guidance,
when a liability is initially recorded, the entity increases the carrying amount of the related long-lived asset to reflect the future retirement cost. Over time,
the liability is accreted to its estimated settlement value and paid, and the capitalized cost is depreciated over the useful life of the related asset. If, at the
end of the asset's life, the recorded liability differs from the actual obligations paid, a gain or loss would be recognized. As a rate-regulated entity, Idaho
Power defers accretion, depreciation, and gains or losses as regulatory assets, as approved by the IPUC, until such ARO costs are included in customer
rates for collection. The regulatory assets recorded under this order do not earn a return on investment.

Idaho Power’s recorded AROs relate to the reclamation and removal costs at its jointly-owned coal-fired generation facilities.

Idaho Power also has additional AROs associated with its transmission system and generation facilities; however, due to the indeterminate removal date,
the fair value of the associated liabilities currently cannot be estimated and no amounts are recognized in the consolidated financial statements.

Idaho Power also collects removal costs in rates for certain assets that do not have associated AROs. Idaho Power is required to classify these removal
costs as regulatory liabilities , see Note 3 - "Regulatory Matters" for the removal costs recorded as regulatory liabilities on IDACORP’s and Idaho Power's

consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2024 and 2023.

The following table presents the changes in the carrying amount of AROs (in thousands of dollars):

2024 2023
Balance at beginning of year $ 48,997 $ 37,557
Accretion expense 1,895 1,176
Revisions in estimated cash flows 842 11,348
Liability settled (608) (1,084)
Balance at end of year $ 51,126 $ 48,997

14. INVESTMENTS

The table below summarizes IDACORP’s and Idaho Power’s investments as of December 31 (in thousands of dollars):

2024 2023

Idaho Power investments:
BCC (equity method investment) $ 20,998 $ 24,078
Exchange traded short-term bond funds and cash equivalents 38,873 36,617
Held-to-Maturity securities 32,151 31,639
Executive deferred compensation plan investments 899 703
Total Idaho Power investments 92,921 93,037
IFS investments in real estate tax credit projects, such as affordable housing developments 54,654 57,286
lda-West joint ventures (equity method investments) 9,666 9,897
Other investments 4,099 3,751
Total IDACORP investments $ 161,340 $ 163,971
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Equity Method Investments

Idaho Power, through its subsidiary IERCo, is a 33 percent owner of BCC. Ida-West, through separate subsidiaries, owns 50 percent of three electric
generation projects that are accounted for using the equity method: South Forks Joint Venture, Hazelton/Wilson Joint Venture, and Snow Mountain
Hydro LLC. All projects are reviewed periodically for impairment. The table below presents IDACORP’s and Idaho Power's earnings of unconsolidated
equity-method investments (in thousands of dollars):

2024 2023 2022
BCC (Idaho Power) $ 2671 $ 10540 $ 10,211
Ida-West joint ventures 1,868 1,886 1,300
Total $ 4539 $ 12,426 $ 11,511

Investments in Equity Securities

Investments in equity securities are reported at fair value. Any unrealized gains or losses on equity securities are included in income. Unrealized gains
and losses on equity securities were immaterial at December 31, 2024 and 2023. There were no gross realized gains or losses from the sale of equity
securities in 2024, 2023, and 2022.

Held-to-Maturity Securities

Idaho Power has a rabbi trust designated to provide funding for obligations related to the SMSP. During 2024 and 2023, the rabbi trust purchased $ 1.8
million and $ 1.6 million, respectively of held-to-maturity investments in corporate fixed-income and asset-backed debt securities. Substantially all of
these debt securities mature between 2027 and 2037. Held-to-maturity investments are carried at amortized cost, reflecting Idaho Power’s ability and
intent to hold the securities to maturity. Held-to-maturity investments are adjusted for the amortization or accretion of premiums or discounts, which are
amortized or accreted over the life of the related held-to-maturity security. Such amortization and accretion are included in the “Other income, net” line in
the consolidated statements of income. Due to increases in market interest rates in 2024 and 2023, all held-to-maturity securities were in a gross
unrealized holding loss position totaling $ 2.7 million and $ 3.3 million at December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively. Based on ongoing credit evaluations
of these holdings, Idaho Power does not expect material payment defaults or delinquencies and has not recorded an allowance for credit losses for these
securities as of December 31, 2024 and 2023.

IDACORP Financial Services Investments

IFS invests primarily in real estate tax credit projects, such as affordable housing developments, which provide a return principally by reducing federal
and state income taxes through tax credits and accelerated tax depreciation benefits. IFS has focused on a diversified approach to its investment
strategy in order to limit both geographic and operational risk, with most of IFS’s investments having been made through syndicated funds. IDACORP
accounts for its equity-method investments in qualified real estate projects using the proportional amortization method and recognizes the net investment
performance in the consolidated statements of income as a component of income tax expense.

15. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Commodity Price Risk

Idaho Power is exposed to market risk relating to electricity, natural gas, and other fuel commodity prices, all of which are heavily influenced by supply
and demand. Market risk may be influenced by market participants’ nonperformance of their contractual obligations and commitments, which affects the
supply of or demand for the commodity. Idaho Power uses derivative instruments, such as physical and financial forward contracts, for both electricity
and fuel to manage the risks relating to these commodity price exposures. The primary objectives of Idaho Power’s energy purchase and sale activity are
to meet the demand of retail electric customers, maintain appropriate physical reserves to ensure reliability, and make economic use of temporary
surpluses that may develop.

All of Idaho Power's derivative instruments have been entered into for the purpose of securing energy resources for future periods or economically
hedging forecasted purchases and sales, though none of these instruments have been designated as cash flow hedges. Idaho Power offsets fair value
amounts recognized on its balance sheet and applies collateral related to derivative instruments executed with the same counterparty under the same
master netting agreement. Idaho Power does not offset a
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counterparty's current derivative contracts with the counterparty's long-term derivative contracts, although Idaho Power's master netting arrangements
would allow current and long-term positions to be offset in the event of default. Also, in the event of default, Idaho Power's master netting arrangements
would allow for the offsetting of all transactions executed under the master netting arrangement. These types of transactions may include non-derivative
instruments, derivatives qualifying for scope exceptions, receivables and payables arising from settled positions, and other forms of non-cash collateral
(such as letters of credit). These types of transactions are excluded from the offsetting presented in the derivative fair value and offsetting table that
follows.

The table below presents the gains and losses on derivatives not designated as hedging instruments for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023, and
2022 (in thousands of dollars):

Location of Realized Gain/(Loss) on Gain/(Loss) on Derivatives Recognized in Income @

Derivatives Recognized in Income 2024 2023 2022
Financial swaps Operating revenues $ 5189 $ 4216 $ (6,249)
Financial swaps Purchased power (7,101) (8,542) 2,373
Financial swaps Fuel expense (63,380) (16,209) 68,489
Forward contracts Operating revenues 1,885 2,280 1,090
Forward contracts Purchased power (3,742) (4,035) (2,994)
Forward contracts Fuel expense (2,510) (866) (136)

(1) Excludes unrealized gains or losses on derivatives, which are recorded on the balance sheet as regulatory assets or regulatory liabilities.

Settlement gains and losses on electricity swap contracts are recorded on the income statement in operating revenues or purchased power depending on
the forecasted position being economically hedged by the derivative contract. Settlement gains and losses on contracts for natural gas are reflected in
fuel expense. Settlement gains and losses on diesel derivatives are recorded in other O&M expense. See Note 16 - "Fair Value Measurements" for
additional information concerning the determination of fair value for Idaho Power’s assets and liabilities from price risk management activities.

Credit Risk

At December 31, 2024, Idaho Power did not have material credit risk exposure from financial instruments, including derivatives. Idaho Power monitors
credit risk exposure through reviews of counterparty credit quality, corporate-wide counterparty credit exposure, and corporate-wide counterparty
concentration levels. ldaho Power manages these risks by establishing credit and concentration limits on transactions with counterparties and requiring
contractual guarantees, cash deposits, bonds, or letters of credit from counterparties or their affiliates, as deemed necessary. Idaho Power’s physical
power contracts are commonly under WSPP, Inc. agreements, physical gas contracts are usually under North American Energy Standards Board
contracts, and financial transactions are usually under International Swaps and Derivatives Association, Inc. contracts. These contracts typically contain
adequate assurance clauses requiring collateralization if a counterparty has debt that is downgraded below investment grade by at least one rating
agency.

Credit-Contingent Features

Certain of Idaho Power's derivative instruments contain provisions that require Idaho Power's unsecured debt to maintain an investment grade credit
rating from Moody's and Standard & Poor's Ratings Services. If Idaho Power's unsecured debt were to fall below investment grade, it would be in
violation of these provisions, and the counterparties to the derivative instruments could request immediate payment or demand immediate and ongoing
full overnight collateralization on derivative instruments in net liability positions. The aggregate fair value of all derivative instruments with credit-risk-
related contingent features that were in a liability position at December 31, 2024, was $ 34.3 million. Idaho Power posted $ 25.1 million cash collateral
related to this amount. If the credit-risk-related contingent features underlying these agreements were triggered on December 31, 2024, Idaho Power
would have been required to pay or post collateral to its counterparties up to an additional $ 36.4 million to cover open liability positions as well as
completed transactions that have not yet been paid.
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Derivative Instrument Summary

The table below presents the fair values and locations of derivative instruments not designated as hedging instruments recorded on the balance sheets
and reconciles the gross amounts of derivatives recognized as assets and as liabilities to the net amounts presented in the balance sheets at
December 31, 2024 and 2023 (in thousands of dollars):

Asset Derivatives Liability Derivatives
Gross Fair Amounts Net Gross Amounts
Balance Sheet Location Value Offset Assets  Fair Value Offset Net Liabilities
December 31, 2024
Current:
Financial swaps Other current liabilities 3,072 (3,072) — 18,092 (14,931) 3,161
Forward contracts Other current liabilities — — — 1,291 — 1,291
Long-term:
Financial swaps Other assets 1,939 (1,939) — 409 (409) —
Financial swaps Other liabilities 177 (177) — 1,019 (177) 842
Forward contracts Other liabilities — — — 10,965 — 10,965
Total $ 518 $ (5,188) $ — $ 31,776 $ (15517) $ 16,259
December 31, 2023
Current:
Financial swaps Other current assets $ 241 $ (169) $ 72 % 169 $ (169) $ =
Financial swaps Other current liabilities 1,476 (1,476) — 41,977 (38,045) (3 3,932
Forward contracts Other current liabilities — — — 2,000 — 2,000
Long-term:
Financial swaps Other assets 106 (89) 17 89 (89) —
Financial swaps Other liabilities 376 (376) — 2,123 (2,123) 4 —
Total $ 2199 $ (2110) $ 89 $ 46,358 $ (40,426) $ 5,932

(1) Current liability derivative amounts offset include $ 11.9 million of collateral receivable at December 31, 2024.
(2) Long-term asset derivative amounts offset include $ 1.5 million of collateral payable at December 31, 2024.
(3) Current liability derivative amounts offset include $ 36.6 million of collateral receivable at December 31, 2023.

(4) Long-term liability derivative amounts offset include $ 1.7 million of collateral receivable at December 31, 2023.

The table below presents the volumes of derivative commodity forward contracts and swaps outstanding at December 31, 2024 and 2023 (in thousands
of units):

December 31,

Commodity Units 2024 2023
Electricity purchases MWh 161 440
Electricity sales MWh 16 57
Natural gas purchases MMBtu 88,330 24,593

16. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

IDACORP and Idaho Power have categorized their financial instruments into a three-level fair value hierarchy, based on the priority of the inputs to the
valuation technique. The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1) and the
lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3). If the inputs used to measure the financial instruments fall within different levels of the hierarchy, the

categorization is based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement of the instrument.

Financial assets and liabilities recorded on the consolidated balance sheets are categorized based on the inputs to the valuation techniques as follows:
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* Level 1: Financial assets and liabilities whose values are based on unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in an active market
that IDACORP and Idaho Power have the ability to access.

« Level 2: Financial assets and liabilities whose values are based on the following:
a) quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets;
b) quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in non-active markets;
¢) pricing models whose inputs are observable for substantially the full term of the asset or liability; and
d) pricing models whose inputs are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data through correlation or other means for
substantially the full term of the asset or liability.

IDACORP and Idaho Power Level 2 inputs for derivative instruments are based on quoted market prices adjusted for location using corroborated,
observable market data or using quoted price which may be in non-active markets.

¢ Level 3: Financial assets and liabilities whose values are based on prices or valuation techniques that require inputs that are both unobservable
and significant to the overall fair value measurement. These inputs reflect management’s own assumptions about the assumptions a market
participant would use in pricing the asset or liability.

IDACORP’s and Idaho Power’s assessment of a particular input's significance to the fair value measurement requires judgment and may affect the
valuation of fair value assets and liabilities and their placement within the fair value hierarchy. There were no transfers between levels or material
changes in valuation techniques or inputs during the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023.

Certain instruments have been valued using NAV as a practical expedient. The NAV is generally not published and publicly available, nor are these
instruments traded on an exchange. Instruments valued using NAV as a practical expedient are included in the fair value disclosures below; however, in
accordance with GAAP are not classified within the fair value hierarchy levels.

The following table presents information about IDACORP’s and Idaho Power’s assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of
December 31, 2024 and 2023 (in thousands of dollars):

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets:
Money market funds and commercial paper
IDACORP® $ 146,308 $ — 3 — $146,308 $ 32472 $ — % — $ 32472
Idaho Power 158,999 — — 158,999 230,600 — — 230,600
Derivatives — — — — 89 — — 89
Equity securities 39,772 — — 39,772 37,320 — — 37,320
IDACORP assets measured at NAV (not subject to
hierarchy disclosure)® — — — 4,099 — — — 3,751
Liabilities:
Derivatives $ 4003 $ 12256 $ — $ 16259 $ 3932 $ 2000 $ — $ 5932

(1) Holding company only. Does not include amounts held by Idaho Power.

Idaho Power’s derivatives are contracts entered into as part of its management of loads and resources. Electricity swap derivatives are valued on the
Intercontinental Exchange (ICE) with quoted prices in an active market. Electricity forward contract derivatives are valued using a blend of two electricity
exchanges, adjusted for location basis, as specified in the forward contract. Natural gas and diesel derivatives are valued using New York Mercantile
Exchange (NYMEX) and ICE pricing, adjusted for location basis, which are also quoted under NYMEX and ICE pricing. Equity securities at Idaho Power
consist of employee-directed investments related to an executive deferred compensation plan and actively traded money market and exchange traded
funds related to the SMSP. The investments are measured using quoted prices in active markets and are held in a rabbi trust.
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The table below presents the carrying value and estimated fair value of financial instruments that are not reported at fair value, as of December 31, 2024
and 2023, using available market information and appropriate valuation methodologies (in thousands of dollars).

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Carrying Amount Estimated Fair Carrying Amount Estimated Fair
Value Value
IDACORP
Assets:
Notes receivable® $ 2,155 $ 2,155 $ 3038 $ 3,038
Held-to-maturity securities® 32,151 29,428 31,639 28,341
Liabilities:
Long-term debt (including current portion)® 3,073,662 2,807,803 2,825,590 2,684,278
Idaho Power
Assets:
Held-to-maturity securities® $ 32,151 % 29,428 % 31,639 $ 28,341
Liabilities:
Long-term debt (including current portion)® 3,073,662 2,807,803 2,825,590 2,684,278

(1) Notes receivable are categorized as Level 3 and held-to-maturity securities and long-term debt are categorized as Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy, as defined earlier in this Note
16 - "Fair Value Measurements."

Notes receivable are related to Ida-West and are valued based on unobservable inputs, including forecasted cash flows, which are partially based on
expected hydropower conditions. Held-to-maturity securities are held in a rabbi trust and are generally valued using quoted prices, which may be in non-
active markets. Long-term debt is not traded on an exchange and is valued using quoted rates for similar debt in active markets. Carrying values for cash
and cash equivalents, deposits, customer and other receivables, notes payable, accounts payable, interest accrued, and taxes accrued approximate fair
value.

17. SEGMENT INFORMATION

IDACORP’s only reportable segment is utility operations. The utility operations segment’s primary source of revenue is the regulated operations of Idaho
Power. Idaho Power’s regulated operations include the generation, transmission, distribution, purchase, and sale of electricity. This segment also
includes income from IERCo, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Idaho Power that is also subject to regulation and is a one-third owner of BCC, an
unconsolidated investment.

IDACORP’s other operating segments are below the quantitative and qualitative thresholds for reportable segments and are included in the “All Other”
category in the table below. This category is comprised of IFS’s investments in affordable housing and other real estate tax credits, Ida-West's joint
venture investments in small hydropower generation projects, and IDACORP’s holding company expenses.

The President and Chief Executive Officer of IDACORP and Idaho Power is the companies' chief operating decision maker (CODM). The CODM uses
net income to monitor the utility segment's results, monitor and plan utility-specific regulatory strategy, allocate capital investments, and inform financing

decisions.

The CODM is regularly provided with segment expense information for utility operations at the same level of detail as presented in Idaho Power's
consolidated statements of income.
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The table below summarizes the segment information for IDACORP’s utility operations and the total of all other segments, and reconciles this information
to total enterprise amounts (in thousands):

Utility All Consolidated
Operations Other Eliminations Total

2024
Revenues $ 1,822,965 $ 3,668 $ — 3 1,826,633
Depreciation 223,410 — — 223,410
Operating income 328,183 (344) — 327,839
Other income, net 64,309 (303) — 64,006
Interest income including carrying charges on regulatory
assets 38,639 9,090 (3,244) 44,485
Equity-method income 2,671 1,868 — 4,539
Interest expense 135,516 3,593 (3,244) 135,865
Income before income taxes 298,286 6,718 — 305,004
Income tax expense (benefit) 17,681 (2,628) — 15,053
Net Income attributable to IDACORP, Inc. 280,605 8,569 — 289,174
Total assets 8,966,968 350,287 (77,892) 9,239,363
Expenditures for long-lived assets 1,009,138 141 — 1,009,279

2023
Revenues $ 1,762,894 $ 3,462 $ —  $ 1,766,356
Depreciation 195,341 — — 195,341
Operating income 313,379 98 — 313,477
Other income, net 51,424 (46) — 51,378
Interest income including carrying charges on regulatory
assets 26,509 4,688 (2,832) 28,365
Equity-method income 10,540 1,886 — 12,426
Interest expense 116,117 3,172 (2,832) 116,457
Income before income taxes 285,736 3,453 — 289,189
Income tax expense (benefit) 28,926 (1,630) — 27,296
Net Income attributable to IDACORP, Inc. 256,810 4,385 — 261,195
Total assets 8,323,531 228,681 (76,294) 8,475,918
Expenditures for long-lived assets 610,913 224 — 611,137

2022
Revenues $ 1,641,040 $ 2941 $ — 5 1,643,981
Depreciation 170,077 — — 170,077
Operating income 327,170 8 — 327,178
Other income, net 33,876 (187) — 33,689
Interest income including carrying charges on regulatory
assets 12,556 2,776 (931) 14,401
Equity-method income 10,211 1,300 — 11,511
Interest expense 89,038 1,268 (931) 89,375
Income before income taxes 294,775 2,629 — 297,404
Income tax expense (benefit) 39,908 (2,064) — 37,844
Net Income attributable to IDACORP, Inc. 254,867 4,115 — 258,982
Total assets 7,411,104 245,762 (113,608) 7,543,258
Expenditures for long-lived assets 432,430 159 — 432,589
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18. OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSE

The following table presents the components of IDACORP’s other income, net and Idaho Power's other income, net (in thousands of dollars):

IDACORP 2024 2023 2022
Interest and dividend income, net 22,577 $ 15,266 $ 5,952
Carrying charges on regulatory assets 21,908 13,099 7,032
Pension and postretirement non-service costs (8,077) (6,513) (9,196)
Income from life insurance investments 10,186 8,384 7,107
Other income 8,659 6,286 (90)
Total other income, net 55,253 $ 36,522 % 10,805
Idaho Power
Interest and dividend income, net 16,731 $ 13,410 $ 4,094
Carrying charges on regulatory assets 21,908 13,099 7,032
Pension and postretirement non-service costs (8,077) (6,513) (9,196)
Income from life insurance investments 10,186 8,384 7,012
Other income 8,962 6,333 205
Total other income, net 49,710 $ 34,713 % 9,147

19. CHANGES IN ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Comprehensive income includes net income and amounts related to the SMSP. The table below presents changes in components of AOCI, net of tax,
during the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022 (in thousands of dollars). ltems in parentheses indicate reductions to AOCI.

Year Ended December 31,

2024 2023 2022
Defined benefit pension items
Balance at beginning of period (17,184) $ (12922) $ (140,040)
Other comprehensive income before reclassifications, net of tax of $ 851 , $( 1,680 ), and
$ 8,239 2,454 (4,848) 23,770
Amounts reclassified out of AOCI to net income, net of tax of $ 394 , $ 203, and $ 1,160 1,138 586 3,348
Net current-period other comprehensive income 3,592 (4,262) 27,118
Balance at end of period (13592) $ (17,184) $ (12,922)

128



Table of Contents

The table below presents the effects on net income of amounts reclassified out of components of AOCI and the income statement location of those
amounts reclassified during the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022 (in thousands of dollars). Items in parentheses indicate increases to
net income.
Amount Reclassified from AOCI
Year Ended December 31,

2024 2023 2022

Amortization of defined benefit pension items (1)

Prior service cost $ 220 % 219 $ 279

Net loss 1,312 570 4,229
Total before tax 1,532 789 4,508
Tax benefit@ (394) (203) (1,160)

Net of tax 1,138 586 3,348
Total reclassification for the period $ 1,138 $ 586 $ 3,348

(1) Amortization of these items is included in "Other (income) expense, net" in the consolidated income statements of both IDACORP and Idaho Power.

(2) The tax benefit is included in "Income tax expense" in the consolidated income statements of both IDACORP and Idaho Power .

20. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

IDACORP: Idaho Power performs corporate functions such as financial, legal, and management services for IDACORP and its subsidiaries. Idaho Power
charges IDACORP for the costs of these services based on service agreements and other specifically identified costs. For these services, Idaho Power
billed IDACORP $ 1.1 million in 2024, $ 1.1 million in 2023, and $ 0.9 million in 2022.

At December 31, 2024 and 2023, Idaho Power had a $ 3.2 million and $ 16.2 million payable to IDACORP, respectively, which was included in its
accounts payable to affiliates balance on its consolidated balance sheets. At December 31, 2023, the payable was primarily related to income tax

payments. At IDACORP, the receivable from Idaho Power is eliminated in consolidation.

Ida-West: |Idaho Power purchases all of the power generated by four of Ida-West's 50 percent owned PURPA-qualifying hydropower projects located in
Idaho. Idaho Power purchased $ 9.6 million in 2024, $ 9.1 million in 2023, and $ 7.9 million in 2022 of power from Ida-West.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the shareholders and the Board of Directors of IDACORP, Inc.

Opinion on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of IDACORP, Inc. and subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of December 31, 2024 and
2023, the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, equity, and cash flows, for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2024, and the related notes and the schedules listed in the Index at Item 8 (collectively referred to as the "financial statements"). In our
opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, and the
results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2024, in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB), the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2024, based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013) issued
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated February 20, 2025, expressed an unqualified opinion
on the Company'’s internal control over financial reporting.

Basis for Opinion

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's financial
statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are required to be independent with respect to the
Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and
the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. Our audits included
performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures
that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Critical Audit Matter

The critical audit matter communicated below is a matter arising from the current-period audit of the financial statements that was communicated or
required to be communicated to the audit committee and that (1) relates to accounts or disclosures that are material to the financial statements and (2)
involved our especially challenging, subjective, or complex judgments. The communication of critical audit matters does not alter in any way our opinion
on the financial statements, taken as a whole, and we are not, by communicating the critical audit matter below, providing a separate opinion on the
critical audit matter or on the accounts or disclosures to which it relates.

Regulation of Utility Operations - Refer to Notes 1 and 3 to the financial statements

Critical Audit Matter Description

Idaho Power Company ("ldaho Power"), the principal operating subsidiary of the Company, is subject to rate regulation by the Federal Energy Regulatory
Commission and the Idaho and Oregon Public Utility Commissions (the “Commissions”), which have jurisdiction with respect to the rates of electric
distribution companies in Idaho and Oregon. Management has determined it meets the requirements under accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America to prepare its financial statements applying the specialized rules to account for the effects of cost-based rate regulation.
Accounting for the economics of rate regulation impacts multiple financial statement line items and disclosures, such as property, plant, and equipment;
regulatory assets and liabilities; operating revenues; operation and maintenance expense; depreciation expense; and income tax expense.
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Idaho Power’s rates are subject to regulatory rate-setting processes. Regulatory decisions can have an impact on the recovery of costs, the rate of return
earned on investment, and the timing and amount of assets to be recovered by rates. The Commissions’ regulation of rates is premised on the full
recovery of prudently incurred costs and a reasonable rate of return on invested capital. While the Company has indicated it expects Idaho Power to
recover costs from customers through regulated rates, there is a risk that the Commissions will not approve: (1) full recovery of the costs of providing
utility service, or (2) full recovery of all amounts invested in the utility business and a reasonable return on that investment.

Additionally, consistent with orders and directives of the Commissions, unless contrary to applicable income tax guidance, Idaho Power does not record
deferred income tax expense or benefit for certain income tax temporary differences and instead recognizes the tax impact currently (commonly referred
to as flow-through accounting) for rate making and financial reporting. Therefore, Idaho Power's effective income tax rate is impacted as these differences
arise and reverse. ldaho Power recognizes such adjustments as regulatory assets or liabilities if it is probable that such amounts will be recovered from or
returned to customers in future rates.

We identified the impact of rate regulation as a critical audit matter due to the complexity in applying the specialized rules to account for the effects of
cost-based rate regulation and the recording of regulatory assets and liabilities. Given that complexity, performing audit procedures to evaluate the
Company’s application of the specialized rules to account for the effects of cost-based rate regulation and the recording of regulatory assets and liabilities
required specialized knowledge of accounting for rate regulation and the rate setting process.

How the Critical Audit Matter Was Addressed in the Audit

Our audit procedures related to the specialized rules to account for the effects of cost-based rate regulation, including the application of flow-through
accounting for income taxes included the following, among others:

« We tested the effectiveness of management’s controls over the recording of regulatory assets and liabilities in accordance with specialized rules to
account for the effects of cost-based rate regulation.

*  We evaluated the Company’s disclosures related to the impacts of rate regulation, including the balances recorded and regulatory developments.

* For selected regulatory assets and liabilities, we evaluated whether management had determined such amounts in accordance with regulatory orders
and whether it was probable that such amounts will be recovered from or returned to customers in future rates.

*  We read relevant regulatory orders issued by the Commissions for Idaho Power and evaluated whether such orders were appropriately reflected in
the Company's financial statements.

¢ With the assistance of income tax specialists, we evaluated whether management had appropriately identified the income tax timing differences
eligible for flow-through accounting and recorded such differences as adjustments to income tax expense and regulatory assets.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Boise, Idaho
February 20, 2025

We have served as the Company's auditor since 1932.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the shareholder and the Board of Directors of Idaho Power Company
Opinion on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Idaho Power Company and subsidiary (the “Company”) as of December 31, 2024
and 2023, the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, retained earnings, and cash flows, for each of the three years in the
period ended December 31, 2024, and the related notes and the schedule listed in the Index at Item 8 (collectively referred to as the "financial
statements"). In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of December 31,
2024 and 2023, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2024, in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB), the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2024, based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013) issued
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated February 20, 2025, expressed an unqualified opinion
on the Company'’s internal control over financial reporting.

Basis for Opinion

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's financial
statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are required to be independent with respect to the
Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and
the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. Our audits included
performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures
that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Critical Audit Matter

The critical audit matter communicated below is a matter arising from the current-period audit of the financial statements that was communicated or
required to be communicated to the audit committee and that (1) relates to accounts or disclosures that are material to the financial statements and (2)
involved our especially challenging, subjective, or complex judgments. The communication of critical audit matters does not alter in any way our opinion
on the financial statements, taken as a whole, and we are not, by communicating the critical audit matter below, providing a separate opinion on the
critical audit matter or on the accounts or disclosures to which it relates.

Regulation of Utility Operations - Refer to Notes 1 and 3 to the financial statements
Critical Audit Matter Description

The Company is subject to rate regulation by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission and the Idaho and Oregon Public Utility Commissions (the
“Commissions”), which have jurisdiction with respect to the rates of electric distribution companies in Idaho and Oregon. Management has determined it
meets the requirements under accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America to prepare its financial statements applying the
specialized rules to account for the effects of cost-based rate regulation. Accounting for the economics of rate regulation impacts multiple financial
statement line items and disclosures, such as property, plant, and equipment; regulatory assets and liabilities; operating revenues; operation and
maintenance expense; depreciation expense; and income tax expense.

The Company'’s rates are subject to regulatory rate-setting processes. Regulatory decisions can have an impact on the recovery of costs, the rate of
return earned on investment, and the timing and amount of assets to be recovered by rates. The
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Commissions’ regulation of rates is premised on the full recovery of prudently incurred costs and a reasonable rate of return on invested capital. While
the Company has indicated it expects to recover costs from customers through regulated rates, there is a risk that the Commissions will not approve: (1)
full recovery of the costs of providing utility service, or (2) full recovery of all amounts invested in the utility business and a reasonable return on that
investment.

Additionally, consistent with orders and directives of the Commissions, unless contrary to applicable income tax guidance, the Company does not record
deferred income tax expense or benefit for certain income tax temporary differences and instead recognizes the tax impact currently (commonly referred
to as flow-through accounting) for rate making and financial reporting. Therefore, the Company's effective income tax rate is impacted as these
differences arise and reverse. The Company recognizes such adjustments as regulatory assets or liabilities if it is probable that such amounts will be
recovered from or returned to customers in future rates.

We identified the impact of rate regulation as a critical audit matter due to the complexity in applying the specialized rules to account for the effects of
cost-based rate regulation and the recording of regulatory assets and liabilities. Given that complexity, performing audit procedures to evaluate the
Company's application of the specialized rules to account for the effects of cost-based rate regulation and the recording of regulatory assets and liabilities
required specialized knowledge of accounting for rate regulation and the rate setting process.

How the Critical Audit Matter Was Addressed in the Audit

Our audit procedures related to the specialized rules to account for the effects of cost-based rate regulation, including the application of flow-through
accounting for income taxes, included the following, among others:

* We tested the effectiveness of management'’s controls over the recording of regulatory assets and liabilities in accordance with specialized rules to
account for the effects of cost-based rate regulation.

¢« We evaluated the Company'’s disclosures related to the impacts of rate regulation, including the balances recorded and regulatory developments.

¢ For selected regulatory assets and liabilities, we evaluated whether management had determined such amounts in accordance with regulatory orders
and whether it was probable that such amounts will be recovered from or returned to customers in future rates.

¢ We read relevant regulatory orders issued by the Commissions for the Company and evaluated whether such orders were appropriately reflected in
the Company's financial statements.

* With the assistance of income tax specialists, we evaluated whether management had appropriately identified the income tax timing differences
eligible for flow-through accounting and recorded such differences as adjustments to income tax expense and regulatory assets.

/sl DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Boise, Idaho
February 20, 2025

We have served as the Company's auditor since 1932.
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
None.
ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Disclosure Controls and Procedures - IDACORP, Inc.

The Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of IDACORP, based on their evaluation of IDACORP’s disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(e)) as of December 31, 2024, have concluded that IDACORP’s disclosure controls and procedures are effective as
of that date.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting - IDACORP, Inc.
Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The management of IDACORP is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting for IDACORP. Internal
control over financial reporting is defined in Rule 13a-15(f) promulgated under the Exchange Act as a process designed by, or under the supervision of,
the company’s principal executive and principal financial officers and effected by the company’s board of directors, management and other personnel, to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and includes those policies and procedures that:

¢ pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company;

¢ provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with the authorizations of management and directors of the company; and

*  provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of the company’s assets
that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

IDACORP’s management assessed the effectiveness of the company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2024. In making this
assessment, the company’s management used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission in

Internal Control-Integrated Framework (2013).

Based on its assessment, management concluded that, as of December 31, 2024, IDACORP's internal control over financial reporting is effective based
on those criteria.

IDACORP’s independent registered public accounting firm has audited the financial statements included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2024, and issued a report, which appears on the next page and expresses an unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of

IDACORP’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2024.

February 20, 2025
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the shareholders and the Board of Directors of
IDACORP, Inc.

Opinion on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

We have audited the internal control over financial reporting of IDACORP, Inc. and subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of December 31, 2024, based on
criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
(COSO0). In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2024,
based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013) issued by COSO.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB), the consolidated
financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2024, of the Company and our report dated February 20, 2025, expressed an unqualified
opinion on those financial statements.

Basis for Opinion

The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying Management’'s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit. We are a public accounting firm
registered with the PCAOB and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the
applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included
obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in
the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Definition and Limitations of Internal Control over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures
of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material
effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

/sl DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Boise, Idaho
February 20, 2025
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Disclosure Controls and Procedures - Idaho Power Company

The Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of Idaho Power, based on their evaluation of Idaho Power's disclosure controls and procedures
(as defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(e)) as of December 31, 2024, have concluded that Idaho Power's disclosure controls and procedures are
effective as of that date.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting - Idaho Power Company
Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The management of Idaho Power is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting of Idaho Power.
Internal control over financial reporting is defined in Rule 13a-15(f) promulgated under the Exchange Act as a process designed by, or under the
supervision of, the company’s principal executive and principal financial officers and effected by the company’s board of directors, management and other
personnel, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and includes those policies and procedures that:

¢ pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company;

¢ provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with the authorizations of management and directors of the company; and

«  provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of the company’s assets
that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Idaho Power’s management assessed the effectiveness of the company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2024. In making
this assessment, the company’s management used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission in

Internal Control-Integrated Framework (2013).

Based on its assessment, management concluded that, as of December 31, 2024, Idaho Power’s internal control over financial reporting is effective
based on those criteria.

Idaho Power’s independent registered public accounting firm has audited the financial statements included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2024, and issued a report which appears on the next page and expresses an unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of Idaho

Power’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2024.

February 20, 2025
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the shareholder and the Board of Directors of
Idaho Power Company

Opinion on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

We have audited the internal control over financial reporting of Idaho Power Company and subsidiary (the “Company”) as of December 31, 2024, based
on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (COSO). In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2024, based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013) issued by COSO.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB), the consolidated
financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2024, of the Company and our report dated February 20, 2025, expressed an unqualified
opinion on those financial statements.

Basis for Opinion

The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying Management’'s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company'’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit. We are a public accounting firm
registered with the PCAOB and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the
applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included
obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in
the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Definition and Limitations of Internal Control over Financial Reporting

A company'’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures
of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material
effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Boise, Idaho
February 20, 2025
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Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting - IDACORP, Inc. and Idaho Power Company

There have been no changes in IDACORP’s or Idaho Power’s internal control over financial reporting during the quarter ended December 31, 2024, that
have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, IDACORP’s or Idaho Power's internal control over financial reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
During the three months ended December 31, 2024, none of IDACORP's or Idaho Power's directors or officers (as defined in
Rule 16a-1(f) of the Exchange Act) adopted , terminated , or modified a Rule 10b5-1 trading arrangement or non-Rule 10b5-1 trading arrangement (as
such terms are defined in Item 408 of Regulation S-K).
ITEM 9C. DISCLOSURE REGARDING FOREIGN JURISDICTIONS THAT PREVENT INSPECTIONS
Not applicable.
PARTIII
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS, AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The portions of IDACORP’s definitive proxy statement appearing under the captions “Proposal No. 1: Election of Directors,” “Board of Directors -
Committees of the Board of Directors - Audit Committee,” “Corporate Governance at IDACORP - Codes of Business Conduct,” “Corporate Governance at
IDACORP - Insider Trading Policy,” and "Corporate Governance at IDACORP - Certain Relationships and Related Transactions" to be filed pursuant to
Regulation 14A for the 2025 annual meeting of shareholders are hereby incorporated by reference. Information regarding IDACORP’s executive officers
required by this item appears in Item 1 of this report under “Executive Officers of the Registrants.”

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The portion of IDACORP'’s definitive proxy statement appearing under the caption “Executive Compensation” to be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A for
the 2025 annual meeting of shareholders is hereby incorporated by reference.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS
The portion of IDACORP'’s definitive proxy statement appearing under the caption “Security Ownership of Directors, Executive Officers, and More than

Five-Percent Shareholders” to be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A for the 2025 annual meeting of shareholders is hereby incorporated by reference. The
table below includes information as of December 31, 2024, with respect to the LTICP pursuant to which equity securities of IDACORP may be issued.
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(c)
(a) (b) Number of securities remaining
Number of securities to Weighted-average available for future issuance
be issued upon exercise exercise price of under equity compensation
of outstanding options, outstanding options, plans (excluding securities
Plan Category warrants and rights warrants and rights reflected in column (a))
Equity compensation plans approved by " @ @
shareholders 282,210 $ — 110,302
Equity compensation plans not approved by
shareholders — $ — —
Total 282,210 $ = 110,302

(1) Represents shares subject to outstanding time-based restricted stock units, performance-based restricted stock units (at target), and deferred director stock unit awards, all

under the LTICP. Such awards may be settled only for shares of common stock on a one-for-one basis.
(2) None of the outstanding awards included in column (a) have an exercise price.

(3) Shares under the LTICP may be issued in connection with stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock, restricted stock units, performance units, performance

shares, or other equity-based awards.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE
The portions of IDACORP’s definitive proxy statement appearing under the captions “Certain Relationships and Related Transactions” and “Corporate
Governance at IDACORP — Director Independence and Executive Sessions” to be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A for the 2025 annual meeting of
shareholders are hereby incorporated by reference.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

IDACORP: The portion of IDACORP’s definitive proxy statement appearing under the caption “Independent Accountant Billings” in the proxy statement to
be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A for the 2025 annual meeting of shareholders is hereby incorporated by reference.

Idaho Power: The table below presents the aggregate fees of Idaho Power's principal independent registered public accounting firm, Deloitte & Touche
LLP, billed or expected to be billed to Idaho Power for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023:

2024 2023
Audit fees $ 1,794,973 $ 1,836,595
Audit-related fees® — —
Tax fees® — —
All other fees®@ 4,415 5,806
Total $ 1,799,388 $ 1,842,401

(1) Includes fees for consultation related to tax planning and accounting.

(2) Accounting research tool subscription and fees for finance and accounting conference attendance.

Policy on Audit Committee Pre-Approval:

Idaho Power and the audit committee are committed to ensuring the independence of the independent registered public accounting firm, both in fact and
in appearance. In this regard, the audit committee has established and periodically reviews a pre-approval policy for audit and non-audit services. For
2024 and 2023, all audit and non-audit services and all fees paid in connection with those services were pre-approved by the audit committee.

In addition to the audits of Idaho Power's consolidated financial statements, the independent public accounting firm may be engaged to provide certain
audit-related, tax, and other services. The audit committee must pre-approve all services performed by the independent public accounting firm to assure
that the provision of those services does not impair the public accounting firm’s independence. The services that the audit committee will consider
include: audit services such as attest services, changes in the scope of the audit of the financial statements, and the issuance of comfort letters and
consents in connection with financings; audit-related services such as internal control reviews and assistance with internal control reporting
requirements;
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attest services related to financial reporting that are not required by statute or regulation, and accounting consultations and audits related to proposed
transactions and new or proposed accounting rules, standards and interpretations; and tax compliance and planning services. Unless a type of service to
be provided by the independent public accounting firm has received general pre-approval, it will require specific pre-approval by the audit committee. In
addition, any proposed services exceeding pre-approved cost levels will require specific pre-approval by the audit committee. Under the pre-approval
policy, the audit committee has delegated to the Chair of the audit committee pre-approval authority for proposed services; however, the Chair must
report any pre-approval decisions to the audit committee at its next scheduled meeting.

Any request to engage the independent public accounting firm to provide a service which has not received general pre-approval must be submitted as a
written proposal to Idaho Power’s Chief Financial Officer with a copy to the General Counsel. The request must include a detailed description of the
service to be provided, the proposed fee, and the business reasons for engaging the independent public accounting firm to provide the service. Upon
approval by the Chief Financial Officer, the General Counsel, and the independent public accounting firm that the proposed engagement complies with
the terms of the pre-approval policy and the applicable rules and regulations, the request will be presented to the audit committee or the audit committee
Chair, as the case may be, for pre-approval.

In determining whether to pre-approve the engagement of the independent public accounting firm, the audit committee or the committee Chair, as the
case may be, must consider, among other things, the pre-approval policy, applicable rules and regulations, and whether the nature of the engagement
and the related fees are consistent with the following principles:

. the independent public accounting firm cannot function in the role of management of Idaho Power; and
. the independent public accounting firm cannot audit its own work.

The pre-approval policy and separate supplements to the pre-approval policy describe the specific audit, audit-related, tax, and other services that have
the general pre-approval of the audit committee. The term of any pre-approval is 12 months from the date of pre-approval, unless the audit committee
specifically provides for a different period. The audit committee will periodically revise the list of pre-approved services, based on subsequent
determinations.

PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(1) and (2) Refer to Part II, Item 8 - “Financial Statements” for a complete listing of consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedules.

(3) Exhibits. Note Regarding Reliance on Statements in Agreements : The agreements filed as exhibits to IDACORP's and Idaho Power's Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2024, are filed to provide information regarding their terms and are not intended to provide any
other factual or disclosure information about IDACORP, Inc., [daho Power Company, or the other parties to the agreements. Some of the agreements
contain statements, representations, and warranties by each of the parties to the applicable agreement. These representations and warranties have been
made solely for the benefit of the other parties to the applicable agreement and (a) in all instances should not be treated as categorical statements of fact,
but rather as a way of allocating the risk to one of the parties to the agreement if those statements prove to be inaccurate; (b) have been qualified by
disclosures that were made to the other party, which disclosures are not necessarily reflected in the agreement; (c) may apply standards of materiality in
a way that is different from what may be viewed as material to investors; and (d) were made only as of the date of the applicable agreement or such other
date or dates as may be specified in the agreement and are subject to more recent developments. Accordingly, readers should not rely upon the
statements, representations, or warranties made in the agreements.

Incorporated by Reference

Exhibit No. Exhibit Description Form File No. Exhibit No. Date Included
Herewith
2 Agreement and Plan of Exchange between IDACORP, Inc. and S-4 333-48031 A 3/16/1998
Idaho Power Company, dated as of February 2, 1998
3.1 Restated Articles of Incorporation of Idaho Power Company as S-3 Post- 33-00440* 4(a)(xiii) 6/30/1989
filed with the Secretary of State of Idaho on June 30, 1989 Effective
Amend. No. 2
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Incorporated by Reference

Exhibit Description Form

File No.

Exhibit No.

Date

Included
Herewith

3.2

3.3

3.4

35

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

3.11

3.12

3.13

3.14

4.1

4.2.1
4.2.2
4.2.3
4.2.4
425
4.2.6
4.2.7
4.2.8
4.2.9
4.2.10
4.2.11
4.2.12
4.2.13

Statement of Resolution Establishing Terms of Flexible Auction S-3
Series A, Serial Preferred Stock, Without Par Value (cumulative

stated value of $100,000 per share) of Idaho Power Company,

as filed with the Secretary of State of Idaho on November 5,

1991

Statement of Resolution Establishing Terms of 7.07% Serial S-3
Preferred Stock, Without Par Value (cumulative stated value of

$100 per share) of Idaho Power Company, as filed with the

Secretary of State of Idaho on June 30, 1993

Articles of Share Exchange, as filed with the Secretary of State of S-8 Post-
Idaho on September 29, 1998 Effective
Amend. No. 1

Articles of Amendment to Restated Articles of Incorporation of 10-Q

Idaho Power Company, as filed with the Secretary of State of
Idaho on June 15, 2000

Articles of Amendment to Restated Articles of Incorporation of 8-K
Idaho Power Company, as filed with the Secretary of State of

Idaho on January 21, 2005

Articles of Amendment to Restated Articles of Incorporation of 8-K

Idaho Power Company, as amended, as filed with the Secretary
of State of Idaho on November 19, 2007

Articles of Amendment to Restated Articles of Incorporation of 8-K
Idaho Power Company, as amended, as filed with the Secretary

of State of Idaho on May 18, 2012

Amended Bylaws of Idaho Power Company, amended on 8-K
November 15, 2007 and presently in effect

Articles of Incorporation of IDACORP, Inc. S-3 Amend.
No. 1

Articles of Amendment to Articles of Incorporation of IDACORP,  S-3 Amend.

Inc. as filed with the Secretary of State of Idaho on March 9 No. 1
1998

Articles of Amendment to Articles of Incorporation of IDACORP. S-3 Post-
Inc. creating A Series Preferred Stock, without par value, as filed Effective
with the Secretary of State of Idaho on September 17, 1998 Amend. No. 1
Articles of Amendment to Articles of Incorporation of IDACORP, 8-K

Inc., as amended, as filed with the Secretary of State of Idaho on

May 18, 2012

Amended and Restated Bylaws of IDACORP, Inc., effective as of 8-K
November 16, 2023 and presently in effect

Mortgage and Deed of Trust, dated as of October 1, 1937,

between Idaho Power Company and Deutsche Bank Trust

Company Americas (formerly known as Bankers Trust
Company) and R. G. Page, as Trustees

Idaho Power Company Supplemental Indentures to Mortgage
and Deed of Trust:

File number 1-MD, as Exhibit B-2-a, First, July 1, 1939*

File number 2-5395, as Exhibit 7-a-3, Second, November 15, 1943*
File number 2-7237, as Exhibit 7-a-4, Third, February 1, 1947*

File number 2-7502, as Exhibit 7-a-5, Fourth, May 1, 1948*

File number 2-8398, as Exhibit 7-a-6, Fifth, November 1, 1949*

File number 2-8973, as Exhibit 7-a-7, Sixth, October 1, 1951*

File number 2-12941, as Exhibit 2-C-8, Seventh, January 1, 1957*
File number 2-13688, as Exhibit 4-J, Eighth, July 15, 1957*

File number 2-13689, as Exhibit 4-K, Ninth, November 15, 1957*
File number 2-14245, as Exhibit 4-L, Tenth, April 1, 1958*

File number 2-14366, as Exhibit 2-L, Eleventh, October 15, 1958*
File number 2-14935, as Exhibit 4-N, Twelfth, May 15, 1959*

File number 2-18976, as Exhibit 4-O, Thirteenth, November 15, 1960*

33-65720*

33-65720*

33-56071-99

1-3198

1-3198

1-3198

1-3198

1-3198

333-64737

333-64737

333-00139-99

1-14465

1-14465, 1-

3198

2-3413*

4(a)(ii)

A(a)(iii)

3(d)

3(a)(iii)

3.3

3.3

3.14

3.2

3.1

3.2

3(b)

3.13

3.1

B-2

7/7/1993

7/7/1993

10/1/1998

8/4/2000

1/26/2005

11/19/2007

5/21/2012

11/19/2007

11/4/1998

11/4/1998

9/22/1998

5/21/2012

11/22/2023


https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1057877/0000898080-98-000238.txt
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/49648/000105787700000024/0001057877-00-000024-0002.txt
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/49648/000089808005000047/ex3-3.txt
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/49648/000089808007000333/ex3-3.txt
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/49648/000105787712000124/exhibit314-ipcarticlesofam.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/49648/000089808007000333/ex3-2.txt
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1057877/0001047469-98-039192.txt
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1057877/0001047469-98-039192.txt
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1057877/0000898080-98-000216.txt
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/49648/000105787712000124/exhibit313-idacorparticles.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/49648/000105787723000068/exhibit31-arbylaws.htm
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Incorporated by Reference

Exhibit No. Exhibit Description Form File No. Exhibit No. Date Included
Herewith
4.2.14 File number 2-18977, as Exhibit 4-Q, Fourteenth, November 1, 1961*
4.2.15 File number 2-22988, as Exhibit 4-B-16, Fifteenth, September 15, 1964*
4.2.16 File number 2-24578, as Exhibit 4-B-17, Sixteenth, April 1, 1966*
4.2.17 File number 2-25479, as Exhibit 4-B-18, Seventeenth, October 1, 1966*
4.2.18 File number 2-45260, as Exhibit 2(c), Eighteenth, September 1, 1972*
4.2.19 File number 2-49854, as Exhibit 2(c), Nineteenth, January 15, 1974*
4.2.20 File number 2-51722, as Exhibit 2(c)(i), Twentieth, August 1, 1974*
4221 File number 2-51722, as Exhibit 2(c)(ii), Twenty-first, October 15, 1974*
4.2.22 File number 2-57374, as Exhibit 2(c), Twenty-second, November 15, 1976*
4.2.23 File number 2-62035, as Exhibit 2(c), Twenty-third, August 15, 1978*
4.2.24 File number 33-34222, as Exhibit 4(d)(iii), Twenty-fourth, September 1, 1979*
4.2.25 File number 33-34222, as Exhibit 4(d)(iv), Twenty-fifth, November 1, 1981*
4.2.26 File number 33-34222, as Exhibit 4(d)(v), Twenty-sixth, May 1, 1982*
4.2.27 File number 33-34222, as Exhibit 4(d)(vi), Twenty-seventh, May 1, 1986*
4.2.28 File number 33-00440, as Exhibit 4(c)(iv), Twenty-eighth, June 30, 1989*
4.2.29 File number 33-34222, as Exhibit 4(d)(vii), Twenty-ninth, January 1, 1990*
4.2.30 File number 33-65720, as Exhibit 4(d)(iii), Thirtieth, January 1, 1991*
4.2.31 File number 33-65720, as Exhibit 4(d)(iv), Thirty-first, August 15, 1991*
4.2.32 File number 33-65720, as Exhibit 4(d)(v), Thirty-second, March 15, 1992*
4.2.33 File number 33-65720, as Exhibit 4(d)(vi), Thirty-third, April 1, 1993*
4.2.34 File number 1-3198, Form 8-K, filed on 12/20/93, as Exhibit 4, Thirty-fourth, December 1, 1993*
4.2.35 Thirty-fifth, November 1, 2000 8-K 1-3198 4 11/21/2000
4.2.36 Thirty-sixth, October 1, 2001 8-K 1-3198 4 10/1/2001
4.2.37 Thirty-seventh, April 1, 2003 8-K 1-3198 4 4/16/2003
4.2.38 Thirty-eighth, May 15, 2003 10-Q 1-3198 A(a)(iii) 8/7/2003
4.2.39 Thirty-ninth, October 1, 2003 10-Q 1-3198 4(a)(iv) 11/6/2003
4.2.40 Fortieth, May 1, 2005 8-K 1-3198 4 5/10/2005
4.2.41 Forty-first, October 1, 2006 8-K 1-3198 4 10/10/2006
4.2.42 Forty-second, May 1, 2007 8-K 1-3198 4 6/4/2007
4.2.43 Forty-third, September 1, 2007 8-K 1-3198 4 9/26/2007
4.2.44 Forty-fourth, April 1, 2008 8-K 1-3198 4 4/3/2008
4.2.45 Forty-fifth, February 1, 2010 10-K 1-3198 4.10 2/23/2010
4.2.46 Forty-sixth, June 1, 2010 8-K 1-3198 4 6/18/2010
4.2.47 Forty-seventh, July 1, 2013 8-K 1-3198 4.1 7/12/2013
4.2.48 Forty-eighth, September 1, 2016 8-K 1-3198 4.1 9/27/2016
4.2.49 Forty-ninth, June 5, 2020 8-K 1-3198 4.1 6/8/2020
4.2.50 Fiftieth, June 30, 2022 8-K 1-3198 4.1 6/30/2022
4.2.51 Fifty-first, October 14, 2022 10-Q 1-3198 4.1 11/3/2022
4.2.52 Fifty-second, December 20, 2022 8-K 1-3198 4.1 12/22/2022
4.3 Agreement of Idaho Power Company to furnish certain debt S-3 33-65720* 4(f) 717/1993
instruments
4.4 Agreement and Plan of Merger dated March 10, 1989, between S-3 Post- 33-00440* 2(a)(ii) 6/30/1989
Idaho Power Company, a Maine corporation, and Idaho Power Effective
Migrating Corporation Amend. No. 2
45 Indenture for Senior Debt Securities dated as of February 1 8-K 1-14465 4.1 2/28/2001
2001, between IDACORP, Inc. and Deutsche Bank Trust
Company Americas (formerly known as Bankers Trust
Company), as trustee
4.6 First Supplemental Indenture dated as of February 1, 2001 to 8-K 1-14465 4.2 2/28/2001

Indenture for Senior Debt Securities dated as of February 1
2001 between IDACORP, Inc. and Deutsche Bank Trust
Company Americas (formerly known as Bankers Trust
Company), as trustee
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https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/49648/000089808003000195/ex4.txt
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/49648/000105787703000030/ex4aiii1.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/49648/000105787703000041/ex4aiv1.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/49648/000104746905014216/a2157925zex-4.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/49648/000004964806000003/ex41.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/49648/000105787707000059/ex41.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/49648/000110465907071446/a07-24210_3ex4.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/49648/000110465908022308/a08-9853_1ex4.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/49648/000105787710000022/esex4-10.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/49648/000093041310003507/c61909_ex4.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/49648/000105787713000147/exhibit41-47thsupplemental.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/49648/000004964816000011/a9-27x16exhibit41.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/49648/000119312520163457/d939291dex41.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/49648/000119312522186252/d366531dex41.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/49648/000105787722000072/ida93022ex41.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/49648/000119312522311093/d419302dex41.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1057877/000089808001000070/0000898080-01-000070-0003.txt
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1057877/000089808001000070/0000898080-01-000070-0004.txt
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4.7 Indenture for Debt Securities dated as of August 1, 2001 between S-3 333-67748 4.13 8/16/2001

Idaho Power Company and Deutsche Bank Trust Company
Americas (formerly known as Bankers Trust Company), as trustee

4.8 Idaho Power Company Instrument of Further Assurance relating 10-Q 1-3198 4.12 8/5/2010
to Mortgage and Deed of Trust, dated as of August 3, 2010

4.9 Description of the Registrant's Securities 10-K 1-14465, 1-3198 4.10 2/15/24

10.1 Amended and Restated Agreement for the Operation of the Jim 10-K 1-14465, 1-3198 10.4 2/19/2015

Bridger Project, dated December 11, 2014, between Idaho Power
Company and PacifiCorp

10.2 Amended and Restated Agreement for the Ownership of the Jim 10-K 1-14465, 1-3198 10.5 2/19/2015
Bridger Project, dated December 11, 2014, between Idaho Power
Company and PacifiCorp

10.3 Framework Agreement, dated October 1, 1984, between the State S-3 33-65720* 10(h) 7/7/1993
of Idaho and Idaho Power Company relating to Idaho Power
Company's Swan Falls and Snake River water rights

10.4 Agreement, dated October 25, 1984, between the State of Idaho S-3 33-65720* 10(h)(i) 717/1993
and Idaho Power Company, relating to the agreement filed as
Exhibit 10.3

10.5 Contract to Implement, dated October 25, 1984, between the S-3 33-65720* 10(h)(ii) 717/1993

State of Idaho and Idaho Power Company, relating to the
agreement filed as Exhibit 10.3
10.6 Settlement Agreement, dated March 25, 2009, between the State 10-Q 1-14465 10.58 5/7/2009

of Idaho and Idaho Power Company relating to the agreement
filed as Exhibit 10.3

10.7 Agreement Regarding the Ownership, Construction, Operation S-3 33-65720* 10(m) 717/1993
and Maintenance of the Milner Hydroelectric Project (FERC No.
2899), dated January 22, 1990, between Idaho Power Company
and the Twin Falls Canal Company and the Northside Canal
Company Limited

10.8 Credit Agreement, dated December 8, 2023, among IDACORP 8-K 1-14465, 1-3198 10.1 12/11/2023
Inc., Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as administrative
agent, swingline lender, and LC issuer, JPMorgan Chase Bank,

N.A., as syndication agent and LC issuer, and the other lenders
named therein

10.9 Extension Agreement, dated December 9, 2024, among X
IDACORP, Inc., Wells Fargo Bank National Association, as
administrative agent. and the lenders party thereto
10.10 Credit Agreement, dated December 8, 2023, among Idaho Power 8-K 1-14465, 1-3198 10.2 12/11/2023
Company, Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as
administrative agent, swingline lender, and LC issuer, JPMorgan

Chase Bank, N.A., as syndication agent and LC issuer, and the
other lenders named therein

10.11 Extension Agreement, dated December 9, 2024, among ldaho X
Power Company, Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as

administrative agent, and the lenders party thereto

10.12 Equity Distribution Agreement, dated May 20, 2024 8-K 1-14465, 1-3198 11 5/20/2024

10.13 Form of Master Forward Sale Confirmation 8-K 1-14465, 1-3198 1.2 5/20/2024

10.14 Loan Agreement, dated October 1, 2006, between Sweetwater 8-K 1-3198 10.1 10/10/2006
County, Wyoming and Idaho Power Company

10.15% Idaho Power Company Security Plan for Senior Management 10-K 1-14465, 1-3198 10.15 2/26/2009

Employees |, amended and restated effective December 31
2004, and as further amended November 20, 2008

10.161 Amendment, dated September 19, 2012, to the Idaho Power 10-Q 1-14465, 1-3198 10.62 11/1/2012
Company Security Plan for Senior Management Employees |

10.17* Idaho Power Company Security Plan for Senior Management 10-K 1-14465, 1-3198 10.31 2/23/2017
Employees I, as amended and restated February 8, 2017

10.18t Amendment to the Idaho Power Company Security Plan for 10-Q 1-14465, 1-3198 10.1 8/3/2017
Senior Management Employees Il, as amended May 17, 2017


https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/49648/000091205701529246/a2056410zex-4_13.txt
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/49648/000105787710000101/esex4-12.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/49648/000105787724000005/ida123123ex410.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/49648/000105787715000043/ida123114ex104.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/49648/000105787715000043/ida123114ex105.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/49648/000105787709000077/esex10-58.htm
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file:///tmp/T1846/de0fb149-0d0b-480f-9e33-37c41a93f3b4/ida123124ex109.htm
file:///tmp/T1846/de0fb149-0d0b-480f-9e33-37c41a93f3b4/ida123124ex109.htm
file:///tmp/T1846/de0fb149-0d0b-480f-9e33-37c41a93f3b4/ida123124ex109.htm
file:///tmp/T1846/de0fb149-0d0b-480f-9e33-37c41a93f3b4/ida123124ex109.htm
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file:///tmp/T1846/de0fb149-0d0b-480f-9e33-37c41a93f3b4/ida123124ex109.htm
file:///tmp/T1846/de0fb149-0d0b-480f-9e33-37c41a93f3b4/ida123124ex109.htm
file:///tmp/T1846/de0fb149-0d0b-480f-9e33-37c41a93f3b4/ida123124ex109.htm
file:///tmp/T1846/de0fb149-0d0b-480f-9e33-37c41a93f3b4/ida123124ex109.htm
file:///tmp/T1846/de0fb149-0d0b-480f-9e33-37c41a93f3b4/ida123124ex109.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/49648/000105787723000071/exhibit102-idahopowercredi.htm
file:///tmp/T1846/de0fb149-0d0b-480f-9e33-37c41a93f3b4/ida123124ex1011.htm
file:///tmp/T1846/de0fb149-0d0b-480f-9e33-37c41a93f3b4/ida123124ex1011.htm
file:///tmp/T1846/de0fb149-0d0b-480f-9e33-37c41a93f3b4/ida123124ex1011.htm
file:///tmp/T1846/de0fb149-0d0b-480f-9e33-37c41a93f3b4/ida123124ex1011.htm
file:///tmp/T1846/de0fb149-0d0b-480f-9e33-37c41a93f3b4/ida123124ex1011.htm
file:///tmp/T1846/de0fb149-0d0b-480f-9e33-37c41a93f3b4/ida123124ex1011.htm
file:///tmp/T1846/de0fb149-0d0b-480f-9e33-37c41a93f3b4/ida123124ex1011.htm
file:///tmp/T1846/de0fb149-0d0b-480f-9e33-37c41a93f3b4/ida123124ex1011.htm
file:///tmp/T1846/de0fb149-0d0b-480f-9e33-37c41a93f3b4/ida123124ex1011.htm
file:///tmp/T1846/de0fb149-0d0b-480f-9e33-37c41a93f3b4/ida123124ex1011.htm
file:///tmp/T1846/de0fb149-0d0b-480f-9e33-37c41a93f3b4/ida123124ex1011.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/49648/000105787724000031/exhibit11-equitydistributi.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/49648/000105787724000031/exhibit12-formofmasterforw.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/49648/000004964806000003/ex101.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/49648/000105787709000032/esex10-15.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/49648/000105787712000154/ida93012ex1062-smspiamendm.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/49648/000105787717000035/ida123116ex_1031.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/49648/000105787717000124/ida63017ex101.htm
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10.19* Idaho Power Company Security Plan for Board of Directors - a non- 10-Q 1-14465, 1- 10(h)(viii) 11/2/2006
qualified deferred compensation plan, as amended and restated 3198
effective July 20, 2006

10.20t IDACORP, Inc. Non-Employee Directors Stock Compensation 10-K 1-14465, 1- 10.21 2/17/2022
Plan, as amended February 10, 2022 3198

10.21* Form of Officer Indemnification Agreement between IDACORP. 10-Q 1-14465, 1- 10(h)(xix) 11/2/2006
Inc. and Officers of IDACORP, Inc. and Idaho Power Company, as 3198
amended July 20, 2006

10.22% Form of Director Indemnification Agreement between IDACORP, 10-Q 1-14465, 1- 10(h)(xx) 11/2/2006
Inc. and Directors of IDACORP, Inc., as amended July 20, 2006 3198

10.23* Form of Amended and Restated Change in Control Agreement 10-K 1-14465, 1- 10.24 2/26/2009
between IDACORP, Inc. and Officers of IDACORP and Idaho 3198
Power Company (senior vice president and higher), approved
November 20, 2008

10.24* Form of Amended and Restated Change in Control Agreement 10-K 1-14465, 1- 10.25 2/26/2009
between IDACORP, Inc. and Officers of IDACORP and Idaho 3198
Power Company (below senior vice president), approved
November 20, 2008

10.251 Form of Amended and Restated Change in Control Agreement 8-K 1-14465, 1- 10.1 3/24/2010
between IDACORP, Inc. and Officers of IDACORP, Inc. and Idaho 3198
Power Company, approved March 17, 2010

10.26 IDACORP, Inc. and/or Idaho Power Company Executive Officers X
with Amended and Restated Change in Control Agreements chart

10.27* IDACORP, Inc. 2000 Long-Term Incentive and Compensation 10-K 1-14465, 1- 10.41 2/23/2017
Plan, as amended and restated February 9, 2017 3198

10.28t IDACORP, Inc. 2000 Long-Term Incentive and Compensation Plan 10-K 1-14465, 1- 10.27 2/15/2024
- Form of Restricted Unit Award Agreement (Time Vesting) 3198

10.29t IDACORP, Inc. 2000 Long-Term Incentive and Compensation Plan 10-K 1-14465, 1- 10.28 2/15/2024
- Form of Performance Unit Award Agreement (Performance with 3198
Total Shareholder Return Goal

10.30! IDACORP, Inc. 2000 Long-Term Incentive and Compensation Plan 10-K 1-14465, 1- 10.29 2/15/2024
- Form of Performance Unit Award Agreement (Performance with 3198
Cumulative Earnings Per Share Goal)

10.31t IDACORP, Inc. Executive Incentive Plan, as amended and restated 10-K 1-14465, 1- 10.36 2/21/2019
November 14, 2018 3198

10.32% Idaho Power Company Executive Deferred Compensation Plan, 10-K 1-14465, 1- 10.32 2/26/2009
effective November 15, 2000, as amended November 20, 2008 3198

10.33* IDACORP, Inc. and Idaho Power Company Compensation for Non- X
Employee Directors of the Board of Directors, effective January 1
2024

10.341 Form of IDACORP, Inc. Director Deferred Compensation 10-K 1-14465, 1- 10.46 2/26/2009
Agreement, as amended November 20, 2008 3198

10.35% Form of Letter Agreement to Amend QOutstanding IDACORP, Inc. 10-K 1-14465, 1- 10.47 2/26/2009
Director Deferred Compensation Agreement (December 16, 2008) 3198

10.361 Form of Amendment to IDACORP, Inc. Director Deferred 10-K 1-14465, 1- 10.48 2/26/2009
Compensation Agreement, as amended November 20, 2008 3198

10.37* Form of Termination of IDACORP, Inc. Director Deferred 10-K 1-14465, 1- 10.49 2/26/2009
Compensation Agreement, as amended November 20, 2008 3198

10.38t Form of Idaho Power Company Director Deferred Compensation 10-K 1-14465, 1- 10.50 2/26/2009
Agreement, as amended November 20, 2008 3198

10.39% Form of Letter Agreement to Amend QOutstanding Idaho Power 10-K 1-14465, 1- 10.51 2/26/2009
Company Director Deferred Compensation Agreement (December 3198
16, 2008)

10.40% Form of Amendment to Idaho Power Company Director Deferred 10-K 1-14465, 1- 10.52 2/26/2009
Compensation Agreement, as amended November 20, 2008 3198


https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/49648/000105787706000088/ex10hviii1.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1057877/000105787722000014/ida123121ex1021.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/49648/000105787706000088/ex10hxix1.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/49648/000105787706000088/ex10hxx1.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/49648/000105787709000032/esex10-24.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/49648/000105787709000032/esex10-25.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/49648/000105787710000063/esex10-1.htm
file:///tmp/T1846/de0fb149-0d0b-480f-9e33-37c41a93f3b4/ida123124ex1026.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/49648/000105787717000035/ida123116ex_1041.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/49648/000105787724000005/ida123123ex1027.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/49648/000105787724000005/ida123123ex1028.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/49648/000105787724000005/ida123123ex1029.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/49648/000105787719000024/ida123118ex_1036.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/49648/000105787709000032/esex10-32.htm
file:///tmp/T1846/de0fb149-0d0b-480f-9e33-37c41a93f3b4/ida123124ex1033.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/49648/000105787709000032/esex10-46.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/49648/000105787709000032/esex10-47.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/49648/000105787709000032/esex10-48.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/49648/000105787709000032/esex10-49.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/49648/000105787709000032/esex10-50.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/49648/000105787709000032/esex10-51.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/49648/000105787709000032/esex10-52.htm
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10.41*

10.421

10.43!

10.44%

10.45!

10.461

10.47%

10.48!

10.49*

191

21.1
23.1
23.2
31.1
31.2
31.3
31.4
32.1
32.2
32.3
32.4
95.1
G7.a

101.SCH
101.CAL

101.LAB
101.PRE

101.DEF
104

* Exhibit originally filed with the SEC in paper format and as such, a hyperlink is not available.

Form of Termination of Idaho Power Company Director Deferred
Compensation Agreement, as amended November 20, 2008
Idaho Power Company Restated Employee Savings Plan, as
restated as of January 1, 2016

First Amendment, dated effective December 1, 2016, to the Idaho
Power Company Restated Employee Savings Plan, as restated
as of January 1, 2016

Second Amendment to the Idaho Power Company Employee
Savings Plan, as amended January 1, 2018

Third Amendment to the Idaho Power Company Employee
Savings Plan, as amended April 26, 2018

Fourth Amendment to the Idaho Power Company Employee
Savings Plan, executed October 24, 2019 and effective January
1,2020

Fifth Amendment to the Idaho Power Company Employee
Savings Plan, executed December 21, 2020 and effective
January 1, 2020

Sixth Amendment to the Idaho Power Company Employee

Savings Plan, executed March 7, 2022 and effective January 1
2020

Seventh Amendment to the Idaho Power Company Employee
Savings Plan, executed May 16, 2024 and effective April 1, 2024

IDACORP, Inc. Insider Trading and Transactions in Company
Securities Standard

Subsidiaries of IDACORP, Inc.

Consent of Registered Independent Accounting Firm
Consent of Registered Independent Accounting Firm
IDACORP, Inc. Rule 13a-14(a) CEO certification
IDACORP, Inc. Rule 13a-14(a) CFO certification
Idaho Power Rule 13a-14(a) CEO certification

Idaho Power Rule 13a-14(a) CFO certification
IDACORP, Inc. Section 1350 CEO certification

IDACORP, Inc. Section 1350 CFO certification

Idaho Power Section 1350 CEO certification

Idaho Power Section 1350 CFO certification

Mine Safety Disclosures
IDACORP, Inc. Incentive Compensation Recovery Policy

Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase
Document

Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document
Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase
Document

Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document
Cover Page Interactive Data File (formatted as inline XBRL with
applicable taxonomy extension information contained in Exhibits
101.)

(1) Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement

145

10-K

10-K

10-K

10-Q

10-Q

10-Q

10-K

10-Q

10-Q

10-K

1-14465, 1-
3198
1-14465, 1-
3198
1-14465, 1-
3198

1-14465, 1-
3198
1-14465, 1-
3198
1-14465, 1-
3198

1-14465, 1-
3198

1-14465, 1-
3198

1-14465, 1-
3198

1-14465, 1-
3198

10.53

10.59

10.61

10.1

10.4

10.1

10.49

10.1

10.1

G-l

2/26/2009

2/18/2016

2/23/2017

11/2/2017

5/3/2018

10/31/2019

2/18/2021

5/5/2022

8/1/2024

2/15/2024

X X X X X X X X X X X X
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https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/49648/000105787716000209/ida123115ex_1059.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/49648/000105787717000035/ida123116ex_1061.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/49648/000105787717000132/ida93017ex101.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/49648/000105787718000080/ida33118ex104.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/49648/000105787719000125/ida93019ex101.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1057877/000105787721000036/ida123120ex1049.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/49648/000105787722000034/ida33122ex101.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/49648/000105787724000041/ida63024ex101.htm
file:///tmp/T1846/de0fb149-0d0b-480f-9e33-37c41a93f3b4/ida123124ex191.htm
file:///tmp/T1846/de0fb149-0d0b-480f-9e33-37c41a93f3b4/ida123124ex211.htm
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file:///tmp/T1846/de0fb149-0d0b-480f-9e33-37c41a93f3b4/ida123124ex232-consent.htm
file:///tmp/T1846/de0fb149-0d0b-480f-9e33-37c41a93f3b4/ida123124ex311.htm
file:///tmp/T1846/de0fb149-0d0b-480f-9e33-37c41a93f3b4/ida123124ex312.htm
file:///tmp/T1846/de0fb149-0d0b-480f-9e33-37c41a93f3b4/ida123124ex313.htm
file:///tmp/T1846/de0fb149-0d0b-480f-9e33-37c41a93f3b4/ida123124ex314.htm
file:///tmp/T1846/de0fb149-0d0b-480f-9e33-37c41a93f3b4/ida123124ex321.htm
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IDACORP, INC.
SCHEDULE | - CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REGISTRANT

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Year Ended December 31,
2024 2023 2022

(thousands of dollars)

Income:
Equity in income of subsidiaries $ 289,689 $ 262,081 $ 258,540
Investment income 3,976 1,932 1,795
Total income 293,665 264,013 260,335
Expenses:
Operating expenses 621 553 444
Interest expense 3,593 3,171 1,267
Other expenses 1,300 200 250
Total expenses 5,514 3,924 1,961
Income Before Income Taxes 288,151 260,089 258,374
Income Tax Benefit (1,023) (1,106) (608)
Net Income Attributable to IDACORP, Inc. 289,174 261,195 258,982
Other comprehensive income (loss) 3,592 (4,262) 27,118
Comprehensive Income Attributable to IDACORP, Inc. $ 292,766 $ 256,933 $ 286,100
The accompanying note is an integral part of these statements.
IDACORP, INC.

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended December 31,
2024 2023 2022

(thousands of dollars)
Operating Activities:

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 194597 $ 154,190 $ 77,048
Investing Activities:

Contributions to subsidiaries (200,000 ) — —
Purchase of investments (651) (1,002) (26,620)
Maturities of investments — — 25,000
Net cash used in investing activities (200,651) (1,002) (1,620)
Financing Activities:

Issuance of common stock 298,450 — —
Dividends on common stock (175,615) (162,646 ) (154,287 )
Change in intercompany notes payable 11,430 (282) (3,811)
Other (4,015) (3,533) (3,184)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 130,250 (166,461) (161,282)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 124,196 (13,273) (85,854)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 53,898 67,171 153,025
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 178,094 $ 53,898 $ 67,171

The accompanying note is an integral part of these statements.
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IDACORP, INC.
CONDENSED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,

2024 2023
Assets (thousands of dollars)
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 178,094 $ 53,898
Receivables 2,646 16,397
Income taxes receivable 2,350 1,551
Other 107 107
Total current assets 183,197 71,953
Investments 3,210,209 2,893,353
Other Assets:
Deferred income taxes 11,829 1,919
Other 397 422
Total other assets 12,226 2,341
Total assets $ 3,405,632 $ 2,967,647
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Intercompany notes payable $ 74272 % 59,598
Other 406 480
Total noncurrent liabilities 74,678 60,078
IDACORP, Inc. Shareholders’ Equity 3,330,954 2,907,569
Total Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity $ 3,405,632 $ 2,967,647

The accompanying note is an integral part of these statements.

NOTE TO CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Pursuant to rules and regulations of the SEC, the unconsolidated condensed financial statements of IDACORP do not reflect all of the information and
notes normally included with financial statements prepared in accordance with GAAP. Therefore, these financial statements should be read in
conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and related notes included in the 2024 Form 10-K, Part II, ltem 8.

Accounting for Subsidiaries: IDACORP has accounted for the earnings of its subsidiaries under the equity method of accounting in these

unconsolidated condensed financial statements. Included in net cash provided by operating activities in the condensed statements of cash flows are
dividends that IDACORP subsidiaries paid to IDACORP of $ 177 million, $ 105 million, and $ 117 million in 2024, 2023, and 2022, respectively.

147



Table of Contents

IDACORP, INC. AND IDAHO POWER COMPANY
SCHEDULE Il - CONSOLIDATED VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
Years Ended December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022

Additions
Charged
Balance at Charged (Credited) Balance at
Beginning to to Other End
Classification of Year Income Accounts Deductions® of Year

(thousands of dollars)

2024:
Reserve for uncollectible accounts $ 5585 $ 4523 $ 1,302 $ 5711 $ 5,699
Injuries and damages 3,275 992 — 640 3,627
2023:
Reserve for uncollectible accounts $ 5546 $ 3527 % 975 % 4,463 $ 5,585
Injuries and damages 2,802 974 — 501 3,275
2022:
Reserve for uncollectible accounts $ 5016 $ 3294 $ 540 $ 3304 $ 5,546
Injuries and damages 3,780 2,495 — 3,473 2,802

(1) Represents deductions from the reserves for purposes for which the reserves were created. In the case of uncollectible accounts, and notes reserves, includes reversals of
amounts previously reserved.

ITEM 16. FORM 10-K SUMMARY
None.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its

behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.
February 20, 2025 IDACORP, INC.
Date

By: /s/ Lisa A. Grow

Lisa A. Grow

President and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the

registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title

Date

/s/ Dennis L. Johnson Chair of the Board

Dennis L. Johnson

/s/ Lisa A. Grow (Principal Executive Officer)

Lisa A. Grow

President and Chief Executive Officer and Director

/s/ Brian R. Buckham (Principal Financial Officer)

Brian R. Buckham

Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, and Treasurer

/s/ Amy I. Shaw (Principal Accounting Officer)

Amy I. Shaw

Vice President of Finance, Compliance, and Risk

/s/ Odette C. Bolano Director

Odette C. Bolano

/s/ Annette G. Elg Director

Annette G. Elg

/s/ Ronald W. Jibson Director

Ronald W. Jibson

/s/ Judith A. Johansen Director

Judith A. Johansen

/s/ Nate R. Jorgensen Director

Nate R. Jorgensen

Director
Scott W. Madison
/s/ Susan D. Morris Director
Susan D. Morris
/s/ Richard J. Navarro Director
Richard J. Navarro
/s/ Dr. Mark T. Peters Director

Dr. Mark T. Peters
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its
behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

February 20, 2025 Idaho Power Company

Date
By: /s/ Lisa A. Grow

Lisa A. Grow

President and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the
registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date

/s/ Dennis L. Johnson Chair of the Board February 20, 2025

Dennis L. Johnson

/s/ Lisa A. Grow (Principal Executive Officer) February 20, 2025

Lisa A. Grow

President and Chief Executive Officer and Director

/s/ Brian R. Buckham (Principal Financial Officer) February 20, 2025

Brian R. Buckham

Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, and Treasurer

/s/ Amy I. Shaw (Principal Accounting Officer) February 20, 2025

Amy |. Shaw

Vice President of Finance, Compliance, and Risk

/s/ Odette C. Bolano Director February 20, 2025

Odette C. Bolano

/s/ Annette G. Elg Director February 20, 2025

Annette G. Elg

/s/ Ronald W. Jibson Director February 20, 2025

Ronald W. Jibson

/s/ Judith A. Johansen Director February 20, 2025

Judith A. Johansen

/s/ Nate R. Jorgensen Director February 20, 2025

Nate R. Jorgensen

Director
Scott W. Madison
/s/ Susan D. Morris Director February 20, 2025
Susan D. Morris
/s/ Richard J. Navarro Director February 20, 2025
Richard J. Navarro
/s/ Dr. Mark T. Peters Director February 20, 2025

Dr. Mark T. Peters
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Exhibit 10.9
Execution Version
EXTENSION AGREEMENT

This EXTENSION AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”), dated as of December 9, 2024, is entered into among IDACORP INC., an Idaho
corporation (“IDACORP” or the “Borrower”), the Lenders party hereto, and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as administrative agent for the
Lenders (the “Administrative Agent”).

RECITALS

IDACORP, the Lenders and the Administrative Agent are parties to that certain Credit Agreement, dated as of December 8, 2023 (as amended,

supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time, the “Credit Agreement”). Capitalized terms used herein without definition shall have the meanings
ascribed to such terms in the Credit Agreement.

IDACORP has requested its first one-year extension of the Facility Termination Date pursuant to Section 2.21(a) of the Credit Agreement and
each Lender executing this Agreement as a “Consenting Lender” (each, a “Consenting Lender”) has approved such request pursuant to Section 2.21(a)
of the Credit Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby
acknowledged, the parties hereto agree as follows:

1. Extension. Pursuant to Section 2.21(a) of the Credit Agreement, the Borrower requested an extension of the Facility Termination Date for a
period of one year from December 8, 2028 to December 7, 2029 (the “Extension”). As of the date hereof, Consenting Lenders holding
Commitments that aggregate more than 50% of the Aggregate Commitments have agreed to extend (such agreement evidenced by their
execution of this Agreement) the Facility Termination Date as to the Consenting Lenders for a period of one year from December 8, 2028 to
December 7, 2029. Subject to the satisfaction of the conditions in Section 1 hereof, the Facility Termination Date as to the Consenting Lenders is
hereby extended to December 7, 2029. The Facility Termination Date as to each Non-Consenting Lender remains unchanged, subject to the
right of the Borrower pursuant to Section 2.21(b) of the Credit Agreement to require any Non-Consenting Lender to assign to one or more Eligible
Replacement Lender all of its rights and obligations under the Credit Agreement. For the avoidance of doubt, all notice and timing requirements
required by Section 2.21 have been satisfied.

2. Conditions to Effectiveness. The Extension set forth in Section 1 shall become effective as of the date (the “ Extension Effective Date”) on which
each of the following conditions precedent shall have been satisfied:

a. The Administrative Agent shall have received counterparts of this Agreement duly executed by IDACORP, the Administrative Agent and
Consenting Lenders holding Commitments that aggregate more than 50% of the Aggregate Commitments.

b. IDACORP shall have paid the fees and reasonable expenses required to be paid on or prior to the Extension Effective Date under that
certain fee letter, dated as of October



29, 2024, among IDACORP, Wells Fargo Securities, LLC, and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, including but not limited to an
extension fee equal to 0.06% of each Consenting Lender's Commitment as of the Extension Effective Date, and all other fees and
reasonable expenses of the Administrative Agent and the Lenders required under the Credit Agreement and any other Loan Document
to be paid on or prior to the Extension Effective Date (including reasonable fees and expenses of counsel) in connection with this
Agreement.

c. The Administrative Agent shall have received a certificate (the statements contained in which shall be true) of a duly authorized officer of
IDACORP, dated as of the Extension Effective Date, stating that both before and after giving effect to the Extension (i) no Default has
occurred and is continuing and (ii) all representations and warranties contained in Article 5 of the Credit Agreement are true and correct
in all material respects on and as of the Extension Effective Date, except for such representations or warranties which by their terms are
made as of a specified date, which shall be true and correct as of such specified date.

d. The Administrative Agent shall have received copies (certified to be true and complete by an authorized officer of the Borrower) of all
approval orders of any public utilities commission or any other regulatory body having jurisdiction over the Borrower (if any) required for
the Borrower in connection with the Extension.

Representations and Warranties. The Borrower hereby represents and warrants, on and as of the Extension Effective Date, that (i) the
representations and warranties contained in the Credit Agreement are true and correct, both immediately before and after giving effect to this
Agreement (except to the extent any such representation or warranty is expressly stated to have been made as of a specific date, in which case
such representation or warranty is true and correct only on and as of such specific date), (ii) this Agreement has been duly authorized, executed
and delivered by the Borrower and constitutes the legal, valid and binding obligation of the Borrower enforceable against it in accordance with its
terms, except as enforceability may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium or other similar laws affecting creditors’
rights generally, by general equitable principles or by principles of good faith and fair dealing (regardless of whether enforcement is sought in
equity or at law), and (iii) no Default or Unmatured Default has occurred and is continuing on the Extension Effective Date, both immediately
before and immediately after giving effect to this Agreement.

Full Force and Effect. Except as expressly modified hereby, the Credit Agreement and the Loan Documents shall continue in full force and effect
in accordance with the provisions thereof on the date hereof. As used in the Credit Agreement, “hereinafter,” “hereto,” “hereof,” and words of
similar import shall, unless the context otherwise requires, mean the Credit Agreement after giving effect to this Agreement. Any reference to the
Credit Agreement or any of the other Loan Documents herein or in any such documents shall refer to the Credit Agreement and Loan Documents
as modified hereby. This Agreement is limited as specified and shall not constitute or be deemed to constitute an amendment, modification or
waiver of any provision of the Credit Agreement or any Loan Document except as expressly set forth herein. This Agreement shall constitute a
Loan Document under the terms of the Credit Agreement.



5.

10.

Severability of Provisions. Any provision in this Agreement that is held to be inoperative, unenforceable, or invalid in any jurisdiction shall, as to
that jurisdiction, be inoperative, unenforceable, or invalid without affecting the remaining provisions in that jurisdiction or the operation,
enforceability, or validity of that provision in any other jurisdiction.

Successors and Assigns. The terms and provisions of this Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of and be enforceable by the
respective successors and assigns of the parties hereto.

Expenses. The Borrower agrees on demand (i) to pay all reasonable fees and expenses of counsel to the Administrative Agent, and (ii) to
reimburse the Administrative Agent for all reasonable out-of-pocket costs and expenses, in each case, in connection with the preparation,
negotiation, execution and delivery of this Agreement.

Applicable Law. This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with and governed by the laws of the State of New York.

Construction. The headings of the various sections and subsections of this Agreement have been inserted for convenience only and shall not in
any way affect the meaning or construction of any of the provisions hereof.

Counterparts; Electronic Delivery. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which shall be an original, but all of
which taken together shall constitute one and the same instrument. Delivery by any party to this Agreement of its signatures hereon through
facsimile or other electronic image file (including .pdf) may be relied upon as if this Agreement were physically delivered with an original hand-
written signature of such party and shall be binding on such party for all purposes.

[remainder of page intentionally blank]



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed by their duly authorized officers as of the date first above
written.

IDACORP, INC.

By: /s/Brian R. Buckham
Name: Brian R. Buckham
Title: Senior Vice President, Chief Financial
Officer, and Treasurer

SIGNATURE PAGE TO
EXTENSION AGREEMENT



WELLS FARGO BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, as Administrative Agent, an LC Issuer, a
Swingline Bank and a Consenting Lender

By: /s/Mitchell Bayne
Name: Mitchell Bayne
Title: Vice President

SIGNATURE PAGE TO
EXTENSION AGREEMENT



JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A., as a Consenting Lender

By: /s/Khawaja Tariq
Name: Khawaja Tariq
Title: Vice President

SIGNATURE PAGE TO
EXTENSION AGREEMENT



BANK OF AMERICA, N.A., as a Consenting Lender

By: /s/Jeff Olivas
Name: Jeff Olivas
Title: Senior Vice President

SIGNATURE PAGE TO
EXTENSION AGREEMENT



MIZUHO BANK, LTD, as a Consenting Lender

By: /s/Edward Sacks
Name: Edward Sacks
Title: Managing Director

SIGNATURE PAGE TO
EXTENSION AGREEMENT



MORGAN STANLEY BANK, N.A., as a Consenting Lender

By: /s/Fred J. Gonfiantini Jr.
Name: Fred J. Gonfiantini Jr.
Title: Authorized Signatory

SIGNATURE PAGE TO
EXTENSION AGREEMENT



MUFG BANK, LTD., as a Consenting Lender

By: /s/Michael Agrimis
Name: Michael Agrimis
Title: Managing Director

SIGNATURE PAGE TO
EXTENSION AGREEMENT



U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, as a Consenting Lender

By: /s/lEugene Butera
Name: Eugene Butera
Title: Vice President

SIGNATURE PAGE TO
EXTENSION AGREEMENT



Exhibit 10.11

Execution Version

EXTENSION AGREEMENT

This EXTENSION AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”), dated as of December 9, 2024, is entered into among IDAHO POWER COMPANY, an
Idaho corporation (“Idaho Power” or the “Borrower”), the Lenders party hereto, and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as administrative agent for
the Lenders (the “Administrative Agent”).

RECITALS

Idaho Power, the Lenders and the Administrative Agent are parties to that certain Credit Agreement, dated as of December 8, 2023 (as amended,
supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time, the “Credit Agreement”). Capitalized terms used herein without definition shall have the meanings
ascribed to such terms in the Credit Agreement.

Idaho Power has requested its first one-year extension of the Facility Termination Date pursuant to Section 2.21(a) of the Credit Agreement and
each Lender executing this Agreement as a “Consenting Lender” (each, a “Consenting Lender”) has approved such request pursuant to Section 2.21(a)
of the Credit Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby
acknowledged, the parties hereto agree as follows:

1. Extension. Pursuant to Section 2.21(a) of the Credit Agreement, the Borrower requested an extension of the Facility Termination Date for a
period of one year from December 8, 2028 to December 7, 2029 (the “Extension”). As of the date hereof, Consenting Lenders holding
Commitments that aggregate more than 50% of the Aggregate Commitments have agreed to extend (such agreement evidenced by their
execution of this Agreement) the Facility Termination Date as to the Consenting Lenders for a period of one year from December 8, 2028 to
December 7, 2029. Subject to the satisfaction of the conditions in Section 1 hereof, the Facility Termination Date as to the Consenting Lenders is
hereby extended to December 7, 2029. The Facility Termination Date as to each Non-Consenting Lender remains unchanged, subject to the
right of the Borrower pursuant to Section 2.21(b) of the Credit Agreement to require any Non-Consenting Lender to assign to one or more Eligible
Replacement Lender all of its rights and obligations under the Credit Agreement. For the avoidance of doubt, all notice and timing requirements
required by Section 2.21 have been satisfied.

2. Conditions to Effectiveness. The Extension set forth in Section 1 shall become effective as of the date (the “ Extension Effective Date”) on which
each of the following conditions precedent shall have been satisfied:

a. The Administrative Agent shall have received counterparts of this Agreement duly executed by Idaho Power, the Administrative Agent
and Consenting Lenders holding Commitments that aggregate more than 50% of the Aggregate Commitments.

b. Idaho Power shall have paid the fees and reasonable expenses required to be paid on or prior to the Extension Effective Date under that
certain fee letter, dated as of



October 29, 2024, among Idaho Power, Wells Fargo Securities, LLC, and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, including but not
limited to an extension fee equal to 0.06% of each Consenting Lender's Commitment as of the Extension Effective Date, and all other
fees and reasonable expenses of the Administrative Agent and the Lenders required under the Credit Agreement and any other Loan
Document to be paid on or prior to the Extension Effective Date (including reasonable fees and expenses of counsel) in connection with
this Agreement.

c. The Administrative Agent shall have received a certificate (the statements contained in which shall be true) of a duly authorized officer of
Idaho Power, dated as of the Extension Effective Date, stating that both before and after giving effect to the Extension (i) no Default has
occurred and is continuing and (ii) all representations and warranties contained in Article 5 of the Credit Agreement are true and correct
in all material respects on and as of the Extension Effective Date, except for such representations or warranties which by their terms are
made as of a specified date, which shall be true and correct as of such specified date.

d. The Administrative Agent shall have received copies (certified to be true and complete by an authorized officer of the Borrower) of all
approval orders of any public utilities commission or any other regulatory body having jurisdiction over the Borrower (if any) required for
the Borrower in connection with the Extension.

Representations and Warranties. The Borrower hereby represents and warrants, on and as of the Extension Effective Date, that (i) the
representations and warranties contained in the Credit Agreement are true and correct, both immediately before and after giving effect to this
Agreement (except to the extent any such representation or warranty is expressly stated to have been made as of a specific date, in which case
such representation or warranty is true and correct only on and as of such specific date), (ii) this Agreement has been duly authorized, executed
and delivered by the Borrower and constitutes the legal, valid and binding obligation of the Borrower enforceable against it in accordance with its
terms, except as enforceability may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium or other similar laws affecting creditors’
rights generally, by general equitable principles or by principles of good faith and fair dealing (regardless of whether enforcement is sought in
equity or at law), and (iiij) no Default or Unmatured Default has occurred and is continuing on the Extension Effective Date, both immediately
before and immediately after giving effect to this Agreement.

Full Force and Effect. Except as expressly modified hereby, the Credit Agreement and the Loan Documents shall continue in full force and effect
in accordance with the provisions thereof on the date hereof. As used in the Credit Agreement, “hereinafter,” “hereto,” “hereof,” and words of
similar import shall, unless the context otherwise requires, mean the Credit Agreement after giving effect to this Agreement. Any reference to the
Credit Agreement or any of the other Loan Documents herein or in any such documents shall refer to the Credit Agreement and Loan Documents
as modified hereby. This Agreement is limited as specified and shall not constitute or be deemed to constitute an amendment, modification or
waiver of any provision of the Credit Agreement or any Loan Document except as expressly set forth herein. This Agreement shall constitute a
Loan Document under the terms of the Credit Agreement.
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5.

10.

Severability of Provisions. Any provision in this Agreement that is held to be inoperative, unenforceable, or invalid in any jurisdiction shall, as to
that jurisdiction, be inoperative, unenforceable, or invalid without affecting the remaining provisions in that jurisdiction or the operation,
enforceability, or validity of that provision in any other jurisdiction.

Successors and Assigns. The terms and provisions of this Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of and be enforceable by the
respective successors and assigns of the parties hereto.

Expenses. The Borrower agrees on demand (i) to pay all reasonable fees and expenses of counsel to the Administrative Agent, and (ii) to
reimburse the Administrative Agent for all reasonable out-of-pocket costs and expenses, in each case, in connection with the preparation,
negotiation, execution and delivery of this Agreement.

Applicable Law. This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with and governed by the laws of the State of New York.

Construction. The headings of the various sections and subsections of this Agreement have been inserted for convenience only and shall not in
any way affect the meaning or construction of any of the provisions hereof.

Counterparts; Electronic Delivery. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which shall be an original, but all of
which taken together shall constitute one and the same instrument. Delivery by any party to this Agreement of its signatures hereon through
facsimile or other electronic image file (including .pdf) may be relied upon as if this Agreement were physically delivered with an original hand-
written signature of such party and shall be binding on such party for all purposes.

[remainder of page intentionally blank]



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed by their duly authorized
officers as of the date first above written.

IDAHO POWER COMPANY
By: /s/Brian R. Buckham
Name: Brian R. Buckham
Title: Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, and Treasurer

SIGNATURE PAGE TO
EXTENSION AGREEMENT



WELLS FARGO BANK, NATIONAL
ASSOCIATION, as Administrative Agent, an LC
Issuer, a Swingline Bank and a Consenting Lender

By: /s/Mitchell Bayne
Name: Mitchell Bayne
Title: Vice President

SIGNATURE PAGE TO
EXTENSION AGREEMENT



JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A,, as a
Consenting Lender

By: /s/Khawaja Tarig
Name: Khawaja Tariq
Title: Vice President

SIGNATURE PAGE TO
EXTENSION AGREEMENT



BANK OF AMERICA, N.A., as a Consenting
Lender

By: /s/Jeff Olivas
Name: Jeff Olivas
Title: Senior Vice President

SIGNATURE PAGE TO
EXTENSION AGREEMENT



MIZUHO BANK, LTD, as a Consenting Lender

By: /s/[Edward Sacks
Name: Edward Sacks
Title: Managing Director

SIGNATURE PAGE TO
EXTENSION AGREEMENT



MORGAN STANLEY BANK, N.A,, as a
Consenting Lender

By: /s/Fred J. Gonfiantini Jr.
Name: Fred J. Gonfiantini Jr.
Title: Authorized Signatory

SIGNATURE PAGE TO
EXTENSION AGREEMENT



MUFG BANK, LTD., as a Consenting Lender

By: /s/Michael Agrimis
Name: Michael Agrimis

Title: Managing Director

SIGNATURE PAGE TO
EXTENSION AGREEMENT



U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, as a
Consenting Lender

By: /s/[Eugene Butera
Name: Eugene Butera
Title: Vice President

SIGNATURE PAGE TO
EXTENSION AGREEMENT



Exhibit 10.26
IDACORP, Inc. and/or Idaho Power Company Executive Officers

with Amended and Restated Change in Control Agreements
(as of February 20, 2025)

Name Title Date of Agreement

Ryan Adelman* Vice President, Power Supply of Idaho Power Company 10/5/2019

Brian R. Buckham* Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, and Treasurer of 41412016
IDACORP, Inc. and Idaho Power Company

Vice President, Planning, Engineering and Construction of ldaho

Mitch Colburn* 8/6/2020
Power Company

Sarah E. Griffin* Vice President, Human Resources of Idaho Power Company 10/5/2019

Lisa A. Grow President and Chief Executive Officer of IDACORP, Inc. and Idaho 12/12/2008
Power Company
Vice President, Customer Operations and Chief Safety Officer of Idaho

James Bo D. Hanchey* ! ! u peratl ! y O 10/5/2019
Power Company

. . Vice President and General Counsel of IDACORP, Inc. and Idaho

Julia A. Hilton*
Power Company 3/18/2023
Senior Vice President of Public Affairs of IDACORP, Inc. and Idaho

Jeffrey L. Malmen
Power Company 12/8/2008

Adam Richins* Senior Vice President & Chief Operating Officer of Idaho Power 2/8/2017
Company

Amy I. Shaw* Vice President of Finance, Compliance, and Risk of IDACORP, Inc. 12/23/2023

and Idaho Power Company

*Change in control agreement does not include 13 t-month trigger or tax gross-up provisions.



Exhibit 10.33

IDACORP, Inc. and Idaho Power Company Compensation for
Non-Employee Directors of the Board of Directors
(Effective January 1, 2024)

All directors of IDACORP also serve as directors of Idaho Power. The fees and other compensation discussed below are for service on both boards.
Employee directors receive no compensation for service on the boards.

Form of Fee Amount

Base Board Annual Retainer $ 100,000

Base Committee Annual Retainers

Audit Committee 12,000
Compensation & Human Resources Committee 8,500
Corporate Governance & Nominating Committee 7,500
Executive Committee 3,000

Additional Chair Annual Retainers

Chair of the Board of Directors 100,000
Chair of the Audit Committee 15,000
Chair of the Compensation & Human Resources Committee 15,000
Chair of the Corporate Governance & Nominating Committee 12,500
Annual Stock Awards 140,000

Deferral Arrangements

Directors may defer all or a portion of their annual IDACORP, Idaho Power, IDACORP Financial Services, Inc., and Ida-West Energy retainers and
meeting fees and receive a lump-sum payment of all amounts deferred with interest or a series of up to 10 equal annual payments after they separate
from service with IDACORP and Idaho Power. Any cash fees that were deferred before 2009 for service as a member of the board of directors were
credited with the preceding month’s average Moody’s Long-Term Corporate Bond Yield for utilities, or the Moody’s Rate, plus 3%, until January 1, 2019
when the interest rate changed to the Moody’s Rate. All cash fees that are deferred for service as a member of the board of directors after January 1,
2009 are credited with interest at the Moody’s Rate. Interest is calculated on a pro rata basis each month using a 360-day year and the average Moody's
Rate for the preceding month.

Directors may also defer their annual stock awards, which are then held as deferred stock units with dividend equivalents reinvested in additional
deferred stock units. Upon separation from service with IDACORP and Idaho Power, directors will receive either a lump-sum distribution or a series of up
to 10 equal annual installments. Upon a change in control the directors’ deferral accounts will be distributed to each participating director in a lump sum.
The distributions will be in shares of IDACORP common stock, with each deferred stock unit equal to one share of IDACORP common stock and any
fractional shares paid in cash.
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INSIDER TRADING AND TRANSACTIONS IN COMPANY
SECURITIES STANDARD

1. Introduction

a) IDACORP, Inc., and its subsidiaries (collectively, the company) are committed to compliance with federal, state, and
foreign securities laws and require their directors and employees comply with such laws.

b) This Insider Trading and Transactions in Company Securities Standard provides requirements with respect to
transactions in certain securities of the company and the companies with which the company does business. The
company has adopted this standard to promote compliance with federal and state securities laws that prohibit certain
persons who are aware of material nonpublic information about an entity from doing any of the following:

(1) Trading in securities of that entity

(2) Providing material nonpublic information to other persons who may trade on the basis of that information

(3) Assisting someone who is engaged in either of those activities

¢) The company depends on the conduct and diligence of its directors and employees in both their professional and
personal capacities to ensure full compliance with this standard and applicable securities laws. In addition to

promoting compliance with laws, this standard is intended to preserve the reputation and integrity of the company and
of all persons affiliated with the company.

d) This standard is authorized by the Corporate Governance Compliance Policy.

2. Compliance

a) This standard applies to transactions in the company’s debt and equity securities (collectively referred to in this
standard as company securities), including the company’s common stock, restricted stock units (RSU), options to
purchase common stock, or any other type of securities the company may issue, including, but not limited to,
preferred stock, notes, or bonds, and derivative securities not issued by the company but that relate to the company’s
securities, such as exchange-traded put or call options or swaps relating to the company’s securities.

b) This standard applies to all officers and employees of the company and all members of the company’s board of
directors.
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¢) Contract workers or consultants who have access to material nonpublic information relating to the company or
obtained in connection with their engagement with the company are also subject to this standard.

d) This standard also applies to family members (including a spouse, a child, a child temporarily away from home for
educational purposes, stepchildren, grandchildren, parents, stepparents, grandparents, siblings, and in-laws) who
reside with a person covered by subsection (b) or (c) of Section 2 (Compliance), anyone else who lives in the
household, and any family members who do not live in the household but whose transactions in company securities
are directed by a person subject to this standard or are subject to material influence or control by a person subject to
this standard, such as parents or children who consult with a person subject to this standard before they trade in
company securities (collectively referred to as family members). Family members should treat all transactions in
company securities for the purposes of this standard and applicable securities laws as if the transactions were for the
account of a director, officer, or employee, as applicable, of the company. This standard does not, however, apply to
personal securities transactions of family members in which the purchase or sale decision is made by a third party not
controlled by, influenced by, or related to a person subject to this standard or such person’s family members.

e) This standard applies to any entity a person covered by subsection (b), (c), or (d) of Section 2 (Compliance) materially
influences or controls, including any corporations, limited liability companies (LLC), partnerships, or trusts (collectively
referred to as controlled entities), and transactions by these controlled entities should be treated, for the purposes of
this standard and applicable securities laws, as if they were for such person’s own account.

f) Unless otherwise specifically stated, the provisions of this standard apply to all of the persons and entities referred to in
subsections (b), (c), (d), and (e) of Section 2 (Compliance). Some provisions of this standard apply only to a subset of
the foregoing persons and entities, where specifically stated.

g) The purchase or sale of securities while aware of material nonpublic information, or certain forms of disclosure of
material nonpublic information to others who then trade in the company’s securities, is prohibited by federal and state
laws. Insider trading violations are pursued vigorously by the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC), United
States attorneys, and state enforcement authorities. In the past, relatively small trades have resulted in SEC
investigations and lawsuits. Punishment for insider trading violations is severe and could include significant fines and
imprisonment.

h) An individual’s failure to comply with this standard may also subject the individual to company-imposed discipline,
including termination of employment, whether or not the employee’s failure to comply results in a violation of law.
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3. Objectives

a) The objective of this standard is to provide guidance for compliance with certain insider trading and securities
transaction restrictions established by the SEC and applicable federal, state, and foreign laws. This standard may
impose trading restrictions that are more restrictive than those established by the SEC and other applicable federal,
state, and foreign laws; accordingly, a violation of this standard does not necessarily entail a violation of such laws.

4. Individual Responsibility

a) Persons subject to this standard have ethical and legal obligations to maintain the confidentiality of information about
the company and to not engage in transactions in company securities while in possession of material nonpublic
information. Each individual is responsible for making sure he/she complies with this standard and that any family
members or controlled entities whose transactions are subject to this standard also comply with this standard. In all
cases, the responsibility for compliance with this standard rests with that individual, and any action on the part of the
company, the designated oversight officer for this standard, or any other employee or director pursuant to this
standard (or otherwise) does not in any way constitute legal advice or insulate an individual from liability under
applicable securities laws. Insider trading laws apply to the individual trader, regardless of whether the company
provides assistance with any SEC filings associated with the trade, whether the company has pre-cleared a
transaction, or whether the company is involved in any aspect of the trading process or transaction in securities.

5. Statement of Standard

a) It is the policy of the company that no person designated by this standard or by the designated oversight officer as
subject to this standard who is aware of material nonpublic information relating to the company perform the following,
either directly or indirectly, through family members, controlled entities, or other persons or entities:

(1) Engage in transactions in company securities, except as otherwise specified in this standard under Section 8
(Transactions under Company Plans), Section 9 (Transactions in Mutual Funds and Gifts), and Section 12
(Programmatic Trading Plans)

(2) Recommend the purchase or sale of any company securities

(3) Disclose material nonpublic information to persons outside of the company, including, but not limited to, family,
friends, business associates, investors, and expert consulting or expert network firms, unless any such disclosure
is made
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in accordance with the company’s policies regarding the protection or authorized external disclosure of
information regarding the company

(4) Assist anyone engaged in the above activities

b) In addition, it is the policy of the company that no person designated as subject to this standard who, directly or
indirectly through the course of performance of work for the company by such person or such person’s family
member, learns of material nonpublic information about a company with which the company does business, including
a customer or supplier of the company, may trade in that company’s securities until the information becomes public
or is no longer material.

¢) There are no exceptions to this standard, except as specifically noted in this standard. Transactions that may be
necessary or justifiable for independent reasons (such as the need to raise money for an emergency expenditure) or
small transactions are not exceptions from this standard. The securities laws do not recognize any mitigating
circumstances and, in any event, even the appearance of an improper transaction must be avoided to preserve the
company’s reputation for adhering to the highest standards of ethical and lawful conduct.

d) This standard and its prohibition on certain transactions apply not only to transactions that may result in potential
monetary gains, but also to transactions that may result in the avoidance of a potential monetary loss.

6. Definition of Material Nonpublic Information

a) Information is considered “material” if a reasonable investor would consider that information important in making a
decision to buy, hold, or sell securities. Any information that could be expected to affect the company’s stock price,
whether it is positive or negative, should be considered material. There is no bright-line standard for assessing
materiality; rather, materiality is based on an assessment of all of the facts and circumstances and is often evaluated
by enforcement authorities with the benefit of hindsight. While it is not possible to define all categories of material
information, and it is a facts-and-circumstances inquiry, some examples of information that ordinarily would be
regarded as material are as follows:

(1) Projections of future earnings or losses or other earnings guidance
(2) Changes to previously announced earnings guidance
(3) A pending or proposed merger, acquisition, or tender offer

(4) A pending or proposed acquisition or disposition of a significant asset
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(5) A pending or proposed significant joint venture

(6) A company restructuring

(7) A significant regulatory order applicable to the company

(8) A change in dividend policy, the declaration of a stock split, or an offering of additional securities
(9) Bank borrowings or other financing transactions out of the ordinary course of business

(10) The establishment of a repurchase program for company securities

(11) A change in executive management or directors

(12) The discovery of a significant error in the company’s financial statements or notification the auditor’'s reports may
no longer be relied on

(13) A pending or threatened significant litigation or significant government investigation or the resolution of such
litigation or investigation

(14) The existence of severe liquidity concerns or conditions

(15) An event that may result in the creation of a significant reserve or write-off or other significant adjustments to or
entries on the financial statements

(16) The gain or loss of a significant customer or a substantial change in the amount of energy purchased by a large
customer

(17) Changes in debt ratings of the company
(18) Significant cybersecurity incidents

b) The above list is only illustrative; many other types of information may be considered material depending on the
circumstances, and some of the items listed above may in some circumstances not be material. The materiality of
particular information is subject to assessment on a regular basis.

7. When Information is Considered Public

a) Information that has not been disclosed to the public is generally considered nonpublic information. To establish the
information has been disclosed to the public, it is necessary to demonstrate the information has been widely
disseminated. Information generally would be considered widely disseminated if it has been disclosed through a
national newswire service (such as Business Wire),
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published in a widely available national newspaper or news website, or filed with the SEC and available on the SEC’s
website. While the SEC has stated disclosure on a company’s website may, in certain circumstances, constitute
adequate public disclosure, it is the company’s policy that publication on the company’s website is generally
insufficient, absent direction to the contrary from the designated oversight officer for this standard, to satisfy the
information dissemination requirement of this standard. Also, information would likely not be considered widely
disseminated if it is available only to the company’s employees or if it is only available to a select group of analysts,
brokers, or institutional investors. Information submitted to a state public utility commission or federal regulatory, even
if publicly available on the commission’s or regulator’s website, is also insufficient, absent direction to the contrary
from the designated oversight officer for this standard or as directed in an SEC filing, to satisfy the information
dissemination requirement of this standard.

b) After information is widely disseminated, it is still necessary to afford the investing public with sufficient time to absorb
the information. As a general rule, information should not be considered fully absorbed by the marketplace until two
full New York Stock Exchange (NYSE) trading sessions have passed following the time the information is first
disseminated to the public. For example, if the company announces financial earnings before trading begins on a
Tuesday, the first time an insider may buy or sell company securities is the opening of the market on Thursday
(assuming the person is not aware of other material nonpublic information at that time). However, if the company
announces earnings after trading begins on that Tuesday, the first time the insider may buy or sell company securities
is the opening of the market on Friday. Depending on the particular circumstances, the company may determine that
a longer or shorter period should apply to the release of specific material nonpublic information.

8. Transactions under Company Plans
a) This standard does not apply in the case of the following transactions, except as specifically noted:

(1) This standard does not apply to the exercise of a tax withholding right pursuant to which a person has elected to
have the company withhold shares subject to an option to satisfy tax withholding requirements. This standard
does apply, however, to any sale of stock as part of a broker-assisted cashless exercise of an option or any other
market sale for the purpose of generating the cash needed to pay the exercise price of an option.

(2) This standard does not apply to the vesting of restricted stock or RSUs or the exercise of a tax withholding right

pursuant to which a person elects to have the company withhold shares of stock to satisfy tax withholding
requirements
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upon the vesting of any restricted stock or RSUs. This standard does apply, however, to any market sale of
restricted stock or stock received upon vesting of RSUs.

(3) This standard does not apply to purchases of company securities in the company’s Employee Savings Plan (ESP)
(the 401(k) plan) resulting from periodic contributions of money to the plan pursuant to an established payroll
deduction election. This standard does apply, however, to the following elections made under the ESP:

(a) An election to increase or decrease the percentage of periodic contributions that will be allocated to the
company stock fund

(b) An election to make an intra-plan transfer of an existing account balance into or out of the company stock fund

(c) An election to rebalance an ESP portfolio containing company securities, if the rebalancing election would
result in a greater or lesser number of company securities being purchased or sold in the ESP compared with
the number of company securities that would be purchased or sold in the ESP pursuant to the prior election

(d) An election to borrow money against an ESP account if the loan will result in a liquidation of some or all of a
company stock fund balance

(e) An election to pre-pay a plan loan if the pre-payment will result in allocation of loan proceeds to the company
stock fund

(4) This standard does not apply to purchases of company securities under the company’s dividend reinvestment
plan resulting from the reinvestment of dividends paid on company securities. This standard does apply, however,
to voluntary purchases of company securities resulting from additional contributions elected to be made to the
dividend reinvestment plan and to the election to participate in the plan or increase or decrease the level of

participation in the plan. This standard also applies to the sale of any company securities purchased pursuant to
the dividend reinvestment plan.

9. Transactions in Mutual Funds and Gifts

a) Bona fide gifts are not transactions subject to this standard unless the person making the gift has reason to believe
the recipient intends to sell the company securities while the person making the gift is aware of material nonpublic
information or is otherwise not permitted to engage in a transaction in company securities pursuant to any provision
of this standard. Section 16 officers and directors must inform the designated oversight officer or the Corporate
Secretary of
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any gift of company securities immediately to ensure the gift is reported to the SEC within two business days as
required.

b) Further, transactions in mutual funds invested in company securities are not transactions subject to this standard,
provided company securities represent less than five percent of the aggregate market value of the holdings of the
mutual fund on the date of the transaction.

10. Special and Prohibited Transactions

a) The company has determined there is a heightened legal risk and/or the appearance of improper or inappropriate
conduct if the persons subject to this standard engage in certain types of transactions. Accordingly, the transactions
described in this Section 10 are prohibited, discouraged, or require pre-approval of the designated oversight officer, to
the extent stated in this Section 10.

10.1 Short Sales

a) Short sales of company securities (i.e., the sale of a security the seller does not own) may evidence an expectation on
the part of the seller that the securities will decline in value and therefore have the potential to signal to the market
that the seller lacks confidence in the company’s prospects. In addition, short sales may reduce a seller’s incentive to
seek to improve the company'’s performance. In addition, Section 16(c) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
(Exchange Act) prohibits officers and directors from engaging in short sales. For these reasons, short sales of
company securities by directors and all officers and senior managers of the company and their family members and
controlled entities are prohibited.

10.2 Publicly Traded Options

a) Given the relatively short term of publicly traded options, transactions in options may create the appearance that a
director or officer is trading based on material nonpublic information and focus a director’s or officer’s attention on
short-term performance at the expense of the company’s long-term objectives. Accordingly, transactions in put
options, call options, or other derivative securities, on an exchange or in any other organized market, by directors,
officers, and senior managers of the company and their family members and controlled entities are prohibited.

10.3 Hedging Transactions

a) Hedging strategies may allow directors and officers to own company securities technically but without the full benefits
and risks of such ownership. Therefore, directors and officers of the company and their family members and
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their controlled entities are not permitted to hedge their ownership of company securities. Hedging strategies include,
but are not limited to, zero-cost collars, equity swaps, straddles, prepaid variable forward contracts, security futures
contracts, exchange funds, forward sale contracts, and other financial transactions that allow a person to benefit (by
realizing a gain or avoiding a loss) from the devaluation of the company’s securities. Hedging strategies also include
any transaction for which a director or officer of the company or their family members or controlled entities are
prohibited from engaging under the applicable rules and regulations of the SEC or the listing rules of the NYSE. For
purposes of clarity, the prohibitions in this section do not apply to the grant or exercise of stock options as part of the
company'’s incentive or compensation plans.

10.4 Short-Term Trades

a) Any company securities purchased on the open market by a director or officer or their family members or controlled
entities who are subject to Section 16(b) of the Exchange Act must be held for a minimum period of six months. The
SEC's shortswing profit rules penalize Section 16 officers and directors who sell any company securities within six
months of a purchase by requiring such person to disgorge all profits to the company, whether or not the person had
knowledge of any material nonpublic information. Same-day cashless exercises of stock options are not subject to
this prohibition, provided there were no previous purchase transactions on the open market within six months of the
exercise date.

10.5 Margin Accounts and Pledged Securities

a) Because a margin sale or foreclosure sale may occur at a time when the pledgor is aware of material nonpublic
information or otherwise is not permitted to trade in company securities, directors, officers, and senior managers of
the company and their family members and controlled entities may not hold company securities in a margin account
or otherwise pledge company securities as collateral for a loan if there is a material risk that company securities could
be sold due to a margin call or foreclosure. For purposes of clarity, the foregoing restriction does not prohibit such
persons from holding securities in a margin account, including company securities, so long as there is no material risk
that company securities could be sold due to a margin call or foreclosure, whether through non-use of the margin
feature of the account or due to the specific exclusion of company securities from the margin feature or pledge.

10.6 Standing and Limit Orders

a) Standing and limit orders (except standing and limit orders under approved Rule 10b5-1 Plans, as described below)
create heightened risks for insider trading violations similar to the use of margin accounts. There is no control over
the timing
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of purchases or sales that result from standing instructions to a broker and, as a result, the broker could execute a
transaction when a director, officer, or other employee is in possession of material nonpublic information. The
company therefore discourages placing standing or limit orders on company securities. If a person subject to this
standard determines he/she must use a standing order or limit order, the order should be limited to a short duration
and should otherwise comply with the restrictions and procedures outlined in Section 11 (Additional Procedures).

11. Additional Procedures

a) The company has established additional procedures, set forth below, to assist the company in the administration of
this standard, to facilitate compliance with laws prohibiting insider trading while in possession of material nonpublic
information, and to avoid the appearance of any impropriety.

11.1 Pre-Clearance Procedures

a) Directors, officers, senior managers, and other employees designated from time-to-time by the designated oversight
officer, as well as the family members and controlled entities of such persons, may not engage in any transaction in
company securities without first obtaining pre-clearance of the transaction from the designated oversight officer. A
request for pre-clearance shall be submitted to the designated oversight officer at least two business days in advance
of the proposed transaction or such lesser period as the designated oversight officer shall accept under the
circumstances in his/her sole discretion. The designated oversight officer is under no obligation to approve a
transaction submitted for pre-clearance and may determine not to permit the transaction. If a person seeks pre-
clearance and permission to engage in the transaction is denied, he/she shall refrain from initiating any transaction in
company securities. If a transaction is approved by the designated oversight officer, such approval may be rescinded
at any time upon written notice and shall expire after 10 business days.

b) When a request for pre-clearance is made, the requestor should carefully consider whether he/she may be aware of
any material nonpublic information about the company and should fully describe those circumstances to the
designated oversight officer. If the requestor is subject to Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act, the requestor should
also indicate whether he/she has effected any non-exempt “opposite-way” transactions within the past six months and
should be prepared to report the proposed transaction to the SEC on an appropriate Form 4 or Form 5. Directors and
officers should also be prepared to comply with SEC Rule 144 and file a Form 144, if necessary, at the time of or
prior to any sale. While the designated oversight officer or his/her designee may assist with the completion of such
filings,
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the requestor shall be deemed responsible for the accurate and timely completion and submission of such filings.

c) If the designated oversight officer is not present or available to consider a pre-clearance request, an individual may
request pre-clearance from the company’s corporate secretary, who is delegated authority for such decisions by this
standard.

11.2 Quarterly Trading Restrictions and the Blackout Period

a) Directors, officers, senior managers, and other employees specified by the designated oversight officer as subject to
this restriction, as well as their family members and controlled entities, may not conduct any transactions involving the
company’s securities (other than as specified by this standard) during the period beginning 15 calendar days prior to
the last calendar day of each fiscal quarter and ending after the completion of two full trading sessions on the NYSE
after the time of the public release of the company’s earnings results for that quarter (referred to as the blackout
period). In other words, these persons may only conduct transactions in company securities during the window period
beginning after the completion of the second full trading session following the public release of the company’s
quarterly earnings and ending on the close of the next fiscal quarter.

b) Under certain very limited and exceptional circumstances, a person subject to this restriction may be permitted to trade
during a blackout period but only if the designated oversight officer concludes in his/her sole discretion the person
does not possess material nonpublic information. Persons wishing to trade during a blackout period must contact the
designated oversight officer (or, in his/her absence, the corporate secretary) for approval at least two business days
in advance of any proposed transaction involving company securities. The individual effecting the transaction in
company securities shall be responsible for compliance with this standard and applicable laws, notwithstanding pre-
clearance of the transaction by the designated oversight officer or corporate secretary, or their respective designees.

c¢) Ordinarily, the persons subject to the blackout period will receive an email, sent at the direction of the designated
oversight officer or his/her designee, alerting them of the commencement or completion of a blackout period.
However, it is the responsibility of all persons subject to the blackout period restriction to identify and observe the
blackout period, regardless of whether they receive an email or other reminder.

d) All directors, officers, and senior managers are subject to the quarterly trading restrictions and blackout periods

described in this section of the standard. The company will maintain a list of all other employees subject to the
quarterly trading restrictions included in this section of the standard. In general, those employees
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who have, or may reasonably be deemed to have, access to material nonpublic information will be subject to the
quarterly trading and blackout period restrictions. This includes, but is not limited to most employees of the Legal,
Rates and Regulatory, Strategic Analysis, Corporate Communications, and Finance and Accounting departments.
While these employees typically receive an email identifying them as subject to the quarterly trading and blackout
period restrictions, it is each employee’s responsibility to confirm whether he/she is subject to the restriction in
advance of engaging in a transaction in company securities. Employees may obtain information on the applicability of
the blackout period restriction from the designated oversight officer.

11.3 Event-Specific Trading Restriction Periods

a) From time to time, an event may occur that is material to the company and is known by only a few directors, officers,
and employees. So long as the event remains material and nonpublic, the persons subject to this standard who are
aware of the event or are designated by the designated oversight officer may not engage in transactions in company
securities even if not in a blackout period. In addition, the company’s financial results may be sufficiently material in a
particular fiscal quarter such that, in the judgment of the designated oversight officer, designated persons should
refrain from trading in company securities even sooner than the typical blackout period described previously. In that
situation, the designated oversight officer may notify these persons that they should not trade in the company’s
securities, with or without disclosing the reason for the restriction. The existence of an event-specific trading
restriction period or extension of a blackout period will not be announced to the company as a whole and should not
be communicated to any other person. Even if the designated oversight officer has not designated an individual as a
person who should not trade due to an event-specific restriction, the individual should not trade while aware of
material nonpublic information.

11.4 ESP Blackout Periods

a) To the extent required under Regulation BTR, all directors and officers are prohibited from trading in the company's
equity securities during a blackout period imposed under an “individual account” retirement or pension plan of the
company, during which at least 50% of the plan participants are unable to purchase, sell, or otherwise acquire or
transfer an interest in equity securities of the company, due to a temporary suspension of trading by the company or
the plan fiduciary. Any exception to the prohibition contained in this Section 11.4(a) must be approved by the
designated oversight officer or the corporate secretary. The designated oversight officer or the corporate secretary
may give such permission in accordance with rules adopted by the SEC under the Sarbanes—Oxley Act of 2002.
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11.5 Exceptions

a) The quarterly trading restrictions and event-driven trading restrictions do not apply to those transactions described in
Section 8 (Transactions under Company Plans) and Section 9 (Transactions in Mutual Funds and Gifts). Further, the
requirement for pre-clearance, quarterly trading restrictions, and event-driven trading restrictions do not apply to
transactions conducted pursuant to approved Rule 10b5-1 plans described in Section 12 (Programmatic Trading
Plans).

12. Programmatic Trading Plans

a) Rule 10b5-1 under the Exchange Act provides a defense from insider trading liability under Rule 10b-5. To be eligible
to rely on this defense, a person subject to this standard must enter into a Rule 10b5-1 plan for transactions in
company securities that meets certain conditions specified in the Rule (referred to as a Rule 10b5-1 Plan) and is
acceptable to the designated oversight officer. If the plan meets the requirements of Rule 10b5-1 and is acceptable to
the designated oversight officer, company securities may be purchased or sold without regard to certain insider
trading restrictions. A Rule 10b5-1 Plan must be entered into when the person entering into the plan is not aware of
material nonpublic information. The plan must specify the amount, pricing, and timing of transactions in advance or
delegate discretion on these matters to an independent third party.

b) Any Rule 10b5-1 Plan must be submitted to the designated oversight officer (or, in his/her absence, the corporate
secretary) for approval no less than five business days prior to the entry into the Rule 10b5-1 Plan. No further pre-
approval of transactions conducted pursuant to a qualified Rule 10b5-1 Plan will be required.

13. Post-Termination Transactions

a) This standard continues to apply to transactions in company securities even after the director’s, officer’s, or other
employee’s termination of service to the company. If an individual is in possession of material nonpublic information
when his/her service terminates, that individual may not trade in company securities until that information has become
public or is no longer material, other than as described in this standard. Also, certain SEC reporting obligations and
short-swing profit liability may continue following termination of service to the company.

14. Compliance Officer; Company Assistance
a) The company’s general counsel is the designated oversight officer for this standard and is responsible for oversight of

training, compliance monitoring, and the annual review of this standard. The general counsel may delegate all or any
part of his/her
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duties under this standard to one or more officers or employees of the company. By specific delegation, the
company’s corporate secretary may at any time take the actions and make the determinations of the oversight officer
in sections 11 and 12 of this standard.

b) Any person who has a question about this standard or its application to any proposed transaction may request
additional guidance from the designated oversight officer, Julia Hilton, at ext. [***], or the Corporate Secretary, Cheryl
Thompson, at ext. [***]. No company assistance, whether originating from the Legal department or otherwise, should
be construed as legal advice to an individual, does not create a relationship of lawyer and client between the
requestor and the person providing information, and does not insulate an individual from liability under applicable
securities laws.

15. Posting the Standard

a) This standard shall be posted on the Spillway. Relevant training materials will be available at such time or times as
shall be determined by the designated oversight officer for this standard.

16. Reporting; No Retaliation

a) Any person who believes a violation of this standard has occurred shall report the violation promptly to the company’s
general counsel. Those who ask questions or report concerns about compliance with this standard are following a
requirement of the company’s Code of Business Conduct. The company will not permit retaliation against any person
who, in good faith, reports information about actual or suspected violations of this standard. Discouraging anyone
from seeking help or reporting concerns is a violation of the Code of Business Conduct and is grounds for discipline,
including termination of employment.
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Exhibit 21.1

SUBSIDIARIES OF IDACORP, INC."

(1) Idaho Power Company, an ldaho corporation

(2) Idaho Energy Resources Co., a Wyoming corporation (a subsidiary of Idaho Power Company)
(3) lda-West Energy Company, an ldaho corporation

(4) IDACORP Financial Services, Inc., an Idaho corporation

* The above list of subsidiaries of IDACORP, Inc. omits subsidiaries which, considered in the aggregate as a single subsidiary, would not
constitute a significant subsidiary as of the end of the year covered by this report.



Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference in Registration Statement Nos. 333-275318 and 333-264984-01 on Form S-3 and Registration Statement
Nos. 333-125259, and 333-159855 on Form S-8 of our reports dated February 20, 2025, relating to the financial statements of IDACORP, Inc., and the
effectiveness of IDACORP, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting, appearing in this Annual Report on Form 10-K of IDACORP, Inc. for the year
ended December 31, 2024.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP
Boise, Idaho
February 20, 2025



Exhibit 23.2

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference in Registration Statement No. 333-264984 on Form S-3 and Registration Statement No. 333-66496 on
Form S-8 of our reports dated February 20, 2025, relating to the financial statements of Idaho Power Company and the effectiveness of Idaho Power
Company's internal control over financial reporting, appearing in this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Idaho Power Company for the year ended
December 31, 2024.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP
Boise, Idaho
February 20, 2025



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION

I, Lisa A. Grow, certify that:

1.

| have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of IDACORP, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant's other certifying officer and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-
15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially
affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant's other certifying officer and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control
over financial reporting.

Date: February 20, 2025 By:/s/ Lisa A. Grow

Lisa A. Grow

President and Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION

I, Brian R. Buckham, certify that:

1.

| have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of IDACORP, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant's other certifying officer and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-
15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially
affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant's other certifying officer and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control
over financial reporting.

Date: February 20, 2025 By:/s/ Brian R. Buckham

Brian R. Buckham

Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, and Treasurer



Exhibit 31.3

CERTIFICATION

I, Lisa A. Grow, certify that:

1.

| have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Idaho Power Company;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant's other certifying officer and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-
15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially
affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant's other certifying officer and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control
over financial reporting.

Date: February 20, 2025 By:/s/ Lisa A. Grow

Lisa A. Grow

President and Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 31.4

CERTIFICATION

I, Brian R. Buckham, certify that:

1.

| have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Idaho Power Company;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant's other certifying officer and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-
15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially
affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant's other certifying officer and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control
over financial reporting.

Date: February 20, 2025 By:/s/ Brian R. Buckham

Brian R. Buckham

Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, and Treasurer



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of IDACORP, Inc. (the "Company") on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2024 (the "Report"), I, Lisa A.
Grow, President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

/s/ Lisa A. Grow

Lisa A. Grow
President and Chief Executive Officer
February 20, 2025



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of IDACORP, Inc. (the "Company") on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2024 (the "Report"), I, Brian R.
Buckham, Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, and Treasurer of the Company, certify that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

/s/ Brian R. Buckham

Brian R. Buckham
Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, and Treasurer
February 20, 2025



Exhibit 32.3

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Idaho Power Company (the "Company") on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2024 (the "Report"), I,
Lisa A. Grow, President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

/s/ Lisa A. Grow

Lisa A. Grow
President and Chief Executive Officer
February 20, 2025



Exhibit 32.4

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Idaho Power Company (the "Company") on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2024 (the "Report"), I,
Brian R. Buckham, Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, and Treasurer of the Company, certify that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

/s/ Brian R. Buckham

Brian R. Buckham
Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, and Treasurer
February 20, 2025



Exhibit 95.1

Mine Safety Disclosures Required by the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act

Idaho Power is the parent company of Idaho Energy Resources Co. (IERC0), a joint-owner of Bridger Coal Company (BCC), which mines coal at the
Bridger Coal Mine and processing facility (Mine) near Rock Springs, Wyoming. IERCo owns a one-third interest in BCC. The Mine is comprised of the
Bridger surface operations. Underground operations are no longer conducted. Day-to-day operation and management of coal mining and processing
operations at the Mine are conducted through BCC's joint owner. Operation of the Mine is regulated by the Mine Safety and Health Administration
(MSHA) under the Federal Mine Safety and Health Act of 1977 (Mine Safety Act). MSHA inspects the Mine on a regular basis and may issue citations,
notices, orders, or any combination thereof, when it believes a violation has occurred under the Mine Safety Act. Monetary penalties are assessed by
MSHA for citations. The severity and assessment of penalties may be reduced or, in some cases, dismissed through the contest and appeal process.
Amounts are reported regardless of whether BCC has challenged or appealed the matter.

The table below summarizes the number of citations, notices, and orders issued, and penalties assessed, by MSHA for the Mine under the indicated
provisions of the Mine Safety Act, and other data for the Mine, during the year ended December 31, 2024. Legal actions pending before the Federal Mine
Safety and Health Review Commission (FMSHRC) are as of December 31, 2024. Due to timing and other factors, the data may not agree with the mine
data retrieval system maintained by MSHA at www.msha.gov.

Twelve-month period ended
December 31, 2024 (unaudited)

Surface Mine (MSHA ID No.
4800677)

Mine Safety Act Citations and Orders:
Section 104(a) Significant & Substantial Citations (V) _
Section 104(b) Orders @ _
Section 104(d) Citations & Orders @ _

Section 107(a) Imminent Danger Orders ) _

Total Value of Proposed MSHA Assessments (in thousands) $ —
Legal Actions Pending —
Legal Actions Issued During Period —
Legal Actions Closed During Period =

Number of Fatalities —

@ For alleged violations of a mandatory mining safety standard or regulation where such violation contributed to a discrete safety hazard and there exists a reasonable likelihood
that the hazard will result in an injury or illness and there is a reasonable likelihood that such injury will be of a reasonably serious nature.

@ For alleged failure to totally abate the subject matter of a Mine Safety Act Section 104(a) citation within the period specified in the citation or as subsequently extended.
@ For an alleged unwarrantable failure (i.e., aggravated conduct constituting more than ordinary negligence) to comply with a mining safety standard or regulation.

®) The existence of any condition or practice in a coal or other mine that could reasonably be expected to cause death or serious physical harm if normal mining operations were
permitted to proceed in the area before such condition or practice is eliminated.

For the year ended December 31, 2024, the Mine did not receive written notice from MSHA of (i) a flagrant violation under Section 110(b)(2) of the Mine
Safety Act; (ii) a pattern of violations of mandatory health or safety standards that are of such a nature as could have significantly and substantially
contributed to the cause and effect of coal or other mine health or safety hazards under Section 104(e) of the Mine Safety Act; or (iii) the potential to have
such a pattern.



